
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

September 6, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Mia Wallgren, Practitioner of Christian Science Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Senior Center - Celebrating 30 Years

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

September 6, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Mia Wallgren, Practitioner of Christian Science Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Senior Center - Celebrating 30 Years
ii. Present National Fire Academy Certification to Paul Schroer

c. Community Presentations
i. 2015 Annual Police Department Report

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the August 3, 2016 Regular Council Meeting and Special Council Workshop Meeting

on August 24, 2016
b. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers

ii. Present National Fire Academy Certification to Paul Schroer

c. Community Presentations
i. 2015 Annual Police Department Report

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the August 3, 2016 Regular Council Meeting and Special Council Workshop Meeting 

on August 24, 2016
b. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers

1

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11694
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11306
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11306
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=10959
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11484


c. Resolution 16-26: Acknowledging the Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization
(Island RTPO) and authorizing membership therein

d. Appointment:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Collector 3 - Ashlie Bird
e. Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 2 – Bruce Freeman
f. Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 3 - Cecil Pierce
g. Authorize Agreement with Tim Shelley, Jr. for Videographer Services
h. First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Replacement at Oak Harbor Library

and Hayes Hall
i. Public Defense Services - New Procedure for Conflict Attorneys
j. Purchase Authorization-Jail Van Price Change

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. Mayor
b. Councilmembers
c. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1782: Amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 Effect of Approval and OHMC 
21.40.020 Timeline for Submittal of Final Plat and Extensions for Completion of
Improvements.

b. Ordinance No. 1783: Budget Amendment for Skagit Valley College/Library HVAC upgrade

c. Resolution 16-26: Acknowledging the Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization 
(Island RTPO) and authorizing membership therein

d. Appointment:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Collector 3 - Ashlie Bird
e. Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 2 – Bruce Freeman
f. Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 3 - Cecil Pierce
g. Authorize Agreement with Tim Shelley, Jr. for Videographer Services
h. First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Replacement at Oak Harbor Library 

and Hayes Hall
i. Public Defense Services - New Procedure for Conflict Attorneys
j. Purchase Authorization-Jail Van Price Change

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. Mayor
b. Councilmembers
c. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1782: Amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 Effect of Approval and OHMC 
21.40.020 Timeline for Submittal of Final Plat and Extensions for Completion of
Improvements.

b. Ordinance No. 1783: Budget Amendment for Skagit Valley College/Library HVAC upgradeb. Ordinance No. 1783: Budget Amendment for Skagit Valley College/Library HVAC upgrade
and replacement

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 7
b. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15 for 

Interpretive Center Design
c. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Mandatory Council Review of LTAC Membership - OHMC 2.66.030
b. 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program Referral to Council - 45 day period

ADJOURN

b. Ordinance No. 1783: Budget Amendment for Skagit Valley College/Library HVAC upgrade
and replacement

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 7
b. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15 for 

Interpretive Center Design
c. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Mandatory Council Review of LTAC Membership - OHMC 2.66.030
b. 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program Referral to Council - 45 day period

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City Services. 
Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, and any other 
applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the scheduled meeting by 

contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539.

2

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11484
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11484
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11570
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11590
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11644
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11702
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11671
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11671
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11621
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11692
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11213
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11588
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11588
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11588
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11601
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11601
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11603
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11605
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11605
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11606
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11618
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1368&iID=11617


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2015 Annual Police Department 
Report

FROM: Terry Gallagher, Interim Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review 2015 Annual Police Department Report attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Annual Police Department Report presented to City Council.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.c.i
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2015 Annual Police Department 
Report

FROM: Terry Gallagher, Interim Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review 2015 Annual Police Department Report attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Annual Police Department Report presented to City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. OHPD 2015 Annual Report

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. OHPD 2015 Annual Report

3

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472509396x_at.pdf


OHPD 2015 

O  H  P  D  

Annu a l  Repo r t

4



 

Oak Harbor Police 
Department 

860 S.E. Barrington Drive 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

 

Phone:  360.279.4600 

Fax:  360.279.4609 

www.OakHarbor.org 

5



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
             
1. About the OHPD 

Mission Statement & Values ------ 4 
Message From The Chief ---------- 5 
Facts in Brief ----------------------- 6 
Budgets  ------------------------- 7 
Organizational Chart -------------- 8 
Staffing Challenges ---------------- 9 
Community Advisory Board ------ 10 
Personnel Updates---------------- 12 
 

2. Administration Division  
Personnel  ------------------------ 14 
 

3. Community Services 
Community Service Officer ------ 15 
School Resource Officer ---------- 18 
Animal Control Officer ------------ 22 
  A.C. Holding Facility ------------ 23 
National Night Out ---------------- 24 
Centennial Open House ---------- 26 
Chaplain  -------------------------- 30 
 

4. Investigation Division 
Information & Statistics ---------- 31 
Drug Enforcement Officer -------- 31 
Detectives ------------------------ 32 

 
5. Jail Division 

Information & Statistics ---------- 36 
 

6. Records Division 
Information & Statistics ---------- 38 

 
 
7. Patrol Division 

Information ----------------------- 40 
Patrol Sergeants ----------------- 41 
Patrol Officers -------------------- 42 
 

8. Special Units 
High Risk Entry Team (HRET) --- 48 

 
9. Auxiliary Units 

Citizen Volunteers ---------------- 52 
Reserve Officer Unit ------------- 53 
Explorer Post --------------------- 53 

 
10. Department Updates 

FBI National Academy ----------- 54 
State Appointment --------------- 55 
Patrol Fleet ----------------------- 56 

 
11. Traffic Activity 

Collisions  ------------------------ 57 
Reportable Collisions ------------- 58 
DUI Arrests ----------------------- 58 
Accident Enforcement ------------ 59 
 

12. Statistics 
Calls for Service ------------------ 60 
Vehicle Loss Statement ---------- 62 
Property Loss Statement -------- 62 
Part 1 Crimes --------------------- 63 
Other Crimes --------------------- 63 
Arrest Classifications ------------- 63 
 

13. Photos 
Photos  ---------------------------- 64 

O  H  P  D  

2015 A  R  

6



4 

 

 

1   ~    A   T  O  H  

                        P  D  

O  H  P  D  M  S    V  

 

M  S  

D    C  S    S  

 

C  V  

To Involve the Community in All Policing Ac vi es Which Directly Affect the Quality of Life 

To Preserve and Advance the Principles of Democracy 

To Maintain Crime Preven on as Our Primary Goal 

To Manage Our Resources Carefully and Effec vely 

To Involve the Employees in Ma ers That Affect Job Sa sfac on and Effec veness 

To Maintain the Highest Levels of Integrity and Professionalism in All Aspects of Our Opera ons 

“The Oak Harbor Police Department embodies everything I 

think a police department should be. The officers who work 

this department are some of the finest people I have ever met, 

and I am honored to be working with them. The Oak Harbor 

Police Department is ‘your police department’, and I would 

encourage any one of you to stop in and say ‘hi’ if you have the 

opportunity.”  

~Chief Ed Green 

7



5 

 

 

M  F  T  C  

It seems like yesterday when I was wri ng to you about the 2014 annual report. Now I am here to talk about 2015, 
and the year that we had.  
 

When I arrived in Oak Harbor I commi ed to you that our focus would be the community. Our own core values 
require that our community be ac vely involved in how we operate: 
 

Core Values 
 

To involve the community in all policing ac vi es which directly affect the quality of life. 

To preserve and advance the principals of democracy. 

To maintain crime preven on as our primary goal. 

To manage our resources carefully and effec vely. 

To involve our employees in ma ers that affect the job sa sfac on and effec veness. 

To maintain the highest levels of integrity and professionalism in all aspects of our opera ons.   

 

My department Mission Statement is: 
 

Dedicated to Community Safety and Service 
 

So the community must always be at the forefront of all we do. This way of thinking has driven me to get the 
community more involved with the police department. In 2015 we held our first Open House. The whole event was 
focused on the community and children. It was a huge success.   
 

During the Open House I had numerous people come to me and ask, “What can we do to make Oak Harbor safer?” 
The answer is simple, become involved. If people are willing to commit to their community to keep it clean and safe 
we all win.  
 

We are happy to report that people are ac vely becoming involved. We have a very ac ve Volunteer Group of 
people who assist us; we have a very ac ve Community Advisory Board (CAB) that meets with me monthly to tell 
me what the community wants and is thinking, and people are calling us. They are calling to report things and the 
criminal element has become aware.  
 

Our calls, which are reflec ve of incidents taking place in the community, dropped 5.6% in 2015 from 2014. This 
does not mean we were not busy. As you read through this annual report you will see the things we have been 
doing this past year. It does mean the ci zens of Oak Harbor are more involved in their community and its policing 
than ever before. The results are that we, as a team, are crea ng a safer place to live.  
 

Thank you for your commitment.  
 
 
 
 
Edgar J. Green 
Chief of Police 

1 ~ O  H  P  D  

8



6 

 

 

1 ~ F  I  B  

Oak Harbor 
City Limits 
9.42 Square 
  Miles 

City 
Popula on 
Est. 22,306 
As of July 
2014 

Miles of 
Streets 
68.74 

Local Business 
Licenses  
On File 
1,630  

Public Schools 
Nine 

Students 
Enrolled 
5,673 

Classroom 
Teachers 

306 

NAS Whidbey 
7,200 Military Personnel 
1,200 Civilian Employees 

1,200 Contractors 

Island County 
Popula on 
79,275 

 

Yearly Visitors 
to Decep on 
Pass State Park  

2,639,420 

Skagit Valley 
College 
1,200 

Students 
74 Staff 

9



7 

 

 

1 ~ 2015 B  

EXPENDITURES 

 Budgeted  Spent  Balance  % 

2015  $5,150,375.00  $5,311,983.20  ‐$161,608.20*  103.14% 

2014  $5,038,267.00  $4,938,685.64  $99,581.36  98.02% 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 

EXPENDITURES 

 Budgeted  Spent  Balance  % 

2015  $248,631.00  $234,640.56  $13,990.44  94.37% 

2014  $243,914.00  $254,087.59  ‐$10,173.59  104.17% 

ANIMAL CONTROL 

* In December the Collec ve Bargaining 

agreement for the Commissioned      

Officers was se led. Retroac ve pay was 

paid out totaling over $295,000.00.      

Excluding this expense our balance was 

$5,016,733.27 or 97.4% of authorized 

expenditures. 

10



8 

 

 

O  

C  

O  H    

P    

D  Chief of
Police

1 Records & 
Evidence

Supervisor

ADMINISTRATION

Investigations Division

Support Services Division

Jail Division

1 Jail Sergeant 

1 Detective
Sergeant

OPERATIONS Captain 

1 Community
Service Sgt. 

 (Not Funded ~ Vacant)

COMMUNITY SERVICE TEAM

Authorized Force (38):

26 Commissioned Personnel

12 Non-Commissioned Personnel

PATROL

PATROL DIVISION

1 Patrol
Sergeant

1 Patrol
Sergeant

1 Patrol
Sergeant

1 Patrol
Sergeant

Notes: The positions noted in yellow (Community Service 
Officer, Traffic Safety Officer & Drug Enforcement Officer) 
are funded positions that are currently vacant due to 
staffing needs on the operations side. One Police Officer 
has been on Military leave for all of 2015, leaving that 
position vacant.

The position noted in orange (Community Service Sgt.) is 
not funded and vacant. In the past this position was 
“borrowed” from the patrol side, we had 3 Sergeant’s 
overseeing 4 squads.

3 Patrol
Officers

3 Patrol
Officers

3 Patrol
Officers

3 Patrol
Officers

6
Jailers

2 Records
Info. Specialists

1
Receptionist

1 Drug
Enforcement

Officer (Vacant)

3
Detectives

Administrative
Assistant

1 Animal Control 
Officer (ACO)

1 Traffic
Safety Officer 

(TSO ~ Vacant) 

1 Community
Service Officer 
(CSO ~ Vacant)

1 School Resource 
Officer (SRO)

11



9 

 

 

S  C  

1 ~ D  T  C    S  

Our mission statement says we are “Dedicated to Community Safety and Service”. To fulfill this     

mission we must ensure that there are enough officers working patrol to meet community 

expecta ons.  

In 2015 this became very challenging. We experienced some significant staffing issues, forcing a      

realignment of our personnel to make sure the community’s needs were met.  

One officer, ac ve in the military reserves, was given orders (in 2014) and called upon to serve our 

country. He was out for all of 2015 (he is slated to return in 2016).  

In April of 2015 Oak Harbor police officer Chris Peabody le  the department to take a posi on with 

the Island County Sheriff’s Office.  

In August 2015 Officer Dennis Dickinson re red from law enforcement a er 20 years of service.  

During this  me we also experienced the loss of two other individuals who did not sa sfactorily   

complete training during their proba onary period.   

The la er part of the year proved to be an exci ng  me as two officers went off on paternity leave 

eventually adding to our OHPD family. However this did leave us scrambling for two more officer   

posi ons to back fill (temporarily).  

All of this ac vity created a scenario where we had to realign staff to cover our basic patrol needs.  

Officers dedicated to working Community Service, Traffic and Drug Enforcement were all moved back 

into various posi ons to support patrol, allowing us to meet our minimum staffing requirements.  

Staffing is, and will always be an issue for law enforcement. It is impera ve for officer safety and 

community safety that a certain number of officers are available for calls at any given  me of day.  

There are a lot of people who want to get into the law enforcement profession, but the  me it takes 

to complete the hiring process coupled with a reliance on the State of Washington funding for     

academies and specialized training o en creates a situa on where a ri on will outpace our ability to 

hire. That was the case in 2015. Fortunately 2016 is looking be er because of some aggressive steps 

we took to begin filling these posi ons.  

These ac ons would not have been possible without the assistance of the Civil Service Commission 

and the Civil Service Secretary, Kim Andrews. They understood the dire situa on that was beginning 

to develop and worked with us to ensure we were adver sing for and hiring people as quickly as   

possible to keep Oak Harbor safe.  

By the end of 2016 the Oak Harbor Police Department should once again be fully staffed.  

12



10 

 

 

The Police Community Advisory Board (CAB) was established  in 1991 by the Mayor and City Council, with the goal 

of establishing a close rela onship between the Police Department and the community. All of the Board members 

are chosen as  “stakeholders” from the community, including one High School student (and alternate), re red 

ci zens, educators, military representa ves, business owners or managers, and several City residents. 

 

In 2015 the Commi ee members ac vely interacted with the community in various capaci es: 

Explained role of CAB and solicited input from members of the Oak Harbor Yacht Club, Decep on Pass Sail and 

Power Squadron, Oak Harbor Kiwanis Club, North Whidbey Sunrise Rotary Club as well as local business owners 

Addressed mee ng of Eagle Crest Homeowners Associa on and explained role of CAB, Neighborhood 

Watch, and Vaca on Watch services provided by Ci zen Volunteers 

Spoke with the landowner adjacent to Freund Marsh Park about concerns over illegal camping in the park and 

the safety of visitors walking the Freund Marsh Trail, voiced these concerns to the CAB and a ained agreement 

on rou ne officer patrols of Freund Marsh Park; addi onally, they twice cleaned up li er and debris le  by 

illegal campers in Freund Marsh Park 

Par cipated in Na onal Night Out & the OHPD Centennial Open House 

Distributed comment cards for feedback from the community 

Par cipated in a mul tude of conversa ons regarding our goals as a community advisory board, literature to 

help bring awareness to the board and informa on gathering for the department 

Enhance police / community rela ons. 

Promote public awareness of the City’s police services and programs. 

Serve as the liaison between the police department and the community. 

T  C  A  B  

1 ~ C  A  B  / CAB 

Ed Johnson  Gene Barner  Jeff Campbell  Nora Daniel 

13



11 

 

 

 Contact any of the Board members by 
phone or eMail. We want to hear 
from you. Please give us your 
comments and concerns. 

 
Phone Line: 

360.279.4644 

eMail: 
CAB@OakHarbor.org 

2015  

Board  Members  

Chair: Ed Johnson 

Gene Barner 

Jeffrey Campbell 

Nora Daniel 

Susan Gerard 

Marty Malloy 

Bob Olson 

Lucas Yonkman 

Students: Sydney Prevost & Chase Powell 

Member Posi on ~ Vacant 

Susan Gerard  Lucas Yonkman Bob Olson 

1 ~ C  A  B  / CAB 

Marty Malloy 

Sydney Prevost  Chase Powell 

“Being on the CAB has definitely opened my eyes up 

to issues in our community. It has given me a sense 

of involvement and belonging. I know that being on 

the CAB is my way of giving back to and contribu ng 

to the community and I'm grateful for the 

opportunity!” Sydney Prevost 

14



12 

 

 

1 ~ P  U  

 
 

2015  
Department  
Milestones  

 
January 

Bill Wilkie 
25 Year Service 

 
February 

Steve Nordstrand 
30 Year Service 

 
May 

Mike Bailey 
20 Year Service 

 
Terry Sampson 
10 Year Service 

 
September 

Jon Valenzuela 
10 Year Service 

 
October 

Greg Woodward 
15 Year Service 

15



13 

 

 

1 ~ P  U  

Chris Peabody 

Officer Peabody joined the Oak 

Harbor Police Department on 

November 1, 2012. He was 

assigned to patrol and the High 

Risk Entry Team. A er a couple 

of years with the department 

he opted to leave to take a 

posi on with the Island County 

Sheriff’s Department as a 

detec ve. Officer Peabody was 

a great asset to OHPD, 

fortunately he is s ll on 

Whidbey Island and is s ll an 

asset to the law enforcement 

community within Island 

County. 

Dennis Dickinson 

Officer Dickinson started his career with the Oak Harbor 

Police Department in November 1998. Prior to that, Officer 

Dickinson worked in civil service with the Oak Harbor 

School District. Officer Dickinson worked a variety of 

assignments but will be remembered as a great School 

Resource Officer. On August 31, 2015 Officer Dickinson 

made the decision to re re from public service a er 20 

years. 

16



14 

 

 

2   ~    A  D  

C  E  G    

Chief Green was born in Los Angeles, CA, and went to work at the Los Angeles 

Police Department  in 1986. He worked  there un l 1993, when he moved  to 

Washington State and se led in Port Townsend with his wife Christy and their 

two daughters. He worked  for  the City of Port Townsend Police Department 

from 1993  to 2012 as a bicycle patrol officer, a  regular patrol officer, and a 

training  officer.  In  2001,  he  was  promoted  to  Sergeant,  and  in  2006,  to 

Administra ve  Sergeant  (second  in  command).  On  October  29,  2012,  Chief 

Green was hired by  the City of Oak Harbor as  the Police Chief.   Chief Green 

holds a BA in Social Science from Washington State University.  

Captain Teri Gardner 

Captain Gardner moved to Oak Harbor in January of 1979, and has lived in the 

community for 37 years.  She was hired by the Oak Harbor Police Department 

as a police officer in February of 1996.  While on patrol, she held collateral 

du es of bicycle patrol, Field Training Officer, and quarried for the K‐9 dog.  In 

June of 1999, she was selected for a Detec ve posi on specializing in Sex 

Crimes and Child Forensic Interviewing.  Another collateral duty she held while 

in the Detec ve Division was the Hostage / Crisis Nego a ons Team.  In 

November of 2008, she was promoted to Detec ve Sergeant un l April of 

2014, when she was promoted to Captain. 

Administra ve Assistant Meg Massey  

Meg was born and raised in northern New Jersey. She moved to Port 

Townsend in 1999. She holds a BA in Psychology from the College of Mt. St. 

Vincent in  Riverdale, New York. She has many years of experience as an 

Administra ve Assistant for companies large and small ranging from Warner 

Bros. Records in Manha an to MarinerBank, a local community bank in Port 

Townsend. Meg was hired in October 2013 and she and her husband Preston 

live in Oak Harbor.  

17



15 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

C   S  O   ( C S O )  

Jennifer Yzaguirre; CSO 

Child ID Program 

Would you know what to do if your child went missing, wandered away in a crowd, or simply was late returning 

home from the playground? The first moments are most crucial in helping to track them down and begin an 

inves ga ve search.  For parents in  me of crisis, it is not easy to recall the necessary informa on to help find 

their child.   
 

The Oak Harbor Police Department recently purchased a Child ID kit to assist families in our community.  The Child 

ID kit is an advanced digital fingerprin ng and photo storage database system. The system records data of the 

child’s height, weight, FBI quality fingerprints, a photo of the child, and vital facts.  The informa on is printed out 

and given to the parent/guardian for safekeeping.  If a child ever goes missing, parents supply the file to the 

department and detec ves have the necessary informa on to launch a Missing Person or Amber alert.   
 

This is a service the Oak Harbor Police Department will be offering the 

community.  There is no charge involved. Please follow out Facebook page 

for future announcements on the dates and  mes this service will be 

offered. 

Community Service Officer 

Officer Yzaguirre was assigned to Patrol the first quarter 

of the year to assist with staffing shortages. The 

remainder of the year she was able to resume her 

posi on working with the community and was the driving 

force behind Na onal Night Out, the Child ID Program 

and the department’s Centennial Open House. The last 

quarter of the year she was home with her new baby.   

18



16 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

P  D  D  O   B  

Prescrip on Drug Drop‐Off Box 

The OHPD provides a service to the community for safe 

disposal of several items. Accepted are the following: 

prescrip on drugs, over‐the‐counter medica ons, 

vitamins, and medica ons for pets.  Not accepted are 

the following: needles, liquids, Epipens or sharp objects 

of any kind. 

 

The drop‐off box is located in the entrance to the night 

lobby at the OHPD. This entrance/lobby is open 24 

hours a day. The OHPD provides zip‐lock baggies for 

use. There are easy‐to‐follow instruc ons posted on the 

entrance wall. These instruc ons provide direc on to 

remove all pills from vials / containers and place the 

pills in a zip‐lock bag prior to placing the pills in the 

drop‐off box. We cannot accept vials or containers. 

The OHPD took in 465.35 pounds of drugs in 

2015 through the Drug Take Back Program. The 

Drug Take Back Bin is emp ed by the Captain 

and Evidence Supervisor, always using two 

person integrity. The drugs are then placed into 

bagged boxes, sealed and weighed, entered into 

evidence, then stored pending destruc on. 

19



17 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

F    N  W  

N  W  

What is a Neighborhood Watch? 

A  neighborhood  watch  program  is  a  group  of 

people  living  in  the  same  area  who  want  to 

make  their  neighborhood  safer  by  working 

together  and  in  conjunc on  with  local  law 

enforcement to reduce crime and improve their 

quality  of  life.  Neighborhood  Watch  (NW) 

groups  have  mee ngs  to  plan  how  they  will 

accomplish  their  specific  goals  and  has  NW 

Captains with assigned responsibili es. 

How Do I Establish A Neighborhood Watch 

Program In My Neighborhood? 

Neighborhood Watch Components: 

1.Create and distribute a Member List 

2.Complete Opera on Iden fica on 

3.Hold Quarterly Mee ngs 

~ Have Fun With Your Neighbors ~ 

Anyone who lives in the City limits, whether you 

live  in  an  apartment,  condominium  complex, 

townhouse, or a single family home. 

Who Can Par cipate? 

F  P  

Scam Alert ~ Posted June 2015 

Oak  Harbor  Ci zens,  we  have  received  informa on 

that a male subject was walking around pretending to 

work  for  Dish  Network.  The  male  was  asking  for 

$25.00 to upgrade your service.  It was reported that 

he  was  wearing  a  ball  cap,  black  sweatshirt,  and 

brown khaki  shorts. He was  last seen  in  the Fireside 

development.  Please  call  911  if  he  comes  to  your 

house, so we can contact him and verify his  iden ty. 

Businesses  that are going door  to door are  required 

to  obtain  a  peddler’s  permit  with  the  City  of  Oak 

Harbor.  

Find us on Facebook® 
Oak Harbor PD 

The Oak Harbor PD Facebook page was 

launched on March 16, 2012.  

Year End 2012     277 Likes 

Year End 2013   1,360 Likes 

Year End 2014   2,653 Likes 

Year End 2015   3,758 Likes 

Facebook has become a useful tool. We can 

reach as many as 38,900 + with a single post. 

What do we post? 

Community Events 

Mee ng No fica ons 

Press Releases 

Safety Tips 

Scam Alerts 

Traffic Alerts  

Videos 

Wanted Persons 

20



18 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

Dennis Dickinson; SRO 

The Oak Harbor Police Department School Resource Officer 

(SRO) program is a partnership between the department and 

the Oak Harbor Public Schools with the goal of establishing a 

safe environment for the learning process and elimina ng 

barriers between youth and police. 
 

The School Resource Officer provides services at Oak Harbor 

High School, Oak Harbor Middle School and North Whidbey 

Middle School. The School Resource Officer also provides 

services to all the Elementary Schools within the district.  

The Oak Harbor Police SRO is a visible, ac ve, law 

enforcement figure on campus. Though not an employee of 

the Oak Harbor Public Schools the SRO func ons as part of the 

team. Working closely with staff it allows being available to 

students, parents and teachers. The unique coopera on 

between the SRO and staff plays a big part in solving and/or 

preven ng a variety of issues that arise on a day to day basis.   

The SRO has a unique job when it comes to students, teachers, parents and the community. While the priority is 

being a police officer the posi on is mul ‐faceted. The SRO is a Liaison, Role Model, Mediator, Guidance Counselor, 

Educator, Crisis Nego ator, Crisis Support, Problem Solver and even a Custodian for ma ers related to the welfare 

and safety of everyone within the Oak Harbor Public School system. 
 

The City of Oak Harbor SRO posi on is a jointly funded by the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor School 

District. The City of Oak Harbor pays for the officer. The Oak Harbor School Districts pays for all of officer’s training 

for the posi on. This coopera on enables the police department to provide the students and staff of the Oak 

Harbor Public Schools with a full‐ me police officer.  
 

For the first half of 2015 Officer Robert Dickinson was the SRO. He re red mid‐year. In late 2015 Officer Nathan 

Padrta was selected as the new SRO. The SRO’s office is at the high school. The popula on at the Oak Harbor High 

School is closely matched to a small town and with that comes a variety of issues on a daily basis. Due to the 

popula on level at the high school the SRO will spend the majority of their day at the high school.  

However, they will respond to the two other middles schools and as needed at the elementary schools.  

The SRO is also involved with making sure that the schools have a viable safety plan when it comes to a lock down 

due to a threat on or off campus. All schools have the poten al to be placed in a lock down situa on. 
 

The program has gained momentum with regards to training. The Oak Harbor Fire Department (OHFD) and Oak 

Harbor Police Department (OHPD) have taken a pro‐ac ve approach when it comes to safety within the Oak Harbor 

Public Schools. The OHFD and OHPD have partnered together in combining resources to effec vely minimize the 

21



19 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

Oak Harbor High School 

Broad View Elementary 

Crescent Harbor Elementary 

Oak Harbor Elementary 

Olympic View Elementary 

me it takes to get to those who need help 

and/or medical care. The training has allowed 

OHFD personnel to be embedded with OHPD 

personnel during a crisis such as an ac ve 

shooter scenario. 
 

The program has brought the Oak Harbor 

Public Schools and first responders closer 

together to resolve issues that affect the 

safety and welfare of students and staff in all 

the schools within the Oak Harbor Public 

School system. The program has also seen an 

improved rela onship between the police and 

that of the students, staff and parents within 

the Oak Harbor Public Schools. 

Officer Padrta at Li le Friends Day School 

22



20 

 

 

Complaint  OHHS 
OHMS/

NWMS 
Elem 

911 Calls  12  6  1 

Alarms  2  1  2 

Alcohol  2  0  0 

Animal  1  1  1 

Assaults  9  3  1 

Assist Agency  0  1  0 

Assist Public  3  3  1 

Collisions  2  0  0 

Court Order Viola on  0  0  1 

Custodial Interference  1  0  0 

Disorderly  2  3  0 

Domes c Physical  0  1  0 

Drugs  11  3  0 

Fire Call  1    0 

Harassment  4  3  0 

Informa on  0  0  1 

Juvenile Complaint  1  3  0 

Juvenile Neglect Abuse  0  0  1 

Juvenile Runaway  0  1  0 

Lewd Conduct  0  1  0 

Malicious Mischief  4  0  1 

Medical  1  2  0 

Property  2  1  1 

Sex Offense  2  4  2 

3   ~   C   S  

S   R   O   ( S R O )  

Oak Harbor Middle School 

Home Connec on—Clover Valley 

Complaint  OHHS 
OHMS/

NWMS 
Elem 

Suicide Threats  1  0  0 

Suspicious  6  1  1 

The   9  2  1 

Threats  2  1  0 

Traffic  2  0  5 

Traffic Hazard  0  0  5 

Trespass  2  0  0 

Weapons  1  2  0 

Welfare Check  1  0  0 

Total Complaints  84  43  25 

23



21 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

North Whidbey Middle School Hillcrest Elementary 

School  Popula ons  

The City of Oak Harbor has nine public schools that are within the City limits and / or its jurisdic on with a 

con nually changing popula on. The Oak Harbor High School has approximately 1,600 students, encompassing 9th 

through 12th grade. Having so many people in such close proximity and under one roof created a need for a  

full‐ me SRO presence on campus to ensure a safe and secure environment. The two middle schools, Oak Harbor 

Middle School / North Whidbey Middle School, have an approximate combined popula on of 1,170 students. This 

popula on number also creates the need to have an SRO presence on campus. The five elementary schools have 

an approximate combined popula on of 2,575 students. 

24



22 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

A   C  O   ( A CO )  

Terry Sampson; ACO 

In 2015 Animal Control received 1,140 calls for service. This number of calls 

includes all Navy housing areas within the city limits of Oak Harbor. This is an 

increase of 343 calls for service in 2014. 

 

72 Dogs were impounded by Animal Control to the Oak Harbor holding facility 

in 2015. This is a decrease from 2014 at 137 dogs impounded by Animal control. 

33 Cats were impounded by Animal Control to the Oak Harbor holding facility in 

2015. This is a decrease of 38 cats from 2014. 

 

60 DOA animals were picked up and disposed of. This includes cats, dogs, birds, 

deer, o er, mink, ferret and possum.  

 

25



23 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

A  H   F  

Animal Control has taken several animal bite complaints, most involving dogs.  If you own or care for a dog that 

displays aggressive or fearful behavior, please contact a dog trainer as this behavior could lead to having your dog  

labeled as dangerous if your dog bites a human or a domes cated animal. You can find out more informa on on 

the City of Oak Harbor web site at www.OakHarbor.org.  Go to municipal code and click on Title 7.  

 

Remember to license your cats and dogs.  This is an annual license and must be renewed at the first of every year.  

You must have a current rabies cer ficate to obtain an animal license. 

A message from Animal Control.: Please find out informa on pertaining to your dogs and cats when it comes to 

laws about owning pets within your area. Some areas have different laws. Be aware of the law in your area. You 

may be allevia ng problems in the future, especially bi ng dogs. 

 

26



24 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

N  N  O

The Oak Harbor Na onal Night Out is 

sponsored by the Oak Harbor Police 

Department and the Oak Harbor Lions Club. 

Na onal Night Out is described as: 

“An annual community building campaign 

that promotes police community 

partnerships and neighborhood 

camaraderie to make a safer, be er place 

to live”.* 
 

The City of Oak Harbor Police Department 

and the Oak Harbor Lions Club celebrated 

Na onal Night Out on August 3, 2015. Because of construc on taking place at Windjammer Park for the Water 

Treatment Facility the fes vi es were moved to Fort Nugent Park.  
 

This was our first year at Fort Nugent Park.  A decision was made to try and fit all of the par cipants into the 

upper parking lot and field area. When empty this area seemed to provide an adequate amount of space. What 

was never accounted for was the popularity of the event.  
 

Very quickly the Oak Harbor Police Department and the Oak Harbor Lions became overwhelmed by people and 

vendors who wanted to be a part of the event. So very quickly the upper parking lot and fields were full to 

capacity, which led to some folks being placed on a standby list or turned away.  
 

The event was huge success resul ng in approximately 5,000 – 6,000 people visi ng to see emergency safety 

vehicles, equipment and employees from the Oak Harbor Police Department, Island County Sherriff’s Office, 

Island Communica ons, Washington State Department of Correc ons, United States Border Patrol, FBI, United 

27



25 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

N  N  O  

States Navy Security, Naval Criminal 

Intelligence Service, Oak Harbor Fire 

Department, North Whidbey Fire and 

Rescue, United States Navy Fire 

Department, Island County Department of 

Emergency Management, American Red 

Cross and numerous vendors.  
 

There were demonstra ons from most of 

the par cipants, food from a lot of the 

vendors, and entertainment to keep 

everyone happy and busy.  
 

The Oak Harbor Community came together 

with its emergency service providers and 

demonstrated that it can be a partner in the 

war on crime and natural disasters.  
 

*Na onal Night Out Guide 

28



26 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

C  O  H    

We had an amazing turn out of Oak Harbor ci zens and 

kids!! 

It started with an official swearing in with Chief Ed Green 

by saying the Junior Oath Pledge. Kids then received a 

bright blue police vest. Next, everyone received a guided 

tour by some of our Oak Harbor officers. But the fun 

really began when the kids a ended the Junior Police 

Academy, tried on the High Risk Entry Team gear, turned 

on the police sirens in the police car, and helped solve a 

burglary. At the end, each child received a donut, juice 

box and a official Junior Police badge, pinned on their 

police vest by Captain Gardner. 

29



27 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

C  O  H  

30



28 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

C  O  H    

31



29 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

C  O  H  

32



30 

 

 

3   ~   C   S  

When faced with threat or trauma, we want the police there as quickly as possible and as ready as possible. 
According to a Washington Post ar cle in 2008, there are well over 1,000,000 face to face contacts between police 
and ci zens each week in the US. In Oak Harbor we have many combat veterans. They understand readiness. The 
challenge for Law Enforcement is that they do not know when they arrive for those face to face contacts if they 
will find some sort of simple problem which is easy to resolve or if they will be facing someone bent on doing 
serious damage to anyone they encounter. Every call everyday must be met with readiness for the worst possible 
scenario and at the same  me for the simple solu ons ordinary ci zens require. 
 
As a police chaplain I have the dis nct privilege of watching closely as our men and women respond day a er day. 
When they stop you for a tail light out, they don’t know if you are the one who wants to kill a cop or are just the 
average ci zen who needs to be told a brake light needs replacement. They must approach your car or your house 
in a state of hyper‐vigilance in order to instantly read the situa on and offer the greatest possible protec on to 
you and of course protect themselves. They must do that without being stressed. They must present themselves 
with professionalism that ins lls confidence. Their contact with you may come only minutes a er being insulted, 
resisted, threatened, and even a acked. They may have just witnessed and inves gated incidents that would 
cause most ci zens to have nightmares for weeks and yet, when they contact you a few minutes later, they must 
be vigilant and composed. 
 
Oak Harbor’s police chaplaincy program exists for two primary purposes. Regarding the average ci zen, as a 
chaplain I most o en serve as a transi on from various types of tragedy to the vic m’s support system. While the 
police secure and inves gate extreme situa ons, the chaplain will assist the trauma zed in the first steps toward 
resolu on or normalcy. Regarding our police force, the chaplain’s primary purpose is to offer a confiden al ear as 
well as posi ve and understanding support. The chaplaincy seeks to encourage the health of our police in any way 
possible or necessary. It is the privilege of the chaplain to make a small contribu on to the health and wellbeing 
and therefore the readiness of our police force to respond to your needs. 

138.25 Total Hours For 2015 

Ride ‐A‐Longs:  34.75 Hours 

Department Contacts:  42.5 Hours 

C  H  

Training:  35.5 Hours 

Emergency Call Outs:  25.5 Hours 

C  

Dr. Ron Lawler; Chaplain 

33



31 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

 
In 2015, the inves ga on division went through minor personnel changes.  In January 2015, Patrol Officer Lisa 
Powers‐Rang was assigned to the Inves ga on Division specializing in Sexual Assault cases and crimes against 
children.   
 
Detec ves have the responsibility of inves ga ng all major crimes, mostly felony cases. The various crimes that 
are inves gated by detec ves include but are not limited to Burglary, Iden ty The , Internet Fraud, The , Sex 
Crimes, Child Crimes, Homicide and Assaults.  The inves ga on division also receives all Domes c Violence cases 
for follow‐up un l the case is adjudicated.  All detec ves assist with Narco c Inves ga ons and in serving Drug 
Search Warrants. 
 
The Inves ga ve Unit works closely with various agencies and community service programs.  Some of those 
other Criminal Jus ce  agencies consist of the City of Oak Harbor Prosecutor’s Office and the Island County 
Prosecutor’s Office.  The unit also works with various Law Enforcement en es consis ng of local and out of 
State Municipali es, State and Federal Agencies.  Detec ves further work with agencies outside of Law 
Enforcement, such as Child‐Protec ve Services, Department of Social Health Services and Ci zens Against 
Domes c Violence. 
 
During 2015, there were 368 cases assigned to the detec ves for follow‐up inves ga ons. In 2015, the 
inves ga on division wrote and served a total of 20 search warrants and maintained an average case load of     
35 ‐ 40 cases. 

I  Y  H  A  I  A   

C  A  C  T   

O  H  P  D   

T  L  

360.679.TIPS 

D  E  O  

This Detec ve is assigned to the Inves ga on Division.  However, in 2015 this posi on was not filled, due to low 

staffing.  In 2015, narco cs inves ga ons were conducted by Detec ve Sergeant Bailey and Detec ve Powers‐

Rang when  me permi ed.  During 2015, there were five narco cs inves ga ons, each of which can take several 

months to conclude. 

During these narco c inves ga ons, enough probable cause is obtained to get a search warrant on the target 

dealer.  The 2015 search warrants resulted in seizures of Methamphetamine and Heroin along with firearms and 

arrests of suspects for Possession with Intent to Deliver. Furthermore, during these inves ga ons numerous 

other items were seized, such as 2 ‐ vehicles, 10 ‐ firearms, electronics and approximately $5,912.00 U.S. 

currency. 

34



32 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

D  

Det. Sgt. Mike Bailey 

D  S  M  B  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police for more than 20 years and has 
been the Detec ve Sergeant since July 2014.  Prior to being promoted, 
Sergeant Bailey worked as a detec ve for five years and then was 
promoted to Patrol Sergeant.  Sergeant Bailey worked as a Patrol 
Sergeant for almost two years and spent a year and half as the 
department’s Community Service Sergeant before becoming the 
Detec ve Sergeant. 

C  H  2015 

In February, Detec ve Sergeant Bailey inves gated a case involving a convicted felon in possession of a stolen 
firearm.  During the inves ga on, Sergeant Bailey interviewed witnesses and wrote a search warrant for a locked 
wooden box that was le  behind by the suspect as the suspect was fleeing the scene, prior to patrol officers 
arriving.  Inside the box was a stolen firearm from another jurisdic on, and subsequently an arrest warrant was 
issued for the suspect. 

In July, Detec ve Sergeant Bailey worked two Narco cs Inves ga ons over a couple of months, which resulted in 
search warrants issued in both cases.  One search warrant was served on the suspect’s shed on his residence, and 
the other was served on the suspect’s vehicle.  These separate inves ga ons produced arrests of two subjects for 
Possession with Intent to Deliver Methamphetamine along with seizures of methamphetamine. 

In November, Detec ve Sergeant Bailey conducted a narco cs inves ga on regarding a suspect who had been 
arrested by patrol on an arrest warrant.   During the inves ga on, a search warrant was wri en, which produced 
over 50 grams of methamphetamine.  The suspect was subsequently arrested for Possession with Intent to Deliver 
Methamphetamine. 

35



33 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

Detec ve Jim Hoagland 

D  

D  J  H  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police Department for over 14 years and 
has been in the Inves ga ons Division for over four years.  Some of 
Detec ve Hoagland’s collateral du es consist of the following: HRET 
Member, FTO and Taser Instructor.  Detec ve Hoagland also is tasked 
with being the department’s forensic cell phone data extrac on expert. 

C  H  2015 

In January, Detec ve Hoagland began an inves ga on regarding informa on that the police department received 
about a Naturopathic business in Oak Harbor prac cing without a license.  During the inves ga on, Detec ve 
Hoagland worked closely with inves gators from the Washington State A orney General’s Office.  Detec ve 
Hoagland was able to gather enough informa on to obtain a search warrant on the business.  Numerous pieces of 
evidence were recovered from the business along with two subjects being arrested for Prac cing Medicine without 
a License. 

In July, Detec ve Hoagland inves gated a case involving Felony Court Order Viola ons.  During the inves ga on, 
Detec ve Hoagland was able to establish probable cause for the suspect and arrest the suspect on 92 counts of 
viola ng a no‐contact  order. 

Also in July, Detec ve Hoagland assisted the FBI with an ac ve inves ga on involving a missing juvenile from Texas.  
During an interview with a subject, Detec ve Hoagland discovered that the subject had Child Pornography on his 
cell phone.  Detec ve Hoagland was able to establish enough evidence to arrest the subject for Possession of Child 
Pornography.  

36



34 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

D  

Detec ve Manny Silveira 

D  M  S  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police Department for over eight years 
and has been in the Inves ga ons Divisions for over 2 ½ years. Some of 
Detec ve Silveira’s collateral du es consist of the following: HRET 
Member, FTO and Department Armorer. 

C  H  2015 

In January, Detec ve Silveira inves gated a case involving a Juvenile threatening online to kill students at school. 
During the inves ga on, Detec ve Silveira was able to obtain the IP address of the juvenile who made the 
threatening comments and was able to get a search warrant for the suspect’s residence and make an arrest. 

In February, Detec ve Silveira inves gated a Residen al Burglary case where subjects were inside an outbuilding of 
a residence.  During the inves ga on, Detec ve Silveira was able to obtain statements from witnesses and suspects 
along with physical evidence that resulted in mul ple subjects being arrested for mul ple burglaries. 

In August, Detec ve Silveira inves gated a The  case which involved a suspect stealing more than $80,000 dollars 
from a rela ve’s bank account.  Detec ve Silveira was able to gather enough evidence through bank records and 
witness/suspect interviews to arrest the suspect for one count of The  1st and 52 counts of Iden ty The . 

In October, Detec ve Silveira inves gated a Rape of a Child case.  Through the inves ga on, Detec ve Silveira 
conducted several interviews with possible vic ms and witnesses along with the suspect.  A er conduc ng the 
interviews, Detec ve Silveira was able to arrest the suspect in this case for Rape of a Child 3rd degree. 

37



35 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

D  

Officer Lisa Powers‐Rang 

D  L  P ‐R  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police Department for over seven years 
and has been in the Inves ga on Division for just over one year.  Some 
of Detec ve Powers‐Rang’s collateral du es consist of the following: 
Field Training Officer and Bicycle Officer.  Detec ve Powers‐Rang also is 
tasked with being the department’s forensic child interviewer and 
sexual assault inves gator. 

C  H  2015 

In February, Detec ve Powers‐Rang inves gated a report of a possible Rape of a Child.  Detec ve Powers‐Rang 

conducted several Child Forensic Interviews and was able to recover enough evidence through these interviews to 

make an arrest of the suspect for two counts of Rape of a Child 1st degree and one count of Child Molesta on. 

In March, Detec ve Powers‐Rang inves gated a report of a possible Rape of a Child.  During the inves ga on, 

Detec ve Powers‐Rang interviewed both the vic m and suspect in this case and was able to gather enough 

evidence in order to make an arrest of the suspect for Rape of a Child 3rd degree. 

In December, Detec ve Powers‐Rang conducted a three‐month long Narco cs Inves ga on, which resulted in a 

search warrant for the suspects’ residence.  During this inves ga on, heroin, methamphetamine and a firearm 

were recovered from the residence.  Two subjects were arrested for Possession with Intent to Deliver 

Methamphetamine and Heroin. 

38



36 

 

 

5   ~   J  D  

The Jail Division operates a 12‐bed, 30‐day holding facility. The jail is 

staffed by six Correc ons Officers, under the supervision of  Sergeant 

Braunstein, who reports to the Department Captain. All Correc ons 

Officers are trained and cer fied through the Washington State Criminal 

Jus ce Training Commission. Officers are also required to maintain Level I 

and II Defensive Tac cs cer fica on and must qualify to department 

firearms standards. Correc ons Officers work in 3‐officer squads: one 

Officer works day shi  (6 am to 6 pm), one works cover shi  (6 am to 6 

pm) and one works mid‐shi  (6 pm to 6 am). This provides double 

coverage during the busiest hours of the day, while maintaining 24‐ hour 

coverage of the Oak Harbor City Jail.  
 

The Correc on Officers’ primary du es include the care and custody of all 

prisoners held at the Oak Harbor City Jail. Correc ons Officers process all 

arrests brought into the jail through fingerprin ng, photographing and 

data entry of each subject. Officers coordinate all commitments of 

convicted individuals from the Oak Harbor Municipal Court and also the 

scheduling and transpor ng of individuals for any required court 

appearances or transfers to other law enforcement agencies. Correc on 

Officers are responsible for entering informa on into State and Na onal 

computer databases; such as stolen or impounded vehicles, missing 

persons and runaways, and certain types of stolen property.  
 

Correc on Officers also maintain the Arrest Warrants file, which consists 

Mark Rodney 
Correc ons Officer 

Greg Woodward 
Correc ons Officer 

David Faagau 
Correc ons Officer 

Brian Braunstein 
Sergeant 

39



37 

 

 

5   ~   J  D  

of approximately 700 warrants. This includes the entry, confirma on and removal of all locally served warrants 

and also working with other agencies when the warrant is served outside of Oak Harbor jurisdic on. Among the 

Correc on Officers’ other collateral du es are fingerprin ng of all applicants for Concealed Pistol Licenses, special 

license requirements, School District employment, and any elimina on prin ng required by the department. The 

majority of fingerprint submissions are done through the Live Scan Fingerprint System. In 2015 the jail received a 

new livescan machine. The previous machine was originally purchased in 2006.  This system electronically submits 

fingerprints directly to the Washington State Patrol, which provides for a more efficient response in ques ons of 

individual iden ty and ensures the placing of charge informa on on criminal histories. Inmates, under the direct 

supervision of Correc on Officers, are responsible for meal prepara on, laundry, cleaning of all Jail areas, as well 

as other work details in and around the Police Department. 
 

The Jail has an inmate phone system that is based on collect‐calls, with phones readily available to inmates in 

each cell. This allows inmates constant access to phones and alleviates Jail staff from spending  me assis ng 

inmates with phone calls. The phones generate revenue for the City but are maintained by a private company 

with no opera ng costs to the City. 
 

The City of Oak Harbor has three exis ng contracts to house inmates. The contracts are with the Department of 

Correc ons (DOC) and the Ci es of Burlington and Anacortes. The jail charges $65.00 per day for housing  

inmates. In 2015 the Jail generated $8645.00 with these contracts.   
 

In 2015, the Oak Harbor City Jail processed 56 juvenile subjects and abides by guidelines from the Washington 

State Office of Juvenile Jus ce to remain in compliance with their rules and regula ons for the temporary 

detainment of all juvenile offenders.  
 

There were 774 adult bookings processed through the Jail in 2015: 565 males and 209 females. 

Carlos Espiritu 
Correc ons Officer 

Jeff Rang 
Correc ons Officer 

Danielle Arne  
Correc ons Officer 

40



38 

 

 

6   ~  R  D  

D  S  

1,563 items were entered into Evidence 

210 items were entered as Found Property 

140 items were stored for Safekeeping 

30 Firearms were taken in 

129 Seized Drug item entries (not related to the Drug Take Back 

Program) 

Total items currently stored in Evidence: 3,100 
 

703 Infrac ons 

463 Criminal Cita ons 

574 Wri en Warnings issued 
 

Transcribed 27 Interviews totaling 462 pages 

Administered and disseminated 562 Public Disclosure Requests 

Processed 1,543 records and reports for prosecutors, CPS, and other 

agencies 

Reviewed 12,713 incidents resul ng in the crea ons of 2,023 Electronic 

Case Files and 1,129 Hard Copy Cases 

Disseminated 440 Served, Expired or Recalled Warrants to the Court 
 

Processed a total of 572 CPL’s 

 432 Originals 

 70 Renewals 

 20 Renewals with Late Fee 

 40 Replacements 

 7 Dealer Licenses 

 2 Denied 

Leslie Morgan  

joined the Oak Harbor Police Department in October of 2015 and is assigned as the Records and 

Evidence Supervisor. Leslie re red from the US Navy as a Chief Construc on Mechanic, Seabee Combat 

Warfare, a er serving 23 years.  A er re ring from the military, she went on to obtain her bachelors 

degree in Criminal Jus ce , a masters in Organiza onal Leadership, a graduate cer ficate in Human 

Resource Management and Human Resources Development. She is three courses away from obtaining 

her masters in Human Resources. Prior to being hired by the Oak Harbor Police Department, Leslie was a 

Department of Defense employee. She worked at the Personnel Support Detachment Naval Air Sta on 

Whidbey Island for three years.  

Leslie Morgan 
Records & Evidence 

Supervisor 

41



39 

 

 

6   ~  R  D  

Barbi May 
Records Specialist 

Yve e Noyes 
Records Specialist 

Lisa Edlin 
Recep onist 

R  S  

Barbi  May  joined  the  Police  Department  in  1989  as  the  recep onist  and  transi oned  to  records 

specialist in 1996. Yve e Noyes joined the Police Department in 2002 as a Records Specialist.  

 

Our Records specialists’ dedica on and a en on to detail in performing their du es helps ensure our 

department runs smoothly and efficiently. These du es include but are not limited to the prepara on 

of court orders to be served, preparing /copying cases  for the prosecutor, running criminal histories, 

warrant entry, daily case review and prepara on, background checks and public disclosure requests.  

 

The Records Staff at the Oak Harbor Police Department prides itself in running an efficient department, 

and keeping up with the ever‐changing regula ons and procedures that occur within law enforcement. 

The staff performs a mul tude of du es as well as assis ng officers and ci zens with  mely responses 

to requests.   

R  

Lisa Edlin has served the city of Oak Harbor since 2006, and transferred from the Finance and U li es 

office  to  the  Police  Department  as  the  Recep onist  in  2014.  Lisa  has  excelled  in  her  new  role  and 

provides tremendous customer service to the community. Addi onally, she processes all Special Event 

Applica ons for the city. 

42



40 

 

 

7   ~     P  

 

Patrol Division:  The largest individual component within the Department, the Patrol Squads are composed of 

sixteen full‐ me posi ons ‐ four Patrol Sergeants and twelve Patrol Officers. Each Sergeant  supervises a team of 

three officers. Their responsibili es include responding to primary (emergency) and secondary (rou ne) calls for 

service, inves ga ng reports of criminal ac vity, enforcing traffic laws and fulfilling their community caretaking 

responsibili es by assis ng the public, as best they can, by responding to requests for assistance in ma ers such 

as public speaking and educa onal events, stranded motorists, answering ques ons about the legal system and 

many other examples too numerous to detail. 

43



41 

 

 

7   ~     P  

S  

Sergeant Niiro has been with the Police 

Department for over 24 years.  He serves 

as the department Explorer Post 

advisor and is on the Board of 

Directors for CADA (Ci zens Against 

Domes c Abuse) and was appointed 

to the City of Oak Harbor’s Youth 

Commission in 2013. 

Sergeant  Wilkie  has  been  with  the 

Police Department for over 25 years.   He 

serves  as  the  Team  Leader  for  the  High 

Risk  Entry  Team  (HRET)  and  the  Traffic 

Safety Emphasis Coordinator. 

Sergeant Cedric Niiro  Sergeant Bill Wilkie 

Sergeant Carl Seim  Sergeant Loyd Carter 

Sergeant Seim has been with the Police 

Department for over 18 years.  His current 

du es are Supervising B Squad, EVOC 

instructor, cell phone forensic, and sniper. 

Sergeant Carter has been with OHPD for 

eight years but has a total of 11 years of 

experience.  Sergeant Carter is the 

departments only Drug Recogni on 

Expert (DRE) and has been requested to 

assist neighboring agencies with DUI 

inves ga ons. Sergeant Carter s ll works 

as the lead firearms instructor and the 

Hostage Nego ator for the department. 

44



42 

 

 

7   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer John Li le Officer Steve Nordstrand  Officer Mike Clements 

P  H  2015 

Officer Schricker, Officer Nordstrand, and Sergeant Wilkie responded to a barricaded suicidal female trying to start 
a fire in her apartment. The suspect opened the door for the officers. Officers processed the scene and conducted 
several interviews. It was determined that the suspect assaulted two roommates (adult and child) as they 
a empted to stop her from ligh ng things on fire in the apartment.  Punches and kicks were thrown. The child 
sustained a minor burn in the process.  Officer Schricker arrested the female suspect who was charged with several 
crimes. 

Officer Li le; Suicide threat call. Officer Li le and Sgt. Niiro responded to  a report of a subject who had le  a 
voicemail message that they had slit their wrist. Locals records were not current and checking the address in local 
records was not helpful. Officer Li le remembered that the subject lived a few blocks away from the sta on but 
thought had moved to Mt. Vernon. We checked that address without success as well. Further inves ga ng 
discovered that the subject did live in Mt. Vernon. Officer Li le requested the subjects cell phone number be 
“pinged” which resulted in a city beach loca on. Officer Li le located the vehicle in the parking lot with subject who 
had slit her wrist. The subject resisted us and medicals efforts to treat and remove her from the car. She con nued 
to resist the en re  me un l treated at the hospital.  

45



43 

 

 

7   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Pat Horn  Officer Tony Slowik Officer Mel Lolmaugh 

P  H  2015 

Officer Clements, Officer Lolmaugh, and Sergeant Wilkie inves gated a domes c violence incident at an apartment.  
A male suspect pushed his girlfriend onto the bed and held her down by grabbing her throat.  The suspect 
threatened to kill her and she was afraid of him.  The female vic m said he had guns.  The male suspect was 
ineligible to possess firearms from a domes c violence convic on. Officer Clements arrested the suspect for Assault 
4th (DV) and Harassment (Threats to Kill).  While searching his backpack subsequent to arrest, Officer Clements 
located a pistol.  Addi onal firearms were located in the home by Sergeant Wilkie.  The suspect was later booked 
on above charges as well as Unlawful Possession of a Firearm.   

Officer Valenzuela responded to a call of a man in the water yelling for help.  Officer Valenzuela’s quick thinking led 
him to commandeer a boat from the marina so he could get the man out of the water.  Officer Valenzuela also 
demonstrated this when he assisted four out of town high school kids who’s vehicle broke down a er a football 
game.  Officer Valenzuela not only fixed their vehicle he also had them call him to ensure they got home safely. 

46



44 

 

 

7   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Jon Valenzuela  Officer Jenn Gravel  Officer Ron Esparza 

P  H  2015 

Officer Horn; Suicidal complaint. Officer Horn and Officer Gravel responded to a suicidal subject call. Upon arrival 
they found a subject barricaded in a room. Officer Horn forced the door open to find a subject ac vely stabbing 
himself in the arm with a knife. The subject stood up and faced Officer Horn and Gravel with the knife but dropped 
it when ordered to do so. He was taken into custody without further incident. 

Sergeant Carter inves gated or assisted inves ga ng nine DUI’s in 2015.  Four of the cases where DRE evalua ons; 
with one of those being request to assist the Washington State Patrol. 

Sergeant Wilkie performed a residen al burglary inves ga on at an apartment.  The suspect had entered through a 
window and stole a few items.  Sergeant Wilkie processed the scene and collected some latent li s which were 
submi ed into evidence.  Case was assigned to the Detec ve Division. The latent li s were later classified as 
iden fiable and a possible suspect was iden fied.   

47



45 

 

 

7   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Claire Schricker Officer Ma hew Krysinski Officer Nathan Padrta 

P  H  2015 

On February 3, 2015 ICOM dispatched a Residen al Burglary report at a residence on NE 7th Ave.  ICOM advised 
the repor ng party was repor ng the residence on NE 7th Ave had been broken into.   Officer Padrta observed a 
female in a black jacket with the hood up walking away from the residence.  Officer Esparza contacted the female 
who was iden fied and later arrested for her involvement in the residen al burglary.  Officer Padrta contacted the 
repor ng party who provided permission to check the residence.  Sgt. Seim and Officer Krysinski went to the rear of 
the detached garage for the residence.  Sgt. Seim entered through the rear window of the detached garage and 
contacted a male suspect who was iden fied and arrested for residen al burglary.  

Oak Harbor Police Department received wri en permission from the repor ng party to search the residence.  While 
searching the garage of the residence items related to other burglaries were found including personal items for the 
suspects in custody. Officer Krysinski found a pair of white women’s gloves, a knife, and a metal shim that had been 
bent which are commonly used in the commission of burglaries.  

Officer Esparza located several keys in the female's pocket.  One of the keys located in her pocket belonged to the 
Ford parked in the garage.  Officer Esparza also located a baggy in her back pocket.  Through training and 
experience Officer Esparza believed the substance in her back pocket to be methamphetamine.  Officer Esparza 
tested the substance using a field test kit and it showed posi ve for methamphetamine.   

48



46 

 

 

7   ~     P  

N   L   E  O  

LEPO Process 

Lateral Entry Police Officer (LEPO) ‐ This is an experienced police officer who is currently 

employed at another police agency and applies to work for the Oak Harbor Police 

Department. This is a person who may or may not have a college educa on. Once iden fied 

on the hire lists they will subjected to a series of tests and interviews before they are given a 

condi onal job offer. Once they are in receipt of a condi onal job offer they will complete the 

psychological and medical screening processes. During this  me a department detec ve is 

assigned to conduct a thorough background of the individual, talking to people in their lives 

from their past to current day. This process can go fairly quickly (one to two months) because 

most of the  me we are able to talk with an officer’s current agency to obtain a lot of 

informa on needed to complete the background inves ga on. Once this is completed the 

officer will be hired. If they are an officer coming from another Washington State agency, they 

will immediately be ou i ed and assigned to work with a veteran field training officer for 

about eight weeks (or less) and then released to work alone. If they are an officer coming 

from out of state, once they are hired they will be given an opportunity to a end the 

Washington State Criminal Jus ce Equivalency Academy. This is a two week (pass or fail) 

course designed for experienced officers. Once this is complete, the officer is cer fied to work 

in Washington State and they will be assigned to work with a veteran field training officer for 

about eight weeks (or less). 

Officer Keith Kretchman 

Officer Kretchman  joined the Oak Harbor Police 
Department in July.  Officer Kretchman re red from the Navy 
as a Chief Master of Arms a er serving for 21 years. He then 
served as a Police Officer in Georgia for three years before 
coming to Oak Harbor. He completed the required 
equivalency course at the state academy and his field training 
with OHPD Officers.  Officer Kretchman was then assigned to 
D squad in December 2015. 

49



47 

 

 

7   ~     P  

N   E   L  O  

ELPO Process 

Entry Level Police Officer (ELPO) – A person who applies for the posi on of police officer, and 

has no prior experience in law enforcement. This is a person who may or may not have a 

college educa on. Once iden fied on the hire lists they will be subjected to a series of tests 

and interviews before they are given a condi onal job offer. Once they are in receipt of a 

condi onal job offer they will complete the psychological and medical screening processes. 

During this  me a department detec ve is assigned to conduct a thorough background of the 

individual, talking to people in their lives from their past to current day. This process takes 

about six to eight months to complete. Once this is done, they will be sent to a police 

academy for six months of basic training in law enforcement. Once this is complete they will 

be required to complete a field training program, working alongside a veteran training officer 

for four to six months. A er this, the ELPO can begin to work alone, surrounded by veteran 

officers. 

Officer Michael Brown 

Officer Brown joined the Oak Harbor Police Department in 
August.  Officer Brown is from Utah, and came to Oak Harbor  
a er serving 10 years in the service as an Army Ranger. He is 
currently in the Basic Law Enforcement Academy and was 
elected to serve as class president by his peers. Officer Brown 
will graduate on January 12, 2016. 

50



48 

 

 

8   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

The OHPD Detec ve Sergeant requests that the HRET serve a warrant for heroin at a home. There is a good 

chance that several persons with criminal histories could be located at the home. The confiden al informant 

advises that there are numerous weapons (pistols and rifles) accessible throughout the home; that the suspects 

are possibly part of a Mexican drug cartel; that cameras monitor the loca on (driveway and home) along with an 

alert device at the top of the driveway.  For this reason it is necessary to have entry personnel approach on foot. 

On the day of the warrant the team moves to the loca on and stages at the front door.  A team operator makes 

the knock and announcement: "Oak Harbor Police Department, search warrant, open the door."  No one 

answers the door and the team has to force entry with a ba ering ram.  Other tac cal operators break a 

bedroom window so they can cover the suspect to prevent him from picking up one of his assault rifles that is 

next to his bed. The suspect complies with verbal commands as he sees he is heavily outnumbered and the 

police have the tac cal advantage.  As a result the suspect is taken into custody without anyone being injured. 

   

The above scenario is an example of a real life mission performed by the Oak Harbor Police Department HRET.  

The HRET is a select group of highly mo vated officers that perform high risk missions that require a high level of 

tac cal exper se.   

 

The team is called out in instances where it is too dangerous for patrol officers to handle the call due to the 

suspect’s criminal history (usually violent) and the presence of weapons that could be used against the police. 

51



49 

 

 

8   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

2015 T  M : 
 

Sergeant Bill Wilkie ~ Team Leader 

 Twenty‐four years as tac cal team operator 

 Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 103 missions during HRET career 

 

Officer Mike Clements ~ Assistant Team Leader 

 Twelve years as tac cal team operator 

 Served in approximately 44 missions during HRET career 

 

Officer John Valenzuela ~ Scout 

 Eight years as tac cal team operator 

 Rifle instructor 

 Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 30 missions during HRET career 

 

Detec ve Jim Hoagland ~ Scout 

 Six years as tac cal team operator 

 Taser Instructor 

 Served in approximately 23 missions during HRET career 

 

Detec ve Manny Silveira ~ Scout / Breacher 

 Six years as tac cal team operator 

 Department Armorer 

 Served in approximately 23 missions during HRET career 

 

Officer Chris Peabody ~ Scout 

 Two years as tac cal team operator 

 Defensive Tac cs Instructor 

 Less Lethal / Chemical Muni ons Instructor 

 Served in approximately 7 missions during HRET career 

 

Sergeant Carl Seim ~ Sniper 

 Sergeant Seim is the Department sniper and provides 

       support for the team as needed. 

52



50 

 

 

8   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

 

The team con nued working with members of the Oak Harbor Fire Department during tac cal opera ons which 

increases the safety for officers and ci zens.  These Fire Department personnel are known as Tac cal Emergency 

Medical Services (TEMS).  TEMS is out‐of‐hospital care given in hos le situa ons by specially trained 

prac oners. Tac cal Medics are Emergency Medical Technicians and / or Paramedics who are trained to 

provide life‐saving care and, some mes, transport in situa ons such as tac cal police opera ons. The TEMS 

team moves into dangerous areas that are par ally secured.  This allows them to be very close in order to 

provide immediate care to an injured officer or ci zen. The TEMS are now used in all our tac cal missions 

making it safer for officers and ci zens. 

 

TEMS personnel conducted and addi onal 40 hours of training in 2015. 

 

The HRET performs in service training each month and team members a end outside agency training to 
supplement the Department training. The team trained as a unit for a total of 48 in service hours in 2015. Some 
individual team members a ended addi onal outside agency training for tac cal opera ons which totaled 24 
hours.  The joint training exercises  incorporate several agencies including Washington State Ferries. 
 

 2015 HRET T  T  

Dynamic Entries 

Physical Fitness Exercise Including Yearly Tes ng 

Arrest Team Tac cs 

Ac ve Shooter 

Officer Rescues 

Immediate Ac on Drills 

MRAP Opera ons 

Range Training 

Less Lethal / Chemical Muni ons 

Distrac on Device 

Shield Operator Course 

Combat First Aid 

Joint Training Exercises  

 2015 HRET M  

Drug search warrant (heroin and methamphetamine 

delivery) – Served narco cs search warrant at home 

with Island County Sheriff’s Office (ICSO) tac cal team. 

This joint mission was conducted in Island County 

jurisdic on. 

Barricaded subject call ‐ ICSO requested our assistance 

for a call of a possible homicide with a barricaded 

subject.  The call turned out to be a hoax, but was 

handled as a real incident un l discovered otherwise 

and included an entry into the suspect home by the two 

tac cal teams done jointly. 

Criminal Trespass – Team cleared a homeless camp on 

private property where it was an cipated that there 

could be several persons present with extensive and in 

some cases violent criminal histories. The area was 

cleared in the early morning hours and the camp had 

been vacated. 

53



51 

 

 

8   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

T  E  M  S  (TEMS) 
 

Captain Craig Anderson ~ Paramedic 

 Two years as TEMS operator 

 TEMS Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 8 missions during HRET career 

 

Firefighter Andrew Moon ~ Emergency Medical Technician 

 Two years as TEMS operator 

 TEMS Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 6 missions during HRET career 

 

Firefighter O o Haffner ~ Emergency Medical Technician 

 Two years as TEMS operator 

 Served in approximately 5 missions during HRET career 

 

Firefighter Josh Fikse ~ Emergency Medical Technician 

 Two years as TEMS operator 

 Served in approximately 3 missions during HRET career 

 

Firefighter Cameron Hopkins ~ Emergency Medical Technician 

 Two years as TEMS operator 

 Served in 1 mission during HRET career 

 

EMT‐P Bryce Schuldt ~ Paramedic 

 Two years as TEMS Team Trainer 

 2015 TEMS T  T  

Trauma Combat Causality Care Topics 

MRAP Opera on and Driving 

Securing Weapons 

Tac cal Medicine and Movement 

Emergency Care Under Fire (Scenario Based) 

Pa ent Loading and Pa ent Care in Vehicles 

54



52 

 

 

9   ~    A  U  

C   V  

The Oak Harbor Police Department is commi ed to the growth and con nued 

success of the Ci zen Volunteer Program.  In the spirit of coopera on and 

partnership with the community, out pledge is to recruit, train and retain 

dedicated volunteers who will par cipate in meaningful community safety, 

security and service ac vi es. 

Various projects and services             

performed by the Ci zen               

Volunteers included: 

 Assist with neighborhood watch 

mee ngs & community           

presenta ons 

 Office Work 

 Patrol vaca on checks 

 

Community Events: 

 4th of July Parade 

 Holland Happenings Parade 

 Marathon Detail 

 Veteran’s Day Parade 

 Zombie Parade 

55



53 

 

 

9   ~    A  U  

R  O  U  

The Reserve Officer program has been part of the Oak Harbor Police Department for over thirty years. Reserve 

Officers are screened just like full  me Officers. They must go through a background check, polygraph exam, 

medical exam and an interview prior to being accepted as a Reserve Officer.  

 

In 2015 the Oak Harbor Police Department had four Reserve Officers: Reserve Officer Michael Koval, Jeff Rang, 

Kristal Kania and Shawn Trisler. By the end of 2015 only Reserve Officer Rang remained. The other three moved 

and went on to other opportuni es. 

 

 Oak Harbor Police Department Reserve Officers volunteer a minimum of 20 hours a month of service. Some of 

those services that Reserve Officers provide are: Security/Traffic control for community events, such as parades, 

July race week, Oak Harbor Music fes val, Oak Harbor Hydro races, Oak Harbor High School football games, 

dances and gradua on. Reserve Officer’s also assist full  me Officers with patrol du es, which include traffic 

inves ga ons, responding to emergency calls along with providing addi onal set of eyes and ears. Our Reserve 

Police Officers are a very valuable asset to the Police Department and, in turn, the Reserve Officers gain very 

valuable experience and training towards a future career as a Law Enforcement Officer. These Reserve Officers 

on non‐paid employees and volunteer their  me to serve the ci zens of Oak Harbor. During 2015, the Reserve 

Officers volunteered a total of 282 hours serving the City of Oak Harbor. For the year 2015, the Washington 

State es mated average for hourly volunteer  me was $ 27.54 and ours, for a total of $ 7766.28            

contributed to the City of Oak Harbor. 

The Explorer program is part of the Boy Scouts of America and our Post is part of the Mount Baker Chapter Boy 

Scouts. The Post has been ac ve since 1991. Sergeant Niiro has been the advisor since 1993. In 2009, Officer 

Gravel volunteered to be an Associate Advisor.    

 

Ac vi es and hours put in by the 2015 Explorer Post include over 337 hours in Patrol ride‐along’s, mee ngs and 

trainings. Community service ac vi es like Na onal Night Out and The NAVY League Veterans’ Day program at 

the Oak Harbor High School. The Explorers also assist our officers in direc ng traffic at the Holland Happening 

and Fourth of July parades. They also assist with training the departments HRET team.  

 

Currently, six Explorers serve in the Post. Two civilian volunteers serve on the Post Advisory Commi ee, and the 

Police Chief serves as the Execu ve Officer. Three new Explorers came on board in 2015. 

E   P  

56



54 

 

 

1 0   ~    D  U  

F B I  N   A  

On January 12, 2015 Chief Green began a 10 week intensive course of study 

at the FBI Na onal Academy, Quan co, VA.  

The FBI Na onal Academy is described as: 

“A professional development course for U.S. and interna onal law 

enforcement leaders. It serves to improve the administra on of jus ce in 

police departments and agencies at home and abroad and to raise law 

enforcement standards, knowledge, and coopera on worldwide. Its mission 

is “to support, promote, and enhance the personal and professional 

development of law enforcement leaders by preparing them for complex, 

dynamic, and contemporary challenges through innova ve techniques, 

facilita ng excellence in educa on and research, and forging partnerships 

throughout the world.” 

Under curriculum developed by the University of Virginia, Chief Green was assigned to a graduate level 

course of study in Leadership, Conflict Resolu on, Public Speaking, Legal Issues, Managing 

Organiza onal Change and Physical Fitness.  

Chief Green was required to maintain a 3.0 GPA throughout the 10 weeks of study, as well as complete 

par cipa on in all of the physical ac vi es.  

Chief Green maintained a 3.9 GPA and completed all of the physical fitness training and tests allowing 

him to par cipate in the famed Yellow Brick Road run before gradua on.  

The Yellow Brick Road run in a 6.1 mile final physical fitness test. Par cipants must climb over walls, run 

through creeks, jump through windows, scale rock faces with ropes, crawl under barbed wire in muddy 

water, maneuver across cargo ne ng and complete a 3 mile road run. The course is named a er the 

Yellow Bricks used to mark the route for the runners.  

On March 20, 2015 Chief Green graduated near the top of his class.  

57



55 

 

 

1 0   ~    D  U  

S  A  

Judicial Informa on Services Commi ee  

In January 2015 Chief Green was recognized as a leader amongst his peers and was nominated as the law 

enforcement representa ve from the Washington Associa on Sheriffs and Police Chief’s (WASPC) to sit 

on the Judicial Informa on Services Commi ee (JISC). Chief Green was chosen as the representa ve from 

among the 184 agencies and their respec ve command staff that make up WASPC.  

Chief Green’s nomina on was reviewed and approved by Washington State Supreme Court Jus ce 

Barbara Madsen.  

The purpose of the commi ee is as follows: 

The Judicial Informa on System (JIS) is the primary informa on system for courts in Washington. It 

provides case management automa on to appellate, superior, limited jurisdic on and juvenile courts. Its 

two‐fold purpose is: (1) to automate and support the daily opera ons of the courts and (2) to maintain a 

statewide network connec ng the courts and partner criminal jus ce agencies to the JIS database. It 

serves as a statewide clearinghouse for criminal history informa on, domes c violence protec on orders 

and outstanding warrants. The benefits of this approach are the reduc on of the overall cost of 

automa on and access to accurate statewide history informa on for criminal, domes c violence, and 

protec on order history. 

The principal JIS clients are judicial officers, court managers, and other court staff. JIS also provides 

essen al informa on to the Washington State Patrol, Department of Correc ons, Office of the Secretary 

of State, Sentencing Guidelines Commission, Department of Licensing, local law enforcement agencies, 

and prosecutors. Other users include public defenders, the media, and law firms. 

The JIS is formally established by authority of RCW 2.68 and Judicial Informa on System Commi ee Rules 

(JISCR). Funding for JIS is provided through user fees on court filings and fines. 

Chief Green serves on the commi ee for a 3‐year term (2015‐2018). He represents the law enforcement 

interest in the development of informa on systems, so ware and use of hardware used to automate the 

Washington State court process.  He is responsible for providing feedback about how a change could 

impact law enforcement services throughout the state, and how implementa on of a change would take 

place from a law enforcement officer’s perspec ve. 

58



56 

 

 

1 0   ~    D  U  

P   F  

At the beginning of 2015 the Crown Victoria police vehicles used for years by the Oak Harbor police department 

were all close to or over 100,000 miles on their respec ve odometers. The interiors were worn out, as were several 

other components of the cars. They were becoming very costly for the City to maintain.  
 

In September 2011 the Ford Motor Company stopped produc on of the Crown Victoria police vehicle replacing it 

with a new Police Interceptor Sedan and Sport U lity Vehicle (SUV).  

The Oak Harbor Police Department was fortunate enough to s ll have a few years of life on its fleet in 2011. This 

gave us  me to evaluate the new Ford vehicles to determine which, if any would be a “good fit” for the way we 

work. A er some comparisons and discussions with the City Council and City Administra on it was decided that 

the Ford Motor Company SUV would be the best choice to replace our fleet.  
 

So in 2015 we witnessed a complete replacement of the patrol fleet, ushering in an era of police vehicles that were 

no longer sedans. The Oak Harbor Police Department is now ou i ed with AWD Ford SUV’s with more interior 

room, WiFi capability, LED ligh ng, Microso  Surface Tablet’s, in car cameras for interior and exterior recording, 

along with many other features. They also have a V‐6 engine making more horsepower than the old Ford Crown 

Victoria police vehicles but using less fuel, saving the City money. 

59



57 

 

 

1 1   ~   T  A  

C  

C  C  F  

Did Not Grant Right of Way to Vehicle  37 

Followed Too Closely  23 

Ina en on  22 

Exceeding Reasonable Safe Speed  15 

Disregard Stop & Go Signal  11 

Other  8 

Improper Turn  7 

Improper Backing  6 

Did Not Grant R/W to Pedestrian  4 

Disregard Stop Sign / Flashing Red  3 

Driver Distracted Outside Vehicle  3 

Opera ng Defec ve Equipment  3 

Apparently Asleep  2 

Driver Interact w/ Pass / Animal / Object  2 

Improper Passing  2 

None  2 

Over Center Line  2 

Apparently Ill  1 

Exceeding Stated Speed Limit  1 

Failed to Signal  1 

Improper Signal  1 

Improper U Turn  1 

On Wrong Side of Road  1 

Under Influence of Alcohol  1 

Unknown Drive Distrac on  1 

Grand Total  160 

D  O  T  W  O  C  

Sunday  18 

Monday  30 

Tuesday  27 

Wednesday  29 

Thursday  33 

Friday  31 

Saturday  20 

T  10 T  O  C  

4:00 p.m. ‐  5:00 p.m.  26 

12:00 p.m.– 1:00 p.m.  23 

3:00 p.m.– 4:00 p.m.  22 

5:00 p.m.– 6:00 p.m.  19 

2:00 p.m.– 3:00 p.m.  16 

1:00 p.m.– 2:00 p.m.  13 

11:00 a.m.– 12:00 p.m.  11 

10:00 a.m.– 11:00 a.m.  9 

6:00 p.m.– 7:00 p.m.  9 

7:00 a.m.– 8:00 a.m.  7 

T  10 H  C  L  

SR 20 & SE Cabot Drive  11 

SR 20 & NE 7th Avenue  11 

SE 20 & SW Barrington Drive  10 

SR 20 & SE Erie Street  8 

SW Barlow Street & SR 20  7 

NE Goldie Street & SR 20  6 

SR 20 & E Whidbey Avenue  6 

SR 20 & SW Swantown Avenue  5 

W Whidbey Ave. & NW Heller  St.  2 

N Oak Harbor St. & E Whidbey Ave.  2 

60



58 

 

 

1 1   ~   T  A  

 

There were a total of *188 reportable collisions inves gated by the Oak Harbor Police Department during the      

12‐month period of January through December 2015.  This is a 2.7% increase in traffic collisions over the 2014 

figure of 183.  

 

(*Note:  The reportable collision figure does not include Hit and Run cases in which a case number is taken, but no 

accident report is submi ed.) 

 

There were an addi onal 179 non‐reportable accidents in 2015 which is down 16.7% from the 2014 figure of 215.   

R  T    

C  

188

183 

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

2015 2014

Reportable Traffic Collisions

61



59 

 

 

1 1   ~   T  A  

A  E  S  

62



60 

 

 

Nature  Count  Cases 

Custodial Interference  55  8 

Death Invest Una ended  15  15 

Disorderly Conduct  238  49 

Domes c Physical  325  258 

Domes c Verbal  322  234 

Fire AFA Commercial  11  0 

Fire AFA Residen al  2  0 

Fire Brush  1  1 

Fire Commercial  13  3 

Fire Residen al  19  8 

Fire Service Call  1  0 

Fire Vehicle  5  3 

Fireworks Complaint  79  58 

Fraud Bad Check  15  5 

Fraud Forgery  1  1 

Fraud Other  189  78 

Harassment  171  33 

Hazardous Material  1  0 

1 2   ~   S  

C     S  

Nature  Count  Cases 

911 Hang Up  1,152  12 

Alarm Commercial  296  3 

Alarm Residence  137  1 

Animal  1,139  26 

Assault Physical  165  92 

Assist Agency  191  62 

Assist Other  1  0 

Assist Public  1,034  31 

A empt to Locate  2  1 

Bomb Found  3  1 

Bomb Threats  3  1 

Burglary A empt  24  12 

Burglary Commercial  19  12 

Burglary Residen al  100  53 

Burn Complaint  7  2 

Civil  225  15 

Court Detail  12  0 

Court Order Viola on  101  48 

63



61 

 

 

Nature  Count  Cases 

Informa on Report  94  2 

Juvenile Complaint  91  9 

Juvenile Neglect/Abuse  83  16 

Juvenile Runaway  113  56 

Kidnapping  1  0 

Li ering  36  10 

MVA Non‐Injury  383  343 

MVA Unknown Injury  127  113 

Malicious Mischief  260  146 

Marine Incident  5  0 

Medical Assist Non Emergency  1  0 

Medical  187  54 

Medical CPR  15  7 

Mental Non Criminal  45  3 

Miscellaneous  1  0 

Missing Person  58  13 

Noise Complaint  205  35 

Nuisance Other  12  0 

Nuisance Phone Calls  2  0 

Patrol Check  24  0 

Phone Message  2  0 

Property  264  28 

Prowler  52  5 

Rape  8  7 

Rape A empted  1  0 

Reminder (office use)  22  0 

Rescue  1  1 

Rescue Marine  5  2 

Robbery Armed  3  3 

Robbery Strong‐Arm  1  1 

Sex Indecent Exposure  14  5 

Sex Lewd Conduct  21  11 

Nature  Count  Cases 

Sex Offense Other  52  42 

Solici ng  34  5 

Suicide Threat  161  113 

Suspicious Person/Circumstance  737  54 

Taking Motor Veh w/o Permission  5  2 

The   302  169 

The  Services  4  1 

The  Shopli   132  105 

Threats  114  43 

Tobacco Viola on  2  0 

Traffic  419  23 

Traffic Criminal FTS  1  1 

Traff Crim Driving Susp/Revoked  98  90 

Traffic Disable  87  4 

Traffic Hazard  141  1 

Traffic Possible DUI  169  34 

Traffic Stop  2  2 

Trespass Other  264  81 

Unsecure Premise  46  1 

U lity Detail  197  0 

Vaca on Check  1  0 

Vehicle Abandon  121  40 

Vehicle Impound  61  51 

Vehicle Prowl  149  113 

Vehicle The   48  20 

Verbal Dispute  73  20 

Vice Liquor HBD  43  7 

Vice Liquor MIP  11  3 

Vice VUCSA  207  50 

Wanted Person  220  18 

Weapon Offense  110  31 

Welfare Check  491  41 

Total Calls For Service  12,713  3,161 

C     S  

1 2   ~   S  

64



62 

 

 

1 2   ~   S  

2015  Value Stolen  Value Recovered 

January  $114,153.95  $1,800.00 

February  $23,630.83  $1,054.62 

March  $19,256.52  $12,737.31 

April  $17,407.01  $1,147.13 

May  $17,705.48  $513.71 

June  $17,988.11  $132.00 

July  $11,297.77  $646.50 

August  $15,113.25  $434.51 

September  $16,017.63  $1,503.14 

October  $41,549.80  $677.05 

November  $11,828.05  $1,081.79 

December  $23,435.88  $166.34 

Totals     

2015  Value Stolen 

January  $5,000.00 

February  $25,000.00 

March  $7,000.00 

April  $34,200.00 

May  $1,500.00 

June  $0.00 

July  $4,200.00 

August  $12,000.00 

September  $0.00 

October  $0.00 

November  $6,000.00 

December  $0.00 

Totals  $94,900.00 

Value Recovered 

$5,000.00 

$24,000.00 

$7,000.00 

$34,200.00 

$1,500.00 

$0.00 

$4,200.00 

$12,000.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$6,000.00 

$0.00 

$93,900.00 

P  L  

S  

V  L  

S  

65



63 

 

 

1 2   ~   S  

The Part 1 Crimes sta s cal analysis uses 
seven criminal statutes (Arson,  Assault, Auto 

The , Burglary, Homicide, Rape and 
Robbery), for the purpose of determining a 
sta s cal comparison of the crime rate 

between ci es of all sizes. 

P  1  C  

O  C  

A  

Year    2015  2014 

Arson  1  1 

Assault  203  180 

Auto The   14  12 

Burglary  67  83 

Homicide  0  1 

Rape  9  6 

Robbery  5  4 

Year    2015  2014 

Bad Checks  3  5 

Car Prowl  113  73 

Disorderly Conduct  39  55 

Forgery  14  8 

Fraud  31  57 

Liquor Viola ons  10  15 

Malicious Mischief  121  139 

Narco cs  74  71 

Resis ng / Obstruc ng  18  28 

Runaways  56  37 

Sex Offenses  42  26 

Shopli ing  91  91 

The   190  204 

Traffic (including DUI)  638  716 

Weapons Viola ons  21  18 

66



64 

 

 

13 ~ P  

Danielle Thompson at the 

Animal Holding Facility 

April Fool ~ Someone’s truck 

was shrink wrapped with 

signs and stuffed animals. 

 

“Are you gonna call this one 

in too!! 

April Fools!!” 

Sergeant Carter 

67



65 

 

 

13 ~ P  

“Staffulty” Apprecia on Week at OHHS 

Ed “Flinstone” 

Happy St. Patrick’s Day 

PBY Reloca on 

68



66 

 

 

FBI Academy Training 

Shop With A Hero 

The picture says it all. 

D Squad 

13 ~ P  

69



67 

 

 

2015 Annual Report 

Oak Harbor Police Department 
 

Prepared & Presented by 
Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

 

Produced by Meg Massey, 
Administra ve Assistant 

 

Grateful thanks to the Department 
personnel who submi ed Division 

reports, sta s cs and photographs. 
 

A special thank you to Sara Nagel & 
Ma hew Krysinski 

for photography. 
 

This report is available at: 

www.OakHarbor.org 
Steve Marcus ~ Ci zen Volunteer 

Jerry Baker ~ Sergeant OHPD ~ 30 years of service 

13 ~ I  M  

70



   

OHPD 

 

71



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the August 3, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting and 
Special Council Workshop 
Meeting on August 24, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the August 3, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting and 
Special Council Workshop 
Meeting on August 24, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 8/03/2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. 8/24/2016 Special Workshop Meeting Minutes

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 8/03/2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. 8/24/2016 Special Workshop Meeting Minutes

.

72

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1470354192x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472151427x_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – August 3, 2016 
Page 1 of 5 
 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, August 3, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns City Administrator Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Finance Director Patricia Soule  
Councilmember Joel Servatius Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Development Services Director Steve Powers  
Councilmember Tara Hizon City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
 Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt 
 Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
 Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
 Interim Police Administrator Terry Gallagher  
 Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
  
Councilmember Munns was absent. 

 
INVOCATION/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
John Ney, Pastor of Christ the King Community Church, provided the invocation and then Mayor 
Severns led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to approve the Agenda as presented, seconded by  

   Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS 
 

2.i    Life Saving Award for Officer Padrta 
Interim Police Administrator Terry Gallagher presented Officer Nathan Padrta, High School Re-
source Officer, with the Life Saving Award.  
 
2.ii Recognition of Outstanding Service for Officer Gravel 
Interim Police Administrator Terry Gallagher recognized Officer Gravel for Outstanding Service 
in the line of duty and awarded her with a Distinguished Service Medal. 
 
At 6:08 p.m. Mayor Severns called a short recess to allow the Council to congratulate the Offic-
ers, and reconvened the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 

73



Regular Meeting Minutes – August 3, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mayor Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:10 p.m.  
 
Citizens Speaking 

Larry Mason  
Carol Clayton  
 

After public comments were given, the comment period was closed at 6:16 p.m. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Approve Minutes of the Council Retreat held on May 27, 2015, June 30, 2016 and 
the Regular City Council Meeting on July 5, 2016, and Workshop held on July 27, 
2016 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Ordinance No. 1776:  Amending Ordinance No. 1765 
d. Appointment: Community Police Advisory Board (CAB), High School Position No. 7 - 

Austin McBride  
e. Appointment: Community Police Advisory Board (CAB), High School Alternate Posi-

tion No. 7A - Jackson Wezeman 
f. Reappointment: Community Police Advisory Board, Position 8 – Sarah Hackley 
g. Weed, Graafstra and Associates Retainer Agreement for Legal Services 
h. Extend Contract with Interim Police Administrator Terry Gallagher 
i. NE 4th Water Main Replacement – Contract Close-out 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao requested that Consent Agenda items 4.d and 4.e be removed from the 
consent agenda. 
 
Mayor Severns:  If there are no other questions, then the Consent Agenda items a, b, c, f, g, h, 
and i will be adopted.  There were no objections. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem recognized Austin McBride, who was present at the Council Meeting, and 
thanked Austin McBride and Jackson Wezeman for their willingness to serve on the Community 
Police Advisory Board (CAB).  
 
Mayor Severns thanked Austin for serving on the CAB. 
 
Mayor Severns:  Consent Agenda Items 4.d and 4.e will be approved.  There were no objec-
tions.   
 

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
5.a  City Administrator 
 
City Administrator Dr. Merriman introduced Emma House as the City’s new Human Resources 
Director.  
 
Dr. Merriman explained that Administration will provide updated results of HR’s Recruitment 
Dashboard at the first Regular Council Meeting of each month so that Council will be apprised 
of hiring and application statuses.   

74



Regular Meeting Minutes – August 3, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

Dr. Merriman then provided an update on the 2017 Whidbey Island Marathon.  A few weeks 
ago, the City solicited a Request for Proposals for the 2017 Race Director and received five (5) 
proposals as a result. Interviews will take place next week.    
 
The City Administrator announced upcoming Council meetings in August and September, and 
announced Budget Session Special Meetings scheduled for October 4, 2016 and October 18, 
2016 at 3:00 p.m.  
 
Dr. Merriman also commented on the Citizen Comment Box located outside of Council Cham-
bers and informed Council that they will be receiving copies of Citizen Comments so that they 
are apprised of citizen concerns. He shared with Council that one individual noted “no fireworks” 
on the comment slip.  
 

5.a.i Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project and shared a PowerPoint presentation.   
 
Councilmember Almberg had a question regarding the bond rate.   
 
5.b  Mayor 
 
Mayor Severns pointed out the new Oak Harbor sign in front of City Hall and thanked staff for 
their work to erect the sign.  The Mayor then thanked staff for a successful National Night Out at 
Fort Nugent Park.    
 
5.c Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao thanked all those who participated at National Night Out.    
 
Councilmember Campbell thanked all those who participated at National Night Out last evening.    
 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS 

 
6.a Ordinance No. 1773:  Medical Marijuana Facilities and Cooperatives – Code Amend-
ment 
Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre presented the staff report and shared a PowerPoint Presenta-
tion.   
 
Mayor Severns opened the public hearing at 6:54 p.m., there being no public comments the 
public hearing was been closed at 6:54 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers asked their respective questions regarding the proposed Ordinance.   
 
Ordinance No. 1773:  Medical Marijuana Facilities and Cooperatives – Code Amendment 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1773 Amending Oak Harbor  

Municipal Code Chapter 19.22, Marijuana Related Uses.  The motion was seconded     
by Councilmember Hizon, unanimously approved. 
 

75



Regular Meeting Minutes – August 3, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

6.b Resolution 16-25:  2016 Surplus Items – Enterprise Fund Items, No. 2 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen presented the staff report.  
 
Mayor Severns opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m., there being no public comment Mayor 
Severns closed the public hearing at 7:05 p.m.   
 
Resolution 16-25:  2016 Surplus Items – Enterprise Fund Items, No. 2 
 
Motion:  Mayor Pro Tem Paggao moved to adopt Resolution 16-25.  The motion was  

   seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved. 
 
6.c Revenue Projections for 2017-2018 Biennial Budget  
Finance Director Patricia Soule presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the public hearing at 7:21 p.m., there being no public comment Mayor 
Severns closed public comment at 7:21 p.m.   
 
6.d Valley High Investments – Intent to Commence Annexation Proceedings 
Dennis Lefevre, Senior Planner, presented the staff report and shared a PowerPoint presenta-
tion. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the public meeting at 7:32 p.m., there being no public comment Mayor 
Severns closed public meeting at 7:32 p.m.   
 
Valley High Investments – Intent to Commence Annexation Proceedings 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to accept the geographic scope of this annexation as  

   shown on Attachment 1, totaling 16.73 acres; adopt R-1 (single-family) as the zoning  
   district; and require the assessment of the proportionate share of city indebtedness  
   upon annexation. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously  
   approved. 

  
7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

 
 
7.a Ordinance No. 1772:  Impact Fee Deferral – Code Amendment and Resolution 16-20:   
Amending the Master Fee Schedule, Schedule A Development Services 
Dennis Lefevre presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the comment period at 7:38 p.m. There being no public comment Mayor 
Severns closed public comment 7:38 p.m.   
 
Resolution 16-20:  Amending the Master Fee Schedule, Schedule A Development Ser-
vices 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Resolution 16-20, Amendment of Master  

   Fee Schedule, seconded by Councilmember Hizon.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Ordinance No. 1772:  Impact Fee Deferral – Code Amendment  
 
 

76



Regular Meeting Minutes – August 3, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1772, Deferral of Impact  
   Fees, seconded by Councilmember Hizon.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

At 7:44 p.m., Mayor Severns called for a 5 minute recess and reconvened the meeting at 7:50 
p.m.  
 
7.b Resolution 16-23: Adoption of Transportation Plan 
Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt provided the staff report and shared a PowerPoint presen-
tation. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the comment period at 8:02 p.m. There being no public comment Mayor 
Severns closed the period at 8:02 p.m. 
 
Resolution 16-23: Adoption of Transportation Plan 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to approve Resolution 16-23, seconded by  

   Councilmember Servatius.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
7.c Resolution 16-24: Transportation Improvement Program, 2017-2022 (Public Hearing) 
Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the public hearing at 8:12 p.m. There being no public comment, Mayor 
Severns closed the public hearing at 8:12 p.m. 
 
Resolution 16-24: Transportation Improvement Program, 2017-2022 (Public Hearing) 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adopt Resolution 16-24.  The motion was  

   seconded by Councilmember Campbell, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

 
None. 

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

None. 
10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
None. 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

None. 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius, moved to adjourn, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m. 
 

        Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

77



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – August 24, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

August 24, 2016 – 2:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and then Councilmembers and 
City Staff introduced themselves. 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao announced that Council Action will be taken only on Agenda Items 
listed in Sections 1 and 2. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao  City Administrator Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Almberg Development Services Director Steve powers 
Councilmember Hizon 
Councilmember Wasinger 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
City Engineer Joe Stowell  
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg 
Human Resources Director Emma House 
Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Purchasing Specialist Sandra place  
Interim Police Chief Terry Gallagher 
Jail Sergeant Brian Braunstein 

Mayor Severns and Councilmembers Campbell, Munns and Servatius were absent. 

KBA Construction Contractors present 
  Dan Williams 
  K. Wendell Adams 
  Chad Oxford 

Hoffman Construction Contractors present 
Trevor Thies 
Brian Shirley 

1. *CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

a. Final Change Order Approval with Department of Enterprise Services – Ameresco
Lighting Efficiency Project

b. Approval of Efficient Communication Systems (ECS) Final Invoice – OHPD Jail Camera
c. Excuse Absent Councilmember from the August 3, 2016 Council Meeting
d. Purchase Authorization – Jail Van Replacement

78



 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – August 24, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 

Mayor Po Tem Paggao: Unless there are any objections, the Consent Agenda Items will be 
considered adopted.  
 
There were no objections.  
 

2. *ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION 
 

a. Approval of Agreement with Bridge Masters, Inc. for Deception Pass Water Line 
Bridge Hangers Replacement  
 

City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report with power point slides.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Bridge  
               Masters, Inc. in the amount of $685,617.59, which includes WA state sales tax. Motion  
               seconded by Councilmember Wasinger, unanimously approved (4 of 7 Councilmem- 
               bers present). 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the City Engineer to administratively  
               approve changes to the construction contract totaling not more than $30,000.00,     
               the motion was seconded by Councilmember Wasinger, unanimously approved.  
               (4 of 7 Councilmembers present). 
 

b. Approval of the Non-commissioned Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) for 
the Oak Harbor Police Department 
 

City Administrator Dr. Merriman provided the staff report.  
 
Questions from Councilmembers regarding the proposed agreement terms.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the labor agreement  
               between City of Oak Harbor and the oak Harbor Police Association Non- 
               Commissioned Unit as presented.  Councilmember Hizon seconded the motion, and   
               the motion passed unanimously (4 of 7 Councilmembers present). 

 
3. DEPARTMENTAL BRIEFINGS 

 
a. RFP for Non-Represented Class & Comp Study  

Emma House, Human Resources Director, presented the staff report for this item. 
 
Brief comments from Councilmembers. 
 
 
 
 

79



 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – August 24, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 
 

4. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

a. Deadline for Filing of Final Plat and Vesting Periods for Final Plats  
 

Senior Planner Cac Kamak presented the staff report.   
 
Discussion and questions from Members of the Council.  

b. Discussion of Model Homes  
 

Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg presented the staff report.  Development Director Mr. Pow-
ers assisted during the report.  
 
Questions from Council. 
 

c. Park Board Recommendation – Amend OHMC 6.12.080 Sale of Alcohol in Parks  
 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen presented the staff report.  The Park Board is recommend-
ing that Council allow the sale of alcohol in additional City Parks. 
 
Comments and discussion among Councilmembers.  
 

d. Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO)  
 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak presented the staff report. 
 

e. GMP No. 8 Hoffman Construction – Concrete Self-Performance No. 2  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Discussion and questions among Councilmembers during the presentation.  
 

f. ERCI Amendment No. 7 for the Clean Water Facility  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Questions from Council. 
 

g. Carollo Engineering, Amendment No. 15 for the Clean Water Facility  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Brief comments from Councilmembers. 
 
 

80



 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – August 24, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

h. 2017 Whidbey Island Marathon Race Director Update  
 

City Administrator Dr. Merriman provided the Council with an update on the 2017 Whidbey  
Island Marathon Race Director contract.  
 
Questions from Members of Council.  
 

5. EMERGING ISSUES 
a. None. 

 
ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:55 p.m. 

 
 
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

81



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and
Check Numbers listed in the September 6, 2016 Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and
Check Numbers listed in the September 6, 2016 Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

 - Voucher Numbers 167429 - 167763 in the amount of $1,853,903.01

 Payroll Numbers:

 - Direct Deposit numbers 38840 - 39140

 - EFT numbers - 829 - 836

 - Payroll check numbers 99058 - 99121

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

 - Voucher Numbers 167429 - 167763 in the amount of $1,853,903.01

 Payroll Numbers:

 - Direct Deposit numbers 38840 - 39140

 - EFT numbers - 829 - 836

 - Payroll check numbers 99058 - 99121

LEGAL AUTHORITY

82



FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

83

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1470071456x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1470873292x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472683961x_at.pdf


08/01/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

10:08:35AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167429 7/29/2016 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF063016 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  106.14
Total :  106.14

Bank total :  106.14 1 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 106.14Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1

1Page:

84



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167430 8/4/2016 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 080416 PREMIUMS  173.03
Total :  173.03

 167431 8/4/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 073116 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,767.96
Total :  4,767.96

 167432 8/10/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 25740 JUL 2016 JANITORIAL SERVICES  3,066.58
Total :  3,066.58

 167433 8/10/2016 0000005  A-1 TOWING 29015 TOWING SERVICES  194.57
 193.49TOWING SERVICES57581

Total :  388.06

 167434 8/10/2016 0000020  AERVOE INDUSTRIES 2016-102609-00 MARKING CHALK  412.56
Total :  412.56

 167435 8/10/2016 0005187  ALL AMERICAN GASKET, INC 14050 COUPLING GASKET  47.51
Total :  47.51

 167436 8/10/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 25815 KEYS  10.87
 4.00KEYS26153
 2.72KEY26160

Total :  17.59

 167437 8/10/2016 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TM-160136 THINNER/STENCIL GUARD  1,911.67
Total :  1,911.67

 167438 8/10/2016 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 080516 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00
 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE080516A

Total :  600.00

 167439 8/10/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 0988648310 UNIFORM SERVICES  21.74
 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988626908
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988626911
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988626912
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988633260
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988633261

1Page:

85



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167439 8/10/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988633262
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988633263
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988633264
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988633265
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988633266
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988637597
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988637598
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988644065
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988644066
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988644067
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988644068
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988644069
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988644070
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988644071
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988648313
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988648314
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES198865130
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988654708
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988654709
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988654710
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988654711
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988654712
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988654713
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988654714
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988659131
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988665531
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988665532
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988665533
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988665534
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988665535
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988665536
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988665537
 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988669745
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988669748
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988669749

2Page:

86



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,091.95 167439 8/10/2016 0005001 0005001  ARAMARK

 167440 8/10/2016 0006865  ARMADA 072916 COLLECTION FEE/01-239500-03  150.78
Total :  150.78

 167441 8/10/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 169549 PEST CONTROL  108.70
Total :  108.70

 167442 8/10/2016 0004256  ARSON INVESTIGATORS, INTERNATIONAL ASSOC OF93189 MEMBERSHIP DUES  100.00
Total :  100.00

 167443 8/10/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0944053-IN FUEL  4,310.56
 10,858.41FUEL0945700-IN
 19,601.66FUEL0950561-IN

Total :  34,770.63

 167444 8/10/2016 0008333  AUGHE-FLORES, FRANK 2510 MOORAGE REFUND  261.78
Total :  261.78

 167445 8/10/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1602236-IN TESTING  122.00
Total :  122.00

 167446 8/10/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 180428 UNIT REPAIR  217.67
Total :  217.67

 167447 8/10/2016 0000082  BAYSHORE OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC 0678873-001 CHAIR  217.39
 205.44CHAIR0679267-001
 205.44CHAIR0679747-001

Total :  628.27

 167448 8/10/2016 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 273955 UNLOADER/OIL  477.46
 805.28CLEANING CHEMICAL274082

Total :  1,282.74

 167449 8/10/2016 0000094  BERG VAULT COMPANY 68376 GRATES/COVERS/FRAMES  512.12
 173.60PARKING CURBS/STAKES68378

Total :  685.72

3Page:

87



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167450 8/10/2016 0008214  BERG, RANDY 4716 MOORAGE REFUND  113.39
Total :  113.39

 167451 8/10/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2837 NAME TAG  3.50
Total :  3.50

 167452 8/10/2016 0002551  BOS, BRYON 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167453 8/10/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82218995 GLOVES  422.82
Total :  422.82

 167454 8/10/2016 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 24.99EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 305.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE
 188.20TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  538.19

 167455 8/10/2016 0001074  BRAUNSTEIN, BRIAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  65.00
Total :  65.00

 167456 8/10/2016 0007926  BROWN, MICHAEL 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167457 8/10/2016 0006939  CANDLEWOOD SUITES 2870 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  801.00
Total :  801.00

 167458 8/10/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1237979 SUPPLIES  506.45
Total :  506.45

 167459 8/10/2016 0008235  CARLETTI ARCHITECTS, PS 9724 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR FIRE STATION  7,198.51
Total :  7,198.51

 167460 8/10/2016 0006215  CAROLLO 0150583 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL 343,174.68
Total :  343,174.68

 167461 8/10/2016 0005208  CARTER, SERLOYD 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

4Page:

88



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 167461 8/10/2016 0005208 0005208  CARTER, SERLOYD

 167462 8/10/2016 0000153  CASCADE COLUMBIA DISTRIBUTION 671851 SODIUM FLUORIDE  3,985.41
Total :  3,985.41

 167463 8/10/2016 0007943  CAUFFMAN, GIDEON 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167464 8/10/2016 0000169  CHEYENNE LIVESTOCK & PRODUCTS 30288 HANDLE/WINDOW  289.14
Total :  289.14

 167465 8/10/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300271046803 INTERNET  241.39
 241.15INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  482.54

 167466 8/10/2016 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1484848 CY 0160A  203.28
 1,254.81SAND1485551

 675.46SAND1485787
Total :  2,133.55

 167467 8/10/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-14801 VALVE/SEALS  985.01
 263.57HEATER001-15837
-271.75CPR AIR ISM001-8196

Total :  976.83

 167468 8/10/2016 0008263  CURTIS BLUE LINE INV41814 HOLSTER  210.56
Total :  210.56

 167469 8/10/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-625 OAK LEAF PLAQUE  43.48
Total :  43.48

 167470 8/10/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-55 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500608-56
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-55
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-56
 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-39
 60.00PORTABLES1-533144-8
 60.00PORTABLES1-534324-5

5Page:

89



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167470 8/10/2016 (Continued)0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS
 180.00PORTABLES1-534325-5
 340.00PORTABLES1-538828
 190.23LARGE HELIUM TANK1-539467
 849.16BLADE1-539909
 105.00CAN PUMPING1-540202
 62.82FREIGHT1-540206

 100.57COVER1-541143
 54.35MAGNETIC DRILL1-541152

Total :  2,302.13

 167471 8/10/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 073116 JUL 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  164.44
 6.52LAUNDRY SERVICES1108

Total :  170.96

 167472 8/10/2016 0000279  EMPLOYMENT SECURITY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF945052-10-7 2ND QTR 2016/UNEMPLOYMENT  3,584.00
Total :  3,584.00

 167473 8/10/2016 0008325  E-ONE, INC SLS/10391423 BUCKLE RECEIVER  46.56
Total :  46.56

 167474 8/10/2016 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 17620825-4 OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT  226.27
Total :  226.27

 167475 8/10/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK24063 RUSTO/ICWB  17.90
 5.16FASTENERSWAOAK24094

Total :  23.06

 167476 8/10/2016 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 5-489-47450 SHIPPING  31.81
Total :  31.81

 167477 8/10/2016 0008329  FREESE, HAROLD 2682 MOORAGE REFUND  60.95
Total :  60.95

 167478 8/10/2016 0008122  FRONDOZO, KEVIN 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167479 8/10/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,379.88

6Page:

90



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167479 8/10/2016 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER
 67.66CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 248.53CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 71.18CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 42.99CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 77.01CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 66.03CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 66.03CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789
 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 407.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 70.46CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.77CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,787.96

 167480 8/10/2016 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 127545 CEDAR -52.70
 80.27CEDAR/SIDING129427

Total :  27.57

 167481 8/10/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9154368774 GP MTR SPLIT PH  176.64
 88.00COUPLER/ADAPTER9167869891
 48.48SLING9170552476
 31.96SLING9170552484

 212.17SLING9170552492
 30.49SAFETY RIGGING9171979710

 202.18JIGSAW9180157928
 178.18GLOVES9180748312
 178.18GLOVES9180912330
-66.04MIRROR918963560

Total :  1,080.24

 167482 8/10/2016 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 8 PROF SVC/10-INCH PIPELINE BRIDGE HANGER  1,788.27
Total :  1,788.27

 167483 8/10/2016 0000999  GRCC/WW 153570 REGISTRATION/POLLOCK  450.00

7Page:

91



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  450.00 167483 8/10/2016 0000999 0000999  GRCC/WW

 167484 8/10/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 080116 AUG 2016 OPERATIONS GRANT  8,333.34
Total :  8,333.34

 167485 8/10/2016 0008328  GROSS, GARY OR VICKI 2491 MOORAGE REFUND  153.04
Total :  153.04

 167486 8/10/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 650821 JAIL SERVICES  225.01
Total :  225.01

 167487 8/10/2016 0008332  HALL, TODD 2664 MOORAGE REFUND  135.24
Total :  135.24

 167488 8/10/2016 0007236  HAMMOND, JACOB 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167489 8/10/2016 0008326  HARBOUR, RIP 1284 MOORAGE REFUND  336.81
Total :  336.81

 167490 8/10/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4284360 MPT TEST  30.44
Total :  30.44

 167491 8/10/2016 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F804697 NUT/SNAP RING  422.85
Total :  422.85

 167492 8/10/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7131921 SCREWS  29.88
 32.54BANDSAW BLADES7585756
 7.57SPRING LINKS8024078

Total :  69.99

 167493 8/10/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 621144-2 ELBOW/LUG/SOCKET  92.34
Total :  92.34

 167494 8/10/2016 0008335  IRIS WINDOW COVERINGS NW, INC BL-006097 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  12.50
Total :  12.50

 167495 8/10/2016 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1650 HEPATITS IMMUNIZATIONS  100.00

8Page:

92



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  100.00 167495 8/10/2016 0004410 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH

 167496 8/10/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 073116 JUL 2016 TIPPING FEES  77,242.85
Total :  77,242.85

 167497 8/10/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 080216 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  133.14
Total :  133.14

 167498 8/10/2016 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 020 JUL 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 167499 8/10/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 070616 JUN 2016 COLLECTION  22,447.85
 4,896.80JUL 2016 RECYCLING080116

 88.20RACE WEEK COLLECTION CHARGES4439787
Total :  27,432.85

 167500 8/10/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508251354 INMATE MEDS  14.95
 76.78INMATE MEDS114521226434

Total :  91.73

 167501 8/10/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 243412 WATER/MARINA  22.95
 22.95WATER/MARINA243637

Total :  45.90

 167502 8/10/2016 0007537  KESSELRING TACTICAL SUPPLY 1339 TRAINING AMMO  1,302.00
Total :  1,302.00

 167503 8/10/2016 0007930  LACY & PAR 71178 PROF SVC/CITY LIMITS POSTCARD PRINT  3,891.23
Total :  3,891.23

 167504 8/10/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5104048MB ASPHALT  283.86
 328.08ASPHALT5104072MB

Total :  611.94

 167505 8/10/2016 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167506 8/10/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400259806 TUBE INSTALLATION  62.44

9Page:

93



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  62.44 167506 8/10/2016 0000979 0000979  LES SCHWAB

 167507 8/10/2016 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 1404645-20160731 JULY 2016 MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35
Total :  54.35

 167508 8/10/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00
Total :  132.00

 167509 8/10/2016 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 117008905 ICE  126.00
Total :  126.00

 167510 8/10/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 119200 YARD WASTE  194.15
 10.00YARD WASTE119463
 10.00YARD WASTE119488

 356.55YARD WASTE119665
 286.55YARD WASTE119874
 178.75YARD WASTE119917
 175.25YARD WASTE119975
 206.75YARD WASTE120012
 131.50YARD WASTE120191
 147.60YARD WASTE120222
 158.80YARD WASTE120278
 146.55YARD WASTE120353
 221.80YARD WASTE120431
 120.65YARD WASTE120572
 113.65YARD WASTE120636
 167.55YARD WASTE120703
 128.70YARD WASTE120745
 10.00YARD WASTE120763

 168.95YARD WASTE120807
 119.60YARD WASTE120969
 10.00YARD WASTE120982

 114.00YARD WASTE121010
 216.55YARD WASTE121149
 15.00YARD WASTE121150

 213.05YARD WASTE121207
Total :  3,621.95

10Page:

94



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167511 8/10/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 459582 GROCERIES  242.95
 176.16GROCERIES462825

Total :  419.11

 167512 8/10/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P46619 JUL 2016 POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  468.02
 2,907.95JUL 2016 POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP46620

Total :  3,375.97

 167513 8/10/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 46619 JUL 2016 MAILING SERVICES  279.58
 898.41JUL 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS46620

Total :  1,177.99

 167514 8/10/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  159.50
Total :  159.50

 167515 8/10/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 072716 JUL 2016 HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,708.33
Total :  1,708.33

 167516 8/10/2016 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167517 8/10/2016 0002794  MOOSE MOBILE MUSIC 080516 SOUND SERVICES  300.00
Total :  300.00

 167518 8/10/2016 0008327  MOSHIER, GREG 2363 MOORAGE REFUND  339.69
Total :  339.69

 167519 8/10/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES IN1047740C COVER/HOSE CREDIT -1,243.53
 1,950.08COVER/HOSEIN1050139

Total :  706.55

 167520 8/10/2016 0007979  MYERS, JACK 080416 TRAVEL REFUND REPLACEMENT CHECKS  96.00
Total :  96.00

 167521 8/10/2016 0007164  NATIONAL TESTING NETWORK 3386 TESTING SERVICES  500.00
Total :  500.00

 167522 8/10/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0262851 HOSE/SEALS/WASHERS/BOLTS/CLIPS  292.09

11Page:

95



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  292.09 167522 8/10/2016 0000608 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY

 167523 8/10/2016 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 376429 FILTERS/BOD SEED/SOLUTION  799.66
Total :  799.66

 167524 8/10/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 272823 NYLON LINE  38.03
 2.12FASTENERS272872

 76.04PAINT/EPOXY273744
 8.24CAP HOSE/WASHER273745

 51.28BATTERIES/TUBE/INSERTS273776
 45.59FILTERS273804
 3.26SPRAYPAINT273819

 41.26DELTA STEM273825
 56.44RECEPTACLE/PLUG/ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES273899
 1.08CAP273902

 14.51PAINT/ROLLER/TRAY273907
 10.85STAPLES273917
 6.51TAP273923

 10.86NOZZLE274007
 30.91FASTENERS/CONCRETE274012
 19.56PRIMER274026
 2.52FASTENERS274072

 28.25PAINT274093
 19.27SCRUBBER/LIME REMOVER274103

 218.12THREAD TEE274105
 8.69THREADLOCKER274108

 13.04SPRAYPAINT274130
 7.60DECKSL274188
 2.26SCREWS274209

 97.26CARB/PLUG/OIL/REPAIRS274268
 9.23SILICONE274269
 1.37FASTENERS274314

 17.35COUPLER/ADAPTER274402
 51.06DUSTPAN/BROOMS274415
 4.99DOOR STOP274444

Total :  897.55

12Page:

96



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167525 8/10/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-277378 CORE DEPOSIT -21.52
 752.83PARTS/#13001-277422
 21.52CORE DEPOSIT CREDIT ADJUSTMENT001-277471
 9.50PARTS/STOCK001-278058

 31.43BALL HITCH/GRIP001-280527
 235.22CONNECTORS/CLASS III RECEIV001-280528
 440.24RENTAL001-280610
 19.26SPIN-ON LUBE001-280643
 19.26SPIN-ON LUBE001-280645

-413.06RENTAL001-280752
 9.13FILTERS001-280828

 12.75SMALL COOLING FAN001-280878
 54.34RIVETER001-281375

Total :  1,170.90

 167526 8/10/2016 0006863  OAK HARBOR MUSIC FESTIVAL 080816 DESIGNS/ADS/PRINTS  4,723.20
Total :  4,723.20

 167527 8/10/2016 0003092  OAK HARBOR SIGNS 16129 MARINA LOGO DESIGN  1,065.26
Total :  1,065.26

 167528 8/10/2016 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 848520432001 INK -264.07
 208.69TONER853183720001
 77.38PAPER853279515001
 14.99FOLDERS853279633001

Total :  36.99

 167529 8/10/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 661060 INK  88.20
 26.09USBS691201
 76.07MOUSE691231
 61.09INK732362
-88.20INK732395

Total :  163.25

 167530 8/10/2016 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 2015 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  488.00
 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT2525

Total :  563.00

13Page:

97



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167531 8/10/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0101517 TIRES  319.79
Total :  319.79

 167532 8/10/2016 0003164  PAINTERS ALLEY P0002852 PAINT  129.11
Total :  129.11

 167533 8/10/2016 0005783  PARTSMASTER 23042798 RATCHET WRENCH SETS  257.26
Total :  257.26

 167534 8/10/2016 0008331  PATTON, JAMES 3286 MOORAGE REFUND  149.29
Total :  149.29

 167535 8/10/2016 0000709  PERS 01178129 JUL 2016 UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98
Total :  26.98

 167536 8/10/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167537 8/10/2016 0008203  POLAR BEAR ENERGY SOLUTIONS 072716 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  488.12
Total :  488.12

 167538 8/10/2016 0000727  POSITIVE PROMOTIONS 05545541 BALLS  330.06
Total :  330.06

 167539 8/10/2016 0007479  PRECISION SAW & KNIFE 121900 SAW CHAINS  19.56
Total :  19.56

 167540 8/10/2016 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0034496-IN GLOVES  220.61
Total :  220.61

 167541 8/10/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  13.77
 13.77ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

Total :  27.54

 167542 8/10/2016 0007944  RAMIREZ, JOSEPH TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  85.50
Total :  85.50

 167543 8/10/2016 0007923  RATHKOPF, SCHELLEN 072716 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REFUND  823.05

14Page:

98



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  823.05 167543 8/10/2016 0007923 0007923  RATHKOPF, SCHELLEN

 167544 8/10/2016 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167545 8/10/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 727914 GROCERIES  36.70
 23.48GROCERIES807663

Total :  60.18

 167546 8/10/2016 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-1071289 ROTOR/BRAKE LINING KIT  190.56
Total :  190.56

 167547 8/10/2016 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 16-4135 SKID/LEADER HOSE/EXTENSION POLE  744.05
Total :  744.05

 167548 8/10/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 60709 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  570.00
 84.00PROF SVC/EMPLOYMENT ADVISORY60710

Total :  654.00

 167549 8/10/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-327433 WORKLAMP  191.55
 191.55WORKLAMP14-327434

Total :  383.10

 167550 8/10/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 454301 SPREADER/HERBICIDE  161.93
Total :  161.93

 167551 8/10/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW711591 CITY NOTICES  67.28
Total :  67.28

 167552 8/10/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 072116 LIFE/POCFF  358.13
Total :  358.13

 167553 8/10/2016 0007203  STANFORD, TRAVIS 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167554 8/10/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3304107920 INK  56.78
 787.72TAPE/PADS/POST ITS/TONER3308145147
 67.37BRUSHES3308712733

15Page:

99



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167554 8/10/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
 80.42BRUSHES3308712734

 313.01PAINT3308712735
 8.34NOTEPADS3308712736

 47.35SCISSORS/PACKING TAPE3308712737
 11.70CURLING RIBBON3309292521
 11.70CURLING RIBBON3309292522
 7.86HANGING FOLDERS3309292524

 57.62DRAFTING STOOL3309292525
Total :  1,449.87

 167555 8/10/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00
 72.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  168.00

 167556 8/10/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1116804 PEST EXTERMINATION  31.52
 44.57PEST EXTERMINATION1116807
 44.57PEST EXTERMINATION1116809
 33.70PEST EXTERMINATION1116811
 31.52PEST EXTERMINATION1116818
 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1119217

Total :  240.23

 167557 8/10/2016 0007736  SYSTEMS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, INC 28458 POLICE VEHICLE OUTFITTING  4,908.45
 10,789.74POLICE VEHICLE OUTFITTING29429

Total :  15,698.19

 167558 8/10/2016 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 15592 CALIBRATION SERVICES  1,173.96
Total :  1,173.96

 167559 8/10/2016 0008330  TEMPLE, JASON 2427 MOORAGE REFUND  179.10
Total :  179.10

 167560 8/10/2016 0008334  TENNIS COURT SUPPLY AB-3176 NET POSTS/NET  616.00
Total :  616.00

 167561 8/10/2016 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OFRE 41 JA9223 L004 PROF SVC/PIPELINE REPLACEMENT  707.74

16Page:

100



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  707.74 167561 8/10/2016 0000986 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF

 167562 8/10/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 080216 COURT/BC FEES  6,924.53
Total :  6,924.53

 167563 8/10/2016 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-165261 CASHIERING HARDWARE  5,217.60
 2,625.00FINANCIALS CONVERSION045-166930

Total :  7,842.60

 167564 8/10/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W306 SHIPPING  20.42
 122.33SHIPPING0000A0182W316

Total :  142.75

 167565 8/10/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 071816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 167566 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,641.05
Total :  1,641.05

 167567 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,079.51
Total :  1,079.51

 167568 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003291289 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  905.52
Total :  905.52

 167569 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001621568 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  384.57
Total :  384.57

 167570 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  341.80
Total :  341.80

 167571 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  325.00
Total :  325.00

 167572 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003222946 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  198.92
Total :  198.92

 167573 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003205248 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  92.32

17Page:

101



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  92.32 167573 8/10/2016 0004903 0004903  US BANK

 167574 8/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003140486 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  45.00
Total :  45.00

 167575 8/10/2016 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 015766 PH ELECTRODE DF  149.76
Total :  149.76

 167576 8/10/2016 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 6070178 JUL 2016 LOCATES  92.40
Total :  92.40

 167577 8/10/2016 0008309  WASHINGTON APPRAISAL SERVICES 7137 PROF SVC/SLEEPER PIT  14,234.38
Total :  14,234.38

 167578 8/10/2016 0001056  WASHINGTON IRON WORKS, INC 2606 PIPE INSERTS  278.27
Total :  278.27

 167579 8/10/2016 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I17000617 BACKGROUND CHECKS  816.50
Total :  816.50

 167580 8/10/2016 0000985  WASTE MANAGEMENT 072716 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,377.53
Total :  1,377.53

 167581 8/10/2016 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF52 PROF SVC/GENERAL  1,110.50
Total :  1,110.50

 167582 8/10/2016 0004786  WESTERN SYSTEMS, INC 0000030807 LOAD SWITCH/MONITOR  944.14
Total :  944.14

 167583 8/10/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1298 JUL 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  8,500.00
Total :  8,500.00

 167584 8/10/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 291591 SWIV ADAP  25.33
 499.59BATTERIES291612
 21.49LAMP291643
 5.94NUTS BOL2916444
 6.80NUTS291794

 17.24ROCKER SWITCH291803

18Page:

102



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167584 8/10/2016 (Continued)0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC.
-78.26CORE291804

Total :  498.13

 167585 8/10/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48639 AP CHECKS  338.70
 246.10FOLDOVER CARDS48658

Total :  584.80

 167586 8/10/2016 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 4018486 CURRENT NET CHARGES  41.45
 65.23ALARM MONITORING4021362

Total :  106.68

 167587 8/10/2016 0008324  WILKEY'S CONSTRUCTION 080216 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REFUND  600.05
Total :  600.05

 167588 8/10/2016 0005558  WILTSE, KRIS 1021 KIOSK DESIGN  3,200.00
Total :  3,200.00

 167589 8/10/2016 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 080316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167590 8/10/2016 0006775  WORKSAFE SERVICE, INC 229307 PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING  220.00
Total :  220.00

 167591 8/10/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 085682938 JUL 2016 COPIER RENTAL  384.83
Total :  384.83

 167592 8/10/2016 0001067  ZEP SALES & SERVICE 9002354604 ZEP BIG ORANGE  239.49
Total :  239.49

Bank total :  657,053.35 163 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 657,053.35Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 163

19Page:

103



08/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 4:10:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

20Page:

104



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167593 8/29/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 081016 SALES/USE TAX  58,386.45
Total :  58,386.45

 167594 8/31/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 082616 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  125.00
Total :  125.00

 167595 8/31/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 082516 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  1,404.00
Total :  1,404.00

 167596 8/31/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 25818 AUG 2016 CLEANING SERVICES  506.55
Total :  506.55

 167597 8/31/2016 0000005  A-1 TOWING 57581 TOWING SERVICES  193.49
Total :  193.49

 167598 8/31/2016 0007544  ACCESSDATA GROUP, INC 71653 LICENSE RENEWAL  1,216.35
Total :  1,216.35

 167599 8/31/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20160113 AUG 2016 MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00
Total :  199.00

 167600 8/31/2016 0000034  AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 087067-160621PBM MEMBERSHIP  50.00
 95.00ZONING PRACTICE087067-1673

 400.00MEMBERSHIP/LINDENBURG197953-1673
Total :  545.00

 167601 8/31/2016 0000712  AMERIGAS 3054884554 PROPANE/MARINA  159.16
Total :  159.16

 167602 8/31/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36786 AUG 2016 WEB HOSTING  15.95
Total :  15.95

 167603 8/31/2016 0008140  ANDERSON, MARY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  5,094.04
Total :  5,094.04

 167604 8/31/2016 0008343  ANEMA, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  33.65

1Page:

105



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  33.65 167604 8/31/2016 0008343 0008343  ANEMA, JAMES

 167605 8/31/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988676106 UNIFORM SERVICES  26.88
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988676107
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988676108
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988676109
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988676110
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988676111
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988676112
 27.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988680345
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988680346
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988686720
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988686721
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988686722
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988686723
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988686724
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988686725
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988686726
 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988691009
 28.60UNIFORM SERVICES1988691012
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988691013
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988697362
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988697363
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988697364
 20.61UNIFORM SERVICES1988697365
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988697366
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988697367
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988697368
 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988701722
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988701723
 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988708209
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988708210
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988708211
 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988708212
 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988708213
 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988708214
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988708215

2Page:

106



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167605 8/31/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988712501
 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988712504
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988712505

Total :  1,008.66

 167606 8/31/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 169875 PEST CONTROL  108.70
Total :  108.70

 167607 8/31/2016 0007839  ASHLEY'S DESIGN & LETTERMAN 1541 SHIRTS  228.00
Total :  228.00

 167608 8/31/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0950618-IN FUEL  7,552.83
 5,644.13FUEL0952664-IN

 12,798.44FUEL0954216-IN
 8,456.58FUEL0955188-IN

Total :  34,451.98

 167609 8/31/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0824201 AIRCARDS  31.87
Total :  31.87

 167610 8/31/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1602651-IN TESTING  122.00
Total :  122.00

 167611 8/31/2016 0008261  BAILEY, ROBERT TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  144.00
Total :  144.00

 167612 8/31/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 180992 UNIT REPAIR  1,305.76
Total :  1,305.76

 167613 8/31/2016 0000081  BAY PRINTING 24444 TRAVEL/GENERAL PURPOSE/PASSPORT RECEIPTS 371.75
Total :  371.75

 167614 8/31/2016 0006712  BLAKELY, BURTON 1A TRAVEL REFUND  20.00
Total :  20.00

 167615 8/31/2016 0007363  BLAKELY, JOAN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  180.00
 31.00TRAVEL REFUND1

3Page:

107



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167615 8/31/2016 (Continued)0007363  BLAKELY, JOAN
 25.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  236.00

 167616 8/31/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2854 NAME TAGS  56.00
 7.00NAME TAGS2864

Total :  63.00

 167617 8/31/2016 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000439216 INMATE GARMENTS  69.91
Total :  69.91

 167618 8/31/2016 0008341  BUTTIGIEG, MICHELLE 082416 HYDRANT DEPOSIT BALANCE  133.05
Total :  133.05

 167619 8/31/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1252971 SUPPLIES  372.90
 723.76SUPPLIES1288309
 352.98SUPPLIES1292090

Total :  1,449.64

 167620 8/31/2016 0008235  CARLETTI ARCHITECTS, PS 9749 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR FIRE STATION  911.20
Total :  911.20

 167621 8/31/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 080316 PUBLIC DEFENSE  600.00
Total :  600.00

 167622 8/31/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60
 23.53NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004
 11.44NATURAL GAS/20811829220273
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20712470743597
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20513275491754
 51.40NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000
 37.07NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20245420760055
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234
 92.80NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20462337906945
 16.50NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 107.14NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

4Page:

108



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167622 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS
 16.37NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005
 12.39NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  442.84

 167623 8/31/2016 0004605  CEMEX 9433861369 SWEEPINGS  1,630.57
Total :  1,630.57

 167624 8/31/2016 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 29015 TOWING SERVICES  194.57
Total :  194.57

 167625 8/31/2016 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 082516 PETTY CASH  69.04
Total :  69.04

 167626 8/31/2016 0007655  COBAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC 12402 SOLUTION RENEWAL  1,216.40
 1,351.14TRANSMITTER/BATTERIES12442

Total :  2,567.54

 167627 8/31/2016 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 54072 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  354.91
Total :  354.91

 167628 8/31/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 BUSINESS CABLE  119.43
 25.61XFINITY8498300270032028

 241.15INTERNET8498300290363841
Total :  386.19

 167629 8/31/2016 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 26922 FUEL  9.25
Total :  9.25

 167630 8/31/2016 0008342  COULTER, KEVIN 082916 UTILITY ACCOUNT DEPOSIT REFUND  500.00
Total :  500.00

 167631 8/31/2016 0008340  COUPEVILLE, TOWN OF 082316 AUCTION PROCEEDS  78.42
Total :  78.42

 167632 8/31/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-770 OAK LEAF/GIFFORD  43.48
 43.48OAK LEAF/NOYES16-781

5Page:

109



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  86.96 167632 8/31/2016 0000222 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING

 167633 8/31/2016 0007426  CUZ CONCRETE PRODUCTS 288679 CONCRETE HYD GUARD  151.74
Total :  151.74

 167634 8/31/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 083116 AUG 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  300.83
Total :  300.83

 167635 8/31/2016 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2017-WA0020567 WASTEWATER PERMIT  10,838.88
 7,531.86STORMWATER PERMIT2017-war045554

Total :  18,370.74

 167636 8/31/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 16-19352 TESTING  475.00
 24.00TESTING16-19623
 18.00TESTING16-20647

Total :  517.00

 167637 8/31/2016 0004528  EDLIN, LISA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  73.98
Total :  73.98

 167638 8/31/2016 0008216  EFFICIENT COMMUNICATIONS, INC 21960 TELEPHONE/IT  9,358.40
Total :  9,358.40

 167639 8/31/2016 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT S16-081218 GASKETS  71.73
Total :  71.73

 167640 8/31/2016 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 13-475-18 PROF SVC/WWTP  2,697.97
Total :  2,697.97

 167641 8/31/2016 0008274  EVERETT, RICHARD 444 MOORAGE REFUND  97.92
Total :  97.92

 167642 8/31/2016 0008082  EVIDENT, INC 108506A COVERALLS  474.90
Total :  474.90

 167643 8/31/2016 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 17655835-1 OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT  1,064.80
 632.23OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT17713155-4

6Page:

110



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,697.03 167643 8/31/2016 0006276 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC

 167644 8/31/2016 0004508  FAKKEMA, RICHARD TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  81.50
Total :  81.50

 167645 8/31/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK24209 FASTENERS  8.27
-6.79FASTENERSWAOAK24209
 9.07FASTENERSWAOAK24264
 8.28VALPARTRESPWAOAK24286

 11.24GLOVESWAOAK24304
Total :  30.07

 167646 8/31/2016 0007929  FEHR PEERS 109212 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR TRANSPORATION ELEMEN 2,540.80
Total :  2,540.80

 167647 8/31/2016 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 3627143 BIOCIDE/MARINA FORMULA/FUEL TREATMENT/OI 405.94
 40.72QUICKCONNECT3662731
 8.02BULB3692055

-16.02BULBS3698461
-40.72QUICKCONNECT3712131
 24.69BULB3718390

Total :  422.63

 167648 8/31/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 083116 AUG 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

 167649 8/31/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72
 85.18CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 119.48CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236
 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 71.64CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111
 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121
 60.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 200.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551
 75.09CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702
 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694
 28.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

7Page:

111



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,066.70 167649 8/31/2016 0000355 0000355  FRONTIER

 167650 8/31/2016 0000329  GALLS 005804460 PANTS  244.54
Total :  244.54

 167651 8/31/2016 0007998  GOOD TO GO TB-162891522 TOLL BILL  7.25
Total :  7.25

 167652 8/31/2016 0001642  GOVERNOR'S INDUSTRIAL SAFETY 19664964 REGISTRATION/BAILEY/ZYLSTRA  360.00
Total :  360.00

 167653 8/31/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9183697813 HOSE  541.33
 48.13SAFETY LABELS9185226496

Total :  589.46

 167654 8/31/2016 0008121  GRANICUS, INC 78974 B&C AND ENCODER SOFTWARE CONTRACT BUYOUT 1,427.68
 500.81GOVERNMENT TRANSPARANCY SUITE CONTRACT B78976

Total :  1,928.49

 167655 8/31/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 081716 ADVERTISING  2,349.00
 2,559.10FOLDER DISPLAY082316

Total :  4,908.10

 167656 8/31/2016 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8391 MAINTENANCE & INPSECTIONS  940.00
Total :  940.00

 167657 8/31/2016 0003505  HAMLIN, BERNADINE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00
Total :  15.00

 167658 8/31/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 48370/2 BACKFLOW  503.82
Total :  503.82

 167659 8/31/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4288682 WATER METERS  4,555.36
 693.33WATER METERSI4292652

 1,106.34NOZZLE/ROTOR/SWIVEL ELLI4302471
Total :  6,355.03

 167660 8/31/2016 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F963039 SHOE ACC PUMPER  2,290.98

8Page:

112



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167660 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS
 136.57LUGGED RESTR PACKF966001

Total :  2,427.55

 167661 8/31/2016 0000382  HELTSLEY, RAY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  65.00
 101.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2

Total :  166.00

 167662 8/31/2016 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 57485171 DIMM  75.33
 1,031.56COMPUTER57502008

Total :  1,106.89

 167663 8/31/2016 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWFC15 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  731,029.54
Total :  731,029.54

 167664 8/31/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1592410 LUBRICANT  5.40
 12.48LIQUAFEED162498
 18.70TRIM KIT/MINERAL SPIRITS1972703
 28.85TIME DELAY CARTRIDGE2010644
 10.25PULLER2010645
 7.58BLADE2020693

 23.87STRETCH WRAP2023650
 181.19STORAGE BOX/SPRAYER/SQUEEGE2023674
 17.26CONCRETE22404
 7.29BOLTS/CONCRETE22444

 10.80KNOB LATCH24036
 12.65SPECTRACIDE2592353

 242.40PLIERS/SAW/HAMMER3043313
 8.24ADAPTERS/CONCRETE4020315
 8.69TANK REPAIR4132046

 101.34MULCH/MED DUTY GEN4162116
 97.33EHC/PLC5023157
 12.66SPECTRACIDE5132172
 39.07BATTERIES5580759

 152.63WH REFR ESTAR5973033
 29.27PLANTERS/POTTING MIX6021591

 385.89TPROCA/CABINET7024469

9Page:

113



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167664 8/31/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
 33.56HOSE7164227
 26.46CONSTRUCTION SELECT8021276
 8.45SPADE/BIT8021277
 6.44BUSHINGS8022767

 42.33BATTERIES8024276
 55.28SLIP JOINT/CABLE CLAMP/WASHERS8024354

 390.10BANDSAWS8563095
 30.75SCREWS9022577
 21.71BITS9563030
 59.72HAMMER/HANDLE9591913

Total :  2,088.64

 167665 8/31/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 267535 COFFEE SUPPLIES  64.49
Total :  64.49

 167666 8/31/2016 0000396  I-COM 18-MEDDISP 3RD QTR 2016 USER FEES  7,469.51
Total :  7,469.51

 167667 8/31/2016 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 081116 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67
Total :  166.67

 167668 8/31/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 621144-3 STUDS  5.58
 558.84PIN/WEDGES/CLAMPS/RIVETS622812-1

Total :  564.42

 167669 8/31/2016 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 1000715922 PUBLICATIONS  861.16
Total :  861.16

 167670 8/31/2016 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 2ND QTR 2016 2ND QTR 2016 EXCISE PROFIT LIQUOR TAX  1,410.93
Total :  1,410.93

 167671 8/31/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 073116A DISPOSAL CHARGES  1,308.00
Total :  1,308.00

 167672 8/31/2016 0000412  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 081516 3RD QTR 2016 JOINT TOURISM FUND  5,000.00
Total :  5,000.00

10Page:

114



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167673 8/31/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 080416 JUL 2016 DISPOSAL CHARGES  19,854.49
 103.43ANIMAL SHELTER4439636

Total :  19,957.92

 167674 8/31/2016 0007910  ISLAND DIVE SERVICES 144 HULL CLEANING  73.37
Total :  73.37

 167675 8/31/2016 0008085  JANSEN, JACOB TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  81.50
Total :  81.50

 167676 8/31/2016 0008346  JENSEN, CYNDY 080316 INSTRUCTOR/CLOGGING CLASS  212.00
Total :  212.00

 167677 8/31/2016 0002273  JOHN E REID & ASSOCIATES, INC 169740 REGISTRATION/BROWN  380.00
Total :  380.00

 167678 8/31/2016 0006362  KBA, INC 3002919 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  88,795.03
Total :  88,795.03

 167679 8/31/2016 0000476  KERR, JACK 08-16 AUG 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00
Total :  1,400.00

 167680 8/31/2016 0002227  LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 03124476 INMATE SERVICES  63.00
Total :  63.00

 167681 8/31/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5039478MB ASPHALT  305.40
 208.08ASPHALT5104119MB

Total :  513.48

 167682 8/31/2016 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 9 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50
Total :  227.50

 167683 8/31/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400262083 FLAT REPAIR  36.96
 195.46TIRES41400262915
 74.87FRONT AXLE83300321920

Total :  307.29

 167684 8/31/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS CM1891 SHIRTS -39.95

11Page:

115



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167684 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS
-151.80SHIRTSCM1892
-79.32CARDIGANSCM2232

 346.46CITY CARRIER/POUCHESINV43871
 116.69PANTSINV45073
 135.18BOOTSINV46079
 294.98SERVICE MEDALINV46512

Total :  622.24

 167685 8/31/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  135.00
 99.00DRIVING SERVICES1
 48.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  282.00

 167686 8/31/2016 0002623  LUEHR, BARBARA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00
Total :  35.00

 167687 8/31/2016 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 113011681 ICE  108.00
Total :  108.00

 167688 8/31/2016 0001637  LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 321444 FIELD KIT  279.36
Total :  279.36

 167689 8/31/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 119591 YARD WASTE  5.00
Total :  5.00

 167690 8/31/2016 0003120  MAMMOTH STONEWORKS 3194 ENGRAVING  34.38
Total :  34.38

 167691 8/31/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 159563 GROCERIES  489.08
 5.99WATER159576

 291.49GROCERIES162845
 334.51GROCERIES162971

Total :  1,121.07

 167692 8/31/2016 0000362  MARSH-MCBIRNEY - HACH COMPANY 10066828 FLUORIDE  197.24
Total :  197.24

12Page:

116



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167693 8/31/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608501525 LONG DISTANCE  382.56
Total :  382.56

 167694 8/31/2016 0008347  MCGEE, MARIA 080316 INSTRUCTION/YOGA  225.00
Total :  225.00

 167695 8/31/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.40
Total :  37.40

 167696 8/31/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  374.76
Total :  374.76

 167697 8/31/2016 0005127  MICHALSKI, PAT 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
 15.00TRAVEL REFUND1
 35.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  72.00

 167698 8/31/2016 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0585878-IN OIL/CLEANER/DEGREASER  514.16
Total :  514.16

 167699 8/31/2016 0000197  MILES SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY 1488474 SAND  420.22
 83.79SAND1488710

 335.13SAND1489063
Total :  839.14

 167700 8/31/2016 0007549  MINREF PRESS 714 POSTCARDS  61.78
Total :  61.78

 167701 8/31/2016 0007994  MORGAN, LESLIE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  59.40
Total :  59.40

 167702 8/31/2016 0000427  MUNICIPAL CLERKS, INTERNATIONAL INST OF082416 EDUCATION PAYMENT  90.00
Total :  90.00

 167703 8/31/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES IN1054376 TAIL COAT/TAIL PANTS  1,630.50
Total :  1,630.50

 167704 8/31/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0263526 TUBE/SEALS  80.47

13Page:

117



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  80.47 167704 8/31/2016 0000608 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY

 167705 8/31/2016 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0586912-IN FUEL  2,545.51
 379.28FUEL0592397-IN

Total :  2,924.79

 167706 8/31/2016 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000451454 JUL 2016 MONTHLY SERVICE  243.49
Total :  243.49

 167707 8/31/2016 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 376881 GLASS BEAKERS  32.92
Total :  32.92

 167708 8/31/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 274520 THREAD SEAL  8.13
 12.13FASTENERS/COMPRESSION/TEES274521
 93.00LINER/SCREWDRIVER/WRENCH274536
 19.54HINGES274551
 24.87TEES/BUSHINGS/ADAPTERS274561
 2.80ADAPTER274566

 17.77NIPPLE/COUPLE/TEE/BUSHING274569
 12.48CEMENT/PRIMER274572
 14.65NIPPLE/VALVE BOX274579
 6.52MALE TAB274582

 27.15COUPLES274614
 2.80ADAPTERS274732

 55.80PIPE/ANGLE/UNION/ELBOW/TEES274807
 5.44SCREWS274816
 6.07CONST ADH274850

 17.91PLUGIN274855
 19.10BALL VALVE/NIPPLE274865
 15.20TAPE274884
 75.86TRAFFIC MARKER/HOSE/UNION/ADAPTER/INSERT274948
 5.42SEALER274953

 19.54PEST TRAP274957
 17.12TUBE/ADAPTER/ELBOW274972
 34.77SPRAYER274973
 59.71TEE/ADAPTERS/PIPE/CEMENT275002
 13.01COUPLE/UNION275013

14Page:

118



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167708 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE
 10.86MOUNTING TAPE275029
 35.29CONNECTOR/UNIONS275033
 4.99ANCHORS275034

 16.38TUBE/SPLY FCT275037
 14.19DOOR STOP/VENT TRAP275152
 42.36FLEX SEAL275253
 17.91PLUG IN275266

Total :  728.77

 167709 8/31/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-278058C OVERPAYMENT ADJUSTMENT -9.50
 55.76LIGHT001-281431
 55.76LIGHT001-281432
 9.66FILTERS001-281881
 2.49PUSH BUTTON001-281911

 34.98U-JOINT001-282172
 30.52FILTERS001-282216
 61.12BLADE001-282337
 14.47BLADE001-282338
 17.22FILTERS001-282360

 267.41LIGHT/GROMMET/PLUG001-282406
 40.80FILTERS001-282628
 81.60FILTERS001-282629
 84.70FILTERS001-282682
 26.75BALL HITCH001-282993
 14.20BALL HITCH001-283053

Total :  787.94

 167710 8/31/2016 0007653  OAK HARBOR PRIMARY CARE, PLLC 072916 INMATE SERVICES  112.00
 200.00INMATE SERVICES080616

Total :  312.00

 167711 8/31/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150235 AUG 2016 COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00
Total :  11,092.00

 167712 8/31/2016 0006081  OAK HARBOR YOUTH FOOTBALL & 081516 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REFUND  121.60

15Page:

119



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  121.60 167712 8/31/2016 0006081 0006081  OAK HARBOR YOUTH FOOTBALL &

 167713 8/31/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 742910 MARKERS  5.97
Total :  5.97

 167714 8/31/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0102129 TIRES  172.52
 82.46TIRES0102131
 82.46TIRES0102132

Total :  337.44

 167715 8/31/2016 0001596  PACIFIC TORQUE, LLC 102040 FILTER  73.06
Total :  73.06

 167716 8/31/2016 0008344  PICKLEBALL 211351700 CHAMPION GRAPHITE SECONDS/YELLOW DOZEN 205.00
Total :  205.00

 167717 8/31/2016 0008339  POHTILLA, SKIP 080516 DRIFTWOOD DAY MATERIALS  13.09
Total :  13.09

 167718 8/31/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DR  39.48
 733.19ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT200000881421
 10.35ELECTRICITY/WINDMILL200000919684

 1,674.79ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859
 16.85ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589
 15.34ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218
 71.68ELECTRICITY/10505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164
 29.19ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719
 69.37ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917
 22.05ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097
 10.97ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261
 77.99ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501
 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617
 81.74ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 164.64ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381
 13.77ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170
 13.93ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 130.92ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654
 27.30ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

16Page:

120



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167718 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY
 54.43ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD LITE200004562878
 10.25ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627
 10.25ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310
 13.56ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR WKITCH200005461666
 32.40ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 3,738.06ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094
 10.16ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 178.23ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135
 66.86ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943
 10.25ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192
 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993
 13.93ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189
 34.75ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895
 99.25ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248
 15.96ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446
 34.43ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LGHTS200010530240

 115.30ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST PARK200010530802
 108.62ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024
 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172
 77.66ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354
 83.65ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941
 13.77ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943
 44.13ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 281.44ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839
 22.87ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930
 23.75ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964
 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 899.96ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087
 2,254.10ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 12.70ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765
 1,507.81ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750
 2,431.79ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 89.85ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405
 37.86ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 203.60ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534
 753.02ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

17Page:

121



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167718 8/31/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY
 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153
 87.97ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321
 62.54ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 305.86ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619
 695.93ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482
 46.70ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347
 65.37ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 155.48ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415
 11.20ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,095.90ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427
 21.55ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344
 27.36ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517
 11.68ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194
 12.04ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITEST200020308330
 25.81ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113
 17.70ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067
 33.71ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569
 30.52ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845
 70.45ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157
 88.91ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098
 63.49ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337
 13.56ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 798.13ELECTRICITY/101220003651407
 1,033.75ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 14.87ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946
 171.13ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955
 16.77ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 398.86ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003
 64.85ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 13,945.44ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421
 13,948.93ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 54.43ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906
 64.10ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409
 98.20ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010458
 67.56ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

18Page:

122



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  50,160.97 167718 8/31/2016 0000743 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 167719 8/31/2016 0002806  RADIA Z2KU8U8 INMATE SERVICES  123.60
Total :  123.60

 167720 8/31/2016 0001210  RECREATION & PARKS 984 REGISTRATION/ANDERSON  149.00
Total :  149.00

 167721 8/31/2016 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 083116 SEP 2016 PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,666.50
Total :  1,666.50

 167722 8/31/2016 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1735 TAPING SERVICES  1,421.75
Total :  1,421.75

 167723 8/31/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 430960 GROCERIES  92.37
 31.08GROCERIES723879
 30.00GROCERIES800846

Total :  153.45

 167724 8/31/2016 0006455  SCHNEIDER, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  200.00
Total :  200.00

 167725 8/31/2016 0000799  SCOTTIES PLUMBING AND REPAIR 41913 BATHROOM SERVICES  271.72
Total :  271.72

 167726 8/31/2016 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 16-4135F SHIPPING  116.70
Total :  116.70

 167727 8/31/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 60910 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  384.00
Total :  384.00

 167728 8/31/2016 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545608 FUEL  112.84
Total :  112.84

 167729 8/31/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9411783462 SHREDDING  61.21
 89.76SHREDDING SERVICES9411783485

Total :  150.97

19Page:

123



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167730 8/31/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 455747 SURFACTANT  93.46
Total :  93.46

 167731 8/31/2016 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00170554 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  229.50
Total :  229.50

 167732 8/31/2016 0008345  SOUND GENERATIONS PROJECT ENHA L-838-082216 LICENSE  700.00
Total :  700.00

 167733 8/31/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7702983 JUL 2016/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  448.09
 231.75CITY BIDSWCW714141
 90.96CITY NOTICESWCW714803
 72.27CITY ORDINANCESWCW714983
 49.84CITY BIDSWCW715568

Total :  892.91

 167734 8/31/2016 0004203  SRV CONSTRUCTION, INC 083116 RETAINAGE  6,602.10
Total :  6,602.10

 167735 8/31/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 082216 LIFE/POCFF  370.63
Total :  370.63

 167736 8/31/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3308712738 TONER/BATTERIES  101.70
 4.96FASTENERS3308712739

 332.31TONER/BATTERIES3309292523
 625.57TONER3310194762
 131.62PRIVACY FILTER3310194763
 789.75PRIVACY FILTERS3310194764
 32.56MOUSE3310194765
 41.33MEMORYCARD3310194766
 60.54SPINDLE/ENVELOPES3310194767
 45.63HEATERS3311024534
 72.77MOUSE/POST ITS3311024535
 27.97ENVELOPES/HANGING FOLDERS3311024536
 42.44PENS3311024537

 145.53TONER3311024538
 47.82FLOOR MAT3311024539

20Page:

124



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167736 8/31/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
-57.62CREDIT3311024540
-7.86CREDIT3311024541

 179.04TONER3311024542
-110.83CREDIT3311024543
 92.80FOLDERS3311024544
-14.52CREDIT3311024545
 47.52SPINDLE3311024546
 89.03VERBATIM DVD3311024547

 271.74PRINTER3311024548
 58.38HAND SANITIZER/COIN ENVELOPES/PENS3311024549

Total :  3,050.18

 167737 8/31/2016 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L115956 2016 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2015  1,864.99
Total :  1,864.99

 167738 8/31/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0011296 BOOTS/JANSEN  165.92
Total :  165.92

 167739 8/31/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  145.00
 126.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  271.00

 167740 8/31/2016 0005272  SUBLET, CHRISTOPHER EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  146.44
Total :  146.44

 167741 8/31/2016 0006673  SUMMIT SAFETY SHOES 9005363 BOOTS/ANEMA  200.00
Total :  200.00

 167742 8/31/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1121505 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79
 55.44PEST EXTERMINATION1122068
 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1122327

Total :  175.02

 167743 8/31/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 116492 BLANKS/SIGNS  663.02
Total :  663.02

 167744 8/31/2016 0008337  TRAFFIC SUPPLY COMPANY 100005467 TIRE/WHEEL/CUTTING BLADE  38.53

21Page:

125



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167744 8/31/2016 (Continued)0008337  TRAFFIC SUPPLY COMPANY
 13.02ADAPTERS100009188

Total :  51.55

 167745 8/31/2016 0007779  UNIVERSAL LANGUAGE SERVICE, IN INV-160818-10097 INTERPRETER SERVICES  18.20
Total :  18.20

 167746 8/31/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 081816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 167747 8/31/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001621568 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,818.72
Total :  2,818.72

 167748 8/31/2016 0008167  US BANK AND HOFFMAN CONST 242213000 RETAINAGE-ACCOUNT 242213000  35,247.33
Total :  35,247.33

 167749 8/31/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9770018230 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,829.17
Total :  5,829.17

 167750 8/31/2016 0008309  WASHINGTON APPRAISAL SERVICES 7138 PROF SVC/SLEEPER PIT  10,027.60
Total :  10,027.60

 167751 8/31/2016 0001056  WASHINGTON IRON WORKS, INC 2597 WELDING  1,092.44
Total :  1,092.44

 167752 8/31/2016 0000987  WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY 19601364 REGISTRATION/FAKKEMA/JANSEN  900.00
Total :  900.00

 167753 8/31/2016 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC K820748 HARDLINE ASSY  268.02
 544.88GASKET/ELEMENT/PUMPS889465
 499.73PIPE/GASKET/CLAMPSS889517

Total :  1,312.63

 167754 8/31/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 287710 PARTS  41.78
 5.41TARP FAS293463

 10.78PREM TRACTOR PL293754
 1.25NUTS293863

 50.18SOCKET SET/JOINT293999

22Page:

126



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167754 8/31/2016 (Continued)0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC.
 43.48OXYGEN294009

Total :  152.88

 167755 8/31/2016 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 071416 RILEY  150.00
 150.00HANNAN071816

Total :  300.00

 167756 8/31/2016 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAE81644 INMATE SERVICES  368.05
Total :  368.05

 167757 8/31/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48663 TIME CHITS  339.77
 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/WENAAS48680

Total :  399.56

 167758 8/31/2016 0007078  WHIDBEY SIGN COMPANY 16377 BANNER  684.81
Total :  684.81

 167759 8/31/2016 0006969  WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP E1495741 HARNESS  180.55
Total :  180.55

 167760 8/31/2016 0004627  WOODS LOGGING SUPPLY, INC 1419579 TUBE SEAL KIT/NOSE CUP  205.76
Total :  205.76

 167761 8/31/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701991386 JUN 2016 COPIER RENTAL  4,498.19
Total :  4,498.19

 167762 8/31/2016 0001068  ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC 0183769 VINYL  472.79
Total :  472.79

 167763 8/31/2016 0008338  ZYLSTRA, DAVID TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  144.00
Total :  144.00

Bank total :  1,196,743.52 171 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,196,743.52Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 171

23Page:

127



08/31/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

24

 3:41:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

24Page:

128



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-26: 
Acknowledging the Island 
Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (Island RTPO) and 
authorizing membership therein

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Approve Resolution No. 16-26

2. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement forming the IRTPO

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-26: 
Acknowledging the Island 
Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (Island RTPO) and 
authorizing membership therein

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Approve Resolution No. 16-26

2. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement forming the IRTPO

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2016, Oak Harbor and the major towns and cities in Island County were members of the Skagit
Island Regional Transportation Policy Organization (SIRTPO).  Skagit County decided to withdraw from
that organization and on February 2, 2016, City Council passed Resolution 16-06, which authorized 
creation and membership in Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO).  The ITPO operated 
with Island County acting as the lead agency.  The purpose of the ITPO was to act in an advisory 
capacity, assisting in the furtherance of Countywide Planning Policies and other regionally adopted plans 
and recommending how federal transportation monies should be allocated for projects within Island 
County.   

Recent legislative changes have occurred which allow Island County to form its own regional 
transportation planning organization.  The new Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization will
perform the same functions as the ITPO.  The attached Resolution and Interlocal Agreement indicate 
Oak Harbor's intent to join IRTPO and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement forming the 
organization. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 47.80

FISCAL IMPACT

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2016, Oak Harbor and the major towns and cities in Island County were members of the Skagit-
Island Regional Transportation Policy Organization (SIRTPO).  Skagit County decided to withdraw from 
that organization and on February 2, 2016, City Council passed Resolution 16-06, which authorized 
creation and membership in Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO).  The ITPO operated 
with Island County acting as the lead agency.  The purpose of the ITPO was to act in an advisory 
capacity, assisting in the furtherance of Countywide Planning Policies and other regionally adopted plans 
and recommending how federal transportation monies should be allocated for projects within Island 
County.   

Recent legislative changes have occurred which allow Island County to form its own regional 
transportation planning organization.  The new Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization will 
perform the same functions as the ITPO.  The attached Resolution and Interlocal Agreement indicate 
Oak Harbor's intent to join IRTPO and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement forming the 
organization. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 47.80

FISCAL IMPACT

129



FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the August 24, 2016 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-26
2. RTPO Interlocal Agreement

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the August 24, 2016 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-26
2. RTPO Interlocal Agreement

130

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471362454x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471544782x_at.pdf


Resolution No. 16-26 regarding 
the Island Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization (Island RTPO) 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-26 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ACKNOWLEDGING 
THE ISLAND REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION (ISLAND RTPO) AND AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP 
THEREIN 
 
WHEREAS, Island County, the City of Oak Harbor, the City of Langley, the Town of 
Coupeville, the Port of South Whidbey, the Port of Coupeville, and Island County Public 
Transportation Benefit Area Corporation find it appropriate to form a county-wide, 
regionally focused transportation planning organization hereby known as the ISLAND 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION; and 
 
WHEREAS, Island County, City of Oak Harbor, City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, 
Island Transit, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, Washington State Department 
of Transportation, Island County Economic Development Association and Naval Air 
Station Whidbey Island currently engage in joint transportation planning activities under 
an Interlocal Agreement signed by the City of Oak Harbor on February 26, 2016, which 
created the Island Transportation Planning Organization; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2016, Island County will qualify to be an RTPO under 
revised RCW 47.80.020 which authorizes the creation of regional transportation planning 
organizations (RTPOs) within the state and each organization shall be formed through the 
voluntary association of local governments within a county or within geographically 
contiguous counties.  Each organization shall: 
 
1. encompass at least one (1) county; 
 
2. . . . have a population of at least seven-five thousand (75,000) and contain a 

Washington state ferries terminal . . .; and 
 
3. have as members all counties within the region and at least sixty percent (60%) of 

the cities and towns within the region representing a minimum of seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the cities' and towns' population; and 

 
WHEREAS, an Interlocal Agreement and Bylaws for the Island RTPO need to be 
established; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor intends to enter into an Interlocal Agreement under 
the authority of Chapter 39.34 RCW to provide for the joint and/or cooperative exercise 
of their powers, privileges, and authorities for comprehensive transportation planning; 
and 
 

131



Resolution No. 16-26 regarding 
the Island Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization (Island RTPO) 
Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor desires to become a member of the newly formed 
Island RTPO; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor supports Island County to serve as the lead planning 
agency until such time as a decision of the Island RTPO Policy Board designates a 
different lead planning agency; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 
that: 
 
1. The City of Oak Harbor acknowledges the formation of Island RTPO and 

authorizes membership of the City of Oak Harbor therein, conditioned upon the 
dissolution of the Island Transportation Planning Organization and termination of 
the accompanying Interlocal Agreement. 

 
2. The Mayor is authorized to sign the Interlocal Agreement creating the Island 

Regional Transportation Planning Organization (IRTPO). 
 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of 
________________, 2016. 
        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
__________________________ 

      Robert Severns, Mayor 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\ITPO Resolution No. 16-26.docx 

132



 

Page 1 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

Return To: 

 

Island County 

P.O. Box 5000 

1 NE 7th Street 

Coupeville, WA 98239 

 

 

AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG ISLAND COUNTY, CITY OF OAK HARBOR, CITY OF 

LANGLEY, TOWN OF COUPEVILLE, ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT 

AREA CORPORATION, PORT OF SOUTH WHIDBEY, AND PORT OF COUPEVILLE, TO FORM 

THE ISLAND REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION (IRTPO), AND 

DEFINE ITS JURISDICTIONAL AREA AND DUTIES. 

 

 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT “AGREEMENT,” is made and entered into among Island County, a 

political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as the “County,” the City of Oak 

Harbor, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, the City of Langley, a municipal corporation 

of the State of Washington, the Town of Coupeville, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, 

the Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, herein referred to as “Island Transit,” 

the Port of South Whidbey, a public port district of the State of Washington, the Port of Coupeville, a 

public port district of the State of Washington, collectively referred to as the “Members.” 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

WHEREAS, under chapter 39.34 RCW, counties, cities and other public agencies are authorized to enter 
into interlocal cooperative agreements to jointly engage in activities each is authorized by law to do on 
its own; and 
 
WHEREAS, chapter 47.80 RCW authorizes the formation of a Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (RTPO) by voluntary association of local governments within a county; and 
 
WHEREAS, an RTPO may be created, pursuant to RCW 47.80.020, provided the RTPO shall:  

 (1) Encompass at least one complete county;  

(2) . . . have a population of at least seventy-five thousand and contain a Washington state 

ferries terminal . . .; and  

(3) Have as members at least sixty percent of the cities and towns within the region 

representing a minimum of seventy-five percent of the cities' and towns' population. 

 

WHEREAS, Island County, the City of Oak Harbor, City of Langley , Town of Coupeville, Island Transit, 

Port of South Whidbey, and the Port of Coupeville, find it appropriate to form a county-wide, regionally 

focused transportation planning organization hereby known as the “ISLAND REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION” or “IRTPO”; and 

133



 

Page 2 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

 

WHEREAS, each RTPO formed by local governments shall create a transportation policy board 

(“Executive Board”) to review, consider, and approve regional transportation policies of the RTPO and 

shall allow representatives of major employers within the region, the department of transportation, and 

member transit districts, port districts, cities, towns and the County within the region to participate in 

policy making; and 

 

WHEREAS, among other duties, each RTPO shall perform the duties set forth in RCW 47.80.023, 

including, but not limited to, the following: (i) develop and periodically update a regional transportation 

plan in cooperation with the State Department of Transportation, providers of public transportation, 

ports, and local governments within the region;  and (ii) designate a lead planning agency to coordinate 

preparation of said regional transportation plan and carry out the other responsibilities of the 

Organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, a cooperative process between Island County, the City of Langley, the City of Oak Harbor and 

the Town of Coupeville resulted in the development of the current Island County Countywide Planning 

Policies, which were adopted by  Ordinance C-100-15 in 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Planning Policies’ (CWPP) stated transportation goal in CWPP 2.10 is that 

“Island County should be served by an efficient, well connected, multimodal transportation 

system.  Transportation plans, spending decisions, and regulations will be consistent with, and reinforce 

adopted land use and economic development plans”; and 

 

WHEREAS, CWPP 3.8.1 states that “All transportation planning, including that of Federal or State 

agencies, and Port Districts, should be jointly and cooperatively developed, adopted and implemented 

through coordinated and collaborative planning efforts”; and 

 

WHEREAS, CWPP 3.8.2 provides that “the County and Municipalities should each actively participate in 

multi-county, multi-jurisdictional, regional transportation planning, including planning for Washington 

State Ferries”; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following terms and conditions incorporated herein as part 

of this agreement, it is agreed among the Members: 

 

 

Section 1: ORGANIZATION NAME AND MEMBERSHIP 

 

A regional transportation planning organization is hereby created and established in Island County and 

shall be hereby known as the Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization, referred to 

hereafter as the “IRTPO.”  The membership of the IRTPO shall be comprised of the following Members:  

Island County; City of Oak Harbor; City of Langley; Town of Coupeville; Island Transit; Port of South 

Whidbey; and Port of Coupeville.  

134



 

Page 3 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

  

Section 2: PURPOSE  

 

Recognizing that coordinated transportation planning of the  Counties, Cities and Towns, Washington 

State Department of Transportation, the ports, transit districts, and other jurisdictions are necessarily 

interwoven and interdependent and that the interests of all citizens will best be served by coordinated, 

cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning, this IRTPO is established to facilitate such 

appropriate coordination and cooperation and provide for continuing area wide transportation planning 

in accordance with Section 3, herein. 

 

The IRTPO is neither intended to, nor is it authorized to, supersede the authority vested in the County, 

Cities and Towns, Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) or Washington State 

Transportation Commission, but is intended to meet the prerequisites of chapter 47.80 RCW, and 

chapter 468-86 WAC.  

 

Section 3: DUTIES  

 

The duties of the RTPO shall be as follows: 

 

(a) To perform the functions of a Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) as set forth in 

Ch. 47.80 RCW and Ch. 468-86 WAC, as currently adopted or as amended, specifically: 

(1) to prepare and periodically update a transportation strategy for the region.  The strategy shall 

address alternative transportation modes and transportation demand management measures in 

regional corridors and shall recommend preferred transportation policies to implement adopted 

growth strategies.   

(2) to prepare a regional transportation plan as set forth in RCW 47.80.030 that is consistent with 

countywide planning policies and with County, city, and town comprehensive plans, and state 

transportation plans. 

(3) to certify that the transportation elements of comprehensive plans adopted by counties, cities, 

and towns with the region reflect the guidelines and principles developed pursuant to RCW 

47.80.026, are consistent with the adopted regional transportation plan, and where appropriate, 

conform with the requirements of RCW 36.70A.070. 

(4) where appropriate, to certify that countywide planning policies adopted under RCW 36.70A.210 

and the adopted regional transportation plan are consistent. 

(5) to develop, pursuant to the requirements in RCW 47.80.023(5), in cooperation with the 

department of transportation, operators of public transportation services and local governments 

within the region, a six-year regional transportation improvement program which proposes 

regionally significant transportation projects and programs and transportation demand 

management measures.  The program shall be updated at least every two years for the ensuing six-

year period.  

135



 

Page 4 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

(6) to include specific opportunities and projects to advance special needs coordinated 

transportation, as defined in RCW 47.06B.012, in the coordinated transit-human services 

transportation plan, after providing opportunity for public comment. 

(7) to designate a lead planning agency to coordinate preparation of the regional transportation 

plan and carry out the other responsibilities of the organization.   

(8) to review level of service methodologies used by cities and counties planning under chapter 

36.70A RCW to promote a consistent regional evaluation of transportation facilities and corridors. 

(9) to work with cities, counties, transit agencies, the department of transportation, and others to 

develop level of service standards or alternative transportation performance measures. 

(10) to submit to the agency council on coordinated transportation, as provided in chapter 47.06B 

RCW, beginning on July 1, 2007 and every four years thereafter, an updated plan that includes the 

elements identified by the council.  Each regional transportation planning organization must submit 

to the council every two years a prioritized regional human service and transportation project list.  

(b) To administer regional transportation funding programs. 

(c) To participate in the development and maintenance of transportation related information necessary 

to support the functions and responsibilities of the RTPO. 

(d) To promote the regional transportation interests, plans and projects to local, state and federal 

public and private entities. 

(e) To create committees as necessary to advise the Executive Board (as defined herein) on regional 

transportation related matters. At a minimum this shall include the Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC) whose composition and responsibilities shall be defined by the Executive Board. 

(f) To comply with any other transportation planning requirement set forth in Ch. 47.80 RCW not 

otherwise mentioned above. 

(g) To perform such other transportation planning and program related functions as the Board may 

hereinafter determine to be in the best interests of the RTPO in carrying out the duties of the RTPO 

and the members thereof, which are consistent with the terms of this Agreement and related 

federal and state law. 

 

Section 4:  JURISDICTIONAL AND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AREA DEFINED 

 

The Organization’s jurisdictional area shall consist of all incorporated and unincorporated areas of Island 

County in Washington State. 

 

Section 5:    GOVERNING BODY AND OFFICERS 

  

A. The governing body (the “Executive Board”) of the IRTPO shall include, but is not limited to, 

representative(s) from Island County, the City of Oak Harbor, Town of Coupeville, City of Langley, 

Island Transit, and the Port of Coupeville and Port of South Whidbey.  The Bylaws of the IRTPO shall 

govern the membership, meetings, and voting process of the Executive Board of the RTPO.   

 

B. The Executive Board is responsible for taking official actions performing the duties of the RTPO as 

set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement.  The Executive Board is to receive technical assistance from 

136



 

Page 5 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

the Technical Advisory Committee as described below.  The Executive Board shall also appoint the 

lead agency, through resolution of the RTPO, and shall have the power to create a special 

subcommittee if one is necessary for a special purpose or project. 

 

Section 6: TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

A. The advisory body (the “Technical Advisory Committee” or “TAC”) of the RTPO shall be comprised of 

the TAC committee members as listed in Appendix A to the IRTPO Bylaws.  The TAC may vote 

according to the rules established within the Bylaws for Island Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization.   Although the TAC meetings shall be available to the public, the TAC is not subject to 

the requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act, chapter 42.30 RCW, because the TAC is advisory 

only as it provides recommendations to the Executive Board for consideration and official action.  

 

B. The primary role of the TAC is to provide technical advice and information to the Executive Board, to 

support the Executive Board in the fulfillment of its duties.  In addition to the TAC, a broad range of 

stakeholders including, but not limited to, regional employers, school districts, and community 

groups, may provide technical assistance and input to the IRTPO Executive Board whether directly, 

or through the TAC, upon request of the Executive Board. 

 

Section 7:  DURATION  

 

This Agreement is perpetual unless a Member of the IRTPO decides to terminate its own membership 

pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement.  The effect of a Member withdrawing from the IRTPO will not 

affect the Agreement as to the remaining Members, unless the participation requirements in RCW 

47.80.020(3) are no longer met.   

 

Section 8: MEETINGS AND VOTING 

 

The IRTPO Executive Board shall hold its meetings and conduct its voting in accordance with the Bylaws 

of the IRTPO.   

 

Section 9: ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF AND SUPPORT 

 

The Lead Agency, appointed by the IRTPO Executive Board, shall provide administrative support and 

assistance to the Regional Transportation Planning Organization, including its Executive Board and 

Technical Advisory Committee. 

 

Section 10: TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 

 

An individual Member agency may withdraw from the Island Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization by giving sixty (60) days written notice to the Island Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization. Any Voting Member agency that withdraws does not absolve such member agency from 

137



 

Page 6 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

the responsibility for meeting any obligations or agreements which exist between the Island Regional 

Transportation Planning Organization and its Member organizations at the time of withdrawal, if any. 

 

Note that should sufficient members terminate their membership in the IRTPO, the ability of the 

organization to maintain viability within this agreement may be compromised as per 47.80 RCW. 

 

        Section 11:  TERMINATION OF THE ITPO 

 

All prior agreements regarding the Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO) are superseded 

by this agreement and the members, by signing this Agreement, hereby agree to the immediate 

termination of the February 2016 interlocal agreement that formed the ITPO.  The ITPO recently met at 

a regular meeting and adopted a resolution intended to dissolve the ITPO and wind up its affairs.  The 

ITPO agreed to dissolve and terminate the February interlocal agreement because the ITPO agrees with 

the formation of the new IRTPO through the adoption of this Agreement.  The signatories to this 

Agreement all agree with and ratify the action taken by the ITPO to dissolve and wind up its affairs, and 

the ITPO is therefore hereby dissolved and the newly formed IRTPO will resume its duties. 

 

        Section 12:  EFFECTIVE DATE  

 

This Agreement shall become effective upon the signature of each of the Members’ governing bodies or 

executive with signing authority and the recording of this agreement with the Island County Auditor on 

the same date as the last signatory to sign this document. This Agreement may be signed in 

counterparts, each which shall be considered the same as an original.  

 

Section 13: NO FINANCIAL OBLIGATION FOR MEMBERS 

 

No dues or other finances will be imposed upon members of the Transportation Planning Organization. 

 

Section 14: PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION 

 

No property will be purchased by or shared between Members in a formal capacity as a function of their 

involvement in the Transportation Planning Organization. 

 

Section 15:  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

Each party agrees to be responsible and assume liability for its own wrongful and/or negligent acts or 

omissions or those of their officials, officers, agents, or employees to the fullest extent required by law, 

and further agrees to hold the other party(s) to this Interlocal Agreement harmless from any such 

liability. 

 

 

 

138



 

Page 7 of 7 
Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization Interlocal Agreement 

 

Section 16:  SEVERABILITY 

 

If any provision of this Agreement, or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the 

remainder of the Agreement, or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not 

affected. 

 

 

Members 

 

Board of Island County Commissioners   City of Oak Harbor 

Island County, Washington 

 

 

______________________ ________  ______________________ ________ 

Richard M. Hannold, Chair Date   Bob Severns, Mayor  Date 

 

 

 

City of Langley      Town of Coupeville 

 

 

______________________ ________  _____________________ ________ 

Tim Callison, Mayor                Date   Molly Hughes, Mayor  Date 

 

 

 

Port of South Whidbey     Port of Coupeville 

 

 

______________________ ________  _____________________ ________ 

Curt Gordon, Commissioner Date   John Mishasek, Commissioner        Date 

 

 

 

Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation dba Island Transit 

 

 

______________________     _________ 

Jackie Henderson, Secretary          Date 

 

 

139



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Appointment:  Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee, Collector 
3 - Ashlie Bird

FROM: Mayor Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Ashlie Bird to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), Collector 3, to fulfill an unexpired 
term beginning 9/06/2016 and ending 12/31/2018.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Donald Macomb resigned from the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Collector 3 Position, in May of 
2016.  He was appointed on 11/17/2015 to fulfill an unexpired term and his term expires 12/31/2018.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Appointment:  Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee, Collector 
3 - Ashlie Bird

FROM: Mayor Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Ashlie Bird to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), Collector 3, to fulfill an unexpired 
term beginning 9/06/2016 and ending 12/31/2018.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Donald Macomb resigned from the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Collector 3 Position, in May of 
2016.  He was appointed on 11/17/2015 to fulfill an unexpired term and his term expires 12/31/2018.  2016.  He was appointed on 11/17/2015 to fulfill an unexpired term and his term expires 12/31/2018.  

Mayor Severns recommends appointing Ashlie Bird to serve the remainder of the Collector 3 term.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.66.020 and 2.66.030.

Ashlie Bird works as the Sales Manager at Best Western Plus in Oak Harbor and meets the qualifications 
of a Collector to serve on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

2016.  He was appointed on 11/17/2015 to fulfill an unexpired term and his term expires 12/31/2018.  

Mayor Severns recommends appointing Ashlie Bird to serve the remainder of the Collector 3 term.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.66.020 and 2.66.030.

Ashlie Bird works as the Sales Manager at Best Western Plus in Oak Harbor and meets the qualifications 
of a Collector to serve on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

140

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471636323x_at.pdf


1. Application and Resume - Ashlie Bird
2. LTAC Membership Roster
1. Application and Resume - Ashlie Bird
2. LTAC Membership Roster

141

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471636323x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472058307x_at.pdf


Boards and Commissions 
Biography Form 

Recommended Board Appointment for: tf\j(,, C .DffiYY\ J+Q.Q 
Name: \1s\\\\Q ~·\'(~ Date: _.,---+-<, z'-"""e<-+-->l l'"-='-lp __ _ 

Adche .. : \gll <[,},Ii.fl '\)owi"I \ili1 ~ 
city, state, zip: OC&'t-- t\-or\2or WV\ qi1~r\ 
Phone Number: 'SlPQ U~(.e ( 3\2 E:..an Address: OE.\1li a@ ~~f\llCLQJj\O\\P-
Mailing Address: (if different from above) Q..{)l'Y' 

Resident of Oak Harbor City 
Limits? If yes, how long? 

Occupation and Place 'of Employment: C' . \ l 1 
(if retired, reference previous occupation(s)) ___..\. ......., 1C......,Ll~Q'-=S__._M-""OJ'\LL>4-'-"'QaQ~-"-(_~ __ _ 
~~\A)D3\Rrn \?\0$ ,.._ 

Special Interests: 

Education and Other General Comments: 

'] / "t / l, ~ 

142



 
 
 
 
 
P 
 
 
 
 
 

 
S 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 H 

- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  to 5/2015   

 
ASHLIE R. BIRD 

1977 West Even Down Way, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
Home: 360-682-2188  Cell: 360-632-6130 - birdashlie@yahoo.com 
 

 SUMMARY 
I am seeking a fulfilling position in the sales industry that offers opportunities for growth and allows 
me to utilize my leadership skills and experience. My goal is to collaborate with a management 
team to further enhance the company's success and reputation. Results-oriented Customer 
Service Professional who excels at uncovering customer needs, finding solutions and handling 
objectives. Top performer with a consistent track record of meeting and exceeding goals. 
 
 

 
Persuasive negotiator Creative problem solver 
Strong interpersonal skills Exceptional communication skills 
Energetic and driven Strategic marketing 
Positive and upbeat Detail-oriented 

People-oriented Cash handling and management 
Superior organizational skills  Revenue and profit maximization 
Strong work ethic 
Analytical problem solver 
 
 

 
    Sales Manager 
Best Western PLUS Harbor Plaza & Conference Center – Oak Harbor, WA 

Responded to all customer inquiries thoroughly and professionally. 
Supported the sales team in writing proposals and closing contracts. 
Reviewed operational records and reports to project sales and determine profitability. 
Contacted customers by phone and email in response to inquiries. 
Built relationships with customers and the community to establish long-term business 
growth. 
Oversaw sales forecasting, goal setting and performance reporting for all accounts. 
Developed competitive comparison tables of pricing, fees, ratings, category and product 
performance to use for account sales calls. 
Monitored market activity and quoted pricing to maintain healthy profit margins. 
Negotiated prices, terms of sale and service agreements. 
Maintained a central database of key contacts, risk ratings, financial impact and key issues. 
Consistently exceeded monthly sales quotas by more than 15% by pursuing leads and 
expanding the prospect list. 
Created proposals for new and repeat customer business transactions. 
 

 
 
 
   Front Desk/Night Auditor 

ROFESSIONAL 

KILLS 

ORK ISTORY 
05/2015  

06/2014    

143



 
Best Western PLUS Harbor Plaza & Conference Center –  Oak Harbor, WA 

Perform bookkeeping activities, such as balancing accounts and conducting nightly audits. 
Compile statistical, financial, accounting or auditing reports and tables pertaining to such 
matters as cash receipts, expenditures, accounts payable and receivable, and profits. 
Prepare trial balances of books. 
Calculate, prepare invoices, account statements, and transfer details from separate journals 
to general ledgers or data processing sheets. 
Perform general office duties such as filing, answering telephones, making and confirming 
reservations, and handle routine correspondence. 
Review accounts and charges with guests during the check-out process. 
Keep records of room availability and guests' accounts using computers. 
Post charges, compute bills, collect payments, and make change for guests. 
 

06/2012 to 04/2014    Server/ Expo 
Applebee's – Oak Harbor, WA 

Consistently provided professional, friendly, attentive and engaging service. 
Demonstrated genuine hospitality while greeting and establishing rapport with guests. 
Skillfully promoted items on beverage lists and restaurant specials. 
Displayed enthusiasm and knowledge about the restaurant's menu and products. 
Guided guests through menus while demonstrating thorough knowledge of the food, 
beverages and ingredients. 
Effectively listened to, understood, and clarified guest concerns and issues. 
Relayed orders to bar and kitchen by quickly and accurately recording guest selections and 
keying them into the register. 
Assisted in cashiering and Point of Sale (POS) systems Quickly set up and cleared tables and 
stocked all service stations. 
Performed all assigned side work, balanced daily sales receipts, and cash handling. 
 

05/2008 to 07/2010   Owner/Operator 
First Class Detailing LLC –  Page, AZ 

Identified value propositions and key messages for all of the company's marketing 
campaigns. 
Preserved brand integrity by monitoring the consistency and quality of marketing content. 
Directed and coordinated marketing activities and policies to promote products and services. 
Analyzed usage patterns to understand ways in which customers used company products 
and services. 
Developed and implemented campaigns for email, online advertising, search engines and 
direct mail. 
Defined and tracked campaign effectiveness and adjusted strategies accordingly. 
Reviewed the financial aspects of product development, such as budgets, expenditures and 
research and development appropriations. 
Resolved employment-related disputes through proactive communication. 
Evaluated time cards for accuracy on the regular and overtime hours. 
Coordinated and conducted new hire pre-interviews. 
Conducted periodic reconciliations of all accounts to ensure accuracy. 
Checked figures, postings and accounting documents for correct entry, mathematical 
accuracy and proper organization.

144



 
 
 
Compiled and analyzed financial information to prepare entries to accounts such as general 
ledger accounts documenting business transactions. 
Pulled internal reports as requested (salaries, bonuses, hours worked). 
Processed gross pay, state and federal tax withholding, social security, Medicare and other 
deductions for all employees. 
 
 
 
 

                                                  Counted cash drawers and made bank deposits. 
 
Managed staff of 10 sales associates Assigned employees to specific duties to best meet the 
needs of the store 
Reordered inventory when it dropped below predetermined levels. 
Examined merchandise to verify that it was correctly priced and displayed. 
Reported to the district manager regarding all store and staff issues. 
Trained and developed new associates on POS system and key sales tactics. 
Handled Customers issues or concerns with professionalism. 
 
Developed positive customer relationships through friendly greetings and excellent service. 
Greeted customers entering the store to ascertain what each customer wanted or needed. 
Investigated and resolved customer inquiries and complaints in a timely and empathetic 
manner. 
Served as a trainer for new sales associates. 
Tracked inventory of all photo lab products and equipment. 
Performed advanced computer processing and developing. 
Dedicated to continuously improving sales abilities and product knowledge. 
Assisted in creating pre-season marketing plans to support department and divisional 
Strategies. Organized store merchandise racks by size, style and color to promote visually 
Appealing environment. 
Monitored cash drawers in multiple checkout stations to ensure adequate cash supply. 
Handled nightly corroboration of daily sales, prepare bank deposits, and balance all cash 
drawers. 
 

CERTIFICATIONS 
WSLCB- Class 12 Mixologist Permit  
Island County Health Dept.- Food Workers Card  

145



146



 

Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC)  

MEMBERSHIP ROSTER 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Joel Servatius, Chair  
Councilmember 
Original Appointment:  1/05/2016 
Term Expiration: 1/05/2019 
 
Ron Apgar 
Paint Your World Owner 
Recipient 1 
Original Appointment: 7/01/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2016 
 
Robert (Bob) Lundstrom 
Candlewood Suites Manager 
Collector 1 
Original Appointment: 8/06/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2016 
 
Jason McFadyen 
Chamber of Commerce Board Member 

Recipient 2 
Pete Franssen 
Auld Holland Inn Owner 
Collector 2 
Original Appointment: 8/06/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2017 
 
Margaret Livermore 
OH Music Festival & OH Mainstreet President 
Recipient 3 
Original Appointment:  10/06/2015 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2018 
 
Ashlie Bird 
Best Western Plus Sales Manager 
Collector 3 
Original Appointment:  9/06/2013 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2018 
 

Original Appointment: 10/06/2015 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2017 
 

147



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Planning 
Commission, Position 2 – Bruce 
Freeman

FROM: Mayor Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the reappointment of Bruce Freeman to serve on the Planning Commission, Position 2, for a 3
year term beginning 9/01/2016 and ending 9/01/2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bruce Freeman currently serves as the Vice Chair on the Planning Commission. Mr. Freeman was first 
appointed on January 15, 2013, to fill a partial term vacancy. Mr. Freeman was re-appointed September

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Planning 
Commission, Position 2 – Bruce 
Freeman

FROM: Mayor Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the reappointment of Bruce Freeman to serve on the Planning Commission, Position 2, for a 3-
year term beginning 9/01/2016 and ending 9/01/2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bruce Freeman currently serves as the Vice Chair on the Planning Commission. Mr. Freeman was first 
appointed on January 15, 2013, to fill a partial term vacancy. Mr. Freeman was re-appointed Septemberappointed on January 15, 2013, to fill a partial term vacancy. Mr. Freeman was re-appointed September
17, 2013. His current term ends September 1, 2016. Mayor Severns has reappointed him to serve an 
additional 3-year term, which will expire in September 2019.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

appointed on January 15, 2013, to fill a partial term vacancy. Mr. Freeman was re-appointed September 
17, 2013. His current term ends September 1, 2016. Mayor Severns has reappointed him to serve an 
additional 3-year term, which will expire in September 2019.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

148



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Planning 
Commission, Position 3 - Cecil 
Pierce

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Retroactively approve the reappointment of Cecil Pierce to the Planning Commission, Position 3, to serve 
a three-year term beginning 6/01/2015 and ending 6/01/2018.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Cecil Pierce was first appointed to the Planning Commission on October 7, 2014 to serve an unexpired 
term until June of 2015.  Mr. Pierce was appointed to fulfill Kristi Jensen's term when she resigned in

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.f
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Planning 
Commission, Position 3 - Cecil 
Pierce

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Retroactively approve the reappointment of Cecil Pierce to the Planning Commission, Position 3, to serve 
a three-year term beginning 6/01/2015 and ending 6/01/2018.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Cecil Pierce was first appointed to the Planning Commission on October 7, 2014 to serve an unexpired 
term until June of 2015.  Mr. Pierce was appointed to fulfill Kristi Jensen's term when she resigned interm until June of 2015.  Mr. Pierce was appointed to fulfill Kristi Jensen's term when she resigned in 
September of 2014.

Administration inadvertently missed adding the reappointment of Cecil Pierce in June of 2015 and ask 
that Council retroactively approve his three-year appointment in Position 3 beginning June 1, 2015 and 
ending June 1, 2018. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.020

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

term until June of 2015.  Mr. Pierce was appointed to fulfill Kristi Jensen's term when she resigned in 
September of 2014.

Administration inadvertently missed adding the reappointment of Cecil Pierce in June of 2015 and ask 
that Council retroactively approve his three-year appointment in Position 3 beginning June 1, 2015 and 
ending June 1, 2018. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.020

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

149



150



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Authorize Agreement with Tim 
Shelley, Jr. for Videographer 
Services 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Agreement for Videographer Services with Tim Shelley, Jr. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In July of 2016, Jim Riney informed City Administration that he would be retiring from providing 
videographer services to the City at the end of August 2016.  Per the agreement between the City and 
Mr. Riney, he may terminate the contract by providing 10 days' written notice. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Authorize Agreement with Tim 
Shelley, Jr. for Videographer 
Services 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Agreement for Videographer Services with Tim Shelley, Jr. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In July of 2016, Jim Riney informed City Administration that he would be retiring from providing 
videographer services to the City at the end of August 2016.  Per the agreement between the City and 
Mr. Riney, he may terminate the contract by providing 10 days' written notice. Mr. Riney, he may terminate the contract by providing 10 days' written notice. 

Mr. Riney trained Tim Shelley Jr. to fill in to film City Council meetings in his absence, and Mr. Shelley 
has been recording Planning Commission meetings for approximately 1 year now.  Tim Shelly has 
rendered quality videos for the City Council and Planning Commission, and is competent with handling 
the City's recording equipment.  

Mr. Riney has been diligently working with City staff to ensure a smooth transition regarding equipment 
and finding a replacement.  Administration feels that Tim Shelley is the best candidate to fulfill this position
at this time.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The Contract proposes $35.00/hour for video recording services.  Under Jim Riney's Contract, the City
paid $50.00/ hour. In addition the City agrees to reimburse Mr. Shelley for the cost of commercial 
liability insurance up to the amount of $825.00.

Mr. Riney, he may terminate the contract by providing 10 days' written notice. 

Mr. Riney trained Tim Shelley Jr. to fill in to film City Council meetings in his absence, and Mr. Shelley 
has been recording Planning Commission meetings for approximately 1 year now.  Tim Shelly has 
rendered quality videos for the City Council and Planning Commission, and is competent with handling 
the City's recording equipment.  

Mr. Riney has been diligently working with City staff to ensure a smooth transition regarding equipment 
and finding a replacement.  Administration feels that Tim Shelley is the best candidate to fulfill this position 
at this time.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The Contract proposes $35.00/hour for video recording services.  Under Jim Riney's Contract, the City 
paid $50.00/ hour. In addition the City agrees to reimburse Mr. Shelley for the cost of commercial 
liability insurance up to the amount of $825.00.

151



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. PSA with Tim Shelley, Jr.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. PSA with Tim Shelley, Jr.

152

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472574750x_at.pdf


1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
AND TIM SHELLEY JR. 

FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City 
of OAK HARBOR, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and TIM SHELLEY 
JR., a Washington Sole Proprietor ("Consultant"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
technical support for videography as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of 
the relationship between the City and the Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the 
Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with the 
standards of the Consultant’s profession. 

ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes,
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City when 
such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule.  Extra 
work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be addressed 
as follows: 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 
services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope thereof. 
All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no cost to 
the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until executed in writing 
by the parties. 

III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents
produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon 

153



2 
 

completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant may 
retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 
 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 
Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the 
Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shall become 
the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and summary 
to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under this 
Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 
 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 
or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement without 
the written authorization of Consultant. 
 
 III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 6, 2016 and 
shall terminate at midnight, September 6, 2017.  The parties may extend the term of this 
Agreement by written mutual agreement. 
 
 III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 
assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
 III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 
performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall be 
considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all claims that may 
or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees while so 
engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a consequence of any negligent act or 
omission on the part of the Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any of the work or 
services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the Consultant. 
 
 III.6 INDEMNIFICATION / HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Public Entity, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless 
from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the Public Entity. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and 
the Public Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, 
including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s 
negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided 
herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, 
solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

154



3 
 

 
a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the 

duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.  The City will 
compensate Consultant $825.00 to cover the costs of obtaining required insurance.   

 
b. No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the Public Entity’s recourse to any remedy 
available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Consultant shall obtain insurance of the 

types and coverage described below: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad 
as ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and advertising 
injury.  The Public Entity shall be named as an additional insured under the 
Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the 
work performed for the Public Entity using an additional insured endorsement at 
least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
2. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 

Insurance laws of the State of Washington. 
 

3. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s 
profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the 

following insurance limits: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with 
limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 

2. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 
e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Commercial General 

Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be 
primary insurance as respect the Public Entity.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or self-
insured pool coverage maintained by the Public Entity shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

155



4 
 

f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

 
g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the Public Entity with 

original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not 
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance 
requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h. Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the Public Entity 

with written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of 
such notice. 

 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to 

maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the Public Entity may, after giving five business days notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or 
renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any 
sums so expended to be repaid to the Public Entity on demand, or at the sole discretion of 
the Public Entity, offset against funds due the Consultant from the Public Entity. 

 
j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant 

maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the Public Entity 
shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits 
maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this contract or whether 
any certificate of insurance furnished to the Public Entity evidences limits of liability 
lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
 
 III.7 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 
OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity 
employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual 
orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with regard, but not 
limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services.  The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this 
nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a 
showing is made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and 
that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 
 
 III.8 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 

156



5 
 

practices. 
 
 III.9 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and 
that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this Agreement are fully qualified and 
properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation 
commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in Snohomish County Superior Court. 
 
 III.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the 

Consultant is an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status as an 
independent contractor in the performance of the work and services required under this 
Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set forth in 
RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  The Consultant, as an independent contractor, 
assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the services required 
under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall 
claim any related employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, 
and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security tax, 
assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from income 
which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a result of this Agreement.  
In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder. 
 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business 

license from the City. 
 

III.11 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City 
of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written permission 
from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential conflict of 
interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is irreconcilable, the 
City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 
 
 III.12 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict 
confidence, and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 
 

157



6 
 

III.13 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall is responsible for all work performed by 
subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they 

directly hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, must be 
included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the following 
Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants 
without the written approval of the City. 
 

d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages 
and limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification of 
said insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
 IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for 
services rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section and Exhibit A.  In no event shall the compensation paid to 
Consultant under this Agreement exceed the amounts listed in Exhibit A without the 
written agreement of the Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full compensation 
for work performed and services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment 
and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In the event the City elects to expand the 
scope of services from that set forth in Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant a mutually 
agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services 

performed in the previous calendar month.  At a minimum, invoices shall include (1) a 
summary of previous invoices; (2) current invoice amount; (3) total current monthly 
billing; (4) amount authorized under this agreement; and (5) total authorized amount still 
remaining under the agreement.  The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records 
and provide them to the Cities upon request. 

 
  c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before 

the 20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 

158



7 
 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of 
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance with 
the Scope of Services and City requirements. 
 

IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall 
maintain all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All 
such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to inspection 
and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all reasonable 
times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and audit.  
Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, accounts 
and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and 
make available all such books of account and records for a period of three (3) years after final 
payment under this Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy 
in such financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate clarification and/or 
financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the discrepancy. 
 
  

159



8 
 

 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
 V.1 NOTICES. 
 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
DOUGLAS MERRIMAN, CITY ADMINSTRATOR 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
865 SE BARRINGTON DRIVE 
OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 

 
 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

TIM SHELLEY JR. 
1315 CROSBY ROAD 
OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written notice 
in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
 V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement 
in whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City shall 
pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in 
accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 
 
 V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation 
and compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 
 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together 
with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by 
both parties. 
 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 
a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 

Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed 
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

 V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party 
hereto of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 

160



9 
 

default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of either party 
to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this Agreement, or to 
exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be construed as a waiver or 
relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning 
and shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  This 
Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie 
in the Superior Court of Washington for Snohomish County, Washington. 
 
 V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Agreement. 
 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind the 
parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 
 
 DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR TIM SHELLEY JR. 
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
    Robert T. Severns, Mayor Tim Shelley Jr., Sole Proprietor   
  
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

161



10 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
Tim Shelley, Sole Proprietor 

 
Contractor shall provide professional videography and staging services, along with specialized 
equipment, as requested by the city of Oak Harbor, including but not necessarily limited to the 
following:  
 

1. Operate video and audio equipment at regular and special Oak Harbor City Council 
meetings in the City Hall Council Chambers; 

2. Operate video and audio equipment at regular meetings of the Oak Harbor Planning 
Commission in the City Hall Council Chambers; 

3. Operate video and audio equipment in support of special productions on issues of City 
business, including remote locations; 

4. Upload and schedule programming to Channel 10 and, as requested, arrange live web 
streaming of City productions.  

5. Provide troubleshooting services of Channel 10 programming playout during City 
business hours or when otherwise scheduled for support of City business. 

6. Consultation as needed with City officials on equipment purchases related to the delivery 
of videography services.  

 
For these services, Contractor shall be compensated at the rate of $35.00 per hour.  Contractor 
may also seek reimbursement for rental of specialized equipment not otherwise available to the 
City.  The rate for equipment rental shall not exceed $1,000 per month unless approved by the 
City Administrator. 
 
If troubleshooting services of Channel 10 programming playout are requested on weekends 
(defined as the period between Friday starting at 6:00 p.m. through Monday ending at 8:00 a.m.), 
the compensation rate is set at $45.00 per hour.   

162



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: First Amendment to the 
Interlocal Agreement for HVAC 
Replacement at Oak Harbor 
Library and Hayes Hall

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

 Approve the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College (SVC) for
the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building;
and
Authorize the Mayor to sign the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: First Amendment to the 
Interlocal Agreement for HVAC 
Replacement at Oak Harbor 
Library and Hayes Hall

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

 Approve the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College (SVC) for
the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building;
and
Authorize the Mayor to sign the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley Authorize the Mayor to sign the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley
College, with the City of Oak Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project is not to exceed 
$216,603.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In March 2016, City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College as the lead 
agency to design and bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and 
Hayes Hall Building. At that time, the City’s share of this work, as projected by Skagit Valley 
College, was estimated to be $170,000. Since that time, the design has been completed and the project
cost estimate has increased to $500,800, with the City’s share estimated to be $216,603 (43.25%). In 
addition to the revised cost estimates, the term of the agreement is being extended to March 31, 2017 to 
give sufficient time for the project to be completed and final billings to be made.  An amendment to the 
Interlocal Agreement is necessary to authorize the increased cost and the revised termination date of the 
agreement.

In 1990 the City of Oak Harbor and Skagit Valley College entered into an Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement to jointly construct a Library-Instructional Building located on the campus of Skagit Valley 
College. Under this agreement, the City of Oak Harbor is responsible for the Oak Harbor Library 
structure portion of the building, including the heating, ventilation and cooling system (HVAC), and for a

 Authorize the Mayor to sign the first amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley
College, with the City of Oak Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project is not to exceed
$216,603.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In March 2016, City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College as the lead 
agency to design and bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and 
Hayes Hall Building. At that time, the City’s share of this work, as projected by Skagit Valley 
College, was estimated to be $170,000. Since that time, the design has been completed and the project 
cost estimate has increased to $500,800, with the City’s share estimated to be $216,603 (43.25%). In 
addition to the revised cost estimates, the term of the agreement is being extended to March 31, 2017 to 
give sufficient time for the project to be completed and final billings to be made.  An amendment to the 
Interlocal Agreement is necessary to authorize the increased cost and the revised termination date of the 
agreement.

In 1990 the City of Oak Harbor and Skagit Valley College entered into an Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement to jointly construct a Library-Instructional Building located on the campus of Skagit Valley 
College. Under this agreement, the City of Oak Harbor is responsible for the Oak Harbor Library 
structure portion of the building, including the heating, ventilation and cooling system (HVAC), and for a 

163



portion of shared spaces in the building. The building was constructed in 1991 and the HVAC units are 
25 years old and have now exceeded their useful life expectancy. The City and SVC have also been 
experiencing mechanical and operational problems with the existing units.

The City and SVC share spaces in the building, including bathrooms, conference rooms, reading rooms 
and hallways. According to the agreement, the basis for apportioning costs is by floor area. The City is 
responsible for 43.25% of the area and SVC is responsible for 56.75% of the area. SVC takes the lead 
on maintenance and operation but costs are shared.

The building has a total of sixteen (16) HVAC roof top units. Eight (8) are solely for SVC and five (5) 
are solely for the Oak Harbor Library. Three (3) units supply heating to shared spaces. The cost estimate 
to replace all of the units is $500,800, and the City’s share (at 43.25%) is $216,603.

Under the Interlocal Agreement, SVC took the lead to manage the replacement program, including 
design and bidding, and is now requesting to amend the Agreement with the City in order to complete the 
project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
The City’s share of this project is not to exceed $216,603. Funds for this project are available in the 
General Fund.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

portion of shared spaces in the building. The building was constructed in 1991 and the HVAC units are 
25 years old and have now exceeded their useful life expectancy. The City and SVC have also been 
experiencing mechanical and operational problems with the existing units.

The City and SVC share spaces in the building, including bathrooms, conference rooms, reading rooms 
and hallways. According to the agreement, the basis for apportioning costs is by floor area. The City is 
responsible for 43.25% of the area and SVC is responsible for 56.75% of the area. SVC takes the lead 
on maintenance and operation but costs are shared.

The building has a total of sixteen (16) HVAC roof top units. Eight (8) are solely for SVC and five (5) 
are solely for the Oak Harbor Library. Three (3) units supply heating to shared spaces. The cost estimate 
to replace all of the units is $500,800, and the City’s share (at 43.25%) is $216,603.

Under the Interlocal Agreement, SVC took the lead to manage the replacement program, including 
design and bidding, and is now requesting to amend the Agreement with the City in order to complete the 
project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
The City’s share of this project is not to exceed $216,603. Funds for this project are available in the 
General Fund.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUTPREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
On March 15, 2016, the City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College as 
the lead agency to design and bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor 
Library and Hayes Hall Building.

ATTACHMENTS
1. SVC - City of Oak Harbor Interlocal Agreement - Amendment
2. Interlocal Agreement between SVC and City for HVAC Replacement 2016
3. Letter of Understanding and Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990
4. Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
On March 15, 2016, the City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College as 
the lead agency to design and bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor 
Library and Hayes Hall Building.

ATTACHMENTS
1. SVC - City of Oak Harbor Interlocal Agreement - Amendment
2. Interlocal Agreement between SVC and City for HVAC Replacement 2016
3. Letter of Understanding and Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990
4. Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990

164

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472656573x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472235735x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472236224x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472236325x_at.pdf


Skagit Valley College Interlocal Agreement, Amendment No. 1    9/06/2016 
Page 1 of 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 

AND 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

First Amendment 

 

This First Amendment modifies the Interlocal Agreement between Skagit Valley 

College and The City of Oak Harbor (ILA #1516-438) as follows: 

 

Cost of Project, 

 The total project cost estimate has been increased to $500,800 

 The cost to the City of Oak Harbor shall not exceed $216,603. 

 

Term of Agreement, 

 Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance of this 

Agreement shall commence upon final signatures, and be completed by 

3/31/2017, unless terminated sooner or extended. 

 

All other terms and conditions of the Interlocal Agreement between Skagit Valley 

College and the City of Oak Harbor (ILA #1516-438) shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment as of the 

date set forth below by the authorized representatives. 

 

 

Skagit Valley College     The City of Oak Harbor 

 

By__________________________  By  ____________________________ 

 

Title_________________________  Title  __________________________ 

 

Date _________________________  Date   _________________________ 

165



· ' \ 

~ ,a: .. ;]~ 
Slcagit Valley 
... ,,..,,, ..... .,.$College 
t'\~u .. •l<r. 

Contract No. :r tr\ -1~"111- ·1~~ 
Dates: 
From~,·""'~ To 1Lh1/l'r' 
Contract 

INTE:RLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 

AND 
The City of Oak Harbor 

PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT 

Amount$ 11'-',-l)OuP-

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and betWeen· Skagit Valley College, 
hereinafter referred to as "SVC" and the City of Oak Harbor pursuant to the authority granted 
by Chapter 39.34 RCW. . 

PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT Is to coordinate the replacement of HVAC units on 
jointly owned Hayes Hall. 

THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT: Skagit Valley College will enlist the 
services of a consultant to design the replacement of the existing sixteen (16) HVAC units on 
one building named Hayes Hall (SVC) and the Oak Harpor Library (COH). Eight (8) of the 
HVAC units supply Hayes Hall {SVC) and five (5) of the HVAC units supply the Oak Harbor 
Library (City of Oak Harbor). Three (3) HVAC units supply to shared space between Hays 
Hall (SVC) a Oak Harbor Library (City of Oak Harbor). Representatives of The City of Oak 
Harbor will have the right'to approve all design material before the project goes out Jo bid. 
Skagit Valley College will put the project out to bid and, working with the Department of 
Enterprise Services (DES), work out a contract with the low bidder. 
Skagit Valley College, with input from the City of Oak Harbor will oversee all construction. 

Skagit Valley College will be responsible for paying all costs stemming from this project and 
· will Invoice the City of Oak-Harbor-(as described below) for 43.25% of all costs. The cost to 
the City of Oak Harbor shall not exceed $170,000.00 . 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
SVC shall furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, material and/or servlce(s) and 
otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of the work set forth 
here. 

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
Subject to its other provisions, the p_eriod of performance of this Agreement shall commence 
upon final signatures, and be completed by 12/31/2016, unless terminated sooner or · 
extended, as provided herein. · 

PAYMENT 
Compensation for the work provided in accordance with this Agreement has been 
established under the terms of RCW 39.34.130. The parties have determined that the cost of 
accomplishing the work herein will not exceed $393,000. Payment for satisfactory 
performance of the work shall not exceed this amount unless the parties mutually agree to a 

lntedocal >.greement 
A~10/2014 

·. 

166



higher amount. Compensation for services shall be based on the following rates; 43.25% of 
all costs. The 43.25% cost allocation Is the City of Oak Harbor share of City occupied and 
sharec! space as agreed upon in an interlocal agreement between Skagit Valley College and 
the City of Oak Harbor dated February 91990. 
BILLING PROCEDURE 
SVC shall submit invoices no more often than monthly. Payment to SVC for approved and 
completed work will be made by warrant or a_ccount transfer by the City of Oak Harbor within 
30-days of receipt of the invoice .. Upon expiration of the Agreement, any claim for payment 
not already made shall be submitted within 30--days after the expiration.date or the end of the 
fiscal year, whichever is earlier. 

AGREEMENT CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 
This Agreement.may be changed, modified or amended by written agreement executed 
by both parties. 

ASSIGNMENT 
The work to be provided under this Agreement, and any claim arising thereunder, is not 
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior written 
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
The program manager for .each of the parties shall be responsible for and shalf be the 
contact person for all communications and billings regarding the 'performance of this 
Agreement. 

The Program Manager for SVC is: Dave Scott, 2405 E. College Way, 360.416-7751, 
dave.scott@skagit.edu · 

The Program Manager for the City of Oak Harbor is Rich Tyhuis, 885 SE Barrington Dr, 360-
279-4753, rtyhuis@oakharbor.org 

DISALLOWED COSTS . 
The Contractor is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its 
own organization or that of its Subcontractors. 

DISPUTES 
In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be determined by a Dispute 
Board in the following manner. Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one member to 
the Dispute Board. The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an additional member to 
the Dispute Board. The Dispute Board shall review the facts, agreement terms and 
applicable statutes and rules and make a determination of the dispute. The Dispute Board 
shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority prevailing. The determination of the 
Dispute Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto. As an alternative to this 
process, either of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as provided by RCW. 
43.17.330, in which event the Governor's process will control. 

GOVERNANCE 
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to and under the authority granted by the laws of the 
state of Washington and any applicable federal laws. The provisions of this Agreement shall 
be construed to conform to those laws. 

lnterlocal Agreement 
Apj)IOVed 10/2014 

167



In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and any. 
applicable statute or rule, the Inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the 
following order: 

a. Applicable state and federal statutes and rules; 
b. Statement of work; and . 
c. Any other provisions of the agreement, including materials incorporated ~y reference. 

INDEPENDENT CAPACITY 
The employees or agents of each party who are engaged In the performance of this 
Agreement shall continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be 
considered for any purpose to be employees or agents of the other party. 

RECORDS MAINTENANCE · 
The parties to this Agreement shall each maintain books, records, i:locume~ts and other 
evidence which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs expended by 
either party in the performance of the services described herein. These records shall be 
subject to inspection, review or audit by personnel of both parties, other personnel duly 
authorized by either party, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized 
by law. All books, records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement will be 
retained for six years after expiration and the Office of th~ State Auditor, federal auditors, and 
any persons duly authorized by the parties shall have full access and the right to examine 
any of these materials during this period. 

Records and other documents, in any medium, furnished by one party to this agreement to 
the other party, will remain the property of the furnishing party, unless otherwise agreed. The 
receiving party will not disclose or make available this material to any third parties without 
first giving notice.to the furnishing party and giving it a reasonable opportunity to respond. 
Each party will utilize reasonable security propedures and protections to assure that records· 
and documents provided by the other party are not erroneously disclosed to third parties. 

RIGHTS IN DATA 
Unless ·otherwise provided, data which originates froin this Agreement shall be "works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and shall be owned jointly. Data shall 
include, but not be limited to, r.eports, documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books 
magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes an~/or sound reproductions. 
Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer these 
rights. · 

SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Agreement or any.provision of any document incorporated by 
reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this 
Agreement, which can be given effect without the invalid provision if such remainder 
conforms to 1he requirements of applicable law and th'e fundamental purpose of this 
agreement, and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 

TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agteement upon 30-days' prior written notification to the other 
party. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the 
effective date of termination. · 

lnleriocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

168



TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 
If for any cause, either party does not fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations 

· under this Agreement, or if either party violates any of these terms and conditions, the 
aggrieved party will give the other party written notice of. such failure or violation. The 
responsible party will be given the opportunity to correct the violation or failure withln 15-
working days. If failure or violation is not corrected, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately by written notice of the aggrieved party to the other. 

WAIVER 
A failure by either party to exercise its rights under this Agreement shall not preclude that 
party from subsequent exe'rcise of such rights and shall not constitute a waiver of any other 
rights under this Agreement unless stated to be such in a writing signed by an authorized 
representative of the party and attached to the original AQreement. 

ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 
This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this· Agreement. 

Signer (printed name) 

Skagit Valley College 
2405 East College Way 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

Signature 

Title 
II 

/11.9,/" "" 3 -lb-/J:, 
Date 

BUDGET ACCOUNT {required) ____________ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Signature on file 
Assistant Attorney General 

lnlellocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Public Defense Services - New 
Procedure for Conflict Attorneys 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Motion to set an hourly rate of $55/hour for indigent defense representation by Conflict Attorneys.

2) Motion to authorize staff to issue an RFP to solicit proposals from attorneys to build a Conflict
Attorney pool for public defense services. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Proposed Procedure for Conflict Attorneys and Rationale

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.i
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Public Defense Services - New 
Procedure for Conflict Attorneys 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Motion to set an hourly rate of $55/hour for indigent defense representation by Conflict Attorneys.

2) Motion to authorize staff to issue an RFP to solicit proposals from attorneys to build a Conflict
Attorney pool for public defense services. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Proposed Procedure for Conflict Attorneys and RationaleProposed Procedure for Conflict Attorneys and Rationale

The City of Oak Harbor implemented Indigent Defense Standards on December 16, 2014 via Resolution
14-41, “Exhibit A” – Indigent Defense Standards for City of Oak Harbor, WA. These new 
standards are reflected in our Chief Public Defender's contract, Matt Montoya. Such standards must also 
be implemented with Conflict Attorneys who provide public defense services as well. 

When Mr. Montoya's office has a conflict with an appointed defendant, the City must pay for a Conflict
Attorney to handle that particular case.  Mr. Montoya's contract specifically states that his office is not 
responsible for payment of Conflict Attorney services.

A Defendant who commits a misdemeanor offense within City limits is appointed a City Public Defender
if the court or our Public Defense Screener Jack Kerr determines the Defendant is indigent and cannot 
afford to hire private defense counsel. (Jack Kerr is an independent contractor for the City of Oak 
Harbor and his only contracted duty is to provide public defense screening services.) 

Effects on the City

Matt Montoya's Office - this new procedure with Conflict Attorneys will not change Matt Montoya's 
services or his contract with the City.

Public Defense Screener Jack Kerr - these new procedures will have little effect on Jack Kerr's duties. 

Proposed Procedure for Conflict Attorneys and Rationale

The City of Oak Harbor implemented Indigent Defense Standards on December 16, 2014 via Resolution 
14-41, “Exhibit A” – Indigent Defense Standards for City of Oak Harbor, WA. These new 
standards are reflected in our Chief Public Defender's contract, Matt Montoya. Such standards must also 
be implemented with Conflict Attorneys who provide public defense services as well. 

When Mr. Montoya's office has a conflict with an appointed defendant, the City must pay for a Conflict 
Attorney to handle that particular case.  Mr. Montoya's contract specifically states that his office is not 
responsible for payment of Conflict Attorney services.

A Defendant who commits a misdemeanor offense within City limits is appointed a City Public Defender 
if the court or our Public Defense Screener Jack Kerr determines the Defendant is indigent and cannot 
afford to hire private defense counsel. (Jack Kerr is an independent contractor for the City of Oak 
Harbor and his only contracted duty is to provide public defense screening services.) 

Effects on the City

Matt Montoya's Office - this new procedure with Conflict Attorneys will not change Matt Montoya's 
services or his contract with the City.

Public Defense Screener Jack Kerr - these new procedures will have little effect on Jack Kerr's duties. 

186



 He will simply have a defined group of Conflict Attorneys from which to contact when Mr. Montoya's 
office has a conflict with an indigent defendant. 

City Clerk's Office - Currently the Clerk's office codes invoices for public defense services and retains 
mandatory reports. The new contract system for Conflict Attorneys will create minimal additional work 
for the Clerk's office.  Primary additions will be retaining Conflict Attorney reports, contracts, and 
reviewing hours turned in for billing.  

Pathway to Implementation

The best course of action to apply Indigent Public Defense Standards (per Resolution 14-41) to Conflict 
Attorneys is to establish a contracted selection of Conflict Attorneys from which to hire for public defense 
services if Matt Montoya's office has a conflict.  The most effective way to encourage a selection of 
Conflict Attorneys is to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Conflict Attorneys and advertise fees 
on an hourly basis. The average hourly rate other cities and counties pay Conflict Attorneys is 
approximately $55.00 per hour. 

Once we execute contracts for Conflict Attorneys, the terms of the agreement will establish the 
requirement to adhere to our Public Defense Standards as set forth in Resolution 14-41. The contract will 
set parameters for the scope of services, billing, reporting, termination conditions, including other essential 
elements of a contractual relationship.

Public Defender Case Statistics 

- 2014: total public defense cases was approximately 300

           approximately 16 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys

 He will simply have a defined group of Conflict Attorneys from which to contact when Mr. Montoya's 
office has a conflict with an indigent defendant. 

City Clerk's Office - Currently the Clerk's office codes invoices for public defense services and retains 
mandatory reports. The new contract system for Conflict Attorneys will create minimal additional work 
for the Clerk's office.  Primary additions will be retaining Conflict Attorney reports, contracts, and 
reviewing hours turned in for billing.  

Pathway to Implementation

The best course of action to apply Indigent Public Defense Standards (per Resolution 14-41) to Conflict 
Attorneys is to establish a contracted selection of Conflict Attorneys from which to hire for public defense 
services if Matt Montoya's office has a conflict.  The most effective way to encourage a selection of 
Conflict Attorneys is to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Conflict Attorneys and advertise fees 
on an hourly basis. The average hourly rate other cities and counties pay Conflict Attorneys is 
approximately $55.00 per hour. 

Once we execute contracts for Conflict Attorneys, the terms of the agreement will establish the 
requirement to adhere to our Public Defense Standards as set forth in Resolution 14-41. The contract will 
set parameters for the scope of services, billing, reporting, termination conditions, including other essential 
elements of a contractual relationship.

Public Defender Case Statistics 

- 2014: total public defense cases was approximately 300

           approximately 16 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys           approximately 16 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys

- 2015: total public defense cases was approximately 406

           approximately 77 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys

- 2016:  212 cases to date

            32 of such cases have been given to Conflict Attorneys

Based on feedback from one of our Conflict Attorneys, 5-10 hours on average is spent on a single 
misdemeanor case. 

Steps to Move Forward

1) Establish an hourly fee for Conflict Attorneys

2) Solicit Request for Proposals (RFP) to build a Conflict Attorney pool

3) Award contracts to Conflict Attorneys

4) Prepare for and implement new procedures internally

LEGAL AUTHORITY

           approximately 16 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys

- 2015: total public defense cases was approximately 406

           approximately 77 of those cases were handled by Conflict Attorneys

- 2016:  212 cases to date

            32 of such cases have been given to Conflict Attorneys

Based on feedback from one of our Conflict Attorneys, 5-10 hours on average is spent on a single 
misdemeanor case. 

Steps to Move Forward

1) Establish an hourly fee for Conflict Attorneys

2) Solicit Request for Proposals (RFP) to build a Conflict Attorney pool

3) Award contracts to Conflict Attorneys

4) Prepare for and implement new procedures internally

LEGAL AUTHORITY

187



LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 10.101.030, WA State Supreme Court Order No. 25700-A-1004 (2012), Wilbur, et al v. Mt. 
Vernon, et al (2013), and Resolution 14-41.

FISCAL IMPACT
Public defense legal services are charged to the General Fund as a whole, specifically the judicial 
department covering all judicial activities associated with the Municipal Court of a professional services 
nature, beginning with BARS code # 001.10.

If the City implements hourly fees to compensate Conflict Attorneys, the budget will be somewhat 
unpredictable since it is unknown how long each individual case will take to provide adequate legal 
defense counsel, e.g. reviewing discovery, amount of motions, interviews, or trial. Regardless, the City is 
under a legal obligation to provide indigent defense services.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. City of Oak Harbor Resolution 14-41
2. RCW 10.101.030 - Requirement to Adopt Public Defense Standards
3. 2012 Washington State Supreme Court Order - Indigent Defense Standards
4. Conflict Attorney Pay Survey prepared by Island County
5. Conflict Attorney Pay Comparison - WA State Office of Public Defense

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 10.101.030, WA State Supreme Court Order No. 25700-A-1004 (2012), Wilbur, et al v. Mt. 
Vernon, et al (2013), and Resolution 14-41.

FISCAL IMPACT
Public defense legal services are charged to the General Fund as a whole, specifically the judicial 
department covering all judicial activities associated with the Municipal Court of a professional services 
nature, beginning with BARS code # 001.10.

If the City implements hourly fees to compensate Conflict Attorneys, the budget will be somewhat 
unpredictable since it is unknown how long each individual case will take to provide adequate legal 
defense counsel, e.g. reviewing discovery, amount of motions, interviews, or trial. Regardless, the City is 
under a legal obligation to provide indigent defense services.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. City of Oak Harbor Resolution 14-41
2. RCW 10.101.030 - Requirement to Adopt Public Defense Standards
3. 2012 Washington State Supreme Court Order - Indigent Defense Standards
4. Conflict Attorney Pay Survey prepared by Island County
5. Conflict Attorney Pay Comparison - WA State Office of Public Defense5. Conflict Attorney Pay Comparison - WA State Office of Public Defense5. Conflict Attorney Pay Comparison - WA State Office of Public Defense

188

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472065301x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472232673x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472232424x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472065494x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472069784x_at.pdf


189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



8/26/2016 RCW 10.101.030: Standards.

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=10.101.030 1/1

Each county or city under this chapter shall adopt standards for the delivery of public defense services,
whether those services are provided by contract, assigned counsel, or a public defender office. Standards
shall include the following: Compensation of counsel, duties and responsibilities of counsel, case load limits
and types of cases, responsibility for expert witness fees and other costs associated with representation,
administrative expenses, support services, reports of attorney activity and vouchers, training, supervision,
monitoring and evaluation of attorneys, substitution of attorneys or assignment of contracts, limitations on
private practice of contract attorneys, qualifications of attorneys, disposition of client complaints, cause for
termination of contract or removal of attorney, and nondiscrimination. The standards endorsed by the
Washington state bar association for the provision of public defense services should serve as guidelines to
local legislative authorities in adopting standards.

[ 2005 c 157 § 2; 1989 c 409 § 4.]

RCW 10.101.030

Standards.

199

http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2005-06/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1542-S2.SL.pdf?cite=2005%20c%20157%20%C2%A7%202;
http://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1989c409.pdf?cite=1989%20c%20409%20%C2%A7%204.


THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON 

ORDER 
IN THE MATTER OF THE ADOPTION OF NEW 
STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE AND 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NO. 25700-A- \~"-\ 

The Washington State Bar Association having recommended the adoption of New 

Standards for Indigent Defense and Certification of Compliance, and the Court having 

considered the amendments and comments submitted thereto, and having determined that the 

proposed amendments will aid in the prompt and orderly administration of justice; 

Now, therefore, it is hereby 

ORDERED: 

(a) That the standards and certificate as attached hereto are adopted. 

(b) That the New Standards for Indigent Defense, except Standard 3 .4, will be 

published in the Washington Reports and will become effective September 1, 2012. New 

Standard 3.4 will be published in the Washington Reports and become effective on September 1, 

2013. 

DATED at Olympia, Washington this \~\\::.b:: day of June, 2012. 

Cf? 
t:·:~ C~) 
=-:, c::> 
f"'\ 
:xi 

_._--, ... -
__ .• v•-

r,. J ~ .- ., 

200



Page 2 
IN THE MATTER OF THE ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 
AND CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

201



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

The following Standards for Indigent Defense are adopted pursuant to CrR 3 .1, CrRLJ 3 .1 and 
JuCR 9.2 and shall have an effective date concurrent with the effectiveness of amendments to 
those rules approved by the Court July 8, 2010 (effective July 1, 2012); 

Standard 3: Caseload Limits and Types of Cases 

3 .1 The contract or other employment agreement or government budget shall specify the 
types of cases for which representation shall be provided and the maximum number of 
cases which each attorney shall be expected to handle. 

3.2 The caseload of public defense attorneys shall allow each lawyer to give each client the 
time and effort necessary to ensure effective representation. Neither defender 
organizations, county offices, contract attorneys nor assigned counsel should accept 
workloads that, by reason of their excessive size, interfere with the rendering of quality 
representation. As used in this Standard, "quality representation" is intended to describe 
the minimum level of attention, care, and skill that Washington citizens would expect of 
their state's criminal justice system. 

3.3 General Considerations 
Caseload limits reflect the maximum caseloads for fully supported full-time defense 
attorneys for cases of average complexity and effort in each case type specified. Caseload 
limits assume a reasonably even distribution of cases throughout the year. 

The increased complexity of practice in many areas will require lower caseload limits. 
The maximum caseload limit should be adjusted downward when the mix of case 
assignments is weighted toward offenses or case types that demand more investigation, 
legal research and writing, use of experts, use of social workers, or other expenditures of 
time and resources. Attorney caseloads should be assessed by the workload required, and 
cases and types of cases should be weighted accordingly. 

If a defender or assigned counsel is carrying a mixed caseload including cases from more 
than one category of cases, these standards should be applied proportionately to 
determine a full caseload. In jurisdictions where assigned counsel or contract attorneys 
also maintain private law practices, the caseload should be based on the percentage of 
time the lawyer devotes to public defense. 

The experience of a particular attorney is a factor in the composition of cases in the 
attorney's caseload. 

The following types of cases fall within the intended scope of the caseload limits for 
criminal and juvenile offender cases in Standard 3 .4 and must be taken into account when 
assessing an attorney's numerical caseload: partial case representations, sentence 
violations, specialty or therapeutic courts, transfers, extraditions, representation of 
material witnesses, petitions for conditional release or final discharge, and other matters 
that do not involve a new criminal charge. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 1 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 202



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

Definition of case: A case is defined as the filing of a document with the court naming a 
person as defendant or respondent, to which an attorney is appointed in order to provide 
representation. In courts of limited jurisdiction multiple citations from the same incident 
can be counted as one case. 

3 .4 Caseload Limits 
The caseload of a full-time public defense attorney or assigned counsel should not exceed 
the following: 

150 Felonies per attorney per year; or 
300 Misdemeanor cases per attorney per year or, in jurisdictions that have not adopted a 
numerical case weighting system as described in this Standard, 400 cases per year; or 

250 Juvenile Offender cases per attorney per year; or 

80 open Juvenile Dependency cases per attorney; or 

250 Civil Commitment cases per attorney per year; or 

1 Active Death Penalty trial court case at a time plus a limited number of non death 
penalty cases compatible with the time demand of the death penalty case and consistent 
with the professional requirements of Standard 3.2 or 

36 Appeals to an appellate court hearing a case on the record and briefs per attorney per 
year. (The 36 standard assumes experienced appellate attorneys handling cases with 
transcripts of an average length of 350 pages. If attorneys do not have significant 
appellate experience and/or the average transcript length is greater than 350 pages, the 
caseload should be accordingly reduced.) 

Full time Rule 9 interns who have not graduated from law school may not have caseloads 
that exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the caseload limits established for full time 
attorneys. [Effective September I, 2013] 

3.5 Case Counting 
The local government entity responsible for employing, contracting with or appointing 
public defense attorneys should adopt and publish written policies and procedures to 
implement a numerical case-weighting system to count cases. If such policies and 
procedures are not adopted and published, it is presumed that attorneys are not engaging 
in case weighting. A numerical case weighting system must: 

A. recognize the greater or lesser workload required for cases compared to an 
average case based on a method that adequately assesses and documents the 
workload involved; 

B. be consistent with these Standards, professional performance guidelines, and the 
Rules of Professional Conduct; 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page2 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 203



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

C. not institutionalize systems or practices that fail to allow adequate attorney time 
for quality representation; and 

D. be periodically reviewed and updated to reflect current workloads; and 

E. be filed with the State of Washington Office of Public Defense. 

Cases should be assessed by the workload required. Cases and types of cases should be 
weighted accordingly. Cases which are complex, serious, or contribute more significantly 
to attorney workload than average cases should be weighted upwards. In addition, a case 
weighting system should consider factors that might justify a case weight of less than one 
case. 

Notwithstanding any case weighting system, resolutions of cases by pleas of guilty to 
criminal charges on a first appearance or arraignment docket are presumed to be rare 
occurrences requiring careful evaluation of the evidence and the law, as well as thorough 
communication with clients, and must be counted as one case. 

3.6 Case Weighting 
The following are some examples of situations where case weighting might result in 
representations being weighted as more or less than one case. The listing of specific 
examples is not intended to suggest or imply that representations in such situations 
should or must be weighted at more or less than one case, only that they may be, if 
established by an appropriately adopted case weighting system. 

A. Case Weighting Upwards: Serious offenses or complex cases that demand 
more-than-average investigation, legal research, writing, use of experts, use of 
social workers and/or expenditures of time and resources should be weighted 
upwards and counted as more than one case. 

B. Case Weighting Downward: Listed below are some examples of situations 
where case weighting might justify representations being weighted less than one 
case. However, care must be taken because many such representations routinely 
involve significant work and effort and should be weighted at a full case or more. 

1. Cases that result in partial representations of clients, including client 
failures to appear and recommencement of proceedings, preliminary 
appointments in cases in which no charges are filed, appearances of 
retained counsel, withdrawals or transfers for any reason, or limited 
appearances for a specific purpose (not including representations of 
multiple cases on routine dockets). 

11. Cases in the criminal or offender case type that do not involve filing of 
new criminal charges, including sentence violations, extraditions, 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 3 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 204



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

representations of material witnesses, and other matters or representations 
of clients that do not involve new criminal charges. Non-complex 
sentence violations should be weighted as at least 1/3 of a case. 

111. Cases in specialty or therapeutic courts if the attorney is not responsible 
for defending the client against the underlying charges before or after the 
client's participation in the specialty or therapeutic court. However, case 
weighting must recognize that numerous hearings and extended 
monitoring of client cases in such. courts significantly contribute to 
attorney workload and in many instances such cases may warrant 
allocation of full case weight or more. 

1v. Cases on a criminal or offender first appearance or arraignment docket 
where the attorney is designated, appointed or contracted to represent 
groups of clients on that docket without an expectation of further or 
continuing representation and which are not resolved at that time (except 
by dismissal). In such circumstances, consideration should be given to 
adjusting the caseload limits appropriately, recognizing that case 
weighting must reflect that attorney workload includes the time needed for 
appropriate client contact and preparation as well as the appearance time 
spent on such dockets. 

v. Representation of a person in a court of limited jurisdiction on a charge 
which, as a matter of regular practice in the court where the case is 
pending, can be and is resolved at an early stage of the proceeding by a 
diversion, reduction to an infraction, stipulation on continuance, or other 
alternative non-criminal disposition that does not involve a finding of 
guilt. Such cases should be weighted as at least 1/3 of a case. 

Related Standards 

American Bar Association, Standards for Criminal Justice, 4-1.2, 5-4.3. 

American Bar Association Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of Defense Counsel in Death 
Penalty Cases. [Link] 

American Bar_Association, Ethical Obligations of Lawyers Who Represent Indigent Criminal 
Defendants When Excessive Caseloads Interfere With Competent and Diligent Representation, 
May 13, 2006, Formal Opinion 06-441. [Link] 

The American Council of Chief Defenders Statement on Caseloads and Workloads, (2007). 
[Link] 

American Bar Association Eight Guidelines of Public Defense Related to Excessive Caseloads. runkl 

National Advisory Commission on Criminal Standards and Goals, Task Force on Courts, 1973, Standard 
13.12. 

American Bar Association Disciplinary Rule 6-101. 

American Bar Association Ten Principles of a Public Defense Delivery System. [Link] 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 4 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 205



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

ABA Standards of Practice for Lawyers who Represent Children in Abuse & Neglect Cases, (1996) 
American Bar Association, Chicago, IL. 

The American Council of Chief Defenders Ethical Opinion 03-01 (2003). 

National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Standards for Defender Services, Standards IV-I. 

National Legal Aid and Defender Association, Model Contract for Public Defense Services (2002). [Link] 

NACC Recommendations for Representation of Children in Abuse and Neglect Cases (2001 ). [Link] 

City of Seattle Ordinance Number: 121501 (2004). rtink] 

Seattle-King County Bar Association Indigent Defense Services Task Force, Guideline Number 1. 

Washington State Office of Public Defense, Parents Representation Program Standards Of 
Representation (2009). [LinkJ 

Keeping Defender Workloads Manageable, Bureau of Justice Assistance, U.S. Department of Justice, 
Indigent Defense Series #4 (Spangenberg Group, 2001). [Link] · 

5.2 Administrative Costs 

A. Contracts for public defense services shall provide for or include administrative 
costs associated with providing legal representation. These costs should include 
but are not limited to travel, telephones, law library, including electronic legal 
research, financial accounting, case management systems, computers and 
software, office space and supplies, training, meeting the reporting requirements 
imposed by these standards, and other costs necessarily incurred in the day-to-day 
management of the contract. 

B. Public defense attorneys shall have 1) access to an office that accommodates 
confidential meetings with clients and 2) a postal address, and adequate telephone 
services to ensure prompt response to client contact. 

· 6.1 Investigators 
Public defense attorneys shall use investigation services as appropriate. 

Standard 13: Limitations on Private Practice 

Private attorneys who provide public defense representation shall set limits on the amount of 
privately retained work which can be accepted. These limits shall be based on the percentage of 
a full-time caseload which the public defense cases represent. 

Standard 14: Qualifications of Attorneys 

14.1 In order to assure that indigent accused receive the effective assistance of counsel to 
which they are constitutionally entitled, attorneys providing defense services shall meet 
the following minimum professional qualifications: 

A. Satisfy the minimum requirements for practicing law m Washington as 
determined by the Washington Supreme Court; and 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 5 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 206



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

B. Be familiar with the statutes, court rules, constitutional provisions, and case law 
relevant to their practice area; and 

C. Be familiar with the Washington Rules of Professional Conduct; and 

D. Be familiar with the Performance Guidelines for Criminal Defense Representation 
approved by the Washington State Bar Association; and 

E. Be familiar with the consequences of a conviction or adjudication, including 
possible immigration consequences and the possibility of civil commitment 
proceedings based on a criminal conviction; and 

F. Be familiar with mental health issues and be able to identify the need to obtain 
expert services; and · 

G. Complete seven hours of continuing legal education within each calendar year in 
courses relating to their public defense practice. 

14.2 Attorneys' qualifications according to severity or type of case1
: 

A. Death Penalty Representation. Each attorney acting as lead counsel in a 
criminal case in which the death penalty has been or may be decreed and which 
the decision to seek the death penalty has not yet been made shall meet the 
following requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
11. At least five years criminal trial experience; and 
iii. Have prior experience as lead counsel in no fewer than nine jury trials of 

serious and complex cases which were tried to completion; and 
iv. Have served as lead or co-counsel in at least one aggravated homicide 

case; and 
v. Have experience in preparation of mitigation packages in aggravated 

homicide or persistent offender cases; and 
vi. Have completed at least one death penalty defense seminar within the 

previous two years; and 
vii. Meet the requirements of SPRC 2.2 

1 
Attorneys working toward qualification for a particular category of cases under this standard may associate with lead counsel 

who is qualified under this standard for that category of cases. 

2
SPRC 2 APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL 

At least two lawyers shall be appointed for the trial and also for the direct appeal. The trial court shall retain responsibility for 
appointing counsel for trial. The Supreme Court shall appoint counsel for the direct appeal. Notwithstanding RAP 15.2(j) and (h), the 
Supreme Court will determine all motions to withdraw as counsel on appeal. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 6 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 207



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

The defense team in a death penalty case should include, at a minimum, the two 
attorneys appointed pursuant to SPRC 2, a mitigation specialist and an 
investigator. Psychiatrists, psychologists and other experts and support personnel 
should be added as needed. 

B. Adult Felony Cases - Class A 
Each attorney representing a defendant accused of a Class A felony as defined in 
RCW 9A.20.020 shall meet the following requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
11. Either: 

a. has served two years as a prosecutor; or 
b. has served two years as a public defender; or two years in a private 

criminal practice; and 
iii. Has been trial counsel alone or with other counsel and handled a 

significant portion of the trial in three felony cases that have been 
submitted to ajury. 

C. Adult Felony Cases - Class B Violent Offense 
Each attorney representing a defendant accused of a Class B violent offense as 
defined in RCW 9A.20.020 shall meet the following requirements. 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
ii. Either; 

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or 
b. has served one year as a public defender; or one year in a private 

criminal practice; and 
111. Has been trial counsel alone or with other counsel and handled a 

significant portion of the trial in two Class C felony cases that have been 
submitted to ajury. 

D. Adult Sex Offense Cases 

A list of attorneys who meet the requirements of proficiency and experience, and who have demonstrated that they are learned in the 
law of capital punishment by virtue of training or experience, and thus are qualified for appointment in death penalty trials and for 
appeals will be recruited and maintained by a panel created by the Supreme Court. All counsel for trial and appeal must have 
demonstrated the proficiency and commitment to quality representation which is appropriate to a capital case. Both counsel at trial 
must have five years ' experience in the practice of criminal law be familiar with and experienced in the utilization of expert witnesses 
and evidence, and not be presently serving as appointed counsel in another active trial level death penalty case. One counsel must be, 
and both may be, qualified for appointment in capital trials on the list, unless circumstances exist such that it is in the defendant's 
interest to appoint otherwise qualified counsel learned in the law of capital punishment by virtue of training or experience. The trial 
court shall make findings of fact if good cause isfoundfor not appointing list counsel. 

At least one counsel on appeal must have three years' experience in the field of criminal appellate law and be learned in the law of 
capital punishment by virtue of training or experience. In appointing counsel on appeal, the Supreme Court will consider the list, but 
will have the final discretion in the appointment of counsel. fLinkJ 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 7 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 208



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

Each attorney representing a client in an adult sex offense case shall meet the 
following requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1 and Section 2(C); and 
11. Been counsel alone of record in an adult or juvenile sex offense case or 

shall be supervised by or consult with an attorney who has experience 
representing juveniles or adults in sex offense cases. 

E. Adult Felony Cases - All other Class B Felonies, Class C Felonies, Probation 
or Parole Revocation 
Each attorney representing a defendant accused of a Class B felony not defined in 
Section 2(C) or (D) above or a Class C felony, as defined in RCW 9A.20.020, or 
involved in a probation or parole revocation hearing shall meet the following 
requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1, and 
11. Either: 

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or 
b. has served one year as a public defender; or one year in a private 

criminal practice; and 
iii. Has been trial counsel alone or with other trial counsel and handled a 

significant portion of the trial in two criminal cases that have been 
submitted to a jury; and 

1v. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first felony trial by a 
supervisor if available. 

F. Persistent Offender (Life Without Possibility of Release) Representation 
Each attorney acting as lead counsel in a "two-strikes" or "three strikes" case in which 
a conviction_ will result in a mandatory sentence of life in prison without parole shall 
meet the following requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; 3 and 
ii. Have at least: 

a. four years criminal trial experience; and 
b. one year experience as a felony defense attorney; and 
c. experience as lead counsel in at least one Class A felony trial; and 
d. experience as counsel in cases involving each of the following: 

1. Mental health issues; and 

3 
RCW 10. 101.060 (1 )(a)(iii) provides that counties receiving funding from the state Office of Public Defense under 

that statute must require "attorneys who handle the most serious cases to meet specified qualifications as set forth in the 
Washington state bar association endorsed standards for public defense services or participate in at least one case consultation 
per case with office of public defense resource attorneys who are so qualified. The most serious cases include all cases of murder 
in the first or second degree, persistent offender cases, and class A felonies." 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 8 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 209



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

2. Sexual offenses, if the current offense or a prior conviction 
that is one of the predicate cases resulting in the possibility 
of life in prison without parole is a sex offense; and 

3. Expert witnesses; and 
4. One year of appellate experience or demonstrated legal 

writing ability. 

G. Juvenile Cases - Class A 
Each attorney representing a juvenile accused of a Class A felony shall meet the 
following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1, and 
ii. Either: 

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or 
b. has served one year as a public defender; one year in a private 

criminal practice; and 
111. Has been trial counsel alone of record in five Class B and C felony trials; 

and 
1v. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first juvenile trial by a 

supervisor, if available. 

H. Juvenile Cases - Classes B and C 
Each attorney representing a juvenile accused of a Class B or C felony shall meet 
the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
ii. Either: 

a. has served one year as a prosecutor; or 
b. has served one year as a public defender; or one year in a private 

criminal practice, and 
111. has been trial counsel alone in five misdemeanor cases brought to a final 

resolution; and 
iv. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first juvenile trial by a 

supervisor if available. 

I. Juvenile Sex Offense Cases 
Each attorney representing a client in a juvenile sex offense case shall meet the 
following requirements: 

1. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1 and Section 2(I-I); and 
11. Been counsel alone of record in an adult or juvenile sex offense case or 

shall be supervised by or consult with an attorney who has experience 
representing juveniles or adults in sex offense cases. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 9 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 210



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

J. Juvenile Status Offenses Cases. Each attorney representing a client in a "Becca" 
matter shall meet the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and 
ii. Either: 

a. have represented clients in at least two similar cases under the 
supervision of a more experienced attorney or completed at least 
three hours of CLE training specific to "status offense" cases; or 

b. have participated in at least one consultation per case with a more 
experienced attorney who is qualified under this section. 

K. Misdemeanor Cases 
Each attorney representing a defendant involved in a matter concerning a simple 
misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor or condition of confinement, shall meet the 
requirements as outlined in Section 1. 

L. Dependency Cases 
Each attorney representing a client in a dependency matter shall meet the following 
requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and 
ii. Attorneys handling termination hearings shall have six months 

dependency experience or have significant experience in handling 
complex litigation. 

iii. Attorneys in dependency matters should be familiar with expert services 
and treatment resources for substance abuse. 

1v. Attorneys representing children in dependency matters should have 
knowledge, training, experience, and ability in communicating effectively 
with children, or have participated in at least one consultation per case 
either with a state Office of Public Defense resource attorney or other 
attorney qualified under this section. 

M. Civil Commitment Cases 
Each attorney representing a respondent shall meet the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
11. Each staff attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first 90 or 1 80 day 

commitment hearing by a supervisor; and 
111. Shall not represent a respondent in a 90 or 180 day commitment hearing 

unless he or she has either: 
a. 
b. 

c. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 10 

served one year as a prosecutor, or 
served one year as a public defender, or one year in a private civil 
commitment practice, and 
been trial counsel in five civil commitment initial hearings; and 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 211



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

iv. Shall not represent a respondent in a jury trial unless he or she has 
conducted a felony jury trial as lead counsel; or been co-counsel with a 
more experienced attorney in a 90 or 180 day commitment hearing. 

N. Sex Offender "Predator" Commitment Cases 
Generally, there should be two counsel on each sex offender commitment case. 
The lead counsel shall meet the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
ii. Have at least: 

a. Three years criminal trial experience; and 
b. One year experience as a felony defense attorney or one year 

experience as a criminal appeals attorney; and 
c. Experience as lead counsel in at least one felony trial; and 
d. Experience as counsel in cases involving .each of the following: 

1. Mental health issues; and 
2. Sexual offenses; and 
3. Expert witnesses; and 

e. Familiarity with the Civil Rules; and 
f. One year of appellate experience or demonstrated legal writing 

ability. 

Other counsel working on a sex offender commitment cases should meet 
the Minimum Requirements in Section 1 and have either one year 
experience as a public defender or significant experience in the 
preparation of criminal cases, including legal research and writing and 
training in trial advocacy. 

0. Contempt of Court Cases 
Each attorney representing a respondent shall meet the following requirements: 

i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
11. Each attorney shall be accompanied at his or her first three contempt of 

court hearings by a supervisor or more experienced attorney, or participate 
in at least one consultation per case with a state Office of Public Defense 
resource attorney or other attorney qualified in this area of practice. 

P. Specialty Courts 
Each attorney representing a client in a specialty court (e.g., mental health court, 
drug diversion court, homelessness court) shall meet the following requirements: 
i. The minimum requirements set forth in Section 1; and 
11. The requirements set forth above for representation in the type of practice 

involved in the specialty court (e.g., felony, misdemeanor, juvenile); and 
111. Be familiar with mental health and substance abuse issues and treatment 

alternatives. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 11 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 212



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

14.3 Appellate Representation. 

Each attorney who is counsel for a case on appeal to the Washington Supreme Court or to 
the Washington Court of Appeals shall meet the following requirements: 

A. The minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1; and 
B. Either: 

i. has filed a brief with the Washington Supreme Court or any Washington 
Court of Appeals in at least one criminal case within the past two years; or 

11. has equivalent appellate experience, ·including filing appellate briefs in 
other jurisdictions, at least one year as an appellate court or federal court 
clerk, extensive trial level briefing or other comparable work. 

C. Attorneys with primary responsibility for handling a death penalty appeal shall 
have at least five years' criminal experience, preferably including at least one 
homicide trial and at least six appeals from felony convictions, and meet the 
requirements of SPRC 2. 

RALJ Misdemeanor Appeals to Superior Court: Each attorney who is counsel 
alone for a case on appeal to the Superior Court from a Court of Limited 
Jurisdiction should meet the minimum requirements as outlined in Section 1, and 
have had significant training or experience in either criminal appeals, criminal 
motions practice, extensive trial level briefing, clerking for an appellate judge, or 
assisting a more experienced attorney in preparing and arguing an RALJ appeal. 

14.4 Legal Interns 

A. Legal interns must meet the requirements set out in APR 9. 
B. Legal interns shall receive training pursuant to APR 9 and in offices of more than 

seven attorneys, an orientation and training program for new attorneys and legal 
interns should be held. 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 12 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 213



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
"Applicable Standards" required by CrR3.1/ CrRLJ 3.1 I JuCR9.2 

For criminal and juvenile offender cases, a signed certification of compliance 

with Applicable Standards must be filed by an appointed attorney by separate 

written certification on a quarterly basis in each court in which the attorney 

has been appointed as counsel. 

Th~ certification must be in substantially the following form: 

SEPARATE CERTIFICATION FORM 

_____ Court of Washington 
for 

The undersigned attorney hereby certifies: 

Certification of Appointed Counsel of 

Compliance with Standards Required by 

CrR 3.1 I CrRLJ 3.1IJuCR9.2 

1. Approximately __ % of my total practice time is devoted to indigent defense cases. 

2. I am familiar with the applicable Standards adopted by the Supreme Court for attorneys appointed to 
represent indigent persons and that: 

a. Basic Qualifications: I meet the minimum basic professional qualifications in Standard 14.1. 

b. · Office: I have access to an office that accommodates confidential meetings with clients, and I have a 
postal address and adequate telephone services to ensure prompt response to client contact, in 
compliance with Standard 5.2. 

c. Investigators: I have investigators available to me and will use investigation services as 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 13 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 
214



STANDARDS FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE 

appropriate, in compliance with Standard 6.1. 

d. Caseload: I will comply with Standard 3.2 during representation of the defendant in my cases. 
[Effective 9/1/13: I should not accept a greater number of cases (or a proportional mix of different 
case types) than specified in Standard 3.4, prorated if the amount oftime spent for indigent defense is 
less than full time, and taking into account the case counting and weighting system applicable in my 

. jurisdiction.] 

Defendant's Lawyer, WSBA# 

Standards for Indigent Defense 
Page 14 

Date 

Washington State Bar Association 
1325 Fourth Ave - Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98101-2539 
215



216



Provided by Washington State Office of Public Defense 
 

 
Location Conflict Attorney Pay Rate 

Anacortes No information provided 
Bellingham Most conflict cases are handled by the Whatcom County Public Defender’s 

Office through a reciprocity agreement (the firm that handles Bellingham 
cases likewise handles the County’s misdemeanor conflicts). One additional 
attorney is available for additional conflicts if necessary, and is paid $400-
$550 per case.  

Arlington No information provided 
Monroe Varies - $250 - $375 per case; $75/hour 
Port Angeles $60/hour 
Bremerton $250/case 
Edmonds $300/case for up to 6 hours; additional $50/hr thereafter 
Lake Stevens $75/hour up to a max $300/case 
Snohomish County 
District Court (2015) 

$40/hour  

San Juan County 
District Court (2015) 

$690 basic appointment; bench trials $345/half day; Jury trials $690/day or 
$345/half day; $350/special hearing (e.g. suppression, competency, insanity, 
etc.); $350/probation violation case 

 

217



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Jail Van 
Price Change

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase one (1) Ford Transit Low Roof Full-Size Cargo Van off of State 
Contract number 03613 in the revised amount of $29,018.99.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 24, 2016, staff was authorized to purchase a jail van off of State Contract number 03613.  
Once ordered, staff was notified by the State Contract vendor, Columbia Ford, that the pricing for the jail
van did not include a reverse sensing system in the amount of $275.00, which is required when

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.j.
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Jail Van 
Price Change

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase one (1) Ford Transit Low Roof Full-Size Cargo Van off of State 
Contract number 03613 in the revised amount of $29,018.99.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 24, 2016, staff was authorized to purchase a jail van off of State Contract number 03613.  
Once ordered, staff was notified by the State Contract vendor, Columbia Ford, that the pricing for the jail 
van did not include a reverse sensing system in the amount of $275.00, which is required whenvan did not include a reverse sensing system in the amount of $275.00, which is required when 
purchasing the aux rear air-conditioning and heater that is required for the insert.  In addition, a credit was 
taken in the amount of $198.00 for vinyl front seats and that option was already included into the price.  
These two changes with tax increased the amount by $512.26. 

Staff is requesting authorization for the same van replacement with revised pricing as noted above.

Funds are available in the Equipment Rental Replacement fund to cover the additional cost.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $29,018.99

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

van did not include a reverse sensing system in the amount of $275.00, which is required when 
purchasing the aux rear air-conditioning and heater that is required for the insert.  In addition, a credit was 
taken in the amount of $198.00 for vinyl front seats and that option was already included into the price.  
These two changes with tax increased the amount by $512.26. 

Staff is requesting authorization for the same van replacement with revised pricing as noted above.

Funds are available in the Equipment Rental Replacement fund to cover the additional cost.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $29,018.99

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

218



ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS

219



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting CWF Project Update per Council Request.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.c.i
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting CWF Project Update per Council Request.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. WWTP City Council Update

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. WWTP City Council Update

.

220

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471970638x_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  September 6, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – September 6, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• Deep Foundation Concrete 
• Poured first foundation concrete on June 22 
• 13 of 63 concrete pours completed 
• Placed foundation grade material called a capillary break 

• Design 
• The Process Building 100% documents have been completed. 
• Carollo continues work on the non-process facilities 

• Process Structures 
• Started bidding process for mechanical, electrical and above grade concrete work 
• Prepared GMP #8 for September 6, 2016 Council Agenda 

 
ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 

• Continue non-process facility design with 90% drawings due in September 
• Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

• Begin implementation activities 
• Deep Foundation Concrete 

• Continue concrete installation 
• Process Structures 

• Bid openings for mechanical, electrical and concrete the week of September 12th 
• Start self-perform concrete work 

 
 
 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers has completed the design drawings for 
the process structures associated with the treatment plant. 

100% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 90%. 90% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance facilities are at 
approximately 60%. 

60% 

 
  

221



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  September 6, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Building permits 
 
 

• The Deep Foundation GMP permit has been issued 
• A building permit for the process facilities has been issued 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Sheet piles and tie-backs have been installed.  
Deep excavation has been completed.  A few 
miscellaneous tasks remain. 

July 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Micropile installation mostly completed.  
Miscellaneous closeout tasks underway. 

July 2016 

GMP #7 (Deep Foundation 
Concrete) 

Started installation of rebar and placement of 
concrete. 

May  2017 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 - Includes Membrane 
Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection equipment procurement 
and design support.  Does not include installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 - Construction of a new 
outfall from approximately the waterfront trail out into Oak 
Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15 - Preliminary site excavation 
and archaeological investigation.  Preliminary results indicate 
this work will come in under budget or be delayed until Site 
Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Site Preparation 
Package B will include utility relocates, minor demolition at the 
existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, sheet pile 
installation and deep excavation. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Resolution and GMP 
#5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved   

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

GMP #7 (Deep 
Foundation) 

$10,169,937 
(includes sales tax) 

The Deep Foundation package includes the concrete 
construction to bring the Membrane building to grade and 
other construction activities. 

222



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  September 6, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #8 (Self 
Performed Concrete) 

$11,766,510 100% design documents for the process facilities have been 
received by the City.  The self-performed concrete work will 
complete the subsurface membrane and aeration structures.  

GMP #9 (Process 
Building) 

TBD 100% design documents are out to bid with a bid opening the 
week of September 12th. 

GMP #10 (Non-
Process Structures) 

TBD Design is currently at approximately 60% 

GMP #11 (Site 
Restoration/Mitigation) 

TBD Windjammer Park Integration Plan Phase 1 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On June 21, 2016 we received a formal offer from the Department of Ecology for 
a $44,766,854 State Revolving Fund Loan at a rate of 1.6% for a term of 20 
years.  We will be working with DOE to amend our existing funding agreement 
over the coming months. 

Rates Ordinance 1760 was passed by City Council on March 15, 2016.  Staff will 
continue to evaluate rates as the project progresses. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant has also been 
obtained.  

2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant  

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  The city received the grant reimbursement. 

Bond Anticipation Note  This note has been repaid with proceeds from the bond sale. 

Bonds The City released bonds and secured a rate of 3.43%.  The city closed on the 
bond sale 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones.  A project mailer was distributed 
in August. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

Staff is working to implement the plan approved by City Council on June 7th. 

 
  

223



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  September 6, 2016 
4 

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 
 
Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org  
 
 

 
  

224

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  September 6, 2016 
5 

 

 

We are here  

225



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1782: 
Amendments to OHMC 
21.20.080 Effect of Approval 
and OHMC 21.40.020 Timeline 
for Submittal of Final Plat and 
Extensions for Completion of 
Improvements.

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1782, approving the code amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and 21.40.020 (to 
extend the time period for construction after preliminary plat approval, the time period for filing final plats, 
and the vesting periods for final plats) to be in conformance with RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.a
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1782: 
Amendments to OHMC 
21.20.080 Effect of Approval 
and OHMC 21.40.020 Timeline 
for Submittal of Final Plat and 
Extensions for Completion of 
Improvements.

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1782, approving the code amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and 21.40.020 (to 
extend the time period for construction after preliminary plat approval, the time period for filing final plats, 
and the vesting periods for final plats) to be in conformance with RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170.and the vesting periods for final plats) to be in conformance with RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
RCW 58.17.140 sets the time period that an applicant has to file a final plat after the preliminary plat is 
approved. This time limit is set at five years. In 2010, the legislature (SSB 6544) changed the time period 
from five to seven years for plats that were approved on or before December 31, 2014. Plats approved 
after this date revert back to five years.

In 2012 the legislature amended the rule again and provided a nine year period for submitting a final plat, 
but only for preliminary plats that were approved before December 31, 2007 and that are not subject to 
the Shoreline Management Act (SMA).

In 2013, the legislature (SHB 1074) amended the rule again and extended that period for filing a final plat
to ten years, if the preliminary plat approval was prior to January 1, 2008 and the plat is not subject to 
the SMA. However, the 2013 amendments did not change the 2012 amendments and the time period for 
submitting a final plat when the preliminary plat approval was on or after January 1, 2008, or before that
date when the plat is subject to the SMA. That period is seven years, if the preliminary plat approval is 
before January 1, 2015, and five years if the preliminary plat approval is on or after January 1, 2015.

In addition to extending the time period for filing a final plat, SHB 1074 also extended the time period 

and the vesting periods for final plats) to be in conformance with RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
RCW 58.17.140 sets the time period that an applicant has to file a final plat after the preliminary plat is 
approved. This time limit is set at five years. In 2010, the legislature (SSB 6544) changed the time period 
from five to seven years for plats that were approved on or before December 31, 2014. Plats approved 
after this date revert back to five years.

In 2012 the legislature amended the rule again and provided a nine year period for submitting a final plat, 
but only for preliminary plats that were approved before December 31, 2007 and that are not subject to 
the Shoreline Management Act (SMA).

In 2013, the legislature (SHB 1074) amended the rule again and extended that period for filing a final plat 
to ten years, if the preliminary plat approval was prior to January 1, 2008 and the plat is not subject to 
the SMA. However, the 2013 amendments did not change the 2012 amendments and the time period for 
submitting a final plat when the preliminary plat approval was on or after January 1, 2008, or before that 
date when the plat is subject to the SMA. That period is seven years, if the preliminary plat approval is 
before January 1, 2015, and five years if the preliminary plat approval is on or after January 1, 2015.

In addition to extending the time period for filing a final plat, SHB 1074 also extended the time period 

226



after final plat approval under which the plat approval is vested in a manner similar to the extensions.

Summary

The applicable time periods for filing a final plat as of July 28, 2013 (effective date of SHB 1074) are as 
follows:

 Preliminary plat approved before January 1, 2008 and not within SMA jurisdiction: ten years.
 Preliminary plat approved before January 1, 2015 (including those approved before January 1, 

2008) and within SMA jurisdiction: seven years.
 Preliminary plat approved on or after January 1, 2015, regardless of where located: five years.

The applicable vesting periods for final plats as of July 28, 2013 (effective date of SHB 1074) are as 
follows:

 Final plat approved before January 1, 2008 and not within SMA jurisdiction: ten years.
 Final plat approved before January 1, 2015 (including those approved before January 1, 2008) 

and within SMA jurisdiction: seven years.
 Final plat approved on or after January 1, 2015, regardless of where located: five years.

The proposed code amendments (Draft Ordinance No. 1782, Attachment 1) will capture the changes the 
State made to RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170. The amendment to OHMC 21.20.080 Effect of 
Approval will extend the time for construction to be completed after the preliminary plat is approved. 
This construction period matches the time period extensions for filing of final plats. The amendment to 
OHMC 21.40.020 Timeline for Submittal of Final Plat and Extensions for Completion of 
Improvements addresses the time period for filing of final plats and the vesting periods.

after final plat approval under which the plat approval is vested in a manner similar to the extensions.

Summary

The applicable time periods for filing a final plat as of July 28, 2013 (effective date of SHB 1074) are as 
follows:

 Preliminary plat approved before January 1, 2008 and not within SMA jurisdiction: ten years.
 Preliminary plat approved before January 1, 2015 (including those approved before January 1, 

2008) and within SMA jurisdiction: seven years.
 Preliminary plat approved on or after January 1, 2015, regardless of where located: five years.

The applicable vesting periods for final plats as of July 28, 2013 (effective date of SHB 1074) are as 
follows:

 Final plat approved before January 1, 2008 and not within SMA jurisdiction: ten years.
 Final plat approved before January 1, 2015 (including those approved before January 1, 2008) 

and within SMA jurisdiction: seven years.
 Final plat approved on or after January 1, 2015, regardless of where located: five years.

The proposed code amendments (Draft Ordinance No. 1782, Attachment 1) will capture the changes the 
State made to RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170. The amendment to OHMC 21.20.080 Effect of 
Approval will extend the time for construction to be completed after the preliminary plat is approved. 
This construction period matches the time period extensions for filing of final plats. The amendment to 
OHMC 21.40.020 Timeline for Submittal of Final Plat and Extensions for Completion of 
Improvements addresses the time period for filing of final plats and the vesting periods.Improvements addresses the time period for filing of final plats and the vesting periods.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $ none

Appropriation Source: n/a

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Planning Commission 

Information on these code amendments was presented to the Planning Commission on July 26, 2016. 
The Planning Commission reviewed the code amendments and held a Public Hearing on August 23, 
2016; after which they recommended approval of the code amendments. The amendments were 
introduced to the City Council at the August 24, 2016 workshop.

Improvements addresses the time period for filing of final plats and the vesting periods.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $ none

Appropriation Source: n/a

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Planning Commission 

Information on these code amendments was presented to the Planning Commission on July 26, 2016. 
The Planning Commission reviewed the code amendments and held a Public Hearing on August 23, 
2016; after which they recommended approval of the code amendments. The amendments were 
introduced to the City Council at the August 24, 2016 workshop.

227



ATTACHMENTS
1. DRAFT Ordinance No. 1782 with strikethroughs: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 
21.40.020.
2. FINAL Ordinance No. 1782: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 21.40.020.

ATTACHMENTS
1. DRAFT Ordinance No. 1782 with strikethroughs: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 
21.40.020.
2. FINAL Ordinance No. 1782: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 21.40.020.

228

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471892892x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471892892x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471892922x_at.pdf


Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 1 of 3 

  ORDINANCE NO. 1782 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 21.20.080 
“EFFECT OF APPROVAL” AND SECTION 21.40.020 “TIMELINE FOR SUBMITTAL OF 
FINAL PLAT AND EXTENSIONS FOR COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170 establish the time limits for filing for final 
plat approval and vesting periods for final plats; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State Legislature adopted SSB 6544 in 2010, EHB 2152 in 2012, and SHB 1074 
in 2013 to extend the time limit for filing final plats based on the time of preliminary plat 
approval and Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor finds that it is in the public’s best interest to amend the code 
to reflect the changes made by the State; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the code amendments on August 
23, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, after due and proper notice, public hearings on the amendments were conducted by 
the City Council on September 6, 2016;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as 
follows: 
 
Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 21.20.080 entitled “Effect of approval”, last 
amended by Ord. 1617 (2011), is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.20.080 Effect of approval. 
 
(1) Approval of the preliminary plat by the city council shall constitute approval for the 

applicant to develop construction plans and specifications for facilities and 
improvements, as required, in strict conformance with the approved preliminary plat, 
street and utility standards adopted by the city, and any special conditions required by the 
council. 

 
(2) Permission shall not be granted for installation of required improvements until all 

construction plans and specifications have been approved in writing by the city engineer. 
 

(3) Time for Performance. Except as provided for in OHMC 21.40.020, construction shall be 
completed within five (5) years of the date of the city council resolution approving the 
preliminary plat or the preliminary plat approval shall terminate and all permits and 
approvals issued pursuant to such authorization shall expire and be null and void. If 
construction has been commenced but the work has been abandoned for a period of one 
(1) year or more, and if no extension of time has been granted as provided in OHMC 
21.40.020, the authorization granted for the preliminary plat shall terminate and all 

229



Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 2 of 3 

permits and approvals issued pursuant to such authorization shall expire and be null and 
void except as provided below: 
 

(a) Construction shall be completed within ten (10) years of the date of city council 
resolution approving the preliminary plat if it was approved before January 1, 
2008; or 
 

(b) Construction shall be completed within seven (7) years of the date of city council 
resolution approving the preliminary plat if it was approved before January 1, 
2015 and within Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction. 

 
Section Two. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 21.40.020, entitled “Timeline for submittal of 
final plat and extensions for completion of improvements”, last amended by Ord. 1658 (2010), is 
hereby amended to read as follows:  
 
21.40.020 Timeline for submittal of final plat and extensions for completion of 
improvements. 
 
(1) Final plat approval is a Type IV review process, in accordance with Chapter 18.20 

OHMC. 
 

(2) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within five (5) 
years of the preliminary plat approval and when either: 
 

(a) The subdivider has completed and has received approval of the construction and 
installation of all improvements; or 
 

(b) The subdivider has submitted an approved performance bond in lieu thereof. 
 

(3) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within ten (10) 
years of the preliminary plat approval if the plat was approved before January 1, 2008. 
 

(4) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within seven (7) 
years of the preliminary plat approval if the plat was approved before January 1, 2015 
and within Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction. 
 

(5) The city council may grant a time extension for completion of the requirements for 
preliminary plat for a maximum of one (1) year. Said extension shall be conditioned 
upon: 
 

(a) The plat meeting all subdivision requirements which are in effect at the time the 
extension is granted; and 
 

(b) Upon a showing that the applicant has attempted in good faith to submit the final 
plat within the five (5) year period. 

 

230



Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 3 of 3 

(6) Any lots in a final plat filed for record shall be a valid land use not withstanding any 
change in zoning laws, in accordance with time periods established in RCW 58.17.170 as 
hereafter amended. 

 
Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 6th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (     ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        
 
 
 

231



Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 1 of 3 

  ORDINANCE NO. 1782 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 21.20.080 
“EFFECT OF APPROVAL” AND SECTION 21.40.020 “TIMELINE FOR SUBMITTAL OF 
FINAL PLAT AND EXTENSIONS FOR COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 58.17.140 and RCW 58.17.170 establish the time limits for filing for final 
plat approval and vesting periods for final plats; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State Legislature adopted SSB 6544 in 2010, EHB 2152 in 2012, and SHB 1074 
in 2013 to extend the time limit for filing final plats based on the time of preliminary plat 
approval and Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor finds that it is in the public’s best interest to amend the code 
to reflect the changes made by the State; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the code amendments on August 
23, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, after due and proper notice, public hearings on the amendments were conducted by 
the City Council on September 6, 2016;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as 
follows: 
 
Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 21.20.080 entitled “Effect of approval”, last 
amended by Ord. 1617 (2011), is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.20.080 Effect of approval. 
 
(1) Approval of the preliminary plat by the city council shall constitute approval for the 

applicant to develop construction plans and specifications for facilities and 
improvements, as required, in strict conformance with the approved preliminary plat, 
street and utility standards adopted by the city, and any special conditions required by the 
council. 

 
(2) Permission shall not be granted for installation of required improvements until all 

construction plans and specifications have been approved in writing by the city engineer. 
 

(3) Time for Performance. Except as provided for in OHMC 21.40.020, construction shall be 
completed within five (5) years of the date of the city council resolution approving the 
preliminary plat or the preliminary plat approval shall terminate and all permits and 
approvals issued pursuant to such authorization shall expire and be null and void. If 
construction has been commenced but the work has been abandoned for a period of one 
(1) year or more, and if no extension of time has been granted as provided in OHMC 
21.40.020, the authorization granted for the preliminary plat shall terminate and all 

232



Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 2 of 3 

permits and approvals issued pursuant to such authorization shall expire and be null and 
void except as provided below: 
 

(a) Construction shall be completed within ten (10) years of the date of city council 
resolution approving the preliminary plat if it was approved before January 1, 
2008; or 
 

(b) Construction shall be completed within seven (7) years of the date of city council 
resolution approving the preliminary plat if it was approved before January 1, 
2015 and within Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction. 

 
Section Two. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 21.40.020, entitled “Timeline for submittal of 
final plat and extensions for completion of improvements”, last amended by Ord. 1658 (2010), is 
hereby amended to read as follows:  
 
21.40.020 Timeline for submittal of final plat and extensions for completion of 
improvements. 
 
(1) Final plat approval is a Type IV review process, in accordance with Chapter 18.20 

OHMC. 
 

(2) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within five (5) 
years of the preliminary plat approval and when either: 
 

(a) The subdivider has completed and has received approval of the construction and 
installation of all improvements; or 
 

(b) The subdivider has submitted an approved performance bond in lieu thereof. 
 

(3) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within ten (10) 
years of the preliminary plat approval if the plat was approved before January 1, 2008. 
 

(4) An application for final plat approval shall be submitted to the director within seven (7) 
years of the preliminary plat approval if the plat was approved before January 1, 2015 
and within Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction. 
 

(5) The city council may grant a time extension for completion of the requirements for 
preliminary plat for a maximum of one (1) year. Said extension shall be conditioned 
upon: 
 

(a) Upon a showing that the applicant has attempted in good faith to submit the final 
plat within the five (5) year period. 

 
 

233



Ordinance No. 1782 Amending OHMC 
Sections 21.20.080 & 21.40.020 
Page 3 of 3 

(6) Any lots in a final plat filed for record shall be a valid land use not withstanding any 
change in zoning laws, in accordance with time periods established in RCW 58.17.170 as 
hereafter amended. 

 
Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 6th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (     ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        
 
 
 

234



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1783: Budget 
Amendment for Skagit Valley 
College/Library HVAC upgrade 
and replacement

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Hold public hearing

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 1783

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.b
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1783: Budget 
Amendment for Skagit Valley 
College/Library HVAC upgrade 
and replacement

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Hold public hearing

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 1783

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An ordinance to amend the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget to increase appropriations to the general fund for 
the Skagit Valley College (SVA) Library HVAC upgrade and replacement. Skagit Valley College is the 
lead agency for the project they plan to complete by December 31, 2016. A interlocal Agreement was 
approved by council on March 15, 2016 for a contribution of $170,000 to the cost of the project from 
the City. SVA has received an updated estimate of costs and will need an additional $46,603 from the 
City, bringing our total contribution to $216,603.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
General Fund Fund Balance will be utilized for this capital outlay

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Council approved Skagit Valley College Interlocal Agreement for HVAC on March 15, 2016 

ATTACHMENTS

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An ordinance to amend the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget to increase appropriations to the general fund for 
the Skagit Valley College (SVA) Library HVAC upgrade and replacement. Skagit Valley College is the 
lead agency for the project they plan to complete by December 31, 2016. A interlocal Agreement was 
approved by council on March 15, 2016 for a contribution of $170,000 to the cost of the project from 
the City. SVA has received an updated estimate of costs and will need an additional $46,603 from the 
City, bringing our total contribution to $216,603.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
General Fund Fund Balance will be utilized for this capital outlay

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Council approved Skagit Valley College Interlocal Agreement for HVAC on March 15, 2016 

ATTACHMENTS

235

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472598790x_at.pdf


1. Ordinance 1783 Budget Amendment Skagit Valley College Library HVAC1. Ordinance 1783 Budget Amendment Skagit Valley College Library HVAC

236

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472598790x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 1783 Page 1 of 2 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1783 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR TO AMEND THE 2015-2016 BIENNIAL 

BUDGET FOR REQUIRED INCREASES IN 2016 APPROPRIATION AUTHORITY. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that a budget amendment is needed for fiscal year 2016 of the 2015-2016 
Biennial Budget for required increases in 2016 appropriation authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that a change to the budget is needed to increase the 2016 General Fund 
#001 appropriation authority in the amount of $216,603 to provide funding for the City’s portion of the Library 
HVAC upgrade and replacement;  
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that a transfer from REET1 (Fund #311) has a budgeted ending fund 
balance of $1,132,334 and can be used for $100,000 of the total budgeted cost for the Library HVAC upgrade 
and replacement and will be transferred to the General Fund via this amendment; 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined the remainder needed ($116,603) will come out of the budgeted ending 
fund balance in the General Fund and will be moved via a budget adjustment; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do hereby ordain as follows: 
 

Section One:  The revenues and expenditures for the applicable funds are hereby amended for the budget year 
2016 as set forth below: 
 
     Previous     Amended 

Fund Name  Fund #  Budget   Amendment    Budget 

      

General Fund  001  $15,876,827     $100,000  $15,976,827 

 

Section Two:  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance 
is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or 
circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Three:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect five days after publication as provided by law. 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 6th day of September, 2016. 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 

 
       _______________________________ 
       ROBERT SEVERNS, MAYOR 
       
 
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

237



ORDINANCE NO. 1783 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  

238



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 7

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 7 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of $253,240.00, increasing the total contract amount from $604,969.10 to 
$858,209.10.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 7

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 7 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of $253,240.00, increasing the total contract amount from $604,969.10 to 
$858,209.10.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is constructing a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

Previous contract amendments were intended to provide archaeology services during the main excavation
activities of the project.  Even with the discovery of significant cultural resources on the site, the project 
team was able resolve the issues in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement without significant
impacts to the city.  Archaeological monitoring for the remainder of the work, including the outfall 
construction and plant demolition, is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This 
monitoring involves site observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  
The attached scope of work describes the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major construction 
activities to complete the project.  This scope of work does not include any potential work associated 
with the Windjammer Integration plan.

The attached scope of work provided by ERCI considers the potential of encountering “contingency 
work” should we encounter intact deposits or human remains.  Considering the culturally rich area in 
which we will be working, staff recommends including the “contingency work” in the amendment.  It will

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is constructing a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

Previous contract amendments were intended to provide archaeology services during the main excavation 
activities of the project.  Even with the discovery of significant cultural resources on the site, the project 
team was able resolve the issues in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement without significant 
impacts to the city.  Archaeological monitoring for the remainder of the work, including the outfall 
construction and plant demolition, is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This 
monitoring involves site observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  
The attached scope of work describes the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major construction 
activities to complete the project.  This scope of work does not include any potential work associated 
with the Windjammer Integration plan.

The attached scope of work provided by ERCI considers the potential of encountering “contingency 
work” should we encounter intact deposits or human remains.  Considering the culturally rich area in 
which we will be working, staff recommends including the “contingency work” in the amendment.  It will 

239



only be used should we encounter intact deposits or human remains.  It will not be used for other items.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $253,240.00                

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the Special City Council Workshop on August 24, 2016.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

October 20, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 6 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of 99,890.97, increasing the total contract 
amount from $504,079.08 to $604,969.10.

 

only be used should we encounter intact deposits or human remains.  It will not be used for other items.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $253,240.00                

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was discussed at the Special City Council Workshop on August 24, 2016.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

October 20, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 6 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of 99,890.97, increasing the total contract 
amount from $504,079.08 to $604,969.10.

  

June 16, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to 
the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount 
from $288,546.08 to $504,079.08.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 

 

June 16, 2015-City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to 
the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount 
from $288,546.08 to $504,079.08.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 

240



$264,587.73.

 

October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 

December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 7
2. Attachment B - Amendment No. 7 Scope of Work Letter
3. Attachment C - Original PSA, & Amendments 1 through 6 (combined document)

$264,587.73.

 

October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 

December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 7
2. Attachment B - Amendment No. 7 Scope of Work Letter
3. Attachment C - Original PSA, & Amendments 1 through 6 (combined document)

241

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471971128x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471971162x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471971210x_at.pdf


WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment A
242



August 11, 2016 

 

 

 

Brett Arvidson 

City of Oak Harbor Public Works 

1400 NE 16th Avenue 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

Re: Professional Archaeological Services for the WWTP replacement project, Windjammer Park, Oak 

Harbor, Washington 

 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

 

As we enter the next phases of work on the WWTP replacement project we have identified a number of 

scope elements that we expect to occur between now and December 31, 2018: 

1. Decommissioning of the existing plant and structures 

2. Installation of the outfall connector pipe 

3. Monitoring of various infrastructure throughout the project area. 

4. Providing coordination with tribes and agencies 

5. Providing support on APE adjustment 

6. Providing planning consultation for park planning within adjusted project area 

7. Curation for all the objects and documents associated with this project. 

 

This project currently has a Department of Ecology nexus and we will continue to operate under the 

Archaeological Work Plan (April 2015) as mandated by the Memorandum of Agreement (June 2015). 

 

The service items we expect to be billing: 

 Project Management including planning, administration, logistics 

 Coordination with SHPO, Ecology, and Tribes 

 Document Control, transcriptions and report production 

 Reporting including weekly/monthly interim reports, research and final report 

 Documentation, analysis, and preparation for curation on historic and pre contact artifacts 

 Graphics including field maps, profiles and report ready maps, field and lab photos 

 Field and lab supplies  

 Documentation and analysis, human and faunal (animal) remains 

 Professional archaeological monitoring on the removal and management of the sediments 

associated with the WWTP replacement project.   

 Occasional Accommodations and travel for all archaeologists for this project 

 Prepare historic and pre contact artifacts, faunal remains, samples and documents for curation at 

the Burke Museum. This includes up to 2 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes of documents including 

faunal remains. 

 Costs associated with some outside analysis up to 2 radiocarbon dates. 

 Contingency for 14 days of data recovery associated with encountering intact archaeological 

deposits during any excavations. 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
243

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


 

Assumptions: 

 

 10 days of data recovery will be sufficient for any intact archaeological deposits that are 

encountered. 

 No more than 2 boxes of artifacts, faunal material and 4 boxes of documents will be curated from 

this project 

 ERCI will not supply safety fencing, trench safety management or information signs 

 ERCI will not supply any heavy equipment such as excavators or dump trucks 

 

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 

themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a timely 

fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor. 

 

Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 

 

          

Existing Plant 

Decommissioning 

(estimating 4 weeks) 

Field and Administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

  Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week  16.00 143.75 2,300.00 

  Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology (1 

hrs/week)  

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (1 

hrs/week)  

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per 

week) 

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Document control and transcriptions (16 

hrs/week) 

64.00 63.25 4,048.00 

  Site Inventory Forms   0.00 63.25 0.00 

  Research 8.00 97.75 782.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 16.00 97.75 1,564.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 4.00 97.75 391.00 

  Report production interim (1 hr per week) 4.00 63.25 253.00 

  Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal 

material) 

4.00 115.00 460.00 

  Interim summary report 12.00 97.75 1,173.00 

  Interim summary Report editing 4.00 143.75 575.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
244

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


  Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, 

additional hand drawing for profiles and report 

ready graphics for final reports 

10.00 97.75 977.50 

  Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, 

field and archive paper, storage boxes, other lab 

supplies 

1.00 833.00 833.00 

  Professional Monitor for 20 days 160.00 74.75 11,960.00 

  Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per 

week when all equipment is working 

4.00 74.75 299.00 

  Sub total     27,915.50 

  Travel and Accommodations for 

Archaeologists 

      

  local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

  Mileage for monitor 20 trips from Mt. Vernon 1200.00 0.540 648.00 

  Travel time for crew members not staying in 

town 1.5 hours per day  

30.00 40.00 1,200.00 

  Accommodations 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 

  Sub total of accommodations and travel     1,848.00 

  SUB TOTAL Plant Decommissioning no 

intact 

    29,763.50 

Outfall Connector 

(estimating 4 weeks) 

Field and Administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

  Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week  16.00 143.75 2,300.00 

  Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology (1 

hrs/week)  

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (1 

hrs/week)  

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per 

week) 

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Document control and transcriptions (16 

hrs/week) 

64.00 63.25 4,048.00 

  Site Inventory Forms   0.00 63.25 0.00 

  Research 8.00 97.75 782.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 16.00 97.75 1,564.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 4.00 97.75 391.00 

  Report production interim (1 hr per week) 4.00 63.25 253.00 

  Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal 

material) 

8.00 115.00 920.00 

  Lab technician photo, metrics and 

characterization of objects and samples; 

documentation and analysis of both precontact 

and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

20.00 74.75 1,495.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
245



  Analysis precontact and historic artifact data 

from disturbed deposits 

8.00 97.75 782.00 

  Interim summary report 16.00 97.75 1,564.00 

  Interim summary Report editing 4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, 

additional hand drawing for profiles and report 

ready graphics for final reports 

16.00 97.75 1,564.00 

  Site Inventory Forms   6.00 74.75 448.50 

  Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, 

field and archive paper, storage boxes, other lab 

supplies 

1.00 833.00 833.00 

  Professional Monitor for 20 days 200.00 74.75 14,950.00 

  Professional Monitor for 10 days 100.00 74.75 7,475.00 

  Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per 

week when crew is working 

4.00 74.75 299.00 

  Sub total     42,543.50 

  Travel and accommodations for 

archaeologists 

      

  local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

  Mileage for monitor 20 trips from Mt. Vernon 1200.00 0.540 648.00 

  Travel time for crew members not staying in 

town 1.5 hours per day  

60.00 40.00 2,400.00 

  Accommodations 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 

  Sub total     3,048.00 

  SUB TOTAL outfall connector no intact      45,591.50 

Ongoing monitoring 

through construction 

Dec 2018 

Field and administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

  Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/month 14 

months 

56.00 143.75 8,050.00 

  Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology (1 

hrs/month)  

14.00 143.75 2,012.50 

  Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (2 

hrs/month)  

4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Design review, meetings, coordination on work 

in the Park associated with the WWTP Project 

32.00 143.75 4,600.00 

  Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per 

week) 

0.00 143.75 0.00 

  Document control and transcriptions (2 

hrs/month) 

28.00 63.25 1,771.00 

  Site Inventory Forms   6.00 63.25 379.50 

  Research 8.00 97.75 782.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
246



  Interim (monthly) Report writing (4 hrs/month) 56.00 97.75 5,474.00 

  Interim (monthly) Report editing (1 hr/month) 14.00 143.75 2,012.50 

  Graphics (monthly) Report (1 hr/week) 56.00 97.75 5,474.00 

  Report production interim (2 hr per month) 28.00 63.25 1,771.00 

  Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal 

material) 

4.00 115.00 460.00 

  Lab technician photo, metrics and 

characterization of objects and samples; 

documentation and analysis of both precontact 

and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

0.00 74.75 0.00 

  Analysis precontact and historic artifact data 

from disturbed deposits 

0.00 97.75 0.00 

  Final Summary Report 160.00 97.75 15,640.00 

  Final Summary Report editing 12.00 143.75 1,725.00 

  Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, 

additional hand drawing for profiles and report 

ready graphics for final reports 

80.00 97.75 7,820.00 

  Site Inventory Forms   6.00 74.75 448.50 

  Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, 

field and archive paper, storage boxes, other lab 

supplies 

0.00 833.00 0.00 

  Professional Monitor for 2 days/month 224.00 74.75 16,744.00 

  Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per 

week when all equipment is working 

0.00 74.75 0.00 

  Sub total     75,739.00 

  Travel and accommodations for 

archaeologists 

      

  local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

  Mileage for monitor 20 trips from Mt. Vernon 1200.00 0.54 648.00 

  Travel time for crew members not staying in 

town 1.5 hours per day  

42.00 40.00 1,680.00 

  Accommodations 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 

  Sub total of accommodations and travel     2,328.00 

  SUB TOTAL on going monitoring through 

construction to Dec 2018 

    78,067.00 

Curation  Curation for 4 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes 

of documents this is an estimate that depends 

on how many artifacts we encounter 

      

  Oversight of curation process-Lab Director 40.00 115.00 4,600.00 

  Curation preparation of artifacts and documents 

Lab Technician 

120.00 74.75 8,970.00 

  Archive supplies for Curation 1.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 

  Costs for curation of object and samples at the 4.00 1,500.00 6,000.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
247



Burke 1500.00 per box 

  Costs for curation of documents at the Burke 

250.00 per box 

4.00 250.00 1,000.00 

  SUB TOTAL for Curation      21,870.00 

  TOTAL for all work without 

Contingency 

    175,292.00 

Contingency work, 

intact deposits or 

human remains - 2 

weeks of data 

recovery 

Field, lab and Administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

  Physical (Biological) Anthropologist/lab director 80.00 115.00 9,200.00 

  Lab technician  80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Office Technician 80.00 63.25 5,060.00 

  Field Director 80.00 97.75 7,820.00 

  Professional Monitor  80.00 97.75 7,820.00 

  Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

  Reassociation of Ancestral Remains (Physical 

Anthropologist) 

16.00 115.00 1,840.00 

  Lab technician and assistant to the Physical 

Anthropologist  

16.00 74.75 1,196.00 

  Research 12.00 97.75 1,173.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 16.00 97.75 1,564.00 

  Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 4.00 97.75 391.00 

  Report production interim (1 hr per week) 4.00 63.25 253.00 

  Interim summary report 12.00 97.75 1,173.00 

  Interim summary Report editing 4.00 143.75 575.00 

  Travel time for crew members not staying in 

town 1.5 hours per day  

42.00 40.00 1,680.00 

  Mileage for crew members not staying in town 1200.00 0.540 648.00 

  Housing and per diem - for crew members  20.00 55.00 1,100.00 

  Subtotal for additional field work should we 

encounter intact deposits 

    77,948.00 

          

  TOTAL for all work with 

Contingency 

    253,240.00 

 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 -  Attachment B
248



Professional Services Agreement Organization and Address
Amendment Number 1

City of Oak Harbor
Original Agreement Title 865 SE Barrington Drive

Oak Harbor WA 98239
WWTP Archaeological Services

Phone 3602794539

Project Number Execution Date Completion Date Prior

ENG13 05 572013 12312013

Project Title New Maximum Amount Payable

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 21485298
Plant

Description of Work
Provide archaeological services related to the new wastewater treatment plant

The City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox
Research and Consulting International and executed on 572013 and identified as

Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this
supplement

The changes to the agreement are described as follows

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following
See attached scope of work and fee

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following
NO CHANGE

Amendment No 1 12302013 Page 1 of 2WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
249



PROJECT COMPLETION DATEAMENDED 10 December 31 014

PAYMENT shall he amended as follows

Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary to perforrn due diligence on the proposed
wastewater treatment plant property The maximum amount payable under the contract is
increased h 19832001from 51633298 to 521483298 as outlined in theattachcd slope of
vork

Payment shall he made in accordanceqtth the terms and conditions described in the original
contract

It you concur Nyith this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above please sign in the
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action

Consult arn Llnature iii Autho y Sin re

Ainendnmmt N 1 I 31211 Idg

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
250



I1
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 3608264830 wwweguinoxercicom

November 21 2013

Joe Stowell City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Intensive Field Survey for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for your
cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 05 05
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others
in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing cultural resource
management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI works in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

This project currently has no Federal nexus and so we expect that we will require a permit from the State
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation to carry out this survey work as we expect to
encounter disturbed shell midden deposits and we may encounter intact shell midden deposits and will
want to test and evaluate these deposits

This scope doesnt include safety fencing and we believe that during the testing in Windjammer Park that
will be a significant issue Although fewer people use the park in winter it is still difficult to keep people
back from our testing trenches We hope the City will provide some assistance with this challenge

We are providing this scope and budget for approximately 2000 feet of machine testing and
approximately 75 shovel test holes in the attached APE We understand that you are in the buysell phase
of land acquisition and that this is the final site selection for the new WWTP facility The data we collect
during this intensive testing will be used as the identification and evaluation phase of the project for
cultural resources Should any cultural material be encountered our permit application would allow us to
test and evaluate that material and collect data useful in adding to a mitigation data recovery plan and to
evaluate and cultural resources for eligibility to the National Register

The Scope activities include

Write a permit application for the Washington State DAHP
Carry out machine testing with approximately 2000 feet of machine testing as per the attached
map

Carry out supplementary shovel testing up to 75 shovel test holes

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
251



Provide a preliminary analysis of all historic and precontact artifacts and prepare them for
curation at the Burke Museum This includes up to 5 boxes of artifacts including any faunalremains

Provide report to state and federal standards

Provide a backhoe and operator for the machine trenching
Assumptions

Human remains will be encountered only once during the testing program
Only 5 boxes of artifacts and faunal material will be encountered during the testing
No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope Should we need to file an amended
permit for additional data recovery that would be outside this scope
Costs associated will completing an HPIF historic property inventory form for the existingfacilities is outside this scope

Qualifications

Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems andinfrastructure

Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification standards for
archaeology

Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 0505 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains
Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project areaand experience in tribal consultation

Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

We expect the field work to take approximately 5 weeks from start to finish We will need 3 days to set
up the testing area Then we will have a full crew for 20 days and then a smaller crew for an additional 5
days that includes final mapping and clean up We will not be working weekends unless weather becomes
the critical successfailure element and we have windows of clear weather that allows us to proceedBased on our experience last year weather is a critical player in visibility and will certainly be an issuefor this more precise work

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a timelyfashion Please check out our web site for additional details wwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor
Regards

Kelly R Bush

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey ZEquinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI
WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C

252



i a is f

fzk

mow

fia
3

n fib

d 441
yu

h

X19 4
n

i

40 iiHt
lottllt

042P14Fii e424z i
de j

l 9

y

4i4S mss

101114
r y

aFryi aY

4L

4i1 41r471h

ms

t ycfi

Figure 1 Proposedapproximate testing trench locations in yellow

3City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
253



Description Units RateHR Sub Total
Project Orientation meetings and project management 1200 14325 171900
Historic geoarch and archival background research 600 9775 58650
Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes 800 14325 114600
Detennine Eligibility of identified historic properties
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 200 14375 28750

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 1200 14375 172500how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Write Permit for survey 1800 9775 175950
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 1200 14325 171900
Document controlfield forms transcriptions site forms 9600 6375 612000lab data management 2400 6375 153000
Report editing 400 14325 57300
Report writing 3200 9775 312800
Graphics layout 4800 9775 469200Curation Preparation 8000 6375 510000Curation Per box costs 1000 150000 1500000
SUB TOTAL

Field Work
4508550

DESCRIPTION
Units Rates Sub Total

Principal Investigator 3000 14375 431250
Senior Archaeologist Field Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Senior Archaeologist LabField Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Physical Anthropologist 4000 11500 460000
Archaeological Labfield Technician 20000 7475 1495000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Equipment Rental Backhoe and operator 1500 90000 1350000
Travel time

20000 4000 800000
Accommodation weekly 400 62500 250000
Per Diem daily 8000 6100 488000
Mileage 320000 056 179200
SUB TOTAL

15343450

GRAND TOTAL
19852000

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey 4
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
254



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
255



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
256



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
257



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
258



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
259



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
260



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this 7 day of L

2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal core tion

hereinafter referred to as the CITY and Equinox Research and Consulting International
hereinafter referred to as the SERVICE PROVIDER

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on May 7 2013 and shall be completed no later than December
31 2013 unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows1433298

4 Reports and Inspections

Professional Services Agreement 1WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
261



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
262



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
263



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
264



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this day of Mgiivh
2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal corporation
hereinafter referred to as the CITY and 41n psi ReSetsa t Cons0 hereinafter referred

to as the SERVICE PROVIDER i n 4net Inc

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on nor 1 113 and shall be

completed no later than nti Ma 1 I 13 unless sooner terminated according

to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows

Professional Services Agreement 1

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
265



4 Reports and Inspections

41 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may

require shall furnish to the CITY such statements records reports data and
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this
Agreement

42 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as
often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary make available for
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered directly
or indirectly by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities The
CITY may at its discretion conduct an audit at its expense using its own or
outside auditors of the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities that relate directly or
indirectly to this Agreement

5 Independent Contractor Relationship

51 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDERCITY relationship
will be created by this Agreement The CITY is interested primarily in the results
to be achieved subject to paragraphs herein the implementation of services will
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER No agent employee
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an
employee agent servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose and the
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the
CITY provides for its employees The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents employees servants
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement

52 In the performance of the services herein contemplated the SERVICE
PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct
the performance of the details of the work however the results of the work
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to
the CITYS general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof

6 Service Provider Employeesagents

The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove an
employeesagents or servantsfrom employment on this Project The SERVICE
PROVIDER may however employ that those individualson other nonCITY related
projects

Professional Services Agreement 2

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
266



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
267



82 Minimum Amounts of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the

following insurance limits

a Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars1000000
per accident

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no
less than One Million Dollars1000000 each occurrence Two Million
Dollars2000000 general aggregate

c Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than
One Million Dollars1000000 per claim and One Million Dollars
1000000 policy aggregate limit

83 Other Insurance Provisions The insurance policies are to contain or be endorsed
to contain the following provisions for Automobile Liability Professional
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance

a The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance coverage shall be primary
insurance with respect to the City Any insurance self insurance or
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the
SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance and shall not contribute with it

b The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance shall be endorsed to state that

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party except after thirty 30
days prior written notice by certified mail return receipt requested has
been given to the City

84 Acceptability of Insurers Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
AM Best rating of not less thanAVII

85 Verification of Coverage SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with
original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement evidencing the
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of
the work

9 Treatment of Assets

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents if any prepared
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement

Professional Services Agreement 4

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
268



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
269



discrimination The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately
preceding paragraphs herein

12 Assignmentsubcontracting

121 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the
CITY and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty 30 days prior to the date of any
proposed assignment The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any
such assignment

122 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this
Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local
state andor federal statutes ordinances and guidelines

123 Any technicalprofessional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement must
have express advance approval by the CITY

13 Changes

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided
hereunder however no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement

14 Maintenance and Inspection of Records

141 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books records and documents which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid
pursuant to this Agreement These records shall be subject at all reasonable times
to inspection review or audit by the CITY its authorized representative the
State Auditor or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this
Agreement

142 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books records documents and other
material relevant to this Agreement for six 6 years after its expiration The
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said
period

Professional Services Agreement 6

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
270



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
271



192 Any action of law suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of
this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County Washington

20 Severability

201 If for any reason any part term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court
of the United States to be illegal void or unenforceable the validity of the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations of the
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the
particular provision held to be invalid

202 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory
provision of the State of Washington said provision that may conflict therewith
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions

21 Entire Agreement

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded Further
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material
breach of contract and be cause for termination Both parties recognize time is of the
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement It is also agreed by the
parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day
and year first hereinabove written

CITY SERVICE PROVIDER

CITY OF OAK HARBOR

865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Dud ey ayo L

Attest

Valerie Loffle ity Cle

Professional Services Agreement 8

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
272



EXHIBIT A

ERCI
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 360 8264830wwwequinoxercicom

March 17 2013

Joe Stowell

City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Survey for alternate outfall corridor Windjammer Park Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for
your cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource
management program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork
and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 0505
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with
others in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of
RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing
cultural resource management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting
International Inc ERCI works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

We are providing this scope and budget for sub surface testing in a single well defined 20 foot
wide corridor over the existing western outfall in Windjammer Park south of the previous testing
area and 45IS298 This scope presumes that no permit from DAHP will be required to carry out
this testing as we are outside of the recorded site

Scope

Design and implement field survey with shovel testing along alternate corridor for outfall
in Windjammer Park
Provide report to state federal and tribal standards

Qualifications
Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works
systems and infrastructure
Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification
standards for archaeology
Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 05 05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
273



Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the
project area and experience in tribal consultation
Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

The following estimate covers the identification and evaluation for historic properties in this
project area The following costs are not included in this estimate

Costs associated with encountering human remains during this fieldwork
Costs associated with completing Historic Property Inventory Forms HPIFs for any
buildings older than 50 years
Costs associated with developing any additional agreements plans protocols or permits
should they be required

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a
timely fashion Please check out our web site for additional detailswwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak
Harbor

Regards

7

Kelly R Bush
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

Description Units RateHR Sub Total

Project Orientation meetings and project management 100 14325 14325

Archival background research 050 9775 4888

Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes

regarding cultural resource issues including the cultural
heritage value of sites within the vicinity of the Area of 100 14325 14325

Potential Effect APE

Determine eligibility of identified historic properties for
050 14375 7188

listing in the National Register of Historic Places
Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 400 14375 57500

how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 100 14325 14325

Document control transcriptions site forms 400 6375 25500

Report editing 200 14325 28650

Report writing 600 9775 58650

Report Production 000 6375 000

Report printing and postage 000 2300 000

City of Oak Harbor Outfall Corridor Windjammer Park 2

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCIWWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
274



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
275



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
276



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
277



Professional Services Agreement Organization and Address: 
Amendment Number: 5 City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Original Agreement Title: Oak Harbor, WA 98239 

WWTP Archaeoloeical Services Phone: (360) 279-4521 
Project Number: Eng-15-02 Execution Date I Completion Date 
(oreviously ENG-13-05) 06/16/2013 12/31/2015 
Project Title: New Maximum Amount Payable 
City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant $504,079.08 
Description of Work: 
Provide Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant. 

The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Equinox Research and Consulting International. (ERCI) and executed on May 7. 2013 
and identified as Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and 
Consulting International. (ERCll. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
See attached Scope of Works and Fees 

TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary for archaeological monitoring of the 
Site Preparation A-Archaeological Survey on the proposed wastewater treatment plant 
propertv. The consultant is authorized to begin work on the initial $140.978.50 scope 
amount with work past that scope requiring city authorization. The maximum amount 
payable under the contract is increased by $215.533.00; from $288.546.08 to 
$504.079.08. 

If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
278



E RCI 
1229 Cleveland Avenue Mt. Vernon, WA 98273 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.eaujnoxerci.com )I 

June 8, 2015 

Brett Arvidson 
City of Oak Harbor Public Works 
1400 NE 16m A venue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Re: Professional Archaeological Monitoring for Preliminary excavations including a contingency for 
14 days of archaeological data recovery for the WWTP replacement project, Windjammer Park, Oak 
Harbor, Washington 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCJ) for your 
cultural resource management needs. ERCl provides a full service cultural resource management 
program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting. 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with 
others in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of 
RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by. In providing 
cultural resource management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting International 
Inc. (ERCI) works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

This project currently has a Department of Ecology nexus and we will be operating under the 
Archaeological Work Plan (April 2015) as mandated by the Memorandum of Agreement (June 2015). 

We are providing this scope and budget for the following tasks: 
• Project Management including planning, administration, logistics 
• Coordination with SHPO, Ecology, and Tribes 
• Document Control, transcriptions and report production 
• Reporting including weekly interim reports, research and final report 
• Documentation, analysis, and preparation for curation on historic and pre contact artifacts 
• Graphics including field maps, profiles and report ready maps, field and lab photos 
• Field and lab supplies 
• Documentation, analysis, and preparation for curation human and fauna! (animal) remains 
• Professional archaeological monitoring on the removal and management of the sediments 

associated with the preliminary digging for the WWTP replacement project. 
• Accommodations and travel for all archaeologists for this project 

City ofOllk Hnrbor - WWTP initial preliminlll'Y digging with intact deposits Project 
Equinox Research and Consulting lntemotional Inc. (ERCI) 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
279



• Prepare historic and pre contact artifacts, fauna! remains, samples and documents for curation 
at the Burke Museum. This includes up to 2 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes of documents 
including fauna! remains. 

• Provide weekly interim reports to stakeholders 
• Provide final report to state and federal standards this includes one draft and one final report 

with appendices 
• Contingency for 14 days of data recovery associated with encountering intact archaeological 

deposits during the exploratory excavations. 

We expect that 2 machines will be operating at one time, that we will dig down to just above the 
water table to remove the deposits with the highest likelihood of encountering archaeological material 
early before the deep time sensitive excavations for the treatment plant begin in earnest. 

Assumptions: 

• Human remains will be encountered only once during this field work. 
• 14 days of data recovery will be sufficient for any intact archaeological deposits that are 

encountered. 
• No more than 2 boxes of artifacts, fauna! material and 4 boxes of documents will be curated 

from this phase of the project 
• ERCI will not supply safety fencing, trench safety management or information signs 
• ERCI will not supply any heavy equipment such as excavators or dump trucks 

Qualifications: 
• Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems 

and infrastructure. 
• Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interior's professional qualification standards for 

archaeology 
• Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 
• Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with 

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains. 
• Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project 

area and experience in tribal consultation. 
• Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs 
• Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 
themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a 
timely fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.eguinoxerci.com 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak 
Harbor. 

Regards, 

11<rff? ~ 
Kelly R. Bush 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

City of Oak H1ttbor - WWTP initial preliminary digging with intnct deposits Project 
Equinox Rcsenrch nnd Consulting lntcmntionnl Inc. (ERCI) 

2 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
280



Field and Administration Units 
Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week 6 weeks 24.00 

Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology (1 hrs/week 6 6.00 
weeks) 

Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (I hrs/week) 6.00 

Logistical Planning for field work (I hours per week) 6.00 

Document control and transcriptions ( 16 hrs/week) 96.00 

Site Inventory Forms 12.00 
Research 30.00 

Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 68.00 
Interim (weekly) Report editing ( l hr/week) 17.00 
Graphics (weekly) Report (I hr/week) 34.00 

Report production interim (I hr per week) 17.00 
Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal material and 96.00 
lab management) 

Lab technician photo, metrics and characterization of objects 240.00 
and samples; documentation and analysis of both precontact 
and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

Analysis and management ofprecontact and historic artifact 32.00 
data from disturbed deposits 

Draft and Final Report writing 120.00 
Draft and Final Report editing 12.00 
Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, additional hand 80.00 
drawing for profiles and report ready graphics for final reports 

Report production draft and final reports 8.00 
Report production Appendices 8.00 
Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, field and 1.00 
archive paper, storage boxes, other lab supplies 

Two Archaeological Monitors for the initial exploratory 480.00 
excavations 

Equipment maintenance on-going l hours per week when all 6.00 
equipment is working 

Subtotal for field and administration 

Travel and Accommodations for Archaeologists 
local travel time (not charging) 0.00 

Mileage for monitor 15 trips from Mt. Vernon 1200.00 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 40.00 
day 

Accommodations - for 3 crew members 1.50 

SUB TOTAL of accommodations and travel 

SUB TOTALS for work without 
encountering intact deposits 

City of Oak Harbor - WWTP initial preliminwy digging with intact deposits Project 
Equinox Research and Consulting lntemntion11l Inc. (ERCI) 

Rate/Hr Sub Total 
143.75 3,450.00 

143.75 862.50 

143.75 862.50 

143.75 862.50 

63.25 6,072.00 

63.25 759.00 
97.75 2,932.50 

97.75 6,647.00 
143.75 2,443.75 
97.75 3,323.50 

63.25 1,075.25 
115.00 11,040.00 

74.75 17,940.00 

97.75 3,128.00 

97.75 11,730.00 
143.75 1,725.00 
97.75 7,820.00 

63.25 506.00 
63.25 506.00 

833.00 833.00 

74.75 35,880.00 

74.75 448.50 

120,847.00 

40,00 0,00 

0.575 690.00 

40.00 1,600.00 

2,500.00 3,750.00 

6,040.00 

126,887.00 

3 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
281



Contingency work should we encounter intact deposits or 
human remains and need 2 weeks of mitigative data 
recovery 

Physical (Biological) Anthropologist/lab director 80.00 

Lab technician 80.00 

Office Technician 80.00 
Field Director 80.00 

Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 
Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 
Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 

Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 
Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 

Archaeological Field Technician 80.00 
Reassociation of Ancestral Remains (Physical Anthropologist) 16.00 

Lab technician and assistant to the Physical Anthropologist 16.00 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 42.00 
day 

Mileage for crew members not staying in town 1800.00 

Housing and per diem - for crew members 1.50 

SUB TOT AL for additional field work 
should we encountering intact deposits 
Curation for 4 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes of documents 
this is an estimate that depends on how many artifacts we 
encounter 

Oversight of curation process-Lab Director 40.00 

Curation preparation of artifacts and documents Lab Technician 120.00 

Archive supplies for Curation 1.00 
Costs for curation ofobject and samples at the Burke 1500.00 4.00 
per box 
Costs for curation of documents at the Burke 250.00 per box 4.00 

Subtotal for Curation 

Totals for all work including 14 days of 
data recovery 

City ofOok Harbor- WWTP initial preliminary digging with inloct deposits Project 
Equinox Research ond Consulting lntemotionol lnc. (ERCI) 

115.00 9,200.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

63.25 5,060.00 

97.75 7,820.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

74.75 5,980.00 

115.00 1,840.00 

74.75 1,196.00 

40.00 1,680.00 

0.575 1,035.00 

2,500.00 3,750.00 

66,976.00 

115.00 4,600.00 

74.75 8,970.00 

1,100.00 1,100.00 
1,500.00 6,000.00 

250.00 1,000.00 

21,670.00 

215,533.00 

4 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
282



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
283



 
1229 Cleveland Avenue Mt. Vernon, WA 98273 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 

OMWBE Certification 
certification number is W2F0024050 
certification date is July 26, 2015. 
 

 
 
October 7, 2015 
 
Brett Arvidson; Project Engineer 
City of Oak Harbor Public Works 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
Re: Site Prep B WWTP City of Oak Harbor Professional Archaeological Monitoring 
 
Dear Mr. Arvidson: 
 
Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) for your 
cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program 
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting.  
 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others 
in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and 
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by.  In providing cultural resource 
management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) works in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
We are providing this scope and budget for 20 days of professional archaeological monitoring for two 
monitors during the utility relocates and building decommissioning; 5 half days for the installation of the 
stone columns and the sheet pilings for the deep excavation; then 20 days for 1 monitor for the deep 
excavation.   
 
We will be using the Archaeological Work Plan that has been reviewed and implemented as part of the 
Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of Ecology. 
 
 
The Scope activities include: 

 Provide professional archaeological monitoring for various activities for Site Prep B for the 
WWTP 

 Provide weekly reporting and a summary report. 
 Provide report to state and federal standards 

 
Assumptions: 

 Human remains or intact deposits are not covered in this scope. 
 No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope.  

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
284

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP Outfall Archaeological Monitoring      2 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 

Qualifications: 

 Experience working on the shorelines of Puget Sound and on projects associated with 
infrastructure construction and repair. 

 Principal investigator and senior archaeologists meet the Secretary of Interior’s professional 
qualification standards for archaeology 

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 
 Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with 

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains. 
 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project area 

and experience in tribal coordination and consultation. 
 Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

 
The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 
themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a timely 
fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 
 
 
Field and Administration Units  Rate/Hr Sub Total  

Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week 8 weeks 32.00 143.75 4,600.00 

Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology  (1 hrs/week 8 
weeks)  

8.00 143.75 1,150.00 

Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (1 hrs/week)  8.00 143.75 1,150.00 

Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per week) 6.00 143.75 862.50 
Document control and transcriptions (20 hrs/week) 160.00 63.25 10,120.00 
Site Inventory Forms   12.00 63.25 759.00 
Research 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 
Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 32.00 97.75 3,128.00 
Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 8.00 143.75 1,150.00 
Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 8.00 97.75 782.00 
Report production interim (.5 hr per week) 4.00 63.25 253.00 
Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal material) 32.00 115.00 3,680.00 
Lab technician photo, metrics and characterization of objects 
and samples; documentation and analysis of both precontact 
and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

192.00 74.75 14,352.00 

Analysis and management of precontact and historic artifact 
data from disturbed deposits 

32.00 97.75 3,128.00 

Interim Report writing 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
285

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP Outfall Archaeological Monitoring      3 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Interim Report editing 4.00 143.75 575.00 
Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, additional hand 
drawing for profiles and report ready graphics for final reports 

24.00 97.75 2,346.00 

Report production interim report 2.00 63.25 126.50 
Report production Appendices 1.00 63.25 63.25 
Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, field and 
archive paper, storage boxes, other lab supplies 

1.00 833.00 833.00 

Two Archaeological Monitors 20 days of utility relocates and 
Demolition of buildings 

320.00 74.75 23,920.00 

1 Archaeological Monitor for 5 half days of documenting the 
Stone column and sheet column installation as needed 

20.00 74.75 1,495.00 

1 Archaeological Monitoring for 20 days of deep excavation  160.00 74.75 11,960.00 

Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per week when all 
equipment is working 

8.00 74.75 598.00 

Subtotal for field and administration     92,896.25 
Travel and Accommodations for Archaeologists       
local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

Mileage for monitor 15 trips from Mt. Vernon 2784.00 0.580 1,614.72 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 
day  

72.00 40.00 2,880.00 

Accommodations - for 2 crew members as needed 1.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 

Per Diem (included in housing) 0.00 61.00 0.00 

SUBTOTAL of accomodations and travel     6,994.72 

TOTALS for work without encountering 

intact deposits 

    99,890.97 

 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
286



WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
 

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES INSERT 
 

Revised 10/24/14 
 

 
The following clauses will be incorporated into contracts for engineering services receiving 
financial assistance from the Washington State Department of Ecology Water Pollution Control 
Revolving Fund.  In the event of conflict within the contract these clauses shall take precedence  
 
Compliance with State and Local Laws 
The engineering services provider (CONTRACTOR) shall assure compliance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, requirements, and ordinances as they pertain to the design, 
implementation, and administration of the approved project. 
 
State Interest Exclusion 
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of 
Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  Neither the State of Washington nor any of 
its departments or employees are, or shall be, a party to this contract or any subcontract. 
 
Third Party Beneficiary  
Partial funding of this project is being provided through the Washington State Department of 
Ecology Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  All parties agree that the State of Washington 
shall be, and is hereby, named as an express third-party beneficiary of this contract, with full 
rights as such. 
 
Cost Basis of Contract  
No contract may be written for "cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost" or "percentage of construction 
cost." The cost basis for this contract must be cost-reimbursement, unit price, fixed-price, time 
and materials, or any combination of these four methods. 
 
Funding Recognition 
Documents produced under this agreement shall inform the public that the project received 
financial assistance from the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  
Washington State Department of Ecology’s and the EPA’s logomust be on all signs and 
documents. Logos will be provided as needed. 
 
Access to the work site and to records   
The CONTRACTOR shall provide for access to their records by Washington State Department 
of Ecology and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) personnel. 
 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
287



The CONTRACTOR shall maintain accurate records and accounts to facilitate the Owner’s audit 
requirements and shall ensure that all subcontractors maintain auditable records.  These records 
shall be separate and distinct from the CONTRACTOR’s other records and accounts. 
 
All such records shall be available to the Owner and to Washington State Department of Ecology 
and EPA personnel for examination. All records pertinent to this project shall be retained by the 
CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after the final audit. 
 
Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary 
Exclusion  
 

1. The CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, 
debarred, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from 
contracting with the federal government, or from receiving contracts paid for with federal 
funds.  If the CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the statements contained in the 
certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot.   

 
2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to the Washington State 

Department of Ecology if at any time the CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was 
erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 
3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 

transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and 
voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions 
and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact 
the Washington State Department of Ecology for assistance in obtaining a copy of the 
regulations.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of 
Federal Regulations, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction.   

 
5. The CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this 

clause titled “Certification Regarding Suspension, Debarment, Ineligibility Or Voluntary 
Exclusion” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

 
6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower 

tier covered transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment 
requirements.    

 
7. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in 

the Code of Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding 
agreement, or pursuance of legal remedies, including suspension and debarment. 

 
8. The CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file that it and all lower tier 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
288



recipients or contractors are not suspended or debarred and will make this proof available 
to the Washington State Department of Ecology upon request.  The 
RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in http://www.sam.gov/ and print a copy 
of completed searches to document proof of compliance. 

 
This term and condition supersedes EPA Form 5700-49, “Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters.” 
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises  
 
General Compliance (40 CFR Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s Program for Participation By Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) 40 CFR Part 
33.   
 
Non-discrimination Provision (40CFR Appendix A to Part 33).   
The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in 
the performance of this contract. The CONTRACTOR shall carry out applicable requirements of 
40 CFR part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial 
assistance agreements. Failure by the CONTRACTOR to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or other 
legally available remedies. 
 
Six Good Faith Efforts (40 CFR Part 33 Subpart C).   
The CONTRACTOR agrees to make the following good faith efforts whenever procuring 
subcontracts, equipment, services and supplies.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain records 
documenting compliance with the following six good faith efforts. 
 

1.   Ensuring Disadvantaged Business Enterprises are made aware of contracting 
opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities.  
For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever 
they are potential sources.  Qualified Women and Minority business enterprises may be 
found on the Internet at www.omwbe.wa.gov or by contacting the Washington State 
Office of Minority and Women’s Enterprises at (866) 208-1064. 

2.   Making information on forthcoming opportunities available to Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where 
the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process. This includes, whenever 
possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar 
days before the bid or proposal closing date. 

3.   Considering in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could 
subcontract with Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. For Indian Tribal, State and local 
Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically 
feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process.  

4.   Encourage contracting with a consortium of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises when a 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
289

http://www.sam.gov/
http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/


contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually. 
5.   Using services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority 

Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
6.   If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, requiring the subcontractors to take the six 

good faith efforts in paragraphs 1 through 5 above. 
 
 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 7 - Attachment C
290



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 15 
for Interpretive Center Design

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 15 with
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $40,215, increasing the total contract amount from $16,772,927 to 
$16,813,142.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.b
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 15 
for Interpretive Center Design

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 15 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $40,215, increasing the total contract amount from $16,772,927 to 
$16,813,142.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Carollo Engineers is currently under contract to provide design engineering, SCADA services and 
engineering services during construction for the Clean Water Facility.

Staff has been coordinating with Carollo Engineers and their sub-contractor, MWA Architects, to 
develop a design for the interpretive center included in the administration and maintenance building.

The attached Amendment No. 15 to the Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers reflects the 
following scope of services

 Review existing reports that document the wastewater treatment plant design and Review existing
school district demographics, curriculum and interest in using the site. Inventory existing
interpretation on Whidbey Island (i.e. market research to determine existing stories and exhibits in
the area to avoid duplication and uncover potential collaborations).

 Develop goals and objectives (e.g. what do we want visitors to know, feel and do onsite and
following the visit) based on the Visitor Profile. Develop themes and the storyline for the site.

 Develop recommendations for interpretive media (signage, exhibits, technology, curriculum, ) and 
programming based on visitor profiles that would be most appropriate for the anticipated visitor, 
themes and site.

 Develop Draft Exhibit Plan (approximately 50 pages in length with rendered images) and submit to 
client for review. Respond to client review comments, revise, and submit Final Exhibit Plan with

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Carollo Engineers is currently under contract to provide design engineering, SCADA services and 
engineering services during construction for the Clean Water Facility.

Staff has been coordinating with Carollo Engineers and their sub-contractor, MWA Architects, to 
develop a design for the interpretive center included in the administration and maintenance building.

The attached Amendment No. 15 to the Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers reflects the 
following scope of services

 Review existing reports that document the wastewater treatment plant design and Review existing
school district demographics, curriculum and interest in using the site. Inventory existing
interpretation on Whidbey Island (i.e. market research to determine existing stories and exhibits in
the area to avoid duplication and uncover potential collaborations).

 Develop goals and objectives (e.g. what do we want visitors to know, feel and do onsite and
following the visit) based on the Visitor Profile. Develop themes and the storyline for the site.

 Develop recommendations for interpretive media (signage, exhibits, technology, curriculum, ) and
programming based on visitor profiles that would be most appropriate for the anticipated visitor,
themes and site.

 Develop Draft Exhibit Plan (approximately 50 pages in length with rendered images) and submit to
client for review. Respond to client review comments, revise, and submit Final Exhibit Plan with

291



layout and design recommendations.

The additional scope of services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by 
$40,215, increasing the total contract amount from $16,772,927 to $16,813,142.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $40,215                       

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund / General Fund       

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the August 24, 2016 City Council Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 

layout and design recommendations.

The additional scope of services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by 
$40,215, increasing the total contract amount from $16,772,927 to $16,813,142.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $40,215                       

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund / General Fund       

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the August 24, 2016 City Council Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

 

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

 

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 

292



Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

February 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

 

May 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the release of management reserve in the amount of $218,427; 
and authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 14 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$5,339,431, increasing the total contract amount from $11,433,496 to $16,772,927.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

February 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

 

May 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the release of management reserve in the amount of $218,427; 
and authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 14 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$5,339,431, increasing the total contract amount from $11,433,496 to $16,772,927.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

293

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471972646x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471972695x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471972724x_at.pdf


 

 
Amendment No.  14 8/16/2016 Page 1 of 2 
 
pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Oak Harbor Amendment 15 Form.docx 

Consultant Agreement Amendment  
Number 15 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan 
Project Number:  8549A.00 (Amendments 1-5) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12, 15) 
8549A.22 (Amendment 13) 
8549A.21 (Amendment 14) 

Execution Date 
09/16/10 

Completion Date (Prior) 
December 2018 

Project Title:  Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$16,813,142 

Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete planning services for 
Clean Water Facility Exhibit Designs. 
 
The City of Oak Harbor         
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers, Inc. 
and executed on  09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.  
              
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following:  
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert (Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are hereby incorporated into the original agreement. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scopes of Services (Exhibit B.1) for additional phases of work. 
 
PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO:  No Change 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $16,772,927 to $16,813,142. This 
maximum upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit 
D-3 summarize the level of effort associated with Amendment 15 services. 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A
294



 

 
Amendment No.  14 8/16/2016 Page 2 of 2 
 
pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Oak Harbor Amendment 15 Form.docx 

 
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
 
By:  Brian R. Matson, Senior Vice President  By:  Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 
 
By:  Karl Hadler, Vice President  
 
 
        
Consultant Signature      
 

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A
295



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 15 Scope_160815.docx 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
EXHIBIT PLANNING FOR THE CLEAN WATER FACILITY 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Within the new Clean Water Facility (CWF), viewing windows will look into various process 
areas to provide transparency, and a learning opportunity for the public. Educational signage 
will be provided at these stations for passersby to observe and learn about the technology 
associated with their infrastructure. Additionally, the Administration Building will have a room on 
the ground floor containing interpretive exhibits describing the technology, and give visitors a 
virtual tour of the plant, illustrating the broader need for this infrastructure as it relates to the 
marine environment of Oak Harbor. 
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will complete the following services to plan for CWF exhibits:  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
TASK 400 – CWF FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING 
 
Subtask 490 – CWF Exhibit Planning 
 
 Review existing reports that document the wastewater treatment plant design and 

development. Review existing school district demographics, curriculum and interest in using 
the site. Inventory existing interpretation on Whidbey Island (i.e. market research to 
determine existing stories and exhibits in the area to avoid duplication and uncover potential 
collaborations). 
 

 Develop goals and objectives (e.g. what do we want visitors to know, feel and do onsite and 
following the visit) based on the Visitor Profile. Develop themes and the storyline for the site. 
 

 Develop recommendations for interpretive media (signage, exhibits, technology, curriculum, 
etc.) and programming based on visitor profiles that would be most appropriate for the 
anticipated visitor, themes and site. 

 
 Develop Draft Exhibit Plan (approximately 50 pages in length with rendered images) and 

submit to client for review. Respond to client review comments, revise, and submit Final 
Exhibit Plan with layout and design recommendations 

 
Task 400 Assumptions: 

None 

 

Task 400 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting preparation, materials, and presentations for three (3) meetings. 

2. Draft and Final Exhibit Plan. 

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A
296



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 15 Scope_160815.docx 

 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The estimated level of effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is 
presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCHEDULE 
 
This Scope of Services is will be completed on or before October 2016. 

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A
297



EXHIBIT D-3
EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant Final Design & Permitting
Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

August 15, 2016 Matson CAMP Hadler Misc Staff Misc Lish 1.9 $10.00

Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $85 $74 $62 $42 $27 $27

TASK 400 - WWTP FINAL DESIGN & PERMITTING
Subtask 490 - CWF Exhibit Planning $38,300 $38,300

Task 400 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,300

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $38,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,300

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP $0 $0 $1,915 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,915

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $40,215

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS
Project 

Manager
QA/QC 
Team

Design 
Manager

Design 
Lead

Staff 
Engineer

CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

WP/ 
Admin. 
Support

Carollo 
Hours

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total Cost

ESA EI
MWA + 
SMEP

Geo GW WE HAI
Air Quality 
& Sound

Page 1

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A
298



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
299



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
300



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
301



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
302



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
303



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
304



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
305



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
306



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
307



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
308



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
309



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
310



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
311



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
312



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
313



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
314



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
315



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
316



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
317



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
318



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
319



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
320



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
321



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
322



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
323



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
324



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
325



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
326



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
327



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
328



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
329



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
330



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
331



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
332



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
333



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
334



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
335



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
336



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
337



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
338



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
339



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
340



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
341



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
342



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
343



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
344



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
345



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
346



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
347



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
348



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
349



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
350



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
351



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
352



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
353



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
354



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
355



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
356



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
357



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
358



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
359



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
360



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
361



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
362



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
363



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
364



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
365



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
366



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
367



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
368



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
369



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
370



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
371



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
372



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
373



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
374



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
375



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
376



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
377



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
378



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
379



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
380



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
381



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
382



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
383



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
384



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
385



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
386



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
387



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
388



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
389



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
390



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
391



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
392



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
393



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
394



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
395



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
396



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
397



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
398



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
399



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
400



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
401



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
402



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
403



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
404



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
405



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
406



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
407



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
408



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
409



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
410



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
411



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
412



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
413



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
414



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
415



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
416



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
417



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
418



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
419



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
420



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
421



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
422



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
423



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
424



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
425



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
426



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
427



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
428



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
429



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
430



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
431



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
432



March 14, 2013  Page 1 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed a Draft Facilities Plan (Plan) that recommends 
constructing a new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP), marine outfall, and associated 
collection system improvements by 2017. The Plan identifies the “Windjammer Vicinity” as the 
proposed site for a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) treatment facility that is expandable to 
treat projected Year 2060 flows (6 mgd, maximum month basis). The Windjammer Vicinity site 
is approximately 50 acres in size. The actual footprint needed for the MBR treatment facility is 
between three and four acres. This phase of the work includes: development of preliminary 
engineering documents for Value Engineering (VE); additional engineering and public process 
support to select the final location within the Windjammer Vicinity site; development of 
procurement documents to select key process equipment (membranes and ultraviolet [UV] 
disinfection equipment); development of WWTP preliminary design to approximately 30 percent 
detail; assisting with selecting the preferred delivery method to complete WWTP construction; 
and development of Final Construction Documents, permits and bid period services for a 
replacement marine outfall into Oak Harbor. 
 
This Scope of Services is authorized as an amendment to an existing contract between the City 
and Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo). Subsequent phases are anticipated to include: 

 Preparation of Final Construction Documents and Permitting for the WWTP (with 
participation from the City’s General Contractor/Construction Manager [GC/CM] if this 
delivery method is selected). 

 Bid Period Services (or assistance with negotiating a Maximum Allowable Construction 
Cost (MACC), if GC/CM delivery is selected to complete the WWTP. 

 Construction Support Services for the WWTP and Outfall Projects. 

 Preparation of Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals. 

 Start-up, Training, and Facility Commissioning. 

 
Project Objectives 
 
The objectives of the Project are to: 

 Complete VE to identify potential cost saving and value-added measures. Prior to 
selecting the final location for the WWTP. 

 Assist the City in identifying the final location for the City’s WWTP within the 
Windjammer Vicinity. 

 Procure major treatment process equipment (membranes, UV) as a basis for final design 
of the new WWTP, using competitive bidding. NOTE: Contracts for pre-procured 
equipment will be assigned to the construction contractor. 

 Prepare preliminary design information to approximately 30 percent level to be used as a 
basis for construction delivery analysis. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
433



March 14, 2013  Page 2 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 Assist the City in selecting the preferred method for construction delivery. 

 
Project Team 
Carollo will serve as the Prime Consultant for the Project, and will be responsible for overall 
Project management and delivery. In completing the work defined by this Scope of Services, 
Carollo is authorized to use the following Subconsultants: 
 

Subconsultant Role 
ESA  Environmental/Cultural Resources Permitting Support 
EnviroIssues (EI) Public Meeting Facilitation and/or Support 
Michael Willis Architects (MWA) Architectural Design Services 
GeoEngineers(Geo) Geotechnical Design Services 
Bruce Dees & Associates (BDA) Landscape Architectural Design Services 
Webster Environmental (WE) Odor Control Design Services 
Cosmopolitan Engineering Group (CEG) Outfall Design Services 
Harmsen Associates, Inc. (HAI) Topographical Surveying 
 
Related Documents 
 
The following documents provide background information for this project:  

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Evaluation, City of Oak Harbor, October 2007. 

 City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan, TetraTech/KCM, December 2008. 

 City of Oak Harbor Draft Facilities Plan, Carollo, March 2013. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Carollo (Consultant) will provide engineering and other services for the City of Oak Harbor 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design Phase (Project), as defined by this Scope of 
Services. Work products submitted electronically will be produced using software as defined 
below: 

 Word Processing Microsoft Word 

 Spreadsheets  Microsoft Excel 

 Scheduling  Microsoft Project 

 Drawings  Bentley MicroStation and Portable Document Format (PDF) 

 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 100 Project Management 
Task 200 Value Engineering Support 
Task 300 Public Process Support  
Task 400 WWTP Preliminary Design 
Task 500 Project Delivery Analysis 
Task 600 Outfall Design  
Task 700 Management Reserve 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
434



March 14, 2013  Page 3 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
A preliminary schedule for the Project is attached (Attachment 1). The Schedule defines 
anticipated durations for major tasks, Project milestones, and major deliverable dates, assuming 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) in April 2013. Throughout this Scope of Services, anticipated delivery 
dates for major deliverables are established based on this preliminary schedule. The Consultant 
and City recognize that the preliminary schedule and corresponding delivery dates are subject 
to change, should NTP be issued after April 2013 and/or for other reasons. Schedule changes 
may be approved by the City without an amendment to this Scope of Services, provided both 
Consultant and City staff approve of the change. An amendment modifying the Project schedule 
and dates for major deliverables will be issued if required by either the City or Consultant. 
 
TASK 100 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The objective of this task is to manage and coordinate engineering and related services 
required for Project completion. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 100: 
 
Subtask 110 – Project Management Plan 
 
Complete a draft Project Management Plan (PMP) including scope, work plan and products, 
work breakdown structure, budget, schedule, organization and staffing, communication protocol, 
and project standards within ten (10) days of Notice to Proceed (NTP). Finalize the PMP 
following the Startup Workshop and receipt of City comments. Monitor the PMP throughout the 
project and provide one update of the PMP upon request by the City. 
 
Subtask 111 – Quality Management 
 
Develop and follow a Quality Management Plan (QMP) for the Project to be included in the 
PMP. Review technical memos, documents, drawings, reports, and address review comments 
addressed prior to submission in accordance with the QMP. For major work products develop a 
Record of Comment (ROC) to document City comments and Consultant responses. 
 
Subtask 110 Assumptions: 

1. A Draft PMP will be reviewed at the Project Startup Meeting. 

2. A Final PMP will be issued to incorporate City comments collected following the Project 
Startup Meeting. 

3. The PMP will be updated once during the project. 

 
Subtask 120 – Project Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Manage the Project team to track time and budget, work elements accomplished, work items 
planned for the next period, manpower, scope changes, and time and budget needed to 
complete this Scope of Services. Prepare monthly project status reports that compare work 
accomplished with schedule activities and compare expenditures with task budgets, and submit 
reports to the City’s Project Manager with monthly invoices. Document expenditures on a task 
basis, and show hours by project personnel and other direct expenses related to work. Include a 
project S-curve developed using Earned Valve Management (EVM) detailing anticipated 
progress, percent complete, and percent billed for each month. 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
435



March 14, 2013  Page 4 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 120 Assumptions:  

1. Total Project duration for this phase is 12 months. 

 
Subtask 130 – Project Management Meetings 
 
Schedule and conduct Project Management Meetings throughout the project as directed by the 
City’s Project Manager. Meetings will be used to discuss project status, action items, and 
potential areas of concern. Publish meeting minutes with Action Items that require a response 
by team members, City staff, or other agencies identified at the meeting. A draft of the minutes 
will be submitted to the City within three (3) working days after the meeting. The final version will 
be submitted within five (5) working days after comments on the draft have been received from 
the City. 
 
Subtask 130 Assumptions:  

1. Up to six (6) Project Management Meetings will be held. 

2. Agendas, meeting minutes, and Action Items will be distributed electronically by the 
Consultant to City’s Project Manager. 

 
Task 100 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(1) PMP 110 April 2013 

(12) Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 120 Monthly 

(6) Project Management Meeting Agendas 130 As Needed 

(6) Project Management Meeting Action Items Log 130 As Needed 

 
TASK 200 – VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT 
 
Value Engineering (VE) is required to satisfy Federal funding requirements, and is considered 
good practice to identify ways to reduce cost and/or improve the overall value of the Project. 
The objective of this task is to assist the City in completing VE to confirm key planning and 
conceptual design assumptions and identify potential cost-saving or value-added measures. 
Consultant will develop conceptual level design information prior to VE, to focus objectives and 
improve the benefit of the VE process. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 
200: 
 
Subtask 210 – Conceptual Design Development 
 
Develop conceptual level detail (approximately 15 percent) for the proposed alternative as 
defined by the 2013 Draft Facilities Plan. A Project Elements List is attached (Attachment 2). 
The conceptual design package is anticipated to include the following: updated hydraulic profile; 
major plans and sections for each facility listed in Attachment 2; major equipment cut sheets 
and equipment/electrical load lists; process control philosophies and control diagrams for major 
systems; overall control system block diagram; electrical single line drawings; and an updated 
cost estimate. Consolidate information into a conceptual level design package. Meet with City 
staff to review and confirm information.  
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
436



March 14, 2013  Page 5 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Conceptual level design information will be developed based on information provided in 
the Draft Facilities Plan, March 2013. 

2. Consultant will use a facilitated design workshop approach to streamline conceptual 
level of design development. 

3. The conceptual level design package will consist of a brief summary, drawing package 
(approximately 30 drawings), and narrative process control philosophies for major 
systems (approximately 10 control philosophies). 

4. Consultant will present conceptual level design information to City staff at a full-day 
meeting, conducted at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

5. The conceptual level design package will serve as the basis for VE. 

 
Subtask 220 – WWTP Site Visits 
 
Site visits to nearby facilities will help to address questions from City staff related to equipment 
selection, performance, O&M concerns, and level of technical support. Schedule and conduct 
up to three (3) independent site visits to nearby facilities. Participate in site tours, facilitate Q&A, 
and complete brief trip reports summarizing results and recommendations collected as a result 
of the site tours. Incorporate recommendations into conceptual design information prepared 
under Subtask 210. 
 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. Site visits will be completed in the Pacific Northwest as close to Oak Harbor as possible. 
Costs for mileage and per diem for City and Consultant staff are included. Airline travel 
is not anticipated. 

2. Site visits will be conducted in a single day. If coupling site visits requires an overnight 
staff, lodging for Consultant and City staff will be billed at-cost. 

3. Two (2) members of consultant staff will participate in site visits. 

 
Subtask 230 – VE Support 
 
Develop a presentation and present basis of planning and conceptual design information to the 
VE team. Meet with the VE team at the onset of the VE workshop to review and present 
information. Meet with the VE team at the close of the VE workshop to receive comments and 
ideas. Review VE team recommendations with City and develop a narrative response accepting 
ideas or describing why ideas are not recommended. Meet with City staff to review responses. 
Consolidate comments and develop a brief memorandum and presentation to City Council 
summarizing the results of the VE effort. 
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. City will contract directly with a Certified Value Engineering Specialist to conduct the VE 
workshop. 

2. Consultant level of effort includes preparation for and participation in two (2) full day 
meetings associated with the VE workshop, and one (1) 4-hour meeting with the City to 
review VE results. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
437



March 14, 2013  Page 6 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

3. Two (2) members of Consultant staff will participate in the VE workshop and City review 
meeting. 

4. VE workshop will be held at or near City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

5. Effort for City Council presentation is included in Task 300. 

 
Task 200 Deliverables: 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(1) Conceptual Design Package 210 Per Schedule 

(3) Site Visit Trip Reports 220 As Required 

(1) Materials for Staff Meeting 230 Per Schedule 

(1) VE Response Report to Council 230 Per Schedule 

 
TASK 300 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 
 
The objectives of this task include: 1) support the City in selecting the final location for the 
WWTP within the Windjammer Vicinity; and 2) support successful project implementation by 
proactively identifying and addressing public and stakeholder concerns related to the Project. As 
defined below, the City will lead public process activities for the Project, with significant support 
from the Consultant. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 300: 
 
Subtask 310 – Public Process Planning 
 
Participate in one (1) meeting with the City to develop a project-specific public/stakeholder 
involvement plan (PIP) that identifies the following: 

 Target audiences and issues. 

 Anticipated schedule of activities. 

 Interrelationships and responsibilities. 

 Public involvement tools for each phase of the project. 

 
Prepare a Draft PIP, review with the City, make revisions, and produce a final PIP. Participate in 
coordinating phone calls with City staff to provide strategic advice on public involvement and 
communications issues as they arise throughout the Project. 
 
Throughout the Project, develop and maintain a contact list of stakeholders and interested 
parties. Maintain a log of public comments received outside of the public meetings (via the 
website, emails to project team staff, phone calls, etc.), and responses to public inquiries as 
requested by the City. 
 
Subtask 310 Assumptions: 

None. 

 
Subtask 320 – Establish Policy Framework 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting a up to four (4) meetings with City officials to 
establish the policy framework for selecting the final location for the WWTP within the 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
438



March 14, 2013  Page 7 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Windjammer Vicinity site. Assist City staff in preparing advance plans that identify: information 
needed; options to be considered; and impacts associated with each option. Assist City staff in 
summarizing policy-level decisions into a briefing document that can be shared with the public 
and potentially affected property owners prior to selecting the final WWTP location. 
 
Subtask 320 Assumptions: 

1. All meetings and planning sessions for Subtask 320 will be held at City of Oak Harbor 
facilities. 

2. The City will contract directly with others to provide specialized advice related to property 
acquisition, urban planning, commercial real estate, and cultural resources. 

3. Consultant Project Manager will attend all Subtask 320 meetings. 

 
Subtask 330 – Charrette Workshops 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting a charrette workshop to collect additional community 
input and assist with selecting the final WWTP location within the Windjammer Vicinity site. 
Meet with City staff to develop charrette objectives, constraints, and other information reflecting 
policy decisions developed in Subtask 320. With City input, prepare conceptual layout options 
for up to three (3) different locations within the Windjammer Vicinity site as a starting point for 
the charettes. Assist charrette team in revising layout options during the workshop, and/or in 
developing new layout options that are consistent with City policy. Coordinate with City’s 
independent charrette facilitator to develop a final, recommended location based on charrette 
input. Summarize cost and non-cost/policy issues and present recommended final layout to City 
Council for direction.  
 
Subtask 330 Assumptions: 

1. All charrette workshops for Subtask 330 will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Project Manager, Design Manager, and Architect Lead will attend and 
participate in charrette workshops. 

3. City will contract directly with a charrette facilitator to plan, facilitate, and document the 
charrette process. 

4. The City will contract directly with others to provide specialized advice and expertise that 
may be useful during the charrette process, including services related to property 
acquisition, urban planning, commercial real estate, and cultural resources.  NOTE: 
Effort to negotiate land acquisition and to confirm the presence of cultural resources as a 
condition of land acquisition is not included in Consultant’s Scope o f Services. 

5. Effort for presenting charrette information to the Public and City Council is included in 
Subtasks 340 and 360. 

 
Subtask 340 – Public Meetings/City Council Workshops 
 
Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops, defined 
below. Participate in up one (1) preparation session for each meeting. Coordinate with City staff 
to direct Public Meetings/Workshops and produce one (1) draft and one (1) final summary 
(minutes). For each meeting: assist City to arrange for suitable meeting locations; prepare 
meeting plans; produce presentation materials; develop sign-in sheets and public comment 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
439



March 14, 2013  Page 8 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

forms; develop draft and final agendas; and develop draft and final meeting 
announcements/save the date notices.  
 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 

P1 – Public Meeting No. 1 

(Input on Siting Policy) 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Set Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2 

(Input on Final Location) 

Communicate Results of Value Engineering 

Communicate Results of Charrette Process 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Determine Final WWTP Location 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P3 – Public Meeting No. 3 

(Input on Design Features) 

Communicate Final WWTP Location 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Assist in Architectural Themes 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P4 – Public meeting No. 4 

(Final Plan, Next Steps) 

Present Preliminary Design 

Communicate Decision RE: Navy Participation 

Update Project Phasing/Cost Information 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

 
Subtask 340 Assumptions: 

1. Public Meetings will be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

2. The City will arrange and pay for meeting locations and facilities. 

3. The City will publish announcements in the local paper and include notices of meetings 
on their website. 

4. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 
postage.  

 
Subtask 350 – Working Groups 
 
Working Group Meetings will be used to inform design decisions related to project features, 
architecture, public spaces, landscaping, etc. Assist City in planning for and conducting four (4) 
Working Group Meetings during the preliminary design process. Coordinate with City staff to 
prepare information necessary to communicate design layouts, opportunities and obtain input. 
Document input and issue meeting minutes with decisions to City. 
 
Subtask 350 Assumptions: 
 

1. Working Group Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 

2. City staff will select community participants, schedule meetings, and communicate with 
participants as needed to maximize participation. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
440



March 14, 2013  Page 9 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

3. Working Group Meetings will be attended by approximately five (5) members of the 
community, in addition to Consultant and City staff. 

4. Consultant Design Manager and Lead Architect will attend Working Group Meetings. 

 
Subtask 360 – Council/Committee Meeting Participation 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting Council/Committee Meetings, defined below. Prepare 
meeting objectives, agendas, roles and responsibilities, and presentation materials in advance 
of the meetings. Participate in up to one (1) preparation session for each meeting. 
 

Council/Committee Meeting Objectives 

C1 – Council Committee Meeting No. 1 Communicate Project Schedule and Approach 

Establish Policy Need for Final WWTP Location 

Review Status of Navy Discussions 

C2 – Council Committee Meeting No. 2 Discuss Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Review Status of Navy Discussions 

Communicate Plan for P1 

C3 – Council Meeting No. 1 Establish Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Confirm Navy Participation (in or out) 

C4 – Council Committee Meeting No. 3 Report Results of VE Process 

C5 – Council Committee Meeting No. 4 Report Results of Charrette Process 

Communicate Plan for P2 

C6 – Council Meeting No. 2 Accept Final VE Recommendations 

Select Final WWTP Location 

C7 – Council Committee Meeting No. 5 Update Project Status 

Communicate Plan for P3 

C8 – Council Committee Meeting No. 6 Summarize Project Delivery Options 

Communicate Plan for P4  

C9 – Council Meeting No. 3 Select Project Delivery Option 

 
Subtask 360 Assumptions: 

1. Council/Committee Meetings will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. The City will coordinate announcements for meetings and deliver meeting materials to 
attendees. 

3. Consultant Project Manager will attend City Council Committee Meetings/City Council 
Meetings, and assist City staff in presenting technical information. 

 
Subtask 370 – Public/Stakeholder Involvement Product Development 
 
In consultation with City staff, develop a project website and periodically update the website 
content. Other options for products and activities, subject to Oak Harbor authorization and 
decisions from the PIP include:  

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
441



March 14, 2013  Page 10 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 Project brochures/mailers. 

 In consultation with City staff, the Consultant may produce a segment for the City of Oak 
Harbor public access channel. As directed, Consultant will prepare a script and be 
involved in organizing productions that are filmed and produced by the City. 

 Consultant will assist with strategy and development of presentations for local 
community groups made by City staff. 

 
Task 370 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

2. City will print and send materials to the public.  

3. Costs for production of materials and Public Access TV productions are paid by the City 
outside of this contract. 

 
Task 300 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(1) Updated PIP 310 Per Schedule 

(1) Information for Charrette Workshops 330 Per Schedule 

(4) Public Meeting/Council Workshop Materials 340 Per Schedule 

(4) Working Group Meeting Materials and Minutes 350 Per Schedule 

(9) Presentations for Council/Committee Meetings 360 Per Schedule 

(1) Project Website 370 As Needed 

(12) Updates to Project Website 370 As Needed 

(6) Project Brochure/Public Information Materials 370 As Needed 

(1) Public Access TV Production Plan 370 As Needed 

 
TASK 400 – WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN 
 
The objective of this task is to complete a Preliminary Design of the recommended WWTP (as 
defined in the Facilities Plan and by Tasks 200 and 300) to approximately 30 percent level of 
completion. The Preliminary Design will consist of a Preliminary Design Document, Preliminary 
Design Drawings, and Preliminary Design Specifications. The expected project elements list for 
the WWTP is included as Attachment 2. 
 
Preliminary Design documents will be submitted in electronic (PDF) and hard copy format for 
City review. Five (5) hard copies of will be provided to the City. City review comments will be 
documented using the Record of Comment (ROC) log. City comments, modifications, and 
revisions to the Preliminary Design documents will be incorporated during subsequent 
development of Final Design documents. 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
442



March 14, 2013  Page 11 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 410 - Preliminary Design Document 
 
Prepare and submit for City review a Preliminary Design Document (PDD) to include the 
following elements:  
 

 Process equipment information and data sheets for major pieces of new equipment 
(updated from Task 200). 

 Preliminary equipment and electrical load list for major pieces of new equipment 
(updated from Task 200). 

 Process Flow Diagrams (PFDs) and narrative control strategies for major processes 
(updated from Task 200). 

 HVAC and odor control requirements (updated from Task 200). 

 Three dimensional (3D) renderings of selected Phase 1 processes areas and buildings. 

 Building code classification table. 

 Architectural basis of design and renderings. 

 Project construction and sequencing schedule. 

 Final Geotechnical Report. 

 Updated opinion of Project Cost. 

 Decision log. 

 
Subtask 410 Assumptions:  

None. 
 
Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Drawings 
 
Complete additional site survey as needed and prepare Preliminary Design drawings, including 
site plans, schematics, facility layout and equipment drawings, and major architectural, 
structural, mechanical, HVAC, odor control, electrical, instrumentation and control drawings, 
P&IDs for major processes. Develop a 3D model of selected process areas to assist in staff 
review of these facilities. The expected sheet list for the Preliminary Design Drawings is 
included as Attachment 3. 
 
Subtask 420 Assumptions:  

1. The 30 percent submittal will include approximately 120 to 180 drawings. 

 
Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Specifications 
 
Prepare Preliminary Design Specifications using Consultant’s Master Specifications. Identify 
potential material and equipment requiring procurement outside of the general construction 
contract. The list of specifications expected to be submitted with Preliminary Design is included 
as Attachment 4. 
 
Subtask 430 Assumptions:  

1. The 30 percent submittal will include draft specifications for major equipment and control 
strategies for major systems. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
443



March 14, 2013  Page 12 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 
Subtask 440 – Procurement Documents 
 
The objective of this task is to assist the City in selecting manufacturers for membrane and UV 
process equipment using a competitive bidding process. Preliminary design information 
prepared under Task 400 will be developed to 30 percent level around the selected equipment 
manufacturers based on the specific details of the selected UV equipment manufacturer. 
 
Prepare competitive bid documents for membrane and UV equipment procurement, including: 
preliminary layout drawings for each manufacturer; general ancillary facility requirements; and 
required technical specifications. Coordinate with City staff to include terms, conditions, and 
contract times (submittal dates and delivery dates) into procurement documents. Meet with City 
staff to review draft bid documents, incorporate comments, and issue final bid documents. 
 
Assist the City during the equipment bidding period by answering questions from the UV 
equipment manufacturers and preparing addenda. Attend the pre-bid conference. Assist the 
County in evaluating all bids and in selecting equipment manufacturers. 
 
Subtask 440 Assumptions: 
 

1. Bid documents will be prepared and bids solicited for up to two (2) UV equipment 
manufacturers and up to two (2) membrane equipment manufacturers. 

2. Contracts for low bidders will include assistance with design phase. Contracts for 
production and delivery of process equipment will be assigned to a General Contractor 
during subsequent phases of work. 

3. Consultant standard procurement documents will be used for technical and front-end 
documents. 

4. One (1) addendum will be prepared during the equipment bid period for each 
manufacturer, two (2) total addenda. 

5. The city will cover reproduction costs for bid sets as required. 

 
Subtask 450 – Technical Team Meetings 
 
Technical Team Meetings will be held during preliminary design to collect information from City 
staff, enhance communication with the design team, and to present 30 percent design concepts. 
Plan for and conduct three (3) Technical Team Meetings during the preliminary design process. 
Prepare information necessary to communicate with City staff and obtain input. Document input 
and issue meeting minutes with decisions to City. 
 
Subtask 450 Assumptions: 
 

1. Technical Team Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 

2. Technical Team Meetings will be approximately four (4) hours in duration. 

3. Approximately three (3) members of Consultant design team will attend each meeting, 
including Design Manager and other necessary staff/discipline engineers. 

4. Meeting materials and minutes will be distributed electronically. 

 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
444



March 14, 2013  Page 13 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Task 400 Deliverables 
 
Deliverable  Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(5) Preliminary Design Document 410 Per Schedule 

(5) Preliminary Design Drawing Sets 420 Per Schedule 

(5) Preliminary Design Specifications 430 Per Schedule 

(5) Draft and Final Procurement Documents 440 Per Schedule 

(3) Technical Team Meeting Materials and Notes 450 Per Schedule 

(1) Preliminary Design ROC 410 - 440 Per Schedule 

 
TASK 500 – PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS 
 
The objective of this task is to select the preferred method for delivering the WWTP final design 
and construction. Consultant will provide the following services under Task 500: 
 
Develop and evaluate potential delivery alternatives for the project, including: 1) conventional 
design-bid-build (DBB), 2) design-build (DB); and 3) General Contractor/Construction Manager 
(GC/CM). Prepare a qualitative list of advantages and disadvantages associated with each 
delivery option. The list is anticipated to include factors such as quality, cost, schedule, and risk 
mitigation. 
 
Prepare a brief Project Memorandum (PM) summarizing results of delivery analysis. Review PM 
with City staff and present findings and recommendations to City officials for direction. 
 
Task 500 Assumptions: 
 

1. City will hire third-party advisor(s) to assist in evaluating project delivery options. 

2. Consultant support of City’s application to use alternate delivery will be included in a 
subsequent phase of services, if needed. 

3. Consultant Project Manager and Design Manager will attend one (1) Technical Team 
Meeting to review delivery options with City and City’s third-party advisor(s). 

 
Task 500 Deliverables: 
 

1. Project Delivery Alternatives PM (Draft and Final). 

 
TASK 600 – OUTFALL DESIGN 
 
The objective of this task is to provide preliminary and final design services, and bid-period 
assistance for the City’s new marine outfall into Oak Harbor. The marine outfall will be 
constructed to replace the City’s existing failed Oak Harbor outfall, in a similar location and 
alignment occupied by the existing outfall. 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
445



March 14, 2013  Page 14 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 610 – Preliminary Design Documents 
 
Develop preliminary design documents to a level of detail required to achieve final permit 
approval (Shoreline Permit, JARPA, HPA, and BA) for the new/replacement outfall. Complete 
survey and geotechnical work to support outfall final design. Confirm required mixing is 
achieved for final diffuser design detail. Prepare final design criteria for mixing, wind/wave and 
current data, buoyancy/thrust/anchoring details, and other pertinent information needed for the 
outfall design. Develop 30 percent level drawings showing connection details and plan/profile 
views of the outfall and diffuser. Evaluate construction options and develop an engineer’s 
estimate of probable construction cost. Attend and participate in a Technical Team Meeting to 
review 30 percent design. Document City comments using ROC process and incorporate 
comments into subsequent submittals. 
 
Subtask 610 Assumptions: 
 

1. The 30 percent review meeting will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Design Manager and required engineering staff will attend 30 percent review 
meeting. 

3. 30 percent design submittal will include three (3) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

 
Subtask 620 – Outfall Permitting Support 
 
Coordinate between Consultant team members to secure permits associated with the outfall, 
including Shoreline Permit, JARPA, HPA, and BA. Prepare necessary figures and details to 
support permitting requirements. 
 
Subtask 620 Assumptions: 
 

1. Consultant level of effort includes two (2) meetings with regulatory agencies to review 
information and address questions and/or comments. 

2. Consultant will provide 30 percent design information as required to facilitate final 
permitting. 

 
Subtask 630 – Final Design Documents 
 
Develop final design documents (plans and technical specifications) for bidding and construction 
of the new/replacement outfall. Submit a progress submittal at approximately 60 percent 
completion. Review progress submittal with City staff, document and incorporate comments 
using the ROC process. Update engineer’s opinion of cost at 60 percent. 
 
Complete final design documents (ready to bid) incorporating comments from regulatory 
agencies and City staff. Prepare an engineer’s option of cost at final design. 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
446



March 14, 2013  Page 15 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 630 Assumptions: 
 

1. The 60 percent review meeting will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Design Manager and required engineering staff will attend 60 percent review 
meeting. 

3. 60 percent design submittal will include three (3) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

4. City front-end documents will be used for final design submittal. Consultant will 
coordinate City front-end documents with consultant’s technical specifications. 

5. Final design submittal will include ten (10) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one print ready electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

 
Subtask 640 – Bid Period Services 
 
Attend and participate in pre-bid meeting at City of Oak Harbor facilities. Respond to questions 
and requests for information (RFI) during the bid period. Develop contract addenda as required. 
Review submitted bids upon opening for conformance with contract documents, and provide 
recommendations for award of the contract. 
 
Task 600 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 

(3) 30 Percent Design Documents 610 Per Schedule 

 Information in Support of Permitting 620 As Needed 

(3) 60 Percent Design Documents 630 Per Schedule 

(10) Final Design Documents 630 Per Schedule 

(1) Contract Document Addendum 640 Per Schedule 

(5) RFI Responses 640 Per Schedule 

(1) Written Recommendation for Award 640 Per Schedule 

 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
447



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE 287 days Mon 4/1/13 Tue 5/6/14
2 TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 279 days Mon 4/1/13 Thu 4/24/14
3 Notice-to-Proceed 0 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13
4 Tech Team Meeing - Project Kickoff 1 day Thu 4/4/13 Thu 4/4/13 3FS+3 days
5 Negotiate Final Design 0 days Thu 4/24/14 Thu 4/24/14 40
6 TASK 200 - VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT 88 days Mon 4/1/13 Wed 7/31/13
7 Subtask 210 - Conceptual Design Development 66 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 7/1/13
8 Prepare for CAMP 30 days Mon 4/1/13 Fri 5/10/13 3
9 Tech Team Conduct CAMP 5 days Mon 5/13/13 Fri 5/17/13 8,15

10 Document CAMP 30 days Mon 5/20/13 Fri 6/28/13 9
11 Tech Team Meeting - CAMP Results 1 day Mon 7/1/13 Mon 7/1/13 10
12 Subtask 220 - WWTP Site Visits 13 days Fri 4/12/13 Tue 4/30/13
13 Tech Team Site Visit 1 1 day Fri 4/12/13 Fri 4/12/13 4FS+5 days
14 Tech Team Site Visit 2 1 day Mon 4/22/13 Mon 4/22/13 13FS+5 days
15 Tech Team Site Visit 3 1 day Tue 4/30/13 Tue 4/30/13 14FS+5 days
16 Subtask 230 - VE Support 22 days Tue 7/2/13 Wed 7/31/13
17 Prepare for VE 5 days Tue 7/2/13 Mon 7/8/13 11
18 Tech Team Meeting - VE Prep 1 day Tue 7/9/13 Tue 7/9/13 17
19 VE Workshop 5 days Wed 7/10/13 Tue 7/16/13 18
20 Review Results/Develop Recommendations 10 days Wed 7/17/13 Tue 7/30/13 19
21 Teach Team Meeting - VE Results 1 day Wed 7/31/13 Wed 7/31/13 20
22 TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 287 days Mon 4/1/13 Tue 5/6/14
23 Subtask 310 - Public Process Planning 1 day Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13
24 Tech Team Meeting - Public Process Planning 1 day Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13 3
25 Subtask 320 - Policy Framework 33 days Tue 4/2/13 Thu 5/16/13
26 Tech Team Meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Tue 4/2/13 Tue 4/2/13 24
27 Tech Team Meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Wed 4/24/13 Wed 4/24/13 26FS+15 days
28 Tech Team meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Thu 5/16/13 Thu 5/16/13 27FS+15 days
29 Subtask 330 - Charrette Workshops 36 days Thu 8/1/13 Thu 9/19/13
30 Tech Team Meeting - Charrette Planning 1 day Thu 8/1/13 Thu 8/1/13 28,21
31 Prepare for Charrette 20 days Fri 8/2/13 Thu 8/29/13 30
32 Charrette Day 1 1 day Mon 9/2/13 Mon 9/2/13 31FS+1 day
33 Charrette Day 2 1 day Tue 9/3/13 Tue 9/3/13 32
34 Develop Charrette Alternatives 11 days Wed 9/4/13 Wed 9/18/13 33
35 Tech Team Meeting - Charrette Results 1 day Thu 9/19/13 Thu 9/19/13 34
36 Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 230 days Thu 6/6/13 Thu 4/24/14
37 P1 - Input on Siting Policy 0 days Thu 6/6/13 Thu 6/6/13 48FS+5 days
38 P2 - Input on Final Location 0 days Thu 10/3/13 Thu 10/3/13 51FS+5 days
39 P3 - Input on Design Features 0 days Thu 2/20/14 Thu 2/20/14 52FS+87 days
40 P4 - Final Plan, Next Steps 0 days Thu 4/24/14 Thu 4/24/14 54FS+5 days,3
41 Subtask 350 - Working Group Meetings 124 days Fri 9/6/13 Wed 2/26/14

42 WG1 - Working Group 1 1 day Fri 9/6/13 Fri 9/6/13 31FS+5 days
43 WG2 - Working Group 2 1 day Tue 11/5/13 Tue 11/5/13 58FS+17 days
44 WG3 - Working Group 3 1 day Tue 1/14/14 Tue 1/14/14 65FS+25 days
45 WG4 - Working Group 4 1 day Wed 2/26/14 Wed 2/26/14 62FS-20 days
46 Subtask 360 - Council/Committee Meetings 268 days Thu 4/25/13 Tue 5/6/14
47 C1 - Committee Briefing (Policy Questions, Navy Status) 0 days Thu 4/25/13 Thu 4/25/13 26FS+17 days
48 C2 - Committee Briefing (Policy Questions, Navy Status) 0 days Thu 5/30/13 Thu 5/30/13 28FS+10 days
49 C3 - Council Meeting 1 (Siting Policy Decisions, Navy Decision) 0 days Tue 7/16/13 Tue 7/16/13 48FS+33 days
50 C4 - Committee Briefing (VE Results) 0 days Thu 8/22/13 Thu 8/22/13 21FS+16 days
51 C5 - Committee Briefing (Charrette Results) 0 days Thu 9/26/13 Thu 9/26/13 35FS+5 days
52 C6 - Council Meeting 2 (VE Results, Final WWTP Location) 0 days Tue 10/22/13 Tue 10/22/13 38FS+13 days
53 C7 - Committee Briefing - Progress Update 0 days Thu 2/6/14 Thu 2/6/14 39FS-11 days
54 C8 - Committee Briefing (Delivery Options) 0 days Thu 4/17/14 Thu 4/17/14 70FS+5 days
55 C9 - Council Meeting 3 (Select Project Delivery) 0 days Tue 5/6/14 Tue 5/6/14 54FS+13 days
56 TASK 400 - PRELIMINARY DESIGN 159 days Fri 8/23/13 Wed 4/2/14
57 Subtask 410 - Procurement Documents 80 days Fri 8/23/13 Thu 12/12/13
58 Develop Procurement Documents 35 days Fri 8/23/13 Thu 10/10/13 50,49
59 Procure/Award Equipment 45 days Fri 10/11/13 Thu 12/12/13 58
60 Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Document 110 days Wed 10/23/13 Tue 3/25/14
61 Develop Preliminary Design 110 days Wed 10/23/13 Tue 3/25/14 52
62 Submit Preliminary Design 0 days Tue 3/25/14 Tue 3/25/14 61
63 Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Meetings 129 days Fri 10/4/13 Wed 4/2/14
64 Tech Team Meeting - Info Gathering 1 day Fri 10/4/13 Fri 10/4/13 58SS+30 days
65 Tech Team Meeting - Info Gathering 1 day Mon 12/9/13 Mon 12/9/13 64FS+45 days
66 Tech Team Meeting - Preliminary Design Review 1 day Wed 4/2/14 Wed 4/2/14 62FS+5 days
67 TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY OPTIONS 32 days Wed 2/26/14 Thu 4/10/14
68 Tech Team Meeting - Delivery Options 1 day Wed 2/26/14 Wed 2/26/14 62FS-20 days
69 Develop Delivery Alternatives Analysis 25 days Thu 2/27/14 Wed 4/2/14 68
70 Tech Team Meeting - Delivery Recommendations 1 day Thu 4/10/14 Thu 4/10/14 69FS+5 days

4/1

4/24

6/6

10/3

2/20

4/24

4/25

5/30

7/16

8/22

9/26

10/22

2/6

4/17

5/6

3/25

3/24 3/31 4/7 4/14 4/21 4/28 5/5 5/12 5/19 5/26 6/2 6/9 6/16 6/23 6/30 7/7 7/14 7/21 7/28 8/4 8/11 8/18 8/25 9/1 9/8 9/15 9/22 9/29 10/6 0/1 0/2 0/2 11/3 1/1 1/1 1/2 12/1 12/8 2/1 2/2 2/2 1/5 1/12 1/19 1/26 2/2 2/9 2/16 2/23 3/2 3/9 3/16 3/23 3/30 4/6 4/13 4/20 4/27 5/4 5/11 5/1
April May June July August September October November December January February March April May

Task Split Progress Milestone Summary Project Summary External Tasks External Milestone Deadline

ATTACHMENT 1 - PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 1

Project: DRAFT Predesign Schedule_1
Date: Mon 3/4/13

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
448



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

ATTACHMENT 2 
MAJOR PROJECT ELEMENTS LIST 

 
The Scope of Services for the Oak Harbor WWTP Preliminary Design Project will include 30 
percent design documents that are sufficient to develop a full set of contract plans and 
specifications for the recommended Phase 1 improvements without substantial changes as 
required by the State of Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-240-060. The Scope of 
Services for Preliminary Design Documents is based on the major elements identified in the 
following Project Elements List: 
 
 

Facility Area 
 

Name 

0X General  

1X Yard Site Systems 

2X Preliminary Treatment 

3X Aeration/Equalization Basin 

4X Membrane System  

5X UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 

6X Solids Handling 

7X Ancillary Systems 

 Gallery (mechanical equipment) 

 Chemical System 

 Odor Control  

 Standby Generator  

8X Non-Process Facilities 

 Administration Building 

 Maintenance Building 

 Electrical Building 

 Landscaping  

 Public Areas 

 

Facility Area 0X – General  
General information for the overall project such vicinity and location maps, design 
data/schematics, existing site/utilities, and explanation for symbols and abbreviations. Area 
includes: 

1. Design Criteria. 

2. Process Flow Diagrams. 

3. Hydraulic Profile. 

4. Notes, Schedules, and Abbreviations. 

5. Building Analysis. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
449



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

Facility Area 1X – Yard Site Systems 
Plans depicting new structure footprints, locations, and orientation onsite/offsite. 

1. Existing Facility Demolition. 

2. Site Preparation. 

3. Anticipated ground improvements such as stone columns. 

4. Off-site Yard Utilities: 

a. Influent Diversion Structure from collection system and piping to site. 

b. Piping to effluent outfall connection. 

5. Electrical site service. 

6. Paving and Grading. 

7. On site Stormwater System.  

8. Routing of general process piping. 

9. Routing of Small Diameter Piping Utilities (during final design):  

a. Potable Water. 

b. Non-Potable Water (potable with air gap). 

c. Plant Water (low pressure). 

d. Plant Water (high pressure). 

e. Natural Gas. 

f. Service/Instrument Air. 

g. Plant Building/Process Drains. 

h. Fire Flow Water. 

10. Routing of Other Utilities (during final design): 

a. Electrical distribution system. 

b. Communication Devices. 

c. Site Lighting. 

d. Site Security. 

e. Telephone/Fiber Optic System. 

Facility Area 2X – Preliminary Treatment 
Plans depicting specific preliminary treatment components: 

1. First-stage coarse screening. 

2. Screenings washer/compactor. 

3. Influent pump station. 

4. Influent flow measurement and sampling. 

5. Grit removal system and grit handling. 

6. Flow splitting to flow equalization basin. 

7. Second-stage fine screening. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
450



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

Facility Area 3X – Aeration/Equalization Basins 
Plans depicting specific secondary components: 

1. Flow distribution structure. 

2. 2-below grade aeration basins (4 stages) in MLE configuration (2 anoxic zones, 2 aerobic 
zones). 

3. 1-below grade flow equalization basin with provisions to convert to aeration basin in the 
future. 

4. Associated mechanical equipment. 

5. Fine bubble diffusers in each aerobic zone. 

6. Flow equalization pump system. 

7. Scum handling (spray and removal), flushing systems, etc. 

Facility Area 4X – Membrane System 
Initial design will be capable of accommodating footprint needs of proven manufacturers to 
assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on specific requirements of selected 
manufacturer. General components include: 

1. 5 –MBR trains/tanks. 

2. Membrane cassettes and ancillary instrumentation. 

3. Provisions for 1 future MBR train. 

Facility Area 5X – UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 
Initial design for UV Disinfection and effluent system will be capable of accommodating footprint 
needs of proven manufacturers to assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on 
specific requirements of selected manufacturer. General components include: 

1. 3-trains of ultraviolet (UV) disinfection reactor units, cleaning system, power distribution, 
and control. 

2. Flow measurement per train. 

3. Single Effluent equalization/storage tank. 

Facility Area 6X – Solids Handling 
Solids handling will produce Class B solids for components include: 

1. Aerated WAS storage tank. 

2. Dewatering systems and equipment. 

3. Lime stabilization facilities. 

4. Footprint/electrical provisions for a future thermal drying system. 

5. Truck loadout facilities. 

Facility Area 7X – Ancillary Systems 
Ancillary facility areas support the main process units. Specific components include: 

1. Mechanical Gallery below-grade. 

a. Aeration basin blowers. 

b. Membrane blowers. 

c. Membrane feed pumps (mixed liquor pump station). 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
451



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

d. Membrane permeate pumps and flow measurement per train. 

e. Plant water pump system. 

2. Chemical Systems: 

a. Sodium hydroxide (NaOH) feed for alkalinity content. 

b. Sodium hypochlorite (NaOCl) feed for membrane cleaning and potentially to support 
odor control and/or introduction of chlorine residual. 

c. Citric acid or phosphoric acid feed for membrane cleaning and potentially UV cleaning 

d. Lime feed for solids stabilization. 

3. Odor Control System – odor scrubbing technology to treat foul air streams. Areas scrubbed 
are anticipated to include: 

a. Headworks. 

b. Aeration Basins. 

c. Pump wetwells/open channels. 

d. Solids handling area (to extent necessary) 

4. Standby Generator – a single diesel unit capable of providing continuous operation for the 
entire facility in the event of a loss of utility power. The unit will be housed in the mechanical 
building and sound dampening devices will be employed to decrease the noise level while 
in operation.  

Facility Area 8X – Non-Process Buildings 
Process support buildings and areas highly visible/accessed by the public: 

1. Administration Building meeting ADA standards to support plant control, meeting/training, 
break areas, restroom/lockers, building mechanical systems, office(s), and laboratory. 

2. Maintenance Building for plant maintenance activities such as disassembling pumps, 
working on instrumentation, and in-house fabrication. The building will include a parking 
stall /loading dock. 

3. Electrical Building for housing electrical equipment such as main switch gear, motor control 
centers, variable frequency drives, programmable logic controllers, and other control 
panels. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
452



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST
178 dwgs anticipated at 30% Design

DRAWING
GENERAL

1 00 G 01 COVER SHEET
2 00 G 02 DRAWING INDEX I
3 00 G 03 DRAWING INDEX II
4 00 G 04 DESIGN CRITERIA
5 00 G 05 PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM
6 00 G 06 HYDRAULIC PROFILE
7 00 G 07 OVERALL SITE PLAN
8 00 G 08 ABBREVIATIONS
9 00 G 09 PIPING SYMBOLS AND GENERAL MECHANICAL NOTES

10 00 G 10 HVAC SYMBOLS AND NOTES
11 00 G 11 GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES
12 00 G 12 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 1
13 00 G 13 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 2
14 00 G 14 ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS AND CODE ANALYSIS
15 00 G 15 ARCHITECTURAL SCHEDULES
16 00 G 16 UTILITY SERVICE CONNECTIONS (WATER, ELECTRICAL, GAS)
17 00 G 17 STAGING PLAN

CIVIL
18 10 C 01 KEY MAP AND GENERAL CIVIL NOTES
19 11 C 02 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN AND PROFILE
20 11 C 03 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PLAN 1
21 11 C 04 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PLAN 2
22 11 C 05 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PROFILE
23 11 C 06 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PLAN 1
24 11 C 07 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PLAN 2
25 11 C 08 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PROFILE
26 12 C 01 SITE DEMOLITION PLAN AND TEMP UTILITY RELOCATION
27 12 C 02 UTILITY RELOCATION DETAILS
28 13 C 03 SITE PAVING AND GRADING 1
29 13 C 04 SITE PAVING AND GRADING 2
30 13 C 05 PLANT ENTRANCE ROAD PLAN AND PROFILE
31 13 C 06 PLANT ENTRANCE ROAD PLAN AND PROFILE
32 13 C 07 TRUCK LOADOUT AREAS
33 14 C 01 YARD PIPING 1
34 14 C 02 YARD PIPING 2
35 14 C 03 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
36 14 C 04 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
37 14 C 05 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
38 14 C 06 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
39 15 C 01 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
40 15 C 02 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS
41 15 C 03 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS

STRUCTURAL
42 11 S 01 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN, AND SECTION
43 20 S 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
44 20 S 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
45 20 S 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
46 20 S 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
47 20 S 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
48 20 S 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
49 20 S 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
50 20 S 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
51 20 S 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
52 20 S 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
53 20 S 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
54 20 S 12 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS

DWG NO.
SHEET 

NO

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 1 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

453



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
55 30 S 01 AERATION BASIN OVERVIEW PLAN
56 30 S 02 AERATION BASIN - SPLITTER BOX PLANS AND SECTIONS
57 30 S 03 AERATION BASIN 1 - BOTTOM PLAN
58 30 S 04 AERATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
59 30 S 05 AERATION BASIN 2 - BOTTOM PLAN
60 30 S 06 AERATION BASIN 2 - TOP PLAN
61 30 S 07 EQUALIZATION BASIN - BOTTOM PLAN
62 30 S 08 EQUALIZATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
63 30 S 09 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
64 30 S 10 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
65 31 S 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
66 32 S 12 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
67 30 S 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
68 30 S 12 AERATION BASIN - ML WETWELL PLANS AND SECTIONS
69 40 S 01 MEMBRANE TANKS - BOTTOM PLAN
70 40 S 02 MEMBRANE TANKS - TOP PLAN
71 40 S 03 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
72 40 S 04 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
73 40 S 05 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
74 40 S 06 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
75 40 S 07 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
76 40 S 08 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
77 50 S 01 UV DISINFECTION - PLANS
78 50 S 02 UV DISINFECTION - SECTIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND DETAILS
79 47 S 03 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
80 49 S 04 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
81 50 S 05 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
82 51 S 01 EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK - PLAN AND SECTIONS
83 60 S 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
84 60 S 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - TOP PLAN
85 60 S 03 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
86 60 S 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
87 60 S 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
88 60 S 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
89 70 S 01 GALLERY - LOWER PLAN
90 70 S 02 GALLERY - TOP PLAN
91 70 S 03 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
92 70 S 04 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
93 70 S 05 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
94 70 S 06 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
95 70 S 07 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
96 71 S 01 CHEMICAL FACILITY - ROOF AND LOWER PLANS
97 71 S 02 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND DETAILS
98 71 S 03 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS
99 72 S 04 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS

100 72 S 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - PLANS
101 72 S 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS
102 72 S 03 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS
103 72 S 04 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS
104 73 S 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
105 73 S 02 MECHANICAL BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
106 73 S 03 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
107 73 S 04 MECHANICAL BUILDING - DETAILS
108 80 S 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
109 80 S 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
110 80 S 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
111 80 S 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
112 80 S 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
113 80 S 06 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
114 80 S 07 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
115 80 S 08 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
116 81 S 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 2 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

454



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
117 81 S 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
118 81 S 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
119 81 S 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
120 81 S 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
121 81 S 06 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
122 81 S 07 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
123 82 S 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
124 82 S 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
125 82 S 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
126 82 S 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
127 82 S 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
128 82 S 06 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
129 82 S 07 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

MECHANICAL
130 11 M 01 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN, AND SECTION
131 20 M 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
132 20 M 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
133 20 M 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
134 20 M 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
135 20 M 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - HVAC BOTTOM PLAN
136 20 M 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - HVAC TOP PLAN
137 21 M 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
138 21 M 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
139 21 M 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
140 30 M 01 AERATION BASIN OVERVIEW PLAN
141 30 M 02 AERATION BASIN - SPLITTER BOX PLANS AND SECTIONS
142 30 M 03 AERATION BASIN 1 - BOTTOM PLAN
143 30 M 04 AERATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
144 30 M 05 AERATION BASIN 2 - BOTTOM PLAN
145 30 M 06 AERATION BASIN 2 - TOP PLAN
146 30 M 07 EQUALIZATION BASIN - BOTTOM PLAN
147 30 M 08 EQUALIZATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
148 30 M 09 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
149 30 M 10 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
150 30 M 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
151 30 M 12 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
152 30 M 12 AERATION BASIN - ML WETWELL PLANS AND SECTIONS
153 40 M 01 MEMBRANE TANKS - BOTTOM PLAN
154 40 M 02 MEMBRANE TANKS - TOP PLAN
155 40 M 03 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
156 40 M 04 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
157 40 M 05 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
158 40 M 06 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
159 50 M 01 UV DISINFECTION - PLAN
160 50 M 02 UV DISINFECTION - SECTIONS, AND DETAILS
161 50 M 03 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
162 51 M 01 EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK - PLAN AND SECTIONS
163 60 M 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
164 60 M 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - TOP PLAN
165 61 M 03 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - HVAC BOTTOM PLAN
166 62 M 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - HVAC TOP PLAN
167 60 M 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
168 60 M 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
169 70 M 01 GALLERY - OVERVIEW AND HVAC PLAN
170 70 M 02 GALLERY - AERATION BASIN BLOWER PLANS AND SECTIONS
171 70 M 03 GALLERY - MEMBRANE BLOWER PLANS AND SECTIONS
172 70 M 04 GALLERY - MEMBRANE FEED PUMPS AND SECTIONS
173 70 M 05 GALLERY - MEMBRANE PERMEATE PUMPS AND SECTIONS
174 70 M 06 GALLERY - PLANT WATER SYSTEM AND SECTIONS
175 70 M 07 GALLERY -PLANT/INSTRUMENT AIR SYSTEM (IF NECESSARY)
176 70 M 08 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 3 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

455



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
177 70 M 09 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
178 70 M 10 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
179 71 M 01 CHEMICAL FACILITY - PLAN
180 71 M 02 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
181 71 M 03 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS
182 72 M 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - PLAN
183 72 M 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
184 73 M 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - STANDBY GENERATOR PLAN
185 73 M 03 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
186 80 M 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
187 80 M 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
188 80 M 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
189 80 M 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
190 80 M 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
191 81 M 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
192 81 M 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
193 81 M 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
194 81 M 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
195 81 M 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
196 82 M 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
197 82 M 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
198 82 M 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
199 82 M 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
200 82 M 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

ARCHITECTURAL

201 00 A 01 PROJECT SUMMARY GENERAL NOTES
202 00 A 02 ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS AND SCHEDULES
203 20 A 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS
204 40 A 01 MBR BUILDING - SECTIONS
205 60 A 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS
206 71 A 01 CHEMICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS
207 72 A 01 ODOR CONTROL BUILDING - SECTIONS
208 73 A 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS
209 80 A 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
210 80 A 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
211 80 A 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
212 80 A 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
213 80 A 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
214 80 A 06 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
215 80 A 07 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
216 80 A 08 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
217 81 A 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
218 81 A 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
219 81 A 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
220 81 A 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
221 81 A 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
222 81 A 06 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
223 81 A 07 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
224 81 A 08 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
225 82 A 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
226 82 A 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
227 82 A 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
228 82 A 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
229 82 A 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
230 82 A 06 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
231 82 A 07 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
232 82 A 08 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

LANDSCAPING

233 83 L 01 PLANTING NOTES AND LEGEND

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 4 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

456



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
234 83 L 02 PLANTING PLAN I
235 83 L 03 PLANTING PLAN II
236 83 L 04 IRRIGATION NOTES AND LEGEND
237 83 L 05 IRRIGATION PLAN
238 83 L 06 PUBLIC SITE ACCESS NOTES AND LEGEND
239 83 L 07 SITE ACCESS PLAN
240 83 L 08 SITE ACCESS SECTIONS
241 83 L 09 SITE ACCESS DETAILS

ELECTRICAL
242 00 GE 01 ELECTRICAL LEGENDS & ABBREVIATIONS
243 00 GE 02 ANSI DEVICE FUNCTION NUMBERS
244 00 GE 03 CONTROL SCHEMATIC LEGENDS
245 E SC 01 SCHEDULES - DISCONNECT, PANELBOARD, LUMINAIRE
246 E SC 02 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - AERATION BASIN 1 
247 E SC 03 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - AERATION BASIN 2
248 E SC 04 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - EQ BASIN
249 E SC 05 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MEMBRANE TANKS
250 E SC 06 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MEMBRANE TANKS
251 E SC 07 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - UV DISINFECTION
252 E SC 08 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
253 E SC 09 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
254 E SC 10 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - GALLERY
255 E SC 11 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - CHEMICAL FACILITY
256 E SC 12 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
257 E SC 13 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MECHANICAL BUILDING
258 E SC 14 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MECHANICAL BUILDING
259 E SC 15 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
260 E SC 16 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MAINTENANCE BUILDING
261 E SC 17 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ELECTRICAL BUILDING
262 E SC 18 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ELECTRICAL BUILDING
263 E OL 01 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - OVERALL POWER SYSTEM
264 E OL 02 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - SWGR-MAIN 
265 E OL 03 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-HEADWORKS
266 E OL 04 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-HEADWORKS
267 E OL 05 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-AERATION BASINS
268 E OL 06 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MEMBRANE
269 E OL 07 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
270 E OL 08 ONE LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-SOLIDS HANDLING 
271 E OL 09 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-GALLERY
272 E OL 10 ONE LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-CHEMICAL FACILITY
273 E OL 11 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
274 E OL 12 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MECHANICAL BUILDING
275 E OL 13 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
276 E OL 14 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MAINTENANCE BUILDING
277 E OL 15 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ELECTGRICAL BUILDING
278 E OL 16 ELEVATION - MCC-HEADWORKS
279 E OL 17 ELEVATION - MCC-HEADWORKS
280 E OL 18 ELEVATION - MCC-AERATION BASINS
281 E OL 19 ELEVATION - MCC-MEMBRANE
282 E OL 20 ELEVATION - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
283 E OL 21 ELEVATION - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
284 E OL 22 ELEVATION - MCC-SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
285 E OL 23 ELEVATION - MCC-GALLERY
286 E OL 24 ELEVATION - MCC-CHEMICAL FACILITY
287 E OL 25 ELEVATION - MCC-ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
288 E OL 26 ELEVATION - MCC-MECHANICAL BUILDING
289 E OL 27 ELEVATION - MCC-ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
290 E OL 28 ELEVATION - MCC-MAINTENANCE BUILDING
291 E OL 29 ELEVATION - MCC-ELECTRICAL BUILDING
292 14 SE 01 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN-1
293 14 SE 02 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN -2

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 5 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

457



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
294 14 SE 03 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
295 14 SE 04 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
296 14 SE 05 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
297 20 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - HEADWORKS BOTTOM PLAN - POWER
298 20 E 02 HEADWORKS BOTTOM PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
299 20 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - HEADWORKS TOP PLAN - POWER
300 20 E 04 HEADWORKS TOP PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
301 30 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN 1 PLAN - POWER
302 30 E 02 AERATION BASIN 1 PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
303 30 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN 2 PLAN - POWER
304 30 E 04 AERATION BASIN 2 PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
305 30 E 05 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - EQUALIZATION BASIN PLAN - POWER
306 30 E 06  EQUALIZATION BASIN PLAN - LIGHITNG & GROUNDING
307 30 E 07 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN WETWELL PLAN - POWER
308 30 E 08 AERATION BASIN WETWELL PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
309 40 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MEMBRANE TANKS PLAN - POWER
310 40 E 02 MEMBRANE TANKS PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
311 50 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - UV DISINFECTION PLAN - POWER
312 50 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - UV DISINFECTION PLAN - POWER
313 50 E 03 UV DISINFECTION PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
314 50 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK PLAN - POWER, LIGHITNG & GROUNDING

315 60 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING BOTTOM PLAN - POWER

316 60 E 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING BOTTOM PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

317 60 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING TOP PLAN - POWER

318 60 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING TOP PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

319 70 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY LOWER PLAN - POWER

320 70 E 02  GALLERY LOWER PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING

321 70 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY TOP PLAN - POWER

322 70 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY TOP PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

323 71 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - CHEMICAL FACILITY PLAN - POWER

324 71 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - CHEMICAL FACILITY PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

325 72 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY PLAN - POWER

326 72 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING 

327 73 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MECHANICAL BUILDING PLAN - POWER

328 73 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MECHANICAL BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

329 80 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING PLAN - POWER

330 80 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING PLAN LIGHTING & GROUNDING

331 81 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MAINTENANCE BUILDING PLAN - POWER

332 81 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MAINTENANCE BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

333 82 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ELECTRICAL BUILDING PLAN - POWER

334 82 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ELECTRICAL BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

335 EC S 01 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 1
336 EC S 02 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 2
337 EC S 03 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 3
338 EC S 04 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 4
339 EC S 05 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 5
340 EC S 06 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 6
341 EC S 07 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 7
342 EC S 08 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 8
343 EC S 09 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 9
344 EC S 10 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 10
345 EC S 11 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 11
346 EC S 12 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 12
347 EC S 13 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 13
348 EC S 14 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 14
349 EC S 15 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 15

INSTRUMENTATION

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 6 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

458



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
350 00 GN 01 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS I
351 00 GN 02 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS II
352 00 GN 03 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS III
353 00 GN 04 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS IV
354 00 GN 05 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS V
355 00 GN 06 CONTROL SYSTEM BLOCK DIAGRAM
356 11 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DIVERSION STRUCTURE
357 20 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
358 20 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
359 20 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
360 20 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
361 20 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
362 20 N 06 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
363 20 N 07 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
364 20 N 08 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
365 20 N 09 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
366 20 N 10 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DIVERSION STRUCTURE
367 20 N 11 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - FINE SCREENINGS
368 20 N 12 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - FINE SCREENINGS
369 30 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 1
370 30 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 2
371 30 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 3 (FUTURE)/EQUALIZATION BASIN
372 30 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN WETWELL
373 40 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 1
374 40 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 2
375 40 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 3
376 40 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 4
377 40 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 5
378 40 N 06 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE BLOWERS
379 40 N 07 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE BLOWERS
380 40 N 08 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE PERMEATE PUMPS
381 50 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION - INFLUENT CHANNEL
382 50 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 1
383 50 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 2
384 50 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 3
385 50 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - EFFLUENT EQUALIZATION AND STORAGE TANK
386 60 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DEWATERING
387 60 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DEWATERING
388 60 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - SOLIDS HANDLING 1
389 60 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - SOLIDS HANDLING 2
390 71 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 1
391 71 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 2
392 71 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 3
393 71 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 4
394 72 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY 1
395 72 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY 2
396 73 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - STANDBY GENERATOR
397 74 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MISCELLANEOUS HVAC

TYPICAL DETAILS
398 AT 01 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
399 AT 02 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
400 AT 03 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
401 AT 04 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
402 AT 05 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
403 AT 06 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
404 AT 07 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
405 CT 01 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
406 CT 02 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
407 DT 01 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
408 DT 02 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
409 ET 01 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 7 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

459



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
410 ET 02 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG
411 ET 03 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL LIGHTING - EL
412 ET 04 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
413 ET 05 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
414 ET 06 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
415 ET 07 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
416 ET 08 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
417 ET 09 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL NAMEPLATES - EN
418 ET 10 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL OPERATORS - EO
419 HT 01 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS
420 HT 02 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS
421 NT 01 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
422 NT 02 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
423 NT 03 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
424 NT 04 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
425 NT 05 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
426 NT 06 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
427 NT 07 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
428 MT 01 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
429 MT 02 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
430 MT 03 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
431 PT 02 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
432 PT 03 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
433 PT 04 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
434 PT 05 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
435 PT 06 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
436 PT 07 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
437 PT 08 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
438 PT 09 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
439 PT 10 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
440 ST 02 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
441 ST 03 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
442 ST 02 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
443 ST 03 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
444 ST 04 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
445 ST 05 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
446 ST 06 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
447 ST 07 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 8 of 8
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

460



March 2013 TOC-1 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

ATTACHMENT 4 

 
SPECIFICATION SAMPLE LIST 

(Procurement Packages not identified separately) 
 

OAK HARBOR WWTP 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
VOLUME 1 

DIVISION 0 - BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT FORMS 
AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT 

 
VOLUME 2 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
Section No. Title 
01110 Summary of Work 
01116 Project Manual Language 
01140 Work Restrictions 
01201 Payment Procedures 
01292 Schedule of Values 
01294 Applications for Payment 
01312 Project Meetings 
01324 Progress Schedules and Reports 
01329 Safety Plan 
01330 Submittal Procedures
01340 Photographic and Videographic Documentation 
01350 Special Procedures 
01354 Hazardous Material Procedures 
01355A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Construction Activities-Best Management 

Practices 
01410 Regulatory Requirements
01424 Abbreviations 
01428 Identification Systems 
01450 Quality Control and Quality Assurance
01455 Special Tests and Inspections 
01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls
01600 Product Requirements 
01610 Project Design Criteria
01612 Seismic Design Criteria
01614 Wind Design Criteria 
01722 Field Engineering 
01732 Cutting and Patching 
01734 Work Within Public Right of Way
01756 Testing. Training, and Facility Start-Up 
01770 Closeout Procedures
01782 Operation and Maintenance Data
01790 Spare Parts and Maintenance 
01800 Post Final Inspection 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
461



 

March 2013 TOC-2 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

DIVISION 2 - SITE WORK 
Section No. Title 
02050 Basic Site Materials and Methods 
02084 Utility Structures 
02200 Site Preparation 
02222 Building Demolition 
02240 Dewatering 
02260 Excavation Support and Protection 
02300 Earthwork 
02312 Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM) 
02318 Trenching 
02370 Riprap 
02580 Manholes 
02622 Filter Fabric for Drains and Underdrains
02738 Decomposed Granite 
02742A Asphaltic Concrete Paving
02760 Sewer Line Cleaning 
02761 Closed Circuit Television Inspection of Sewer Lines
02772 Concrete Curbs, Gutters, and Sidewalks 
02810 Irrigation System 
02820 Fence, Plant Entrance Gates, and Motorized Gate Operators 
02821 Chain Link Fences and Gates 
02845 Guardrails 
02900 Landscaping 
02952 Pavement Restoration and Rehabilitation

DIVISION 3 - CONCRETE 
Section No. Title 
03055 Epoxy Bonding Reinforcing Bars and All Thread Rods in Concrete 
03071 Epoxies 
03072 Epoxy Resin/Portland Cement Bonding Agent 
03102 Concrete Formwork 
03150 Concrete Accessories 
03154 Hydrophilic Rubber Waterstop 
03155 Thermoplastic Elastomeric Rubber Waterstops 
03200 Concrete Reinforcement 
03212 Reinforcing Bar Couplers 
03300 Cast-in-Place Concrete 
03302 Mass Concrete 
03366 Tooled Concrete Finishes 
03491 Glass Fiber Reinforced Concrete 
03565 Basin Bottom Grout 
03600 Grouts 
03931 Epoxy Injection System 
03936 Water Leakage Test for Concrete Structures 

DIVISION 4 - MASONRY 
Section No. Title 
04090 Masonry Accessories 
04100 Mortar and Masonry Grout 
04220 Concrete Masonry Units 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
462



 

March 2013 TOC-3 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

DIVISION 5 - METALS 
Section No. Title 
05120 Structural Steel 
05122 Galvanized Steel For Influent Screening Mezzanine 
05140 Structural Aluminum 
05310 Steel Deck 
05410 Structural Metal Stud Framing 
05500 Metal Fabrications 

DIVISION 6 - WOOD AND PLASTICS 
Section No. Title 
06072 Preservative Pressure Treated Wood 
06100 Rough Carpentry 
06200 Finish Carpentry 
06400 Architectural Woodwork 
06608 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic 
06611 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Fabrications 
06620 Plastic Liner (Polyvinyl Chloride) 
06650 Solid Polymer Fabrications 
06651 Fiberglass Reinforced Polyester Baffles and Appurtenances 

DIVISION 7 - THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION 
Section No. Title 
07110 Dampproofing 
07130 Sheet Waterproofing 
07190 Water Repellents 
07212 Wall Insulation System 
07214 Batt Insulation 
07220 Roof and Deck Insulation 
07240 Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems 
07321 Clay Roofing Tiles 
07322 Concrete Roofing Tiles 
07416 Metal Roof and Soffit Panels 
07530 Single Ply Membrane Roofing 
07600 Flashing and Sheet Metal 
07700 Roof Specialties and Accessories 
07722 Roof Hatches 
07840 Firestopping 
07900 Joint Sealers 

DIVISION 8 - DOORS AND WINDOWS 
Section No. Title 
08110 Steel Doors and Frames 
08212 Flush Wood Doors 
08255 FRP Flush Doors 
08320 Floor Access Doors 
08330 Ceiling Access Doors 
08362 Sectional Overhead Doors 
08412 Aluminum Entrances and Storefronts 
08710 Door Hardware 
08800 Glazing 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
463



 

March 2013 TOC-4 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

08810 Fire Rated Glazing and Framing Systems 
08953 Translucent Skylight System 

DIVISION 9 - FINISHES 
Section No. Title 
09110 Non-Load Bearing Wall Framing 
09121 Gypsum Board Ceiling Suspension Systems 
09131 Lay-In Ceiling Suspension System 
09250 Gypsum Board 
09251 Cement Backer Board 
09300 Tile Crack Isolation/Joint Bridging 
09310 Ceramic Tile 
09511 Acoustical Ceiling Panels 
09650 Resilient Flooring 
09714 Metal Faced Acoustical Panels 
09881 Epoxy Lining System 
09910 Paints 
09920 Graffiti Resistant Coating 
09960 Coatings 

DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES 
Section No. Title 
10400 Identification Devices 
10520 Fire Protection Specialties 
10810 Toilet Accessories 

DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT 
Section No. Title 
11242 Chemical Metering Pumps 
11254 Lime Slaking System 
11287 Ultraviolet Disinfection System 
11292A Flap Gates 
11294B Stainless Steel Sluice Gates 
11295 Stainless Steel Weir Gates 
11312D Vertical Turbine Pumps 
11312G Submersible Pumps 
11312J Submersible Sump Pumps 
11312N Non-Metallic Sump Pumps 
11312R Rotary Lobe Positive Displacement Pump 
11317 Submersible Mixers-High-Speed 
11324 Vortex Grit Basin 
11331 Bar Screens 
11332 Fine Screens 
11333 Screenings Washer/Compactor System 
11362 Dewatering Press 
11372A Air Compressors 
11376 Turbo Blowers 
11378A Membrane Disk Fine Bubble Diffused Aeration System 
11378B Coarse Bubble Diffused Aeration System 
11379 Aeration Blower Intake Air Filters 
11393 Odor Control Systems 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
464



 

March 2013 TOC-5 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

11452 Residential Appliances 
11500 Membrane Equipment System 
11510 Safety Equipment 
11610 Fixed Laboratory Equipment 
11620 Laboratory Fume Hoods 
11635 Automatic Samplers 
11640 Laboratory Ultrapure Water 

DIVISION 12 - FURNISHINGS 
Section No. Title 
12348 Laboratory Work Surfaces and Sinks 
12349 Laboratory Service Fittings 
12355 Metal Laboratory Casework 
12494 Manual Roller Window Shades 

DIVISION 13 - SPECIAL CONSTRUCTIONS 
Section No. Title 
13206A Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Aboveground Storage Tanks 
13238A Aluminum Covers 
13329 Biofilter System 
13446 Valve and Gate Operators 
13447 Motorized Operators 
13447B Quarter and Multi Turn Motorized Operators 
13870 Clean Agent Fire Suppression System 

DIVISION 14 - CONVEYING SYSTEMS 
Section No. Title 
14624 Monorail System 
14633 Top Running Double Girder Bridge Crane 
14650 Jib Cranes 

DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL 
Section No. Title 
15050 Basic Mechanical Materials and Methods 
15052 Basic Piping Materials and Methods 
15057 Fusion Bonded Epoxy Lining 
15061 Pipe Supports 
15062 Preformed Channel Pipe Support System 
15063 Non-Metallic Pipe Support System 
15075 Mechanical Identification 
15082 Piping Insulation 
15084 Ductwork Insulation 
15110 Valves 
15111 Ball Valves 
15112 Butterfly Valves 
15114 Check Valves 
15115 Gate, Globe, and Angle Valves 
15116 Plug Valves 
15117 Specialty Valves 
15118 Pressure Reducing and Pressure Relief Valves 
15119 Air and Vacuum Relief Valves 
15120 Piping Specialties 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
465



 

March 2013 TOC-6 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

15121 Pipe Couplings 
15125 Strainers and Filters 
15142 Disinfection of Domestic Water Lines 
15251 Ductile Iron AWWA C151 Pipe 
15252A Steel Piping 
15254 Cast Iron Soil Piping 
15255 Stainless Steel Piping and Tubing 
15265 Plastic Piping and Tubing 
15268 Hose 
15271 High Density Polyethylene Pipe and Fittings 
15281 Seamless ASTM B 88 Copper Water Tube 
15400 Plumbing Fixtures and Equipment 
15430 Emergency Eyewash/Shower Units 
15732 Air Conditioning Units 
15762 Heating Units 
15772 Heat Tracing Cable 
15812 Metal Ductwork 
15814 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Ductwork 
15815 Flexible Ductwork 
15820 Ductwork Accessories 
15830 Fans 
15832 Centrifugal Fans for Odor Scrubbing Service 
15838 Gravity Ventilators 
15852 Louvers 
15936 Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning Controls 
15954 HVAC Systems Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing 
15956 Piping Systems Testing 
15958 Mechanical Equipment Testing 

 
VOLUME 3  

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL 
Section No. Title 
16050 General Requirements for Electrical Work 
16052 Hazardous Classified Area Construction 
16060 Grounding and Bonding 
16070 Hangers and Supports 
16075 Electrical Identification 
16123 600 Volt or Less Wires and Cables 
16130 Conduits 
16131 Aluminum Cable Trays 
16132 Fiberglass Cable Trays 
16133 Duct Banks 
16134 Boxes 
16135 Precast Concrete Pullboxes and Electrical Manholes 
16136 Wireway 
16140 Wiring Devices 
16150 Wire Connections 
16210 Utility Coordination 
16222 Low Voltage Motors up to 500 Horsepower 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
466



 

March 2013 TOC-7 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

16232 Natural Gas Engine Generator Above 200 kW - Natural Gas 
16240 Battery Systems 
16245 Load Bank - Stationary Resistive 
16262 Variable Frequency Drives 0.50 - 50 Horsepower 
16264 Variable Frequency Drives 60 - 500 Horsepower 
16272 Dry Type Transformers 
16285 Surge Protective Devices 
16290 Power Measurement 
16295 Protective Relays 
16305 Electrical System Studies 
16411 Disconnect Switches 
16412 Low Voltage Molded Case Circuit Breakers 
16413 Low Voltage Insulated Case Circuit Breakers 
16414 Low Voltage Power Circuit Breakers 
16422 Motor Starters 
16430 Low Voltage Switchgear 
16442 Individually Mounted Circuit Breaker Switchboards 
16444 Low Voltage Motor Control Centers 
16445 Panelboards 
16446 Distribution Panelboards 
16472 Packaged Power Supply Center 
16491 Transfer Switches 
16494 Low Voltage Fuses 
16500 Lighting 
16670 Lightning Protection 
16710 Fire Alarm and Smoke Detection System 
16740 Data and Telephone Wiring System 
16750 Security General Provisions 
16758 Security Perimeter Intrusion Detection System 
16950 Field Electrical Acceptance Tests 
16990 Conduit Schedule 

DIVISION 17 - INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROLS 
Section No. Title 
17050 Process Control and Instrumentation Systems General Requirements 
17051 Prequalification of Instrumentation and Control System Contractor 
17100 Control Strategies. 
17101 Specific Control Strategies 
17201 Level Measurement - Switches 
17206 Level Measurement - Ultrasonic 
17301 Flow Measurement - Switches 
17302 Flow Measurement - Magnetic Flowmeters 
17305 Flow Measurement - Thermal Mass 
17316 Rotameters (Variable Area Flowmeters) 
17401 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Diaphragm and Annular Seals 
17402 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Instrument Valves 
17403 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Switches 
17404 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Gauges 
17405 Pressure Transmitter 
17406 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Differential 
17502 Analyzers - ORP 
17504 Analyzers-Gas Monitors 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
467



 

March 2013 TOC-8 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

17505 Analyzers - Residual Chlorine 
17506 Dissolved Oxygen (DO) Analyzer 
17509 Analyzers - Turbidity 
17515 Ultraviolet Intensity Meters 
17516 Ultraviolet Transmittance Monitors 
17601 Temperature Measurement - Temperature Switch 
17602 Temperature Measurement - Temperature Gauge 
17604 Temperature Measurement - RTD 
17605 Temperature Measurement - Thermocouple 
17710 Control Systems - Panels, Enclosures, and Panel Components 
17712 Control Systems - Uninterruptible Power Supplies 10 KVA and Below 
17720 Control Systems - Programmable Logic Controllers Hardware 
17721 Control Systems - Human Machine Interface Hardware 
17730 SCADA Computer Equipment 
17733 Network Materials and Equipment 
17740 Process Cameras Closed Television 
17761 PLC Programming Software 
17762 Control Systems SCADA Software 
17765 Human Machine Interface Software 
17902 Control Panels 
17903 I/O List 
17950 Testing, Calibration, and Commissioning 
 

END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
468



City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design
Carollo Level of Effort Estimate
March 2, 2013

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT $69,978

TASK 200 - VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT $289,417

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT $198,610

TASK 400 - WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN $964,416

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS $14,498

TASK 600 - OUTFALL DESIGN $262,343

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $159,152

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $23,650

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget) $99,103

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $2,081,168

SUMMARY BY ACTIVITY

"TRADITIONAL" PRELIMINARY DESIGN ACTIVITIES $1,511,644

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
Value Engineering $60,698
Public Process (Final Location & Architectural Design) $130,037
Outfall Design and Permitting $279,686
SUBTOTAL, ADDITIONAL SERVICES $470,421

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
469



EXHIBIT D-3
EXHIBIT D-3

Page 2

City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design
Carollo Level of Effort Estimate 2.0%

March 2, 2013 Matson CAMP Hadler Misc. Misc Staff Enriquez Misc Lish 1.9 $10.00

Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $85 $85 $69 $55 $58 $40 $38 $25 $25

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Subtask 110 - Project Management Plan 16 0 0 0 0 32 16 0 32 96 $4,046 $7,687 $1,195 $12,927 $12,927
Subtask 120 - Project Monitoring and Reporting 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 96 216 $12,582 $23,906 $2,890 $39,378 $39,378
Subtask 130 - Project Management Meetings 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 84 $5,691 $10,813 $1,170 $17,674 $17,674

Task 100 Subtotal 196 0 0 0 0 32 16 0 152 396 $22,319 $42,405 $5,254 $69,978 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $69,978

TASK 200 VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT
Subtask 210 - Conceptual Design Development 43 190 120 43 53 228 132 38 62 910 $50,186 $95,353 $12,007 $157,545 $38,000 $22,000 $217,545
Subtask 220 - WWTP Site Visits 0 0 42 0 0 42 0 0 6 90 $4,746 $9,017 $1,175 $14,938 $14,938
Subtask 230 - VE Support 24 40 56 0 24 48 16 0 20 228 $13,744 $26,113 $3,077 $42,935 $6,000 $3,000 $5,000 $56,935

Task 200 Subtotal 67 230 218 43 77 318 148 38 88 1,228 $68,675 $130,483 $16,259 $215,417 $0 $0 $44,000 $3,000 $0 $27,000 $0 $0 $289,417

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT
Subtask 310 - Public Process Planning 12 0 2 0 0 4 4 0 8 30 $1,669 $3,171 $397 $5,237 $2,500 $7,737
Subtask 320 - Establish Policy Framework 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 26 $1,727 $3,282 $360 $5,369 $5,369
Subtask 330 - Charrette Workshops 32 0 48 0 0 44 44 0 20 188 $9,979 $18,961 $2,459 $31,399 $7,500 $5,000 $43,899
Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 32 0 24 0 0 32 0 0 16 104 $6,061 $11,516 $1,392 $18,969 $12,500 $12,000 $8,500 $51,969
Subtask 350 - Working Group Meetings 24 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 6 42 $2,642 $5,021 $573 $8,236 $7,500 $5,000 $20,736
Subtask 360 - Council/Committee Meetings 72 0 36 0 0 54 0 0 36 198 $11,668 $22,170 $2,657 $36,495 $2,500 $38,995
Subtask 370 - Public/Stakeholder Product Development 16 0 0 0 0 40 32 0 20 108 $4,674 $8,880 $1,351 $14,905 $15,000 $29,905

Task 300 Subtotal 206 0 110 0 0 174 92 0 114 696 $38,421 $73,000 $9,188 $120,610 $0 $30,000 $29,500 $0 $18,500 $0 $0 $0 $198,610

TASK 400 - WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN
Subtask 410 - Preliminary Design Documents 0 12 120 0 84 160 0 0 16 392 $21,022 $39,943 $5,139 $66,104 $5,000 $11,000 $82,104
Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Drawings 29 222 280 29 935 952 1,288 1,066 0 4,801 $210,261 $399,496 $60,203 $669,960 $36,500 $9,000 $5,000 $720,460
Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Specifications 0 16 80 0 80 80 0 0 90 346 $16,994 $32,288 $4,442 $53,723 $15,000 $68,723
Subtask 440 - Membrane/UV Procurement Documents 0 16 160 40 100 60 0 0 24 400 $23,448 $44,551 $5,360 $73,359 $73,359
Subtask 450 - Technical Team Meetings 0 0 40 0 36 36 0 0 0 112 $6,305 $11,979 $1,486 $19,770 $19,770

Task 400 Subtotal 29 266 680 69 1,235 1,288 1,288 1,066 130 6,050 $278,030 $528,257 $76,630 $882,916 $0 $0 $36,500 $5,000 $9,000 $26,000 $0 $5,000 $964,416

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS
Subtask 510 - Project Delivery Analysis 24 0 32 0 0 0 0 0 16 72 $4,658 $8,850 $990 $14,498 $14,498

Task 500 Subtotal 24 0 32 0 0 0 0 0 16 72 $4,658 $8,850 $990 $14,498 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,498

TASK 600 - OUTFALL DESIGN
Subtask 610 - Preliminary Design Documents 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 4 20 $1,211 $2,300 $270 $3,781 $76,000 $79,781
Subtask 620 - Outfall Permitting Support 0 0 4 24 0 0 0 0 8 36 $1,786 $3,394 $464 $5,643 $20,000 $30,000 $55,643
Subtask 630 - Final Design Documents 0 8 28 8 0 0 0 0 12 56 $3,360 $6,384 $755 $10,499 $2,500 $96,000 $3,000 $111,999
Subtask 640 - Bid Period Services 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 4 16 $933 $1,773 $214 $2,920 $12,000 $14,920

Task 600 Subtotal 0 8 60 32 0 0 0 0 28 128 $7,290 $13,851 $1,703 $22,843 $20,000 $0 $0 $2,500 $0 $0 $214,000 $3,000 $262,343

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 522 504 1,100 144 1,312 1,812 1,544 1,104 528 8,570 $419,393 $796,846 $110,025 $1,326,263 $20,000 $30,000 $110,000 $10,500 $27,500 $53,000 $214,000 $8,000 $1,799,263
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $159,152

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $1,000 $1,500 $5,500 $525 $1,375 $2,650 $10,700 $400 $23,650
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget)

Task 900 Subtotal $99,103

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $2,081,168

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total Cost

ESA EI MWA Geo BDA WE CME HAI
Carollo DL 

Cost
WORK TASKS

Project 
Manager

QA/QC 
Team

Design 
Manager

Senior 
Engineer

Discipline 
Engineer

Staff 
Engineer

Sr. CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

WP/ Admin. 
Support

Carollo 
Hours

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
470



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
471



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
472



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
473



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
474



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
475



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
476



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
477



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
478



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
479



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
480



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
481



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
482



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
483



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
484



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
485



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
486



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
487



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
488



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
489



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
490



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
491



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
492



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
493



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
494



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
495



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
496



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
497



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
498



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
499



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
500



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
501



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
502



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
503



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
504



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
505



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
506



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
507



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
508



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
509



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
510



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
511



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
512



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
513



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
514



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
515



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
516



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
517



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
518



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
519



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
520



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
521



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
522



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
523



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
524



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
525



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
526



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
527



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
528



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
529



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
530



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
531



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
532



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
533



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
534



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
535



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
536



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
537



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
538



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
539



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
540



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
541



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
542



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
543



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
544



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
545



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
546



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
547



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
548



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
549



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
550



Consultant Agreement Amendment Organization and Address: 
Number: 11 City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Original Agreement Title: Engineering Services Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan Phone: (360) 279-4521 
Project Number: 8549A.OO (Amend 1-5) and Execution Date I Completion Date 
8549A.10 (Amend 6-11) 09/06/2010 January 2016 
Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and New Maximum Amount Payable 
Preliminary Design ENG 15-02 (previously $8,109,264 
ENG 13-05 
Description of Work: This Amendment authorizes services to complete construction phase 
services associated with the City of Oak Harbor Outfall Replacement Project. 

The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Carollo Engineers. Inc. and executed on September 16. 2010 and identified as 
Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. 

TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
The maximum total contract value is increased from $7,907,388 to $8,109,264. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment No. 11 services. 

Approving Authority Signature 
resident 

Date 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
551



EXHIBIT B - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall , which has ceased functioning. 

Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method , and as 
described herein. 

It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City's Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project: 

• Project Manager (PM). 

• Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/Fl) to assist with construction support and field 
engineering services. 

• Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 
submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications. 

• Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 
construction. 

• Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 
planning and outfall construction. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 

The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM's 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant's level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 

Task 200 - Public Process Support - Construction 
Task 810- Project Management 
Task 820 - Construction Meetings 
Task 830 - Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 - Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling 

April 24, 2015 
pw://Carollo/Oocuments/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 1 O/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

Page 1of9 

Wl/l/TP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
552



SCHEDULE 

This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 

TASK 200- PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT-CONSTRUCTION 

Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 

Subtask 210 - Construction Communications Plan 

Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a "Good Neighbor Plan" appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution. 

Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 

Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a "Good Neighbor Plan" Appendix, one ( 1) draft 
and one ( 1) final. 

Subtask 220 - Outfall Construction Launch Materials 

Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include: 

• Up to three (3) print materials (e.g. , bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
• One (1) display ad for media; 
• Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
• Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

April 24, 2015 Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

553



2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 

Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One ( 1) display banner. 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction 

Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction. 

Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities. 

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference. 

Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 

Subtask 240 - Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction 

Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25). 

Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events) , to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210. 

Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff. 

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities. 

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

April 24, 2015 Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Docurnents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagernenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
554



4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task. 

Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

TASK 810- PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 

1. Management of Consultant's team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/Fl to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities. 

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month's accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes. 

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant's efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 

Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

April 24, 2015 Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Clientl'NNOak Harbor/8549A 10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WVVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
555



TASK 820-CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 

Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including: 

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-off Conference 

Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project. 

Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend , including the PM, PE/Fl, and ODE. 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 

Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFl 's) , change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project. 

Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate , and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant's PE/Fl will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four ( 4) meetings. 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 

TASK 830- FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide a Project PE/Fl to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/Fl will be responsible for the following tasks: 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

April 24, 2015 Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/DocumentslClient/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 1 Of Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

VWVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
556



2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel : Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general , civil , and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI) : Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RF ls and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFls and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate. 

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review. 

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM. 

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM's monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City's Project Manager. 

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City's Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs. 

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City's Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports. 

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested . Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved , and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

April 24, 2015 Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WINTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

557



Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/Fl will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/Fl providing an average of six (6) hours per week ( 15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFl's, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

TASK 840- OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide office engineering services during construction, including: 

Subtask 841 - Requests for Information (RFI) 

Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFls and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 

Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant's effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RF l's with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE's scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals. 

Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 

Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 

April 24, 2015 Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak H arbor/8549A 1 O/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outfall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

WNTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

558



Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant's effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE's scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 

Review contractor's schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action. 

Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant's effort includes services to review the contractor's schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City's PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 

Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM's as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided , and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM's drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

April 24, 2015 Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WVVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

559



Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor's work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM. 

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 

Subtask 845 - Claim Review 

As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 

Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one ( 1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 

TASK 850 - BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 

Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 

Task 850 Assumptions: 
1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 

standard chemicals, dioxin, furan , and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

April 24, 2015 Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Oocuments/Client!WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

560



EXHIBIT D-3 

City of Oak Harbor 
CWF Outfall Replacement Project 
Level of Effort Estimate 
Aoril 24 2015 

Subconsultant Cost 

WORK TASKS 
Project Design 

PE/Fl 
SR. CAD WP/Admin. 

Carollo Carollo DL 
Carollo 

Carollo 
Subtotal 

Manager Manager Designer Support Indirect Carollo Total Cost 
Hours Cost Expenses CME El 

Cost Cost 

Direct Labor (Ol) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27 

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction 

Subtask 210 -Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000 

Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 S10,000 

Subtask 240 - On11oing Planning and Material Development $22 ,000 S22,000 

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56 500 $56,500 

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1 ,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428 

Task 110 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1 732 $3 291 S406 S5 428 so so $5 428 

TASK 820 - Project Meetings 

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick..Qff Meeting 8 8 16 S1 ,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1 ,271 $16,908 $16,908 

Task 120 Subtot•I 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6 464 $12 282 $1509 $20 254 $0 so $20 254 

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162 

THk 130 Subtot•I 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3 480 $6612 $852 $10 944 $49 218 $0 $60 162 

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction 

Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1 ,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1 ,360 $2 ,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363 

Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values/ Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730 

Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 S1 ,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886 

Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1 ,687 $184 $2,760 $2 ,760 

Task UO Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5 904 $11 ,218 $1 708 S18 830 $0 $0 $18 830 

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391 

THk 150 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27 391 $0 $27 391 

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566 

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Cuollo Cost) $6,655 

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5'~ of Subconsuttant Cost) $3,830 $2 ,825 $6,655 

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201176 

Page 1 
l/WYTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
561



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
562



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
563



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
564



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
565



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
566



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
567



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
568



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
569



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
570



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
571



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
572



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
573



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
574



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
575



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
576



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
577



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
578



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
579



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
580



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
581



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
582



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
583



CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
584



Consultant Agreement Amendment Organization and Address 
Number 13 

City of Oak Harbor 
Original Agreement Title: Engineering 865 SE Barrington Drive 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan Phone: 360-279-4500 
Project Number: 8549A.00 (Amendments 1-5) Execution Date Completion Date (Prior) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12) 09/ 16/ 10 July 2016 
8549A.22 (Amendment 13) 
Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and New Maximum Amount Payable 
Preliminary Design $11,433,496 
Description of Work: This Amendment authorizes services to complete SCADA Programming 
and System Integration for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility. 

The City of Oak Harbor 
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers. Inc. 
and executed on 09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following: 
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert (Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are herebv incorporated into the original agreement. 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: December 2018 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
The maximum total contract value is increased from $9.605.341 to $11.433.496. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment 13 services. 

Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract. 

Amendment No. 1_3, 1/22/2016 Page I of2 

pw·\\Carollo/DocumentslClient/WNOak Harborl85'19A 10/Pro,ect ~anagemenl/CootractslOak Harbor Amendment 13 Form doc• 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

585



If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

Approving Authority Signature 

z_-3.-J~ 

Date 

By: Karl Hadler. Vice President 

Amendment No. 13 li22/2016 Page 2 of2 

pw.\\CarollolOocuments;ClienW/NOall Harbor/8549A 10/Projecl Managemenl/ContractslOak Harbor Amendment 13 Fonn.docx 
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

586



1218 Third Avenue, Suite 1600 • Seattle, Washington 98101
P. 206.684.6532  F. 206.903.0419

carollo.com

January 19, 2016

Brett Arvidson
City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor
865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor, WA 98277

Subject: SCADA Integration and Programming Services Proposal for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

Dear Brett:

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a draft scope of services for SCADA integration at the Oak Harbor Clean 
Water Facility. Our team of engineers, programmers, and operators has a single goal — to provide the most effective, 
innovative control solutions customized to meet your needs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue serving the City and we look forward to discussing our programming 
services with you.

Respectfully Yours,

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

Jeffrey A. Martin     Monte Richard
Vice President      Associate Vice President
Chief of Programming Services    Principal EI&C Engineer

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
587



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  1 

Scope of Work

INTRODUCTION

CONSULTANT will provide programming and SCADA 
programming services associated for the Oak Harbor 
Clean Water Facility. These services will include project 
design assistance, software coordination, supervisory 
control and data acquisition (SCADA) hardware and 
software integration, programmable logic controller 
(PLC) programming, SCADA Historian configuration, 
trending creation, report configuration, factory and field 
testing, startup, training, and warranty period services. 

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
COORDINATION AND PLAN 

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, 
Invoicing and Project Management Plan

The CONSULTANT will submit a Project Management 
Plan (PMP) including the following elements:

  Scope 

  Budget

  Team Structure

  Team member contact information

  Workshop/Meeting Plan

  Schedule - tasks, meetings, milestones, delivery dates, 
regular monthly meetings and milestones

  Expectations of CITY

The CONSULTANT will submit monthly progress 
reports with each invoice to substantiate the progress of 
work to date, including potential out-of-scope items. This 
information will be utilized to determine if any changes 
are required in the management of the project.

CONSULTANT will oversee project efforts, monitor 
progress and budget expended, and ascertain proper 
execution of the project in accordance with the project 
scope, schedule, and budget.

It is assumed that the CONSULTANT will spend 4 hours 
per month preparing and reviewing the monthly Project 
Summary Reports.

1.02 Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting

The CONSULTANT will conduct one, four-hour Project 
Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting at the CITY’s facility. 
The meeting will include up to two representatives 

from the CONSULTANT. The purpose of the Project 
Kickoff Meeting will be to review the overall project goals, 
critical success factors, scope of work, schedule, lines of 
communication, and individual expectations.

1.03 Construction Progress Meetings

The CONSULTANT will attend weekly progress 
meetings throughout construction via conference call. A 
construction project duration of 24 months is assumed from 
notice to proceed through final completion and beginning 
of the warranty period. 

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING 
AND COORDINATION

CONSULTANT’s programming team will assist the design 
team with early programming coordination and planning 
between all technical disciplines. 

2.01 Development and Review of the 
Process Control Network Design

The CONSULTANT will assist in the development and 
review of the process and control network architecture, 
network routing diagrams, SCADA block diagrams, I/O 
list, and network panel layouts. Specific programming 
details will be incorporated as required to meet the 
CITY’s developed software and programming standards. 
Specifically, items like tag naming, tag database verification, 
and software architecture will be verified with the CITY’s 
software standards.

2.02 Facility Site Visits

The CONSULTANT will facilitate two site visits to 
wastewater facilities within the area who utilize a SCADA 
system for automated control. Site visit will include a 
presentation of the sites SCADA system followed by a 
lessons learned discussion with the facility staff to assess the 
merits and shortcomings of the facilities SCADA system.

2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software 
Standards

The CONSULTANT will develop PLC and SCADA 
Software Standards. These standards will be utilized 
throughout construction of the Clean Water Facility and 
will be written so that they can serve as a CITY standard 
for future projects. The effort of developing the Software 
Standards will be coordinated closely with CITY staff. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
588



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  2 

2.04 - 2.05 Software Standards 
Workshops

In order to facilitate the coordination of the PLC 
and SCADA Software Standards with the CITY, the 
CONSULTANT will conduct two Software Standards 
Workshops. The details of the workshops are listed in the 
following table: 

TASK 3 – PROGRAMMING SERVICES 
DURING CONSTRUCTION

The CONSULTANT will provide programming services 
during the construction phase. The services will include 
PLC and SCADA configuration services, various 
coordination meetings during construction, factory 
testing, field testing, start-up services, commissioning, and 
O&M training.

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals

The CONSULTANT will furnish SCADA hardware 
and software submittals for items furnished by the 
CONSULTANT as detailed in Bill of Material Furnished 
by CONSULTANT.

3.02 PLC and SCADA Development

The CONSULTANT will provide PLC programming 
and SCADA software configuration for the Clean Water 
Facility. The CONSULTANT will provide flow charts 
and annotated function blocks to assist with future 
adjustments/troubleshooting of the program.

The CONSULTANT will develop the tag database and 
perform verification with all vendor applications. The 
CONSULTANT will provide PLC logic coordination 
with all vendor supplied PLCs.

Refer to assumptions section for I/O counts used for 
determining the total PLC and SCADA programming 
effort.

3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom 
Trend Screen Development

The CONSULTANT will provide Historian configuration 
and create a total of ten (10) trend screens customized 
by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the Software 
Coordination Meetings. 

3.04 Regulatory Compliance and Custom 
Operational Report Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure a total of two (2) 
custom regulatory compliance and five (5) custom 
operational reports. The specifics of the reports will be 
customized by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the 
Software Coordination Meetings.

3.05 Software Coordination Meetings

The CONSULTANT will conduct  construction phase 
coordination meetings. The anticipated meetings are listed 
below:

  One (1) SCADA system configuration meeting 
for SCADA and PLC network communications 
coordination with CITY

  Two (2) Vendor programming coordination meetings 
with Vendors and CITY

  Four (4) software coordination meetings with CITY

  Construction period coordination with CITY, 
Contractor, and key subcontractors including electrical, 
ICSC, Vendors.

3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test 
(FAT)

The CONSULTANT will attend and assist the 
Instrumentation and Control System Contractor (ICSC) 
in conducting the witnessed control panel factory 
acceptance test (FAT) located at the ICSC facility. The 
CONSULTANT will prepare applicable FAT testing forms 
no less than one (1) week in advance of the date of the 
testing. 

3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory 
Acceptance Test

The CONSULTANT will attend the witnessed factory 
acceptance tests for Vendor provided systems to confirm 
software interfaces and general conformance to the project’s 
programming standards. It is assumed there will be a total 
of three (3) separate vendor factory acceptance tests, each 
lasting three (3) days.

WORKSHOPS

Subtask 
No.

Meeting Title Duration Consultant’s 
Team

Other 
Attendees

2.04 Preliminary 
Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

2.05 Final Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
589



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  3 

3.08 Conduct Software Acceptance Test 
(SAT)

The CONSULTANT will conduct a Software 
Acceptance Test (SAT) located in the CONSULTANT’s 
Roseville Cyber Lab. The CONSULTANT will prepare 
SAT testing plans and forms prior to conducting the 
SAT. The SAT shall include the configuration of 
communications and testing of the connection between 
SCADA and Vendor PLC’s. The CONSULTANT will 
test SCADA interface and screen functionality with all 
Vendor PLCs during the SAT.

3.09 Conduct Complete End-to-End 
Testing (CEET)

The CONSULTANT will provide Complete End to End 
Testing (CEET). After the electrical contractor has fully 
completed and submitted all loop drawings for review 
and approval and the ICSC have completed the control 
system installation. The CEET will occur only after the 
Contractor has submitted certified test reports that all 
field wiring has been tested and verified against the loop 
drawings. The CONSULTANT shall go to the field and 
load the PLC program for testing and the PLC will be 
connected to the network at this time. During the CEET, 
signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, 
and all the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens.

The Complete End-to-End Test (CEET) will be 
performed by the CONSULTANT and Contractor 
working together, with assistance from the CITY or the 
inspection staff, as needed. The CONSULTANT will 
provide staff to verify input signals at, and create output 
signals from, the SCADA system. The Contractor will be 
responsible for creating field signals and verifying proper 
operation of final control elements. It is assumed that 
full time dedicated Contractor staff assistance will be 
provided during the CEET. It has been assumed that the 
CEET will last six (6) weeks

3.10 Conduct Strategy Field Testing (SFT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Strategy Field Testing 
(SFT). After CEET and the contractor’s testing of the 
manual operation of equipment, the Strategy Field 
Testing (SFT) will be performed by the CONSULTANT 
with assistance from the Contractor and assistance from 
the CITY or the inspection staff, as needed. 

The purpose of the SFT is to verify the proper operation 
of all PLC control logic and its interaction with field 
equipment and devices. The CONSULTANT will 
exercise programs, conduct tests, and record results. 
Contractor staff will be responsible for equipment 
operation and verification of correct field operation 
results. Programmer will tune any feedback loops. It has 
been assumed that the SFT will last four (4) weeks.

3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Operational Readiness 
Testing (ORT) after completion of the CEET and SFT. The 
ORT will be performed by the CONSULTANT. 

The purpose of the ORT is to conduct a final test after 
all other testing activities have been performed, and all 
SCADA components have been installed to confirm the 
system is ready for live deployment. The ORT will test 
for database backup, database recovery, correct software 
installation and configuration, failover operation, access 
control, and security viability. It has been assumed that the 
ORT will last two (2) weeks.

3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD 
Configuration

The CONSULTANT will provide configuration of all smart 
overload and VFD starters. The CONSULTANT will 
configure the network connection as well as program each 
starter for local and remote operations as indicated in the 
control strategies. Physical wiring of the starters along with 
wiring to/from the associated circuit components will be 
conducted by the Contractor.

3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals

The CONSULTANT will provide Operation and 
Maintenance Manuals for the following items:

  CEET, SFT, and ORT test results

  SCADA system hardware and software

  PLC system software

  Final PLC programs, including final flow charts, 
annotated function blocks.

  Final control sequencing describing startup, operation, 
shutdown, and safety procedures

Electronic copies of the individual Operation and 
Maintenance sections listed above will be delivered to the 
Contractor for incorporation into the overall project O&M 
manual.

3.14 Close-Out Services

The CONSULTANT will provide close-out services 
in order to finalize outstanding issues on the CITY’s 
programming punch list. It has been assumed that the 
close-out services will last two (2) weeks.

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
590



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  4 

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

6.01 Warranty Period Services

The CONSULTANT will provide warranty period 
services during the 1 year warranty period following 
final completion of the construction contract. Warranty 
services will include on-call, dial-in adjustments in 
addition to on-site visits following final completion of the 
construction contract.

Additional Items Not Included:

1.  PLC Hardware and associated training.

2.  Construction and associated testing of PLC cabinets.

3.  Hardware and Software not specifically called out in 
the Bill of Materials Furnished by CONSULTANT.

4. Work efforts for other items not specifically listed in 
this proposal.

5. Programming of Vendor provided PLCs.

Assumptions:

1. PLC and SCADA programming and configuration 
effort was based on approximately 2500 hard and soft 
I/O. The approximate I/O is broken up as shown in 
the following table:

2. The Contractor shall perform complete testing of 
all Ethernet cabling (Fiber and/or Copper) per the 
specifications. Testing must certify all paths to CAT 6 
specifications and provide a formal written report to 
CONSULTANT.

3.  CONSULTANT will use standard Rockwell PLC 
programming function blocks and add-on instructions 
as much as possible to develop the PLC code for this 
project.

 

HARDWIRED I/O 162

VCP I/O 681

SOFT I/O 941

VCP MBR I/O 494

VCP UV I/O 66

CENTRIFUGES NO. 1 AND NO. 2 118

VCP Dryer I/O TBD

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

4.01 Training Preparation

The CONSULTANT will prepare training materials 
and handouts prior to conducting the on-site training. 
Training material will be delivered to the CITY no less 
than one (1) week in advance of the date of the training.

4.02 - 4.11 Training Courses

CONSULTANT will conduct the training courses 
detailed in the following table:

TASK 5 - Network Hardware and Software 
Configuration

5.01 SCADA Network Hardware and 
Software Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure the network 
hardware and software provided by the CONSULTANT 
listed in the Bill of Material Provided by CONSULTANT. 
CONSULTANT will configure the network area racks as 
well as the network server racks. The CONSULTANT 
will perform setup and configuration of the SCADA 
servers, Historian server, authentication server, Network 
Attached Storage, Local Operator Interfaces, thin client 
nodes, and SCADA workstations.

OPERATOR TRAINING SERVICES

Subtask No. / 
Course Title

Minimum 
Course 

Length (hours 
per session)

Personnel 
(Estimated 

No. of 
Students)

Minimum 
No. of 

Sessions

4.02 System Overview 8 8 1

4.03 Operator Training 
        - Basic

24 8 2

4.04 Operator Training 
        - Advanced

16 5 2

4.05 CIS (Computer) 
Equipment Maintenance

8 4 1

4.06 Historian System 
Training

16 5 1

4.07 Reports Training 8 5 2

4.08 PLC Software 32 6 1

4.09 HMI Hardware and 
Software

16 5 1

4.10 Network Equipment 16 4 1

4.11 Follow-up Training 8 5 5

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
591



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  5 

P
ri

n
c

ip
a

l 
E

n
g

in
e

e
r

E
IC

 L
ea

d
 

P
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l

S
e

n
io

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

r 
III

S
e

n
io

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

r 
II

S
e

n
io

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

r 
I

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

c
e

s
s

in
g

228$ 205$ 198$ 167$ 140$ 102$

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, Invoicing, Project Management Plan 156 16 116 24 32,180$ -$ 32,180$                           
1.02 Kick-off and Goal Setting Meeting 32 16 16 6,448$ 1,835$ 8,283$                             
1.03 Construction Progress Meetings 168 96 48 24 32,544$ -$ 32,544$                           

2.01 Development and Review of  the Process Control Network Design 24 24 4,752$ -$ 4,752$                             
2.02 Facility Site Visits 24 8 16 5,104$ 1,705$ 6,809$                             
2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software Standards 84 4 40 40 14,340$ -$ 14,340$                           
2.04 Preliminary Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             
2.05 Final Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals 92 4 32 24 24 8 15,340$ -$ 15,340$                           
3.02 PLC and SCADA Development 3,424 2200 1224 606,960$ -$ 606,960$                         
3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom Trend Screen Development 180 180 25,200$ -$ 25,200$                           
3.04 Custom Operational Report Configuration 112 112 15,680$ -$ 15,680$                           
3.05 Software Coordination Meetings 256 24 116 116 44,128$ 8,270$ 52,398$                           
3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test (FAT) 66 58 8 12,604$ 3,080$ 15,684$                           
3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory Acceptance Tests 200 120 80 34,960$ 4,220$ 39,180$                           
3.08 Software Acceptance Testing (SAT) 344 176 168 58,368$ -$ 58,368$                           
3.09 Complete End-to-End Testing (CEET) 360 180 180 60,840$ 7,510$ 68,350$                           
3.10 Strategy Field Testing (SFT) 300 160 140 51,280$ 7,510$ 58,790$                           
3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT) 120 80 40 21,440$ 7,510$ 28,950$                           
3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD Configuration 120 40 80 19,120$ -$ 19,120$                           
3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals 80 8 32 32 8 13,272$ -$ 13,272$                           
3.14 Close-Out Services 120 80 40 21,440$ 3,755$ 25,195$                           

4.01 Training Preparation 188 96 16 68 8 32,016$ 8,810$ 40,826$                           
4.02 System Overview 10 10 1,980$ -$ 1,980$                             
4.03 Operator Training Basic 60 60 11,880$ -$ 11,880$                           
4.04 Operator Training Advanced 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.05 Computer Equipment Maintenance 10 10 1,400$ -$ 1,400$                             
4.06 Historian System Training 20 20 3,960$ -$ 3,960$                             
4.07 Reports Training 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.08 PLC  Software 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.09 HMI Hardware and Software 20 20 2,800$ -$ 2,800$                             
4.10 Network Equipment 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.11 Follow Up Training 48 24 24 8,112$ -$ 8,112$                             

5.01 Network Hardware and Software Configuration 208 208 34,736$ -$ 34,736$                           

6.01 Warranty Period Services 248 48 120 80 44,800$ 3,083$ 47,883$                           

7226 24 348 3852 288 2690 24 1,266,652$ 60,958$ 1,327,610$

1,327,610$        

118,157$           

1,445,767$        LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
PROGRAMMING SERVICES

LABOR AND EXPENSES SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TASK FEETASK DESCRIPTION
TASK 

NUMBER  P
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l 
H

o
u

rs
 

Labor Cost

 Travel, 
Subsistence, and 

Other 
Reimbursables 

ALL TASKS

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT COORDINATION AND PLAN

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING AND COORDINATION

TASK 3 - PROGRAMMING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

TASK 5 - NETWORK HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

PROGRAMMING SERVICES

Compensation for the Programming Services scope of work is presented in the following table.

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
592



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  6 

BILL OF MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT

The following table is a bill of material showing equipment that will be provided by the CONSULTANT. 

BOM Number Materials
 Markup on 
Materials 

Total Cost

1 10,568$ 2,114$ 12,682$
2 9,459$ 1,892$ 11,351$
3 55,681$ 11,136$ 66,817$
4 8,160$ 1,632$ 9,792$
5 32,500$ 6,500$ 39,000$
6 16,902$ 3,380$ 20,282$
7 8,451$ 1,690$ 10,141$
8 4,600$ 920$ 5,520$
9 4,360$ 872$ 5,232$
10 2,180$ 436$ 2,616$
11 20,000$ 4,000$ 24,000$
12 15,341$ 3,068$ 18,409$
13 20,400$ 4,080$ 24,480$
14 25,915$ 5,183$ 31,098$
15 4,200$ 840$ 5,040$
16 16,780$ 3,356$ 20,136$
17 4,158$ 832$ 4,990$
18 1,545$ 309$ 1,854$
19 7,500$ 1,500$ 9,000$

322,440$          

28,697$            

351,137$          

31,251$            

382,388$          

Network Printer (Laser printer)
ACP thin Manager Software (10 clients)

Control Room Thin Client and Monitor (3)

SCADA Software (2) FT Server, (7) clients, TS, WIN 911
PLC Software (RA RS Logix Professional Edition)

Historian Software (5,000 tags)
SCADA Servers w/OS Software (2)

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TAXES @ 8.9%

Description

Server Rack, UPS with Bypass, Closet Connector Housing, FPP, Wire Management System
Firewall, Ethernet Switch, NAS

Remote Thin clients throughout the plant (3)

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

Historian Server w/OS Software (1)

Workstations w/OS Software (2)

Miscellaneous, Software, Patch Cables, Connectors, Labels, etc.

Panel Mount Thin Clients (3) - OIT-HW, OIT-ABRW & OIT-SH

Local Network Panels (3) - NP-HW, NP-ST & NP-SH

Engineering Workstation w/OS Software (1)

Domain Server

Hardened Industrial Laptop Workstations (2)

Color Printer

MATERIALS SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TOTAL COMPENSATION

Total compensation for the Programming Services in addition to the Material Provided by the CONSULTANT is 
presented in the following table.

1,445,767$       

382,388$          

1,828,155$       

LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL (PROGRAMMING SERVICES)

MATERIAL TOTAL (MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT)

PROJECT TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
COMBINED PROGRAMMING SERVICES AND MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
593



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  1 

References 

The City of Casa 
Grande, Arizona, Water 
Reclamation Facility 
Phase 3 Expansion, from 
6 to 12 mgd, included 
the addition of four new 
clarifiers, an additional 
anoxic/aerobic basin, 
new solids-handling 
equipment, new 
odor control, new 
sodium-hypochlorite 
generation, and related 
supporting facilities. 
This large-scale plant upgrade included the addition of 17 new PLCs (for a 
total of 26) as well as a completely new Wonderware system, including an 
enterprise-class Historian.

An existing video surveillance system was expanded by adding new 
cameras, connected via fiber-optic technology, and adding digital 
video-recording equipment to allow plant operations to greatly improve 
security around the large facility.

The lead PLC programming effort put forth by Carollo helped to avoid 
many of the traditional pitfalls encountered when multiple programmers 
from different vendors provide logic for the same project. The extensive 
experience of our senior programming staff quickly earned the respect of 
the various individuals involved and greatly increased the cooperation 
among the vendors to accommodate a common programming standard. 
Carollo provided many of the standard program modules for integration 
into the overall plant control system.

Casa Grande Water Reclamation Facility Phase 3 Expansion SCADA

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Kevin Louis
Public Works Director
City of Casa Grande 
3181 North Lear Avenue 
Casa Grande, AZ 85222
520-421-8600
klouis@casagrandeaz.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Allen-Bradley 
ControlLogix and CompactLogix

• PLC count: 26 CPUs

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
4,600+

• Communication networks 
and protocols used: Ethernet, 
ControlNet, Ethernet-IP, ControlNet 
(CIP)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s InTouch 
SCADA-HMI SW

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s Enterprise 
Historian + Microsoft’s SQL RDBMS 
SW

This large scale plant upgrade included the addition of 
17 new (for a total of 26) PLCs as well as a completely 
new Wonderware system, including an enterprise-class 
Historian.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 25 months, Actual: 25 months
(9/06 – 10/08)

Contract Value: $2.7M
Programming: $1.2M
ESDC: $3.7M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $48.1M, Actual:  $50.4M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
11 / $2.3M ($2.0M owner-directed)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
594



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  2 

Bollman Water Treatment Plant DCS Replacement

Contra Costa Water District, Walnut Creek, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Jacob Lesov
Instrumentation Engineer
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane,
Concord, CA 94524
925-688-8193
jlesov@ccwater.com

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum 
Hot-Standby

• PLC count: 4

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
2,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Ethernet, Remote 
I/O, Modbus TCP, Remote I/O

• SCADA system hardware and soft-
ware: Dell Servers & Workstations/ 
Wonderware InTouch

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Servers/ 
Wonderware Historian

Carollo Engineers was the prime 
contractor for a $1.7 million 
turnkey (hardware and software) 
replacement of the distributed 
control system at the 75-mgd 
Bollman Water Treatment Plant 
for the Contra Costa Water 
District (CCWD) in Concord, 
California. The project included 
replacement of the plant’s 
obsolete, proprietary Bailey 
Infi-90 DCS with a modern, 
open-standards-based distributed 
PC/PLC system.

The new system uses four Modicon Quantum Unity hot-standby CPU 
pairs connected to I/O modules in eight area control cabinets. The PLC 
control network is configured in a redundant Ethernet/fiber ring. The 
remote I/O communications are also redundant.

The operator interface is provided by 12 thin-client terminals connected 
to redundant SCADA terminal servers running Wonderware InTouch for 
Terminal Services version 9.5.

Carollo provided hardware, software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services. Carollo was the prime contractor and directed the 
work of subcontractors for electrical installation, fiber-optic cable testing, 
panel fabrication, and design assistance.

The Bollman Plant is the main source of water for several communities 
and allowable shutdown times were very short, considering the magnitude 
of the project. Carollo worked closely with CCWD staff to develop 
a comprehensive cutover plan including fallback options to ensure 
continuous water deliveries. Carollo completed the project on time, within 
budget, and with minimal disruptions to staff and operations.

Carollo Engineers provided hardware, 
software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 16 months, Actual: 16 months
(3/07 – 6/08 including programming)

Contract Value: $6.4M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: N/A (only DCS replacement) 
Actual: $1.7M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

4 / $150,000

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
595



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  3 

Contra Costa Middle River Intake Project

Contra Costa Water District, Contra Costa County, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Scott Weddle
Senior Engineer 
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane
Concord, CA 94524-2099
925-688-8318
sweddle@ccwater.com  

Contractor Information: 

ProVen Management
Mr. Bill Gilmartin
President
712 Sansome Street
San Francisco, CA 94111
415-990-4448
Bill@ProvenManagement.com 

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon M340

• PLC count: 2

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 261

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Modbus TCP, 
Modbus RTU, WAN (Radio)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Televent/Televent OASys 
DNA 7.5

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/Televent

The CCWD Middle 
River Intake Project 
protects CCWD’s 550,000 
customers from seasonal 
fluctuations and long-term 
degradation of water 
quality in the Delta by 
establishing an alternative 
intake at Victoria Canal 
in the central Delta. In 
addition to improving 
delivered water quality, 
the Middle River Intake 
Project enhances 
operational flexibility, 
improves health and aesthetic benefits to customers, provides fisheries 
protection via the change in timing/location of diversions, and protects 
delivered water quality during emergencies. The pump station includes five 
3,000-hp vertical turbine pumps to convey water to CCWD’s Los Vaqueros 
Reservoir or the Contra Costa Canal, automatic screen raking, a hydraulic 
surge suppression system, and a 69-kV substation.

The project will allow CCWD to consistently meet or exceed state and 
federal drinking water regulations and protect public health well into the 
future. It will also protect delivered-water quality during emergencies.

Key instrumentation and control elements:

 Redundant Modicon Quantum PLC system with segregated I/O for 
each pump.

 Data acquired from power metering systems, variable frequency drives 
(VFDs), motor starters, and intake screen cleaning system using 
Modbus TCP Ethernet and Modbus RTU communications.

 Water quality and process control instruments.

 Communications with SCADA at CCWD’s centralized control center 
over redundant radio networks.

 PLC and SCADA programming by Carollo Engineers.

Key electrical elements:

 69-kV substation with SF6 circuit breaker and 15-MVA transformer to 
step transmission voltage down to 4.16 kV to power the pump motors.

 4.16-kV switchgear and motor controls.

 Reduced-voltage solid-state motor starters for three 3,000-hp pump 
motors.

 VFDs for two 3,000-hp pump motors.

 Motor protection incorporating thermal overload modeling, current 
differential protection, and over-temperature protection that monitors 
six resistance-temperature detectors in the motor windings and two in 
the bearings.

Provided detailed control system design for the intake 
pump station including 5-3,000 hp pump, the PLC and 
SCADA control system, programming services, and 
engineering services during construction.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 15 months, Actual: 15 Months
(09/06 – 11/07)

Contract Value:  $4.6M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $32M, Final Amount: $33.56M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
162 / $1.56M (Field services for environ-
mental assessment)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
596



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  4 

Carollo Engineers was 
retained to perform the 
City of Arlington’s John F. 
Kubala Water Treatment 
Plant Expansion I, 
which included the 
addition of six filters, two 
sedimentation basins, 
expanded recycle basin, 
and two finished-water 
high-service pumps (5 kV, 
800 hp on VFDs, and 
1,750 hp on RVSS), and a 
5-MG clearwell. 

The Expansion II project is the most recent in a series of major projects 
that Carollo Engineers has performed for the City of Arlington. The 
project involved hydraulic expansion from 65 mgd to 97.5 mgd through 
the addition of two sedimentation basins, eight granular media filters, 
chemical feed systems, a 1,000-hp high-service pump in the existing pump 
station, and ozone generation and contacting facilities.

The programming efforts included all high-service pumps (existing and 
new), which totalled 5,950 hp, with the largest pump being 1,750 hp.

Carollo performed the design and programming of the existing SCADA 
system expansion, which included redundant Allen-Bradley PLCs for the 
ozone facilities (programming by Ozonia), Modicon Premium PLCs for 
the rest of the plant, an Ethernet data highway and SCADA LAN, and an 
iFIX SCADA HMI system. The work included upgrading the iFIX software 
from version 3.5 to 5.0, a new Historian, and expanding the operator 
display system to include all of the new facilities. Carollo Engineers 
was also responsible for programming the new and expanded Modicon 
Premium PLCs, while two specialty subcontractors programmed the filter 
controls and ozone systems. The project included adding an enterprise 
Historian to the system, which collects data from all of the City’s water 
facilities into a central data repository for trending and analysis.

John F. Kubala Water Treatment Plant Expansions I and II

City of Arlington, Texas

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. David Smith
Water Treatment Manager/Maintenance
John Kubala Water Treatment Plant 
7001 U.S. Highway 287 
Arlington, TX 76017
817-478-5702
David.Smith@arlingtontx.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Premium, 
Allen-Bradley PLC5, and Allen-
Bradley SLC500

• PLC count: 28

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
6,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: ModBus TCP, DH+, 
Ethernet 

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Panel View and Dell 
Workstations/GE Profi cy iFIX

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/
GE Profi cy Historian

Control system design and programming for 32.5-mgd 
WTF hydraulic expansion using Allen-Bradley and 
Modicon PLCs, iFIX SCADA and Historian software.Completion Time – Design:

Original and Actual: 16 months/ 
16 months (1/07 – 4/08)

Contract Value: $5.0M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $28.8M, Actual: Ongoing

Change Orders (number/amount): 
4 / $2.6M

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
597



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  5 

Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant Miscellaneous Upgrades

City of Roseville, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Ken Glotzbach
Wastewater Utility Manager
City of Roseville
2005 Hilltop Circle
Roseville, CA 95747
916-774-5770 
kglotzbach@roseville.ca.us

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum

• PLC count: 12

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
3,500

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: EthernetIP over 
Fiber, Modbus Plus, Serial Modbus 
over Licensed Radio, Modbus TCP, 
Modbus Plus, Modbus RTU

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Transdyn Controls 
DYNAC SCADA Software, 
Wonderware

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Oracle Enterprise 
Edition

Carollo Engineers 
designed the Pleasant 
Grove Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, a new 
12-mgd treatment facility, 
for the City of Roseville. 
Carollo Engineers served 
as primary consultant for 
the design of SCADA 
and instrumentation 
systems at the Pleasant 
Grove plant and the 
replacement of an 
existing command center at the City’s Dry Creek WWTP.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet the City’s need for 
“unattended operations” at the Pleasant Grove plant. The new plant is 
staffed on weekdays, but remains unstaffed on evenings and weekends. 
Control systems allow for communication between the Pleasant Grove 
plant and the Dry Creek plant. The Carollo Engineers team optimized 
process, SCADA, and communications system designs to allow for 
complete operation and monitoring of the Pleasant Grove plant from the 
Dry Creek plant.

The new SCADA system includes two command centers with a network 
of computers and control panels with Modicon Quantum PLCs, 
interconnected by a fiber-optic data highway, plus over 3,500 input/ output 
points of control. The Pleasant Grove plant includes an influent pump 
station, aerated grit basins, oxidation ditches, secondary clarifiers, a 
return activated sludge/waste activated sludge (RAS/ WAS) pump 
station, continuous backwash filters, a chlorine contact basin, and a 
solids-handling building. Automated valving, automated gates, and 
instrumentation are key project features that contribute to the plant’s ease 
of operation.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet 
Roseville’s need for “unattended operations” at the 
Pleasant Grove facility. 

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 36 months, Actual: 36 months
(8/08 – 7/10 )

Contract Value: $2.9M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $18.9M, Actual: $19.8M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

6 / $971,831

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
598



V
:\C

lient77_SE
A

\O
akH

arbor\Proposals\SC
A

D
A

Integration_0815\Indd\Jan2016\R
eferences_11x17.indd

References  |  6 

Record Documentation

Follow-up Services

Corrective Services

Maintenance Services

MST
Manual Equipment Start-Up Test

SFT
Strategy Field Testing

O&M Manuals

Operator
Training

Maintenance
Training

Field Bus
Testing

PAL
PLC Panel and
Loop Testing

NAT
Network Equipment

Acceptance Test

CEET
Complete End-to-End Test

Field Device
Calibration

LAN Cable
Post Testing

Industrial
Network Testing

FAT
Factory Acceptance Testing

Integrated System All Hardware and Software
Testing Simulator

Hardwired Devices
Hardware Simulator
Field Bus Devices

PreFat - Assurance that PCIS is ready for full FAT
Panel Inspections  for completeness and workmanship
I/O Test verify I/O is properly wired to field terminals
System Configuration Test for all

Operator Stations
Servers
Development Stations
Peripherals

Control Logic Test of strategies with simulation of I/O

PLCs SCADA
Networks

Local
Operator

Interfaces 
Historian Alarms

PROGRAMMING VALIDATION, START-UP, AND COMMISSIONING PLAN

Hardware and Software
PLC-SCADA-NETWORKS

Review and Document
Existing Systems

Detailed Design Submittals
For Equipment and Software

Historian
Report System
Alarm System
Control System Block Diagram
Control System Network Diagram

Develop and Document Programming Standards
Screen Layout and Graphic Color Conventions
Control Action Standards
Software Architecture
General Control Functions
PLC Programming Standards

Control Strategies
Confirm
Refine
Expand

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems

Initial Set-Up of PLC/SCADA
Hardware and Software at
Programmer's Office

Configuration and Programming

Field Bus
Networks

P
O

S
T

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

FI
E

LD
 T

E
S

TI
N

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
-C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
IN

G
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

P
R

E
-C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

Review and Document Existing Systems: Review the existing SCADA and control systems for Owner's 
other facilities and use the information collected to program the system expansion in a compatible manner, 
using similar programming standards. Visit the Owner's other facilities and become familiar with the system 
hardware and programming standards used, collect and review documentation on the existing system, 
including PLC code, SCADA software configuration files, block and wiring diagrams, and other O&M 
information available. 

Detailed Design Submittals: Prepare a detailed SCADA system design, based on the Contract Documents. 
Finalize computer system connections, history system expansion, report requirements, etc. Prepare a design 
submittal  including updated block diagram, software list, or other information required to define the final 
details of the complete control system.

Programming  Standards: Develop and document standard for use on the project to provide a consistent 
“look and feel” for operators and to make maintenance easier. The PLC programming and HMI and SCADA 
software configuration will follow these documented programming standards which shall include: Screen 
layout and graphic color conventions, Control action standards, Software architecture, General control 
functions, PLC programming standards. Screen layout and color standards define the way information is 
presented to operators on the SCADA screens. Control action standards define the way control actions are 
accomplished by the operator. Software architecture defines where in the system (PLC vs. servers vs. 
operator stations) various software functions are performed. General Control Functions describe typical 
control logic that will apply to all motors, valves, analog signals, etc. Meet with Owner to discuss options and 
preferences for graphic display standards, color conventions, and other programming standards and 
prepare a proposed graphic display and programming standards document for Owner acceptance.  

Control Strategies: The Contract Documents include specifications, P&IDs and Control Strategies  that 
describe the monitoring and control functions of the SCADA computer system and the operation of PLC 
logic. More detailed control strategies will be needed to confirm and refine the requirements for 
implementation of SCADA logic and functions prior to performing the programming.
 

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems: PLCs provided by vendors of packaged systems shall be 
integrated into the SCADA system. This requires coordination of programming work with the vendors. 
Vendors are responsible for all logic in their respective PLCs. They shall define the PLC registers in their 
PLCs that will allow remote starting and stopping of their systems, monitoring of data for display, alarming, 
event logging, trending, etc., and any other functions as required by the specification. Programmer shall 
coordinate its work with these equipment suppliers to provide proper control functionality between their 
equipment and the SCADA system. 

FAT: Before shipment to the project site, the complete PCIS system including all operator stations, servers, 
network equipment, printers, PCMs, PLCs, RTUs, LCPs, CCS, peripherals, communications equipment, and 
other SCADA equipment, shall be assembled, connected, and all software loaded for a full functional FAT of 
the integrated system. Perform tests to show that the integrated system hardware and software is fully 
operational. For systems that contain RTU’s or remote communications with other devices, the complete 
communications system must be factory tested, including actual interfacing with telephone company 
equipment and/or the actual radios used for radio based telemetry systems. Correct any deficiencies 
observed. Use hardware simulators connected to the I/O points within the SCADA System. All I/O shall be 
simulated and proper control and system operation shall be validated. 

Preliminary Factory Acceptance Test: Purpose of the Pre-FAT is to provide assurance that the control 
system is ready for the full FAT in terms of both stability and functionality. 

Panel Inspections: Inspect each control panel for completeness, workmanship, fit and finish, and 
compliance with the Contract Documents and the approved shop drawings.

I/O Test: Verify that I/O is properly wired to field terminals and is properly mapped into the PLC and the rest 
of the SCADA system, including all operator interface devices. 

System Configuration Test: Demonstrate and test the setup and configuration of all operator stations, 
servers, development stations, peripherals, utility software, virus protection, backup, optical drive burning, 
network monitoring, proper operation of all peripheral hardware, general SCADA functions, proper operation 
of log-on and other access security functions, historical data storage, trend, display, backup, report 
functions, automatic fail over of redundant equipment, alarm display and acknowledgement functions.

Control Logic Test: Verify that all software functions and logic work as specified, along with any hardwired 
logic or functions in the tested control panels.

PAL: The panels are shipped to the field and installed. After all instruments are installed and calibrated, and 
all field wires tested and terminated, conduct PAL. The purpose of the PAL test is to test the field wiring and 
instrumentation. The test is from the field devices, through any intermediate devices or control panels, to the 
PLC panel and into PLC registers. Each signal is tested from field device to PLC, and from PLC to final 
control element for PLC outputs. Programmer’s PLC code is not used in this test. 

NAT: After all fiber and other network cables are installed, conduct the NAT to demonstrate that all 
Contractor-provided cabling and hardware work as specified. 

CEET: Programmer shall load the PLC program for testing. PLCs are connected to the network at this time. 
The CEET is similar to the PAL, except now signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, and all 
the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens. Shall be performed by the Contractor and Programmer 
working together, with assistance from the OWNER or the inspection staff, as needed. The test shall  verify 
input signals and create output signals from, the SCADA HMI Station. 

MST: Test mechanical equipment and instruments with equipment operating under Local (Manual) control. 
These tests are performed without reliance on PLC program logic, unless the PLC logic is provided with 
packaged systems. Contractor shall also perform startup and commissioning tests of all mechanical 
equipment.

SFT: Performed by the Programmer and Contractor. Some OWNER assistance is generally required. 
Construction inspection staff witness the tests. The purpose is to verify the proper operation of all PLC 
control logic and its interaction with field equipment and devices. Feedback control loops are also tuned at 
this time.

O&M Manuals: Consisting of final Loop Descriptions and complete, annotated program listings for all 
control system programming and configuration. 

Operator Training: Training by the Programmer on the operation of the system and the use of the operator 
displays  for each of the software package developed by  the Programmer, utilizing the equipment and 
software applications that are to be supplied for the project.

Maintenance Training: Training by the Programmer on new and modified PLC and SCADA software 
programs and configurations. 

Record Documentation: Record documentation for programming work including PLC program listings, 
SCADA Software Configuration, Design drawings.

Follow-Up Services: Provide follow-up system support after the control system has been placed in 
operation. 

Corrective Services: For a period of one year after the start of beneficial use Programmer shall correct any 
errors or omissions in programming and other Programmer services, and repair or replace equipment 
provided that fails or is found to be defective during this period.

Maintenance Services: Provide maintenance services or modifications on hardware and software as 
directed by the Owner under a separate maintenance contract.

csu1210w1.ai
CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B

599



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 

Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 

Amount

 Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 

Amount
SCADA 

Services

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$     
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$           
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$           
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$           
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$             
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$        
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$             
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$     
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$           
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$           
Amendment 9 Facilities Re-Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$             
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$     
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$        

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council 10/20/15 1,496,877$     221,965$        1,496,877$     

Amendment 13 SCADA Services City Council pending 1,828,155$     221,965$        1,828,155$     
Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     6,067,286$     1,828,155$     396,208$        11,434,296$   

February 2, 2016

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment B
600



601



602



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 2 

Carollo will serve as the Prime Consultant for the Project and will be responsible for 
coordinating ESDC. In completing the work defined by this Scope of Services, Carollo will use 
the following Subconsultants: 
 

Subconsultant Role 
MWA Architects (MWA) Architectural Field and Office ESDC Services 
GeoEngineers (Geo) Geotechnical Field and Office ESDC Services 
Cosmopolitan Marine Engineering (CME) Marine Engineering Outfall Startup Services 
Enviroissues (EI) Public Process Support 
Webster Environmental (WE) Odor Control Office ESDC and Startup Services 

 

The level of construction assistance required by the Consultant is highly dependent upon the 
GC/CM Contractor's (Hoffman Construction of Washington) performance and the level of 
assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will review job progress on a 
monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify the effort to complete 
Project tasks as defined by the Scope of Services. With written authorization from the City, 
adjustments to the Scope of Services and Consultant's level of effort will be made as deemed 
appropriate by the Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of effort and 
associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in D-3.2. Task 900 of this 
Scope of Services includes a budget allowance that may be used to cover additional services, 
as authorized by the City. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
Task 200 - Public Process Support for Construction 
Task 300 - Public Process Support 
Task 810 - Project Management 
Task 820 - Project Meetings 
Task 830 - Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 - Office Services During Construction 
Task 900 - Management Reserve 

SCHEDULE 

This Scope of Services is based on a duration of 32 months covering construction of the 
Secondary Building Foundation and Wall Package and construction of CWF, as currently 
estimated by the GC/CM Contractor's February 4, 2016 schedule. 
 

Milestone Schedule Estimate 
Deep Foundation Award April 2016 
Process Facility Award August 2016 
Commence Plant Startup and Commissioning June 2018 
Final Completion of CWF October 2018 

 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
603



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 3 

TASK 200 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction  

Continue maintaining website for construction and project activities. Update website on a weekly 
basis during facility construction, and overall monthly for ease of navigation for ongoing final 
design/project activities. 

Subtask 240 - Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  

Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach. Consultant will:  

 Continue to assist City in implementing construction communications as defined in a 
previously-finalized Construction Communications Plan/Good Neighbor Plan adopted by 
City Council in 2015. 

 Support ongoing public information availability during construction. This will include in-
person meetings in Oak Harbor every other month (total eleven), participation in a weekly 
project team call (up to 92), participation in a weekly construction update call in order to 
compile weekly project email updates (up to 92), development of weekly project email 
updates (up to 92). 

 Support briefing coordination to update community groups about project, including 
coordination of standard presentation slide deck with three major updates. 

 Lead logistics to implement a Ribbon Cutting event for facility, including event invitation, 
planning, day-of logistics, and keepsake. 

 In consultation with City staff, draft content and develop up to four (4) one-page double-
sided project update fliers and up to four (4) full-size (11x17 double-sided) project 
newsletters/mailers.   

Task 200 Assumptions 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

2. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

3. In-person meetings shall include up to two SUBCONSULTANT staff.  

4. Construction duration assumed to be 92 weeks for weekly activities.  

5. Construction duration assumed to be 22 weeks for monthly activities.  

6. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed to be generated, compiled, and 
edited by SUBCONSULTANT for public consumption. 

7. SUBCONSULTANT shall maintain an ongoing list of project fence graphics/banners and 
coordinate with contractor for location. If necessary, SUBCONSULTANT will work with 
City staff to make minor updates to the project fence graphic map or construction impact 
text.  

8. Direct costs associated with day-of logistics, notification/postcard and keepsake for 
Ribbon Cutting shall be invoiced directly to City staff.  

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
604



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 4 

9. SUBCONSULTANT shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with 
this task.  

10. SUBCONSULTANT shall not attend briefings.  

11. The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage. 

Task 200 Deliverables 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

Weekly web updates 230 Weekly per schedule 

Weekly construction updates 240 Weekly per schedule 

One (1) stakeholder briefing presentation and three 
(3) updates  

240 Per schedule 

Ribbon notifications and associated materials 240 Per schedule 

Up to four (4) project information fliers and four (4) 
project newsletters  

240 Per schedule 

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 

Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/City Council Workshops 

Provide additional materials to support public process associated with design and permitting 
activities. SUBCONSULTANT services will include:  

Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops or another 
type of outreach event with similar level of effort, defined below.  

For each meeting coordinate with City staff to:  

 Participate in up to two (2) planning sessions via phone;  

 assist City to arrange for suitable meeting location; prepare meeting plan;  

 produce up to six (6) display boards;  

 assist with development of PowerPoint presentation;  

 develop sign-in sheet and public comment form;  

 develop draft and final agenda;  

 develop draft and final meeting announcement postcard and display ad notification;  

 provide day-staffing, including one (1) facilitator and one (1) support staff; and  

 produce one (1) draft and one (1) final meeting summary (minutes). 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
605



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 5 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 

P1 – Public Meeting No. 1, Q4 2016 Provide project update 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2, Q2 2017 Provide project update 

P3 – Public Meeting No. 3, Q4 2017 Provide project update 

P4 – Public Meeting No. 4, Q2 2018 Provide project update 

Subtask 360 - Council Meeting/Workshop Participation 

SUBCONSULTANT will support monthly presentation development for Council meetings, and 
attend up to six Council meetings or workshops in a speaking capacity. 

Task 300 Assumptions 

1. Any other planning or Council meeting attendance shall be captured in Subtask 240. 

2. Public Meetings may be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

3. The City will pay for meeting locations and facilities. 

4. The City will coordinate with local paper to publish announcements and include notices 
of meetings on their website. 

5. The City will coordinate posting and distribution of meeting announcements.  

6. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 
postage.  

7. The City will pay for all costs related to printing meeting boards.  

8. SUBCONSULTANT will participate in planning meetings via phone, unless coordinated 
with meetings identified in Subtask 240. 

9. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

10. The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage.   

11. Any other planning or Council meeting attendance shall be captured in Subtask 240. 

Task 300 Deliverables 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

Up to four (4) Public Meeting/Council Workshop 
Materials 

340 Per Schedule 

TASK 810 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Provide project management services throughout the duration of the contract, including the 
following activities: 

1. Provide management of Consultant's project team to track schedule and budget, work 
elements accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and 
budget needed to complete this Scope of Services.  

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
606



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 6 

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month's accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes. 

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor the efforts of all subconsultants. 

4. Conduct meetings on a monthly basis through the Project completion with the City 
Project Manager and other City staff to discuss Project status, action items, and potential 
areas of concern. Publish meeting minutes with action items that require a response by 
team members, City staff, or other parties identified at the meeting. Develop and 
maintain a rolling Action Item list updated at least monthly and as needed. Develop and 
maintain a rolling Decision List updated at least monthly and as needed. 

5. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
requirements, following Final Acceptance. 

Task 810 Assumptions 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report and will account for all 
activities and tasks defined in the Scope of Services. 

3. The Consultant DM will be on-site an average of once per month throughout the duration 
of Project to review Project status. 

4. The GC/CM Contractor has elected to use Prolog as the Document Management 
System software for the Project. Consultant will use the software to manage 
construction-related documents in accordance with the City's objectives for the Project. 

Task 810 Deliverables 

1. Monthly progress reports (32). 

2. Declaration of Completion Letter by the Engineer of Record. 

3. Project Management meeting minutes and Action Items. 

TASK 820 - PROJECT MEETINGS 

Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project.  

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 

Participate in a Construction Kick-off Meeting attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM 
Contractor, Construction Manager (KBA), subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm 
roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent items related to construction of the Project. 

Subtask 821 Assumptions 

1. City and GC/CM Contractor will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-off Meeting. 

2. Four (4) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, DM, RE, and 
Architect. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
607



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 7 

3. GC/CM Contractor will preside and produce the agenda and meeting minutes. 

Subtask 821 Deliverables 

1. Supplemental meeting materials, as required by the City to assist the GC/CM 
Contractor. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 

Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFIs), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project. The Consultant's RE will regularly attend 
meetings, and manage attendance of the design team and subconsultants as needed. 

Subtask 822 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings 
and prepare necessary materials and minutes. 

2. DM will attend 32 meetings, and RE will attend up to 140 weekly progress meetings over 
the duration of the project. 

Subtask 822 Deliverables 

1. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM Contractor. 

2. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM Contractor action items, as required. 

TASK 830 - FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide on-site design coordination, general conformance review, and field administration 
services as defined by the following subtasks. 

Subtask 831 - Field Technical/General Coordination 

Provide a RE to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the GC/CM 
Contractor. The RE will be responsible for the following tasks: 

1. Monitor Construction for General Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and 
monitor construction work for general compliance with the contract documents. 
Document and report any observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City, and 
monitor the correction of these deficiencies. 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Personnel: Coordinate and manage work of 
subconsultants and serve as the liaison between the subconsultants and the City and 
GC/CM Contractor. 

3. Track RFI: Coordinate and manage the RFI process according to the contract 
documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before responding or distributing 
to the design team or subconsultant.  

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
608



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 8 

4. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing for review. 

5. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage, coordinate, and/or prepare field 
memos and issue clarifications of drawings and specifications to the GC/CM Contractor. 

6. Review Change Order Requests: Assist the City’s Project Manager in developing 
change order value on more complex Change Orders/Claims, at the request of the City. 

7. Documentation of Construction: Oversee inspection reports and photographs for visits 
by the Consultant's discipline engineers and/or subconsultants. 

8. Provide periodic site visits by the following disciplines to review progress and identify 
potential deficiencies in the work. 

Subtask 831 Assumptions 

1. RE will be on-site throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based on RE 
providing an average of 40 hours per week (100% commitment) over the 32-month 
Project duration. This time is allocated to resolving technical issues as they arise, 
general review of on-going work, as a liaison to the design team under this task, and 
attendance at weekly progress meetings. 

2. The City's Construction Manager (CM) will review the Construction Schedule, progress 
payments, and handle normal change orders and/or simple claims. 

3. CM will monitor Force Account work. 

4. CM and GC/CM Contractor will prepare daily inspection documentation and 
photographs, which the Consultant's RE will be allowed to review. 

5. The Consultant will provide the following discipline and specialty staff to review work in 
progress:   

 
Discipline Site Visits 

Structural 20 
Electrical 10 
HVAC 2 
Odor 2 
Architect 20 

Observations by the Structural Engineer will be incorporated into a signed and sealed 
Structural Observation Report (SOR) to be filed with the building official. This document 
will be required for issuance of a CO. 

6. CM will provide qualified inspection staff to perform testing, special, and continuous 
inspection of work. CM will verify that deficiencies identified during Consultant's 
structural engineer visits have been properly addressed with reports that will supplement 
Consultant's SOR to the building official. 

Subtask 831 Deliverables 

1. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
609



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 9 

2. Tracking logs for RFIs, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

Subtask 832 - Startup and Commissioning Services 

Assist the City and GC/CM Contractor during startup and testing activities. Witness startup and 
testing for compliance with the Contract Documents. Attend and participate in workshops and 
meetings associated with commissioning and startup planning and implementation. Assist in 
establishing appropriate process settings for operation of facility. 

Subtask 832 Assumptions 

1. SL will review and document commissioning/startup activities according to the Contract 
Documents. 

2. Consultant will provide additional engineering assistance from the design team as 
needed during commissioning and startup activities. A staff engineer familiar with the 
process will be present assisting the Consultant's SL during plant start-up. 

Subtask 832 Deliverables 

1. Written documentation of startup testing results, with process and operational 
recommendations as appropriate. 

Subtask 833 - Factory Acceptance Testing 

Provide a discipline engineer to attend and review the factory acceptance tests for the Vendor 
provided control systems to confirm electrical and instrumentation interfaces and coordinate 
with overall electrical, instrumentation, and control architecture.  

Subtask 833 Assumptions 

1. Conduct a total of three (3) separate vendor factory acceptance tests, one (1) each for 
the biosolids dryer, membrane bioreactor system, and ultraviolet disinfection system. It is 
assumed that each test will last three (3) days. 

2. Factory acceptance testing will be performed during a single site visit at facilities located 
in the United States with the exception of the biosolids dryer. It is assumed that the dryer 
FAT will occur in Germany. 

Subtask 833 Deliverables 

1. Brief summary of the results of the factory acceptance testing. 

Subtask 834 - Witness Testing 

Provide a staff engineer for witnessed factory testing of equipment as specified in the Contract 
Documents to confirm that testing is performed in accordance with the design intent. Prepare a 
brief summary report with recommendations documenting the results of the factory witness 
testing. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
610



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 10 

Subtask 834 Assumptions 

1. Witness testing is currently specified for the following equipment: 

a. Headworks Influent Pumps 

b. WAS Pumps 

c. WAS Transfer Pumps 

d. Centrifuges 

2. Factory witness testing for all equipment will be performed during a single visit to 
factories located in the United States. 

Subtask 834 Deliverables 

1. Brief summary documenting the results of the factory witness testing. 

Subtask 835 - Process Training of O&M Staff 

Direct and document activities associated with staff training for systems and facilities associated 
with the Project. Proactively schedule staff training to integrate with overall commissioning 
effort. Coordinate with City staff to confirm format and content for four (4) discrete training 
modules. Develop and digitally record staff training modules and deliver to City for use. Provide 
representatives from the design team to participate in field training and walkthrough tours of key 
systems and facilities, as requested by City. 

Subtask 835 Assumptions 

1. Four (4) training modules will cover Headworks, Aeration Basins and RAS/WAS, 
Membrane Bioreactors and UV disinfection, and Solids Handling. 

Subtask 835 Deliverables 

1. Meeting minutes, as required. 

2. Four (4) training modules (electronic format) on DVD (2 copies each). 

Subtask 836 - Punch List 

Conduct a final inspection of the completed facilities and identify uncompleted items to add to 
the punch list prepared by the GC/CM Contractor. If requested, assist the City in negotiations of 
unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections.  

Subtask 836 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor and CM will proactively perform their own punch list walks, and not 
rely solely on the Consultant's efforts. GC/CM Contractor will incorporate the 
Consultant's list into their master conformed punch list, and advise City and Consultant 
when items are resolved and ready for re-inspection. 

Subtask 836 Deliverables 

1. List of supplemental items to be included on the GC/CM Contractor punch list. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
611



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 11 

Subtask 837 - Warranty Services 

Visit the Project site near the end of the warranty period to review structures, equipment, and 
systems. Identify items that are not functioning in accordance with the design. Develop a list of 
items requiring corrective actions and issue to the City and GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 837 Assumptions 

1. City will notify GC/CM Contractor of any warranty issues that occur within the warranty 
period during the normal course of operation. Consultant will be notified if the identified 
issue is claimed to be a result of design deficiency. Consultant will review and provide 
input to facilitate resolution of warranty item. 

2. GC/CM Contractor will be responsible for coordinating with vendors and subcontractors 
to facilitate corrective actions. 

Subtask 837 Deliverables 

1. List of items requiring corrective action to be provided to the GC/CM Contractor. 

2. Correspondence to the City that addresses any claims of design deficiencies. 

TASK 840 - OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide office engineering services as defined by the following tasks. 

Subtask 841 - Request for Information 

Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 

Subtask 841 Assumptions 

1. Effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. 

2. Budget is based on 850 RFIs. Review of RFIs directly related to Consultant's design is 
3.5 hours per RFI inclusive of time for processing through the GC/CM Contractor's 
Prolog Document Management System (DMS). Review of RFI's directly related to 
subconsultant design is 1.25 hours for coordination and includes DMS processing time. 

Subtask 841 Deliverables 

1. Up to 850 RFI responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 

Review shop drawings and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and 
provide written responses, as described below. 

Subtask 842 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal 
prior to forwarding to the Consultant for review. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
612



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 12 

2. Effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to document 
responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 800 submittals and 200 resubmittals. Review of submittals 
directly related to Consultant's design is 6 hours per submitted inclusive of time for 
processing through the GC/CM Contractor's DMS. Review of submittals directly related 
to subconsultant's design is 2.5 hours per submittal for coordination and includes DMS 
processing. 

4. GC/CM Contractor will review all site safety and "Buy America" related submittals. 

5. Total number of submittals and resubmittals is directly related to GC/CM Contractor's 
management of its subcontractors. It is assumed that GC/CM Contractor will proactively 
manage subcontractors to minimize the number of submittals required. 

6. City's CM will review schedule of values, progress payments, and construction schedule 
submittals. 

Subtask 842 Deliverables 

1. Up to 800 submittal responses and 200 resubmittal responses in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

Subtask 843 - Review of Start-up and Training Plans 

Review GC/CM Contractor and subsystem facility startup and commissioning test plans and 
schedules. 

Subtask 843 Assumptions 

1. SL will be responsible for reviewing the startup and training plans and schedules. 

Subtask 843 Deliverables 

1. Startup and training plan comments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 844 - Review of O&Ms 

Review manufacturers' O&M manuals with written responses. 

Subtask 844 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will implement quality control measures to screen each O&M manual 
prior to forwarding to the Consultant for review. 

Subtask 844 Deliverables 

1. O&M manual responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 845 - Design Clarifications 

Prepare design clarifications as needed to address questions regarding the existing design 
developed by the GC/CM Contractor. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
613



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 13 

Subtask 845 Assumptions 

1. Effort includes services to research, develop, and prepare each design clarification to 
allow the GC/CM Contractor to construct the facility. 

2. Budget is based on a total of 100 design clarifications. Consultant estimates 20 hours 
per Design Clarification. 

3. Effort excludes any City or GC/CM Contractor -requested redesign of the facility to alter 
its construction for purposes other than clarification of the original design, including any 
future value engineering suggested by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 845 Deliverables 

1. Up to 100 design clarification packages. 

Subtask 846 - Electronic O&M 

Prepare an Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual for the Project as required by the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 178-240-080, in an Electronic Operation 
Manual (EOM) in a SharePoint® Web site format including the following elements: 

1. The assignment of managerial and operational responsibilities, including plant 
classification and classification of required operators. 

2. A description of plant type, flow pattern, operation, and efficiency expected. 

3. The principal design criteria. 

4. A process description of each plant unit, including function, relationship to other plant 
units, and schematic diagrams. 

5. A listing of process controls that include descriptions, recommended design settings and 
alarm parameters. 

6. A discussion of how the treatment facilities are to be operated during anticipated 
maintenance procedures, and under less than design loading conditions, if applicable, 
such as initial loading on a system designed for substantial growth. 

7. A section on laboratory procedures, including sampling techniques, monitoring 
requirements, and sample analysis. 

8. Recordkeeping procedures and sample forms to be used. 

9. A maintenance schedule that incorporates manufacturer's recommendations, 
preventative maintenance, and housekeeping schedules, and special tools and 
equipment usage. 

10. A section on safety. 

11. A section that lists equipment attributes including spare parts inventory, address of local 
suppliers, equipment warranties, and related equipment O&M manuals. 

12. A listing of final as-built record drawings. 

13. Emergency plans and procedures. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
614



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 14 

Subtask 846 Assumptions 

1. Budget for this task includes a Project Initiation Meeting with City Staff to discuss a draft 
EOM project plan detailing tasks, schedule, budget, team contact and coordination plan 
for EOM development. 

2. Conduct an Organization and Structure Design Workshop to finalize the EOM project 
plan. The workshop will facilitate feedback on Web site structure and content 
organization via pre-defined templates. The draft site structure will be the initial basis of 
design (See Table of Contents). 

3. The Consultant's EOM Lead will attend up to three (3) coordination / review meetings 
either via conference call or on-site meetings. 

4. The Consultant will produce a prototype EOM chapter on an externally hosted website 
utilizing the finalized EOM project plan produced with City's input for guidance. The 
prototype chapter will be shared with Consultant guiding the effort to solicit City Staff 
comments for incorporation at a review workshop. The workshop will include a 
discussion of screen layouts, file formats, administration and integration needs. 

5. After City acceptance of the prototype chapter, Consultant will populate the remaining 
EOM chapters, with the following chapters as the initial basis: 

a. Facility Overview 

b. Preliminary Screening 

c. Influent Pumping 

d. Grit Removal 

e. Fine Screening 

f. Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) 

1) Aeration System 

g. RAS/WAS 

 1) WAS Storage and Pumping 

 2) WAS Storage Aeration 

f. Membrane Filtration 

 1) Aeration System 

 2) Clean-in Place System 

h. UV Disinfection 

i. Effluent Pumping 

j. Sludge Dewatering - Centrifuge 

k. Sludge Drying 

l. Solids Handling 

m. Support Systems 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
615



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 15 

 1) Chemical Systems 

 2) Odor Control System 

 3) Stormwater and Drainage 

 4) Plant Air Systems 

 5) Electrical Systems 

 6) Back-up and Stand-by Power Systems 

 7) Plant Water Systems 

 8) HVAC Systems 

 9) Site Security and Fire Protection 

 10) Grounds 

 11) Laboratory 

6. Consultant will review all EOM chapters for content completeness, accuracy, and 
sufficient detail with City staff. The review will confirm functionality and navigation with 
incorporation of City review comments to improve functionality and usefulness. 

7. Consultant will provide system user training, content management training, and system 
administration training in two (2) workshops. 

8. Consultant will provide O&M documentation that, at a minimum, meets Ecology 
requirements. Additional level of effort to enhance O&M documentation based on City 
preferences may be authorized by the City under a separate amendment. 

Subtask 846 Deliverables 

1. O&M Manual meeting Ecology requirements in electronic format. 

2. Draft and final EOM Project Plans. 

3. Decision log from workshop sessions. 

4. EOM Prototype Chapter. 

Subtask 847 - Record Drawings 

Review the GC/CM Contractor's as-built drawings, produce record drawings in AutoCAD format 
from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known inaccuracies and/or 
omissions on the GC/CM Contractor's drawings. Consultant is not responsible for incorrect 
information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should have been 
provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

Subtask 847 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will be responsible for maintaining accurate as-built information 
throughout construction, and will provide information to the City and Consultant in a 
timely manner in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
616



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 16 

2. Consultant will submit Record Drawings to the City within 60 calendar days following 
receipt of the GC/CM Contractor's as-built markups. Consultant assumes that GC/CM 
Contractor will provide up-to-date accurate as-builts, and will return as-builts to GC/CM 
Contractor if found to be deficient. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 600 drawings. 

Subtask 847 Deliverables 

1. Three (3) half-sized final sets of record drawings. 

2. Two (2) CDs of electronic drawings in ".dwg" format and in Adobe PDF format. 

Subtask 848 - Dispute Resolution 

Evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design errors/omissions, as 
directed by the City. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claim's merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 

Subtask 848 Assumptions 

1. CM will review and provide comments on straightforward Change Order requests and/or 
claims based on changes in scope and conditions. Consultant will assist on a case by 
case basis on up to 60 Change Orders at the City's request. 

Subtask 848 Deliverables 

1. Written responses discussing the merit of claims, as requested by the City. 

2. Up to 60 Change Order responses, as requested by the City. 

TASK 900 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE 

Provide unplanned engineering services throughout delivery of the Project (e.g. additional 
workshops, meetings, evaluations, and field work). Any work performed under this task will 
require prior written authorization from the City's Project Manager. Authorization will specify the 
requested scope of services and cost for the work, which will be reviewed, negotiated, and 
agreed upon by the City's Project Manager and the Consultant prior to performing the work. 

CWF - Carollo Amendment No. 14 - Attachment A
617



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 
Date

Facilities Plan 
Authorized 
Amount

Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 
Amount

SCADA 
Services

Engineering 
Services 
During 

Construction

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$          
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$          
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$          
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$          
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$            
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$             
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$            
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$          
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$          
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$          
Amendment 9 Facilities Re‐Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$            
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$          
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$             

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council 10/20/15 782,703$         713,374$         221,965$         1,496,077$           

Amendment 13 SCADA Services City Council 2/2/16 1,828,155$      221,965$        1,828,155$          
Amendment 14 Services during construction and  City Council 5/3/16 218,427$        5,339,431$     3,538$             5,339,431$          
Amendment 15 Interpretative Center Design Services City Council pending 40,215$           3,538$             40,215$               

Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     5,409,878$     1,828,155$      6,254,681$     396,208$        16,813,142$       

August 22, 2016

WWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment C
618



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #8

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #8) in the amount of 
$10,824,756 + Sales Tax ($941,754)  with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for 
Buildings 20 and 30, and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.c
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #8

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #8) in the amount of 
$10,824,756 + Sales Tax ($941,754)  with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for 
Buildings 20 and 30, and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
the concrete portion of the Headworks (Building 20) and completes the concrete portion of Membrane 
Building (Area 30).  The work involves placing approximately 4700 yds. of concrete in 10 months.    This 
GMP essentially completes the concrete construction for the Headworks Building and the Membrane 
building, keeping the project on the critical path. 

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #8 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 Outfall connection allowance reconciliation – GMP #6 included an allowance for the connection of
the clean water facility to the recently constructed outfall. Changes to the alignment of the outfall 
connection were made to reduce impacts on cultural resources.  This impacted construction
methods and requires the removal and the existing outfall connection.

 Miscellaneous appurtenances for embedment in concrete. – Aluminum brackets, hatch frames, etc. 
will be purchased for embedment in the concrete.

 Crane rental, operator, rigger and bellman through January 15, 2018.
 Support services from Hoffman Construction through the end of the year.

Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 
39.10.  The concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed amount of 

The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
the concrete portion of the Headworks (Building 20) and completes the concrete portion of Membrane 
Building (Area 30).  The work involves placing approximately 4700 yds. of concrete in 10 months.    This 
GMP essentially completes the concrete construction for the Headworks Building and the Membrane 
building, keeping the project on the critical path. 

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #8 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 Outfall connection allowance reconciliation – GMP #6 included an allowance for the connection of 
the clean water facility to the recently constructed outfall. Changes to the alignment of the outfall 
connection were made to reduce impacts on cultural resources.  This impacted construction
methods and requires the removal and the existing outfall connection.

 Miscellaneous appurtenances for embedment in concrete. – Aluminum brackets, hatch frames, etc. 
will be purchased for embedment in the concrete.

 Crane rental, operator, rigger and bellman through January 15, 2018.
 Support services from Hoffman Construction through the end of the year.

Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 
39.10.  The concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed amount of 

619



$7,024,188.  To ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into the contract 
document.  KBA and city staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and monthly basis.  The 
City’s construction manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as required by RCW 
39.10350 (e) and found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C). 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #8) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #8 is $10,824,756 plus $941,754 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  
At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but 
those amounts are included in the contract.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council

 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.

December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.

April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the amount of 
$2,337,687. 

June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of 

$7,024,188.  To ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into the contract 
document.  KBA and city staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and monthly basis.  The 
City’s construction manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as required by RCW 
39.10350 (e) and found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C). 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #8) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #8 is $10,824,756 plus $941,754 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  
At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but 
those amounts are included in the contract.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council

 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.

December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.

April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the amount of 
$2,337,687. 

June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of 
$908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 - GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B.

 

October 20, 2015 -  GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B.

 

January 19, 2016 -  GMP #6 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep C.

 

January 5, 201 -  GMP #7 was approved by Council for Deep Foundation Concrete Construction.

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Additional early equipment procurement (mechanical equipment, data processing equipment, etc.)

June 16, 2015 - GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of 
$908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 - GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B.

 

October 20, 2015 -  GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B.

 

January 19, 2016 -  GMP #6 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep C.

 

January 5, 201 -  GMP #7 was approved by Council for Deep Foundation Concrete Construction.

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Additional early equipment procurement (mechanical equipment, data processing equipment, etc.)

620



 Process Building construction
 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $10,824,756 + Sales Tax ($941,754)  

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

 

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 
select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 

 Process Building construction
 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $10,824,756 + Sales Tax ($941,754)  

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

 

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 
select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

 

July 1, 2015  – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman                 
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

 

December 2, 2014  –   City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

 

April 21, 2015  – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 

select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

 

July 1, 2015  – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman                 
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

 

December 2, 2014  –   City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

 

April 21, 2015  – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 

621



amount of $2,337,687.

 

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount 
of $908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount 
of $2,028,222.

 

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

 

April 7, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in 
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

amount of $2,337,687.

 

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount 
of $908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount 
of $2,028,222.

 

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

 

April 7, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in 
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPSCITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

November 13, 2013  – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

 

November 19, 2013  – Project delivery options were discussed.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #8)
2. Attachment B - GMP #8 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
6. Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
7. Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
8. Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
9. Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

November 13, 2013  – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

 

November 19, 2013  – Project delivery options were discussed.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #8)
2. Attachment B - GMP #8 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
6. Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
7. Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
8. Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
9. Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5

622

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975519x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471974766x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471974799x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471974875x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975001x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975035x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975068x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975107x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975133x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975165x_at.pdf


10. Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
11. Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7
10. Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
11. Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7

623

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975165x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1471975195x_at.pdf


624



625



626



627



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
17-Aug-16

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev 1

GMP Amendment No. 8 Recapitulation

Area 20 and Remainder of Area 30 Concrete Work

Direct Cost of Work

Remaining Concrete Work - Area 30 HSI 4,118,678$                     

Concrete Work -- Area 20 HSI 2,314,553$                     

Outfall Connection Allowance Reconciliation HCC 202,120$                        

Concrete Mockup Allowance HCC 4,000$                             

Area 30 Floor Access Doors Purchase Allowance HCC 49,000$                           

Area 20 and 30 Aluminum Cover Allowance HCC 240,000$                        

Drain Board on Deep Foundations Area 20 & 30 HCC 27,707$                           

Fiberglass Weirs and Stop Plates Allowance - Area 20 & 30 HCC 41,300$                           

Membrane Baffle Wall Anchor Bolts HCC 3,000$                             

Embedded Aluminum Support Angles HCC 23,830$                           

Total Direct Costs 7,024,188$                     

Negotiated Support Services

Negotiated Support Services HCC 1,735,438$                     

Tower Crane isolation wall HSI 32,837$                           

Tower Crane Rental  through completion (Demob 1/15/18) Morrow 640,000$                        

Total NSS 2,408,275$                     

Total NSS and Direct Costs 9,432,463$                     

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 330,136$                        

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 188,649$                        

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies 9,951,248$                     

Specified General Conditions 429,224$                        

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Conditions 10,380,472$                   

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 444,284$                        

Total GMP Cost  - This Amendment 10,824,756$                   

Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 941,754$                        

Total Amendment No 8 (Incl. Sales Tax) 11,766,510$               

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST)

Preconstruction Services 790,050$                        

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$                     

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 1,991,249$                     

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 836,130$                        

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 5,109,549$                     

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 2,028,222$                     

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 3,966,503$                     

GMP Amendment No. 7 -- Area 30 Deep Concrete & Misc 9,355,968$                     

Contract Subtotal Through Amendment 7 26,630,988$                   

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 37,455,744$               

CWF - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment B
628



City of Oak Harbor Washington

Clean Water Facility Project

Hoffman Project Number 5100014

GMP Amendment No 8 - Area 20 and Remaining Area 30 Concrete Work  

Period from May 31, 2017 to November 30, 2017

Negotiated Support Services Scope

28 Week Duration 

Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance   (.01 TCC) Incl w-amend 7

Remaining Premium 

on Summary

NSS 007001 Office manager (7 mos) 38,836.00$                 

NSS 007001 QA/QC Lead ( 12 mos ) 132,240.00$               

NSS 007001 Job services   / field supt - E Spicer  (7 mos) 85,652.00$                 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce  -- BIM modeling   (8  hours per week x 18 weeks) 14,400.00$                 

NSS 007001 Todd Schultz - Safety Manager  (1 day per week 19 mos) 12,920.00$                 Not previously incl.

NSS 007012 Temp housing (28 weeks) 10,500.00$                 

NSS 007012 HSI Supervision Relocation (If required) 5,000.00$                   

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (7 mos) 4,550.00$                   

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints  (7mos) 700.00$                       

TC 007065 Tower crane outbound freight Morrow 6,500.00$                   

TC 007067 Tower crane dismantle  (portion not included in amendment 6) NWTC 16,900.00$                 

TC 007067 Tower crane dismantle assist crane (portion not included in amendment 6) Ness 20,312.00$                 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party Incl w-amend 6

TC 007069 Hoisting rigging supply and maintenance (7 mos) 4,550.00$                   

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (6/1/17 - 1/15/18) Garner 149,985.00$               

NSS 015750 Rigger / Bellman for tower crane (6/1/17 - 1/15/18) Garner 146,355.00$               

NSS 015750 Forklift Operator full time  (9/1/16-9/30/17)  56 weeks, 5% Casual  OT HSI 191,584.00$               2240 MH

NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (7 mos) 21,000.00$                 

NSS 007069 Small Tools (7 months) 5,600.00$                   

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party  (28 weeks) 14,000.00$                 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup w-spec GC

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension - 4 units (28 weeks) 2,128.00$                   

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 28 weeks) 2,128.00$                   

Added radios for 

operators and 

bellman

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 28 weeks rental 1,120.00$                   

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters  for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) 5,600.00$                   

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 35,540.00$                 

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 77,090.00$                 

NSS 007081 Tower Crane Property Tax  ($800/mo) Morrow 16,000.00$                 

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (28 weeks) 2,800.00$                   

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month  for 7 mos)

Answering 

Innovations 910.00$                       

NSS 010500

Ming Survey  $95/hr st and $117/hr ot 

(1680 hrs ST and 112  hrs OT) Ming 129,528.00$               

3/4 time 2 man crew, 

2 hours OT / week 

100% of period

NSS 015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (212lf)  7 months Yard 3,927.00$                   

NSS 015300 Fence Rental Extension  (7 months) United 4,025.00$                   

NSS 015300 Temporary Fencing at Outfall Connection (3 months) United 1,125.00$                   

NSS 015180 Temp Water Service (7 months) 1,120.00$                   

NSS 015180 Dewatering System Maintenance (7 months) 21,000.00$                 

NSS 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (7 months) 14,000.00$                 

NSS 015220 Temp Road Maint 5,600.00$                   

NSS 015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (7 months) 19,600.00$                 

NSS 015280 First Aid Station Maintenance & Supply ( 7 months) 2,100.00$                   

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (7 months) 3,500.00$                   

NSS 015280 Safety Rails , Ladders and Maint ( HSI Support) 35,000.00$                 

NSS 015100 Temporary Electric -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 7 months 8,400.00$                   

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each , 28 weeks) 11,812.50$                 

NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 28 weeks) 57,400.00$                 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (28 wks) PCI 8,400.00$                   

NSS 015200 Pedestrian Protection Canopy at WIB North Side (60 wks) PCI 16,800.00$                 

CWF - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment B
629



Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 28 weeks) 14,000.00$                 

NSS 015282 Drug Tests  (130 ea) 11,050.00$                 

NSS 015800 Signage  (7 mos) 5,600.00$                   

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply  (7 months) 6,650.00$                   

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 7 mos) 3,500.00$                   

NSS 017990 Job Services (28 weeks, one individual) HSI 95,200.00$                 

NSS 017990 Job Services - Second individual (68 weeks) 231,200.00$               

1,735,437.50$         

CWF - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment B
630



Period from May 31, 2017 to November 30, 2017

Specified General Conditions & Specified Staffing

Weeks Weekly Rate Total

Trevor Thies 22 3,270$                71,940$          

Bryan Shirley 28 3,818$                106,904$        

Ben Larson 28 2,745$                76,860$          

Kevin Ryan 28 2,840$                79,520$          

335,224$        

Other LS GC 94,000$          

Total Specified GC 429,224$        

RFFP Total: 2,007,490$        

Total Specified GC's Included to Date by Amendment

Amount % of Total

Amendment 1 -$               0%

Amendment 2 108,034$       5%

Amendment 3 -$               0%

Amendment 4 162,180$       8%

Amendment 5 -$               0%

Amendment 6 147,112$       7%

Amendment 7 599,220$       30%

Amendment 8 429,224$       21%

Total To Date 1,445,770$   72%

CWF - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment B
631



CWF - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment C
632



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
633



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
634



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
635



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
636



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
637



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
638



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
639



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
640



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
641



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
642



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
643



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
644



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
645



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
646



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
647



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
648



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
649



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
650



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
651



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
652



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
653



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
654



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
655



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
656



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
657



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
658



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
659



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
660



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
661



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
662



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
663



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
664



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
665



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
666



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
667



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
668



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
669



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
670



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
671



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
672



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
673



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
674



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
675



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
676



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
677



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
678



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
679



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
680



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
681



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
682



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
683



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
684



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
685



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
686



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
687



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
688



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
689



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
690



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
691



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
692



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
693



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
694



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
695



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
696



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
697



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
698



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
699



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
700



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
701



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
702



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
703



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
704



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
705



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
706



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
707



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
708



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
709



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
710



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
711



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
712



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
713



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
714



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
715



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
716



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
717



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
718



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
719



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
720



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
721



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
722



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
723



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
724



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
725



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
726



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
727



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
728



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
729



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
730



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
731



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
732



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
733



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
734



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
735



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
736



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
737



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
738



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
739



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
740



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
741



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
742



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
743



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
744



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
745



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
746



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
747



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
748



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
749



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
750



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
751



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
752



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
753



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
754



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
755



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
756



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
757



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
758



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
759



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
760



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
761



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
762



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
763



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
764



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
765



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
766



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
767



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
768



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
769



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
770



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
771



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
772



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
773



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
774



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
775



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
776



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
777



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
778



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
779



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
780



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment D
781



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment E
782



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment E
783



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment E
784



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment E
785



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment F
786



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment F
787



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment F
788



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment F
789



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133111 

- 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name a11d address or locat/011) 

Oak Barbor Clean W.ter Fac!Uty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status a11d address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak HarbQr. WMfijnston 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hol!maa Construction Company of Washington 
I SOS WistJake Aym\12 N .. Suite 500 
Settle. Wasbjngton 98109 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement. the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agi:cemcnt to estelish a Q1tw1eed MuiMttlft Priee. avthorizc tbe 
Constmctim Manam to procees! wjth the Work of Sjtc Peco A - J>artja! Excavation and 
Arcbeologica! Survey <"Site Prmr A'!) and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the Site Prm A Work and relatijl •NCiOtjated Support Services and Soecified General 
Coniiirions. The Owner and'CjjstrnctiOn Manager anticipate subsequent amendment(s) to 
tbg Agrec;ment to establish a Gtiapnteed Maximum Price for tbc rm aindq of!he Work. 
Jhjs js the Third GMP Ammdinmt fq tbis Project. As agreed by the Owner and 
Construction Manager, die Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum·shal! not e11eeed1 exceed for.the Site Prm A Work and related Negotiates! Suwgrt 
Services and Soccified 'Genera! 'Conditions. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction 
Manager's Fee plus' the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of this 
AgreemenL 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed ES 
r,.Ejght Hundred Thitty-Six Thousand One Huncted Thirty Dollars ($836.130.00) fq the 
Site Prm A WorJc and includes all related Nesotiated Support Services. Specified General 
Conditions, Cootingency. and the Construction Manaeq's Fee of 4.28%, subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
lll! is not jncludCd jn the aboVC amount and wj!I be added to the Cost of the Wor!s. 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingmcies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Pro1'ide below or n fere11ce a11 anac/1me11t.) 

Thls document has lmpcrtant 
legal consequences. 
CansullaUon wilh an attorney 
Is encouraged wilh respect to 
Its completion or modification. 

AtA Document A201 ""-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Is 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do not use with other 
general condlUons unless this 
document Is modified. 

AJA Document A133"' -2009 Eahlblt A. CopyrightO 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The Amark:an lnslltute Df An:hltecta. All rights reserved. WARHING: This 
AJA• Document 19 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlematlonal Treaties. Unauthorized n1procluc:tlon ordlseributlon of this AJA" Document, <rK 1 
..., portion of It, ...., rwult In HVere c:lvll and erlmlnal penaltle1, and will be prosecuted to the maalmum •atn poulble und• the law. Thia 
document was pniduced by AJA llOftware at 08:28:11 on 0lilll9/2015 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 whlc:h explras on 04l22/2016, and Is not far resale. 
User Notes: {18319417501 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
790



lnlt. 

See the Ho[man Construction Company GMP Ameodmcnt No. 3 Recapitulation for SjJe frm A - Partial 
Excavation and Archeologiql Swvey. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(Slate tlie 1111mbers or other identificatio11 of accepted altemates. /f tlie Co11tract Doc11ments pem1it tlie Owner to 
accept oilier alternates subseq11ellt to tlie execution of this Ame,,dme111. attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amo1mt for eacll a11d the date wlien the amo1111t expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Pcrfonnance Bond. included within the above prjce. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and state e:cclmions, if a1!)', from tire a/fowa11ce price.) 

Item 
' Arcbco!ogical discovsrjq 

Dcwatcr!ne 

Price ($0.00) 
$57.114.00 
$14.400.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffman Construction ComDaDv GMP Amendment No. 3 Recapitulation for Site Prco A· Panjal 
Exavatjoo and ArchaeoloSjcal Survey. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: See the Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Preparation and Archeologica! Exolm tjon 
TcchniCal Specifi cations elated June 8. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maidmurn Price 
Amendment. 

Doc:umant Title Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications l1ere. or refer to a11 e.Tl1ibit attaclred to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wu1cwa1er Treatment Plant Sjte Pre;paratjon and Archeologica! Ewloratim Technical Soecifications 
c!atcc! Jvni S. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maximum Ptjcc AD1endmc:nt. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an e:x/1iblt attac/1ed to tliis Agreeme11t.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Clean Water facility Sjte Preparation and Arclteo!ogical Exploration PacJsage dated June 8. 201 S and 
other documeots list·cd in thjs Guaranleed Maximum Price Amendment 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(list any other doc11me11ts or i11fom1atio11 here. or refer to a11 e.Thibit attached to this Agreeme111.) 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washjngton Pcoanment of Ecology fimd jng requirements including the 
Water POllUtion Control Revolving Fund Spscjfications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance wjth !he City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21. 2015. 

ARTICLE A:I. 
I § A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion for Site Peco A Work established by this Amendment: 

AIA Document AU31M - 2009 Exhllllt A. Copyright 0 1991, 2003 llld 2009 by The American lnstltu1e of An:hltacts. All rtg"'9 rallmld. WARNING: This 
AIA• Document I• pnitecttld by U.S. Copyright Law and lnc.matlonal TIWlllln. Unauthorized 1Wprocluctlon 0t dlstrlbullan of this AIA8 Document. or 2 
my portion of It, mmy Mull In....,.,. ctvn and crlmlnlll jMNl!tln, end will be proMCUted to the mulmum utent poslllble under the llw. This 
doc:umllnt wat produced by AIA IOllwanl at 08:28:11 on 06l09l201S under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which expires on 04/22/2016, and 19 not far l1IS8le. 
UNI' Notes: (1831941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
791



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
792



Certlflcatlcm of Document's Authenticity 
AfA®'Document D401TM- 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and bclier, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certillcation at 08:28: II on 06/09/2015 under Order No. 
1248342233_1 fi'om AlA Contract Documents sol\ ware and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
chflflges to th~ original text of AIA10 Document AIJJTM- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AlA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and strik. ng over deleted text. 

------~ ( v_~-+-(__;r 5==----------
roaredJ 

AlA Documont 0401"'- 2001 Cop~lf)ht 0 1992 and 2003 by The Amerlc:onlnaUMII of .Alehltacts. All tlghtu 1'11118rvod. WARNING: Thlu AIA0 Document Is 
protected by U.S, Copylfght t..ow and lnlomattonal Treatloo. Unauti\Qiiufl roproduetlon or dlalrlbutlon of lhls AIAQ Document, or any portion of It, 1 
may mutt In IHIV&I'il clvU Md criminal panal!leu, and wHI be proG<Jcu!Mito the mW<Imum extent poll!llblo undor tho raw. Thl9 docLO'llent was produced by 
AlA software at 06·28:11 or1 05/09/20151Rldar0rdar No.1240342233_1 which OI<JlilllB on0<1122J201&, 11M lo notror reaillo. 
Uaer Notllll: (1031941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
793



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY n OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 
Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 3 Recapit ulation 
Site Prep A - Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey 

1 Direct Cost of Work 

2 Site Prep A 
3 Allowances for Archaeological Discoveries 
4 Allowance for Dewatering Pumping 
5 Total Direct Costs 

6 
7 Negotiated Support Services 

8 
9 

10 
11 

See Detail 

Total NSS 

12 
13 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

14 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% of Direct Costs 
15 
16 Total Dlrect+NSS+Risk Contlng. 
17 
18 Specified General Conditions 
19 
20 Sub Bonds 
21 
22 Sub-Total 
23 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

546,562 
57,114 
14.400 

618,076 

152,834 

770.909 I 

21,633 

192.541 I 

9,271 

801.812 I 
24 GCCM Fee at 4.28% $ 34.318 

25 ..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,r--~~~~~-, 
26 TotalGMPCostThisAmendment IS 836.130 I 
27 Washington State Sales Tax@8.7% $ 72.743 
28 Total Amendment No 3 (lncls Sales Tax) I $ 908,872 I 

Previously Issued Amendments (Including WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 
GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 
Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment incl WSST 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

790,050 
2,775,456 
2.1§4.488 
6,638,866 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
794



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUC'nON COMPANY noF-
BUILDING 
LOCA TION 
ENGINEE R 
SU BJECT 

o •. H • ••• . c ... . .. w .. .. f .. .... . 
O • • H . .... , W'4 
c . ... . 
GMP [ ••• .,. S • • P •• • A 

"'"•' Oe•••• u•• 
BuUdlna Gross .<:nuare ...,,,,,_ 

Reid Dintion 

DIVISION i! - EXISTING CONDITIONS 
0241 13 s •.• u ••• s.,. o .......... .. 
oz., 18 s ..... ..... o . ... ..... .. 
024119 s . .. .... . e ...... n. o .. .......... .. 
025000 S ... R. - . ........ .. 
021000 w •••. ~ .... .. ........ .. 
OZIOOO F ...... R.- ....... . 

DIVISION JI - EA RTllWORX 
312200 G . • • • o 

312300 E. . . ......... F.,, 
312319 o .......... . 
312500 E . . . ........ $.,,. __ ., ,., ....... c ... , ... , 
31 <COCO S .... ., .. ,. . ... . u .... . ... ,,,,,, .. "' 
31 tlCIO O.,, ... P., .. . 
316100 & ... ... P .... . 

SUBTOTAL. DIA.[CT COSTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONSANSIJRANCE 
G •• •• • • c ........ . 
s • ., a ... ,,. . 
P ...... .. . . B .. .. 
PL & POt .. ....... . . 
8 .. .. ... . , R,, . 1 ...... . ... . 
B&OT •• 

NEGOTIATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
DESIGN & EST/MA TING CONnNCENCY 
GCCM RISK CONTINGENCY 
GCCMFEE 

TOTAL. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 

SAL£STAX 
s ..... .. . .... s •... 1 •. 

S .. . P •• ., A 

TO!Al . E.:>llt.IATED GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

E .. 
o .. u •• 

0 

0 

t .. 
1 .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

I .. 
I .. 
t .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

1 .. 
I 5% •• 

r ·-
F • • 

NSS 

··-
I .. 

.1'·!'.\ 
1 .. 

~ IO'i< •• 

S ... P . • ,. A ~2 

PROJECT csr ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• 
P ... . 

S )l 4S!i, 56 

1000 
1000 
>ODO 
5000 

SSS l lO 88 
1263 88• 96 
S6U38 00 

S129 798 40 

$0.00 
SGIB.015 80 

F •• 
F • • 

NSS 
F • • 

51 52 83•00 
1000 

5818 015 80 
n• 311 &2 

Hl6 1'l1 

P . ,. .. i .,, 6, 

s ... 

111 •8& 

10 
10 

s8n11 
5263 805 
161 536 

1129 798 

S6 1B 076 

50 
U 2'1 

f •• 
f •• 
NSS 
f • • 

11 52 83' 
so 

S21 6Jl 
SJ< 318 

$836,131 

172 HJ 

,..,...175 

T ••• • P • ., • •• 
c ••. 

S71 486 
so 
so 
10 
so 
so 

185 371 
S263 885 

167.536 
s 12g198 

10 
so 
so 

$618 076 

F • • 
r •• 

so 
S9 21 1 

'155 
F •• 

S1 52 834 
so 

S21.633 
U 4 318 

$838.131 

s 72 14 3 

$908,875 

JOB NO 51 0001' 
ESTIMATOR IH T 

CHFCKED BY CAB 
DATE 61' 11 S> 

DWG DATE 

'···· c • • Jo .•••••• 

S7l 486 

$5•6 51)() 

SG l 8 076 

S118 055 

c •• • ••.. 

OOO'lo .. . .. . . . .... . 

1 . ...... •• F •• 

1 .... q .... .. ,., tiSS 
1 .. .., .., ....... F .... 

N . .. . , • • SP Jt. 

4 281' •• ,. •• , . ..... . , . 

$838.131 

112 70 

S908.875 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
795



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ,-,OFWAIHINmlN 
BUILDING 
LOCATION 
ENGINEER 
SUBJECT 

A • .,, 

Q .. . H . . .... C .... . \V •• r "" "" ' 5,.. P . ... A 
O ... tt .. , .... Wflo. 
c ...... 
GMP E •• ,...... S ... P .• ,. A 

u ... ..... . 

c ..... ... , ,, .• , ....... : 

c .. 
o. 

S .. .. A11 .. . ... ,. S .... , ,., , A, . -••-* • t; . . ..... ... .. .. , ... .. £ . ... ... ... .. . 

S ., . p . .. . A ,2 

PROJECT CSI ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• I P ..... s •. u •• 
I 

r . •• J .. . & 

JOB NO \ 100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHEC(ED BV CAB 
DATE GJ111S 

owe; DATE 

I f ••u P••i•'"' I T • •" I c •.. c •• Jo .•••.•• 
I I I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
796



R0n')1.\S CO~STRUCTtO:'l COMPA.lll(y 
er \\'ASIUJ\'.GTON 

5, . P ••• A.2 

LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS. CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

BUILDING o ... H . ...... Ci.en Wet• • Fu ;oi.t :r S.r. p, • • A 
LOCATION Q. , H..... WA 
ENGINEER C . ..... 
SUBJECT L. ., • ' A .. ... ... ~ .... , & c ,. o"r•••••u P ....... . . E. ,,..,. . u 

BASIS OF ESTIMATE 
~ ... o._. 

1 6/3/1 5 HCC 
2 6/411 5 HCC 

1. 6/4/15 HCC 
4 
s 
~ 

7 

" 
ASSUMP1IONS OlJAl!E!CAJQNS INCL l/S!ONS AND EXCLUSIONS· 
~OM A.oo D•o••••n 

1. Hr r 
? Hr r 

HCC 

HCC 

1.1 r r 

6. 
1 
A 
Q 

11 
12 
n ,. 

Ill 

n ,, 
,. ,. 
26 

'"· on 

31 
12 

,. 

1A 

41 

44 
45 

47 

•• 
4Q 

51. 

• ..... S.,. P ••• A •• ., ~ . . .. 

o ... ., ....... .. 

N. • , .... .. .. , ""'"o,.. ar •• • '" " " "' "' , .., ,,.6 1M •• d 

108 NO 5100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHECKED ev CAB 
DATE &111 5 

DWC.. DATE 0 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
797



Site Prep A r2 
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Site Prep A ESTIMATE NO. 5100014 
LOCATION: Oak Harbor , WA ESTIMATOR: THT 
ARCHITECT: Carollo CHECKED BY: CAB 
SUBJECT: Division 2 Summary DATE: 6/1/15 

Dwr... nATE: 0 
TOTAL ES T UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST TOT/IL EST 

ACCT Df<;r.RIPTION OF WORK n llANTITY UNIT LABOR • ARnRCOST MTL MTL COST COST 

02 4113 
,_ 

CIHa -

Demolish Asnhall P"vfnn 48000 sf I0.7' 134 733 
Demo curbs Planters and Tr....., 60 tns S234.36 '-14 OR? 
Demo Undemround Utlllties 490 If 124.30 111907 
CaoUtillties ea incl 
Demo Site Liaht Pnl- and Circuits 6 ea !1:1 080.00 S6480 
Demo Uoht Pole Bases 6 ea C:'U2.36 520541 
Prntect Fire Hvdrant 1 ea !l:."'10.00 S500 

Protect monilorino wel 1 8 " 1250.nn $250 
Relocate Postal Service Gano Box 1 ea 11 500.00 S1 500 

171486 

!!:71486 571486 
Subcontractor GC, Eouic. OH&P incl 

Total, S.....,. Sect. 02 4113: ---> $71486 

Page 5 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
798



Site Prep A r2 

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Q • k Harbor C1aan Wacor Fe c-111t:t . Sil• Prop A ESTIMATE NO 51 0001 4 
LOCATION Q .... Harbor . WA ESTIMATOR. THT 
ARCHITECT- C., .... CHECKED BY- CAB 
SUBJECT- D1v1 ·1 .. on 31 Summuy DATE: 611115 

DWG- DATE. 0-J •• 00 
fOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST 101AI l Sl 

ACC T DESCRIPTION OF WORr; QUANTITY UNIT LABOR LABOR COST MH MTL COST COS! 

312200 r. .• ~·- -
Erau 1p m •"l mo b 111• a u on end d•moD1h 1t Dt1on 1 .. $39.000.00 $39.000 
Str ip 6 "' T opsotl •t Guas Ar •eu & Disp oso 2,700 .. $3.41 $9.215 
p,.•P and r ock hau l ro•d to stoc:koll• (515. 201 10.300 ., $1.62 $1 6.686 
Pr. a • nd roc k •cc••• roa d lo B••k•m• tt v RV P. , ... 0 " $1.62 so dete r 

Ramps into e1ca v H1 0n (6' high• 20' w ld a) 10:1 ..,...l\ h pad 729 ... $28.08 $20.470 

$85.371 $85,371 
S uocontroc:tor GC, Equip , OH&P tf'ICI 

Toto•, S.oc . s •••. 31 2200: - -> lln~,.J/ I 

31 2300 i ~ , .. ., ., - .. "'a n• F&u 
U nraslrt c-t. oa £ 111 cov•t•on at E 'llltStl ng Fm · P.'"' '"9 Ar • • 9,219 ... $9.75 $89.881 
~chaeolo u 1~•11y s.".IUVO Eicco wot;on 

6" Cut.•, cioonup bu 1; 1t•t. h•\11 to 1o100 111.p1tu 6.981 D<v $15.66 $109.330 
Auow•nc• fa,. Vacuum E•covotjon i8 1o c atton " ) 20 "" $378.00 $7.560 

A11ow•nc• to,. 1/2 p,.oduatlon r' oto ••c • vet.1on 698 ... $21 .17 $14 .778 
As1ow•nc• tor l,; row St.•ndby (••ngl• c ' ew} 40 "'" $1 .058.40 $42.336 

$263.885 

$263.885 $263.885 
Sub c onu- o cno,. GC, Equ i p, OH&P i nlOI 

I oUI , Speo . Soot. 31 23 00: - ------> >LO.>,<><>:> 

31 2319 10 -.w•t•r• • ... 
A 11 owanc• ror pu m po n l'I 12 wk • $1.200.00 $14.400 
Ecc. 1o~:r Stock W,.u D r ain 1.200 ,, $44.28 $53.136 

$67.536 

$67.536 S67,536 
Suoco~vuot•r GC, Equ 1~ , OH&P lrtC:t 

To•••· Sp•• · s •••. 31 2319: --··> .>Dt ,::J.>C 

312500 E',.""" . ....... ·-- s.d ..... -..... "Co -- I 

TESC M .... u, .~ 0\ St.oc ltpll•• 40.500 .. $0,77 $31 .055 
S11t..r •no o ot. we tlond bou nda r ,. wes t o oc ••• l" O lld 0 " $5.40 $0 d o tor 

Snt F on c o 11t. soulft bou n d •r'Y of B eok t mo a ccoaa rood do te r 

D u"t: Conirot wot.O r' uu e lil. 8 wko $1.500.00 $12.000 
Du a\ cont.t'OI •weepel' 8 wk• $1 .250.00 $10.000 

Sundsrd E co4o a'JI 8 1o ck Roulnll'\Q Wau ( 2 h rah) 222 .. $102.60 $22.743 
U1uo Bock R oto 1n •no Wou (J hlahl 313 .. $172-80 $54.000 

$129.798 

$129.798 $129. 798 
Subconuoct.or GC, Equi p . OH&P uu; I 

T ... ,. s •••. S •• •. 31 25 00: -······> :)l .nt ,/tfC 

I 
I 

division 1.ot•t: 5546,590 

Page 6 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
799



Hottrn•n Constructto"I Comp•"11' 

Building' Q • .., Hert.or Cl••" Wu.r Fa c im, E.i.a"'•t.• S""'"'. ' " Job No : 5109214 
locadon : Oak Ha r boll" . WA Preco n ·> SheH Na : 1 
E ... ,,. • • ,: C .. · 0 110 c. ,. ..: ·> 8 e .... "'.,.,: THT 
Su lloJnt: GMPA .... ,. d ... . ,.,3 ·· 5,,. P .. . . A GSF -> o ... ; 6/3/15 

E. u ... oud L ••• ,. E." '"•t•d M.~ E.u ....... T otel 

Ac et Oe • crllP UO" o ....... uc11' UOM u,.,, .. lo • or Un" M .... ,,., Ca•t Noi. • 
006088 Bulld•r• R1.1it l,..u .. •nce 1 .. 0 17.820 17.820 , 7 .820 NSS ,.,. pr•"''" m 

007001 SuP•' Wl•lon 

Ome• M•n•a•r • Fuu T • .,.. 0 w. 1,000 0 0 0 Amond 2 
s.,H)I Mar . 2 ... ,.1,.,.. 0 Oe)'I 443 0 0 0 A .. . ,.. 2 

007012 Super• llOrJ' T r a v el 

T, .... , ,. ..... b • • NSS 8 w .. 0 250 2.000 2.000 

007026 P 1a 11-• & B•u•p r1nn 

M ••e-a llanaou • 0 .0 Mo 0 250 0 0 NSS 

007060 Equip Ra .. 101· Hott"'•" LS 0 0 0 
Raa •o • • 4 •• 0 w •• 0 19 0 0 NSS 
P1a il •vp • lea J.,, s . .. ,, ,c•• OW1ita 0 150 0 0 NSS 

M11 c 10.0 w •• 0 300 3.000 3,000 NSS 

007061 f._ulp RatUal • Q,,..,,.. 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS 
fo , a. uf\ 10 --· 0 900 9.000 9.000 rr 

007063 Ga• , Ou & Ma1"'•"•nc• 
G •• . Ou & F .... , · E ••• R.cua. 12,000 0 0.20 2.400 2.400 NSS 

007080 U,.. T • • •• an Matorl a la 8 .7% PC 0 -2.600 ·226 -226 

007083 T • • anO frll'\OO 

007098 c.,.. pwt•r c .... ,v•• 0 w •• 0 50 0 0 

010500 Sur"•Y & La,.0 1n 

S ... ,..,.,, (oa "ty or 2) 10 d•1'• 0 1.700 17.000 17.000 NSS 

015100 T •"'P E t eovlo al SF 0 0.22 0 O NSS 
Pow•' D1au1bu1ion U"1t 0 E. 0 3.500 0 0 NSS 
P.- . .. Cord• & Sp•d•r• 0 LS 0 0 NSS 

015110 UtHttJ•• P • .,.,.,. Raimtt Mo 0 650 0 0 B, Owno< 

015120 Uc.nu •• W ••• , 0 Mo 0 100 0 O NSS 
T•mp Wu.rConnac1.& Ram 0 LS 0 2.250 0 0 w1U•

0

am•"'* 2 

015150 T •'"P s •. ut.atiOfl 

L•v•n•• • 2 ••c._ 0.0 Mo 0 0 0 0 whh a"'af\1:1 2 
Handw••" St•t1•11 • 1 ..... 0.0 M. 125 0 0 .... tt. .. amefld 2 

Drop Bo••• and Otapoaa t 0 , •• 0 750 0 0 with amend 2 

015180 Tamp W•ter 0 .0 Mo 0 160 0 0 .., Ith amend 2 

015200 T •mo . Suucu.ira• 
WIS Di..Udlng otn•• ••tup 

C•rpt1t ,epa lr 0 LS 0 1,500 0 0 NSS 
Roor R•P•'' 0 LS 0 1.750 0 0 NSS 
Tot1a1. room r1uur•• and "•P• lr 0 LS 0 1.250 0 0 NSS 
Mtsc. T •mp. 5' .. uct. 2 Mo 6.000 250 6.250 NSS 

015210 T •Mp P,. otao~•n 

Raacota la1td•caOl"G at. L•,.down 0 •• 0 0 0 ••tartonna t g""p 

Arcnaaologlcat S•na1U¥a P.,.,...,.,. 0" 8 0 Owltnamaftd2 

015220 T .... ,, R • ••• & p. , •• ,.. 
Ou at Con«-ol 0 .0 M. 0 750 0 0 ..... , • • , ••• , 

01 5240 T.,..P W oo 8 ••• 0 CY 0 10 0 0 
Tamp S coc1a ,ua aroa 0 .. 0 4.15 0 0 In dlr• a & C IU I 

Print Date: 6/~/m15 PagelofZ FotmRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
800



Hotrm•·" C.nu1· u cc1. ,. c • .; •• "• 

8u11 ~1n 9 : o .... Hu111or c, •• " Wu111r Feont•y E•"'"•U Su,..,,..,.,_ J.111 No: 5109214 

L•••••on: a •• Hue.or , WA Proe:an -> s,, •• t N.: 1 

Eno•"•• ' : c.,.. 11. c. "' .,-, . 8 E.v,,..,o,; THT 
s ... , •• a: GM"P A rot •1Ul,.UM 3 u-s~. p,., .A GSF ·• One! 6/3n5 

Euim•ud L.-.., Est1rq°aud M.a E.v ,,.•u• Tou• 
Aect o •• cne;ci.,, Ouof'IUty UOM U"" Lob or u.,, M ... ,.,. , c .... No••• 

015282 o ... .,. T ••U 35 •• 0 85 2.975 .. 2,975 NSS 

" 015290 f1rscA1d 0 LS 0 1.200 0 Q wlCJ\ •"'end 2 

015300 B . ,.,.lcocl•• ond F • .,, c-fng 

T •"'P fo,..co Ronuf 1,455 LF 0 0.6 87l 873 NSS 
Sotup and R • .., .... , 1.455 LF 1.35 1.964 1.964 NSS 
20' T,.uclt Gu.et 1 .. 450.00 450 450 NSS 
P ........ ""• ' G., •• 2 •• 225.00 450 450 NSS 
F•"•• a ..... , . K R.u 66 •• 75.00 4,928 4.928 NSS 
Ro111ng oc • • • llll O • li. wall 1.290" 15.00 19.350 19,350 NSS 

5 200 1.000 150 750 1,750 NsS 
015800 Consfr.,cUo" S 1111 n • 650 650 650 NSS 

ProJoet Stons 

0 .0 M. 0 800 0 Q wlU\ a "'end 2 
015920 F 0 Eq,..lpmont & SuPJl ~ lt 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 E.1.u,.9 

f urnt1uro 0 .0 M. 450 0 Q w it~ a"'and~ 
Doc., m one Printer/So• n no,. 0 .0 LS 0 1.500 0 Q w lO• •"'Ond 2 
Oocu'" ont Pr1n1or "'0111/da moll 0 mo 0 40 0 0 WIU• •rn•nd 2 
Scanner 0 ,0 mo 0 100 0 0 wnh amontS 2 
F •• 0 Mo 0 50 0 Q wll,, •'"•nCI 2 
Owner'• Troller Fw,,. & Equip 

0.0 Mo 0 850 0 0 WICh Ofll•fl'd 2 
015940 Pho"• & Po-nao• 0 E. 0 750 0 0 .... n,. • .,..,.. 2 

T oC,l•cComputor• 2o• 0.0 M. 0 125 0 Q with alfto"d 2 
Dou Lu,. •nd Motnc 

GI• • • Ctean t .. 11 

017990 Jota s._..,.,:.. 0 MH 100 0 0 OwlU••m•fla2 
Es • •v•t•d 1aoct "'ontcor / dtr•C:IDr 8 wk• 3,800 30.400 30.400 

033062 Canon ·• • • Pu,..pln9 0 0 0 0 

37,400 115,434 152.834 0 

Print Date: 6/4/2D15 l'lplafl FormRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment G
801



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment H
802



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment H
803



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment H
804



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment H
805



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment I
806



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment I
807



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment I
808



CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment I
809



lnlL 

I AIA Document A133 .. -2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

far the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water f1cillty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal ;status and addn!M) 

Citv of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrjnglm Drive 
Oak Harbor. Wasbinl!lon 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Homup Copstrgctlon ComRpy of Wasbl-cton 
1 SOS Westlake Avenue N .. Sui1e soo 
Seattle. Washington 98 I 09 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Gu11"1Ateed Mulmum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreemenl, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estal911slt a Gwleed ManimHlll Pflee. authorize the 
Constmctjm Manager to proceed wjth the Work of Site Prep C • Microoile Installation 
and to establish a Guaranleed Maximum Price for !he Site Prep C • Miqopjle Installation 
Work and related Negotiated Suoport Senices and Specified General Conditions. The 
Owner and Coos1ruction Manaaq anticjoale svmuent amendmentCsl to the Agreement 
to establish a Guaran•eecl Maximwn P,lce for tbe remajnder of the Work. This is lhe Sixth 
OMP Amendniait for Ibis Project. As agreed by the OWner and Consaruction Manager, the 
Guaranteed Maximwn Price is an amount that the Conlract Sum shall not aeee.t. ~ 
for the Sjte Pren C • Mjcro0ile Installation and related Negotiated Supoort Seryic:es and 
Specified General Conditions. The Conlract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's 
Fee plus the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 oflhis Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed {S 
)..Three Million Nine Hundred Sixtv-Six Thousand Five Hundred Three Dollars 
CS3.9§6.S03.00l for the Site Prep C- Mjqppilc Jnstpll&tion WorJc. which ContJJct Sum 
includes all related Nenotiated Suooort Services. Specified General Conditions. 
Contin11ency. and lhe Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to additions and 
deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract DocumenlS. Sales tax is not 
included in the above amount and wjl! be added lo the Cost oflbe Work, 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximwn Price. 
(Provide below or reference an allachmenL) 

This document hn lmpcr1ant 
legal consequences. 
Consultatlon with 1n .uomev 
Is encouraged with raped to 
Its ccmpleUon or modlricallon. 

AIA Document A201 111-2007. 
General Concfdlons d the 
Contract for ConstNctlon, ii 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do nol UH with other 
general conditions unlm this 
document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1lJ .. - 200I Elhlblt A. COpyrighl C 1 H t. 21lD3 and 2009 by The American lnltitule of An:hjtects. All rights nt111Vlld. WARNING: Thlll 
AIA• Document I• protec:t9d by U.S. Copyright Law ind lntem1Uon1I r .. 1t1es. Un1uthor1zed 1'9production or distribution of thl1 AIA• Documenl, or 1 
111y portion of It, may mun In 11111e111 clvll ind crtmlnal l*!lllln, and will be prDMClltld to the mulmum utent posalllle under tht law. Thll =:":r..W:-1 produced by Alo\ IOftware at 01138:'tftFO~etit9~M~-1~flR1~1,ttvtllch espltes on D412212D1e, and 11 not ror res11te 

111211547921) CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
810



Jnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction ComQl!'ly GMP Amendment No. 6 RecapjtyJatjon for Site Pcm C - Mjqopile 
Installation. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alrcmates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and arc hereby accepted by lhe Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner to 
accept other alternates subsequent to the exec11tlon of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternales 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subconblctor Pavment and Perfonnance Bond. jnclydcd wjthjn the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranleed Maximum Price, if any: 
(ldentlfl allowance and slate exclusions, If any, from the alloH'ance price.) 

n..n 
Ccmnection to new outftll 

Price ($0.00) 
$310.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Asswnptions, if any, on which the Gwnnteed Maximwn Price is based: 

Sec dJc Hoffinm Construction Comoany GMP Ameodmeot No. 6 Rec;apitu!ation for Sjte Pn;o c • Miqo0ile 
lngl!atjon. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Ounnlecd Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplcmcntery and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

1. Addenda I tbrough 4. 

2. Hoffinan Rccommendalion of Award, 

3. Site Pren C - Mlqoojlg Rec!uest for Proposal. 

D11U1111Rl 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guanmteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
{Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit at/ached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment PIUJt Micro0ile Packasc Technical Specifications dated November 2015. 

Stdlon Datl 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawinp here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor W15tmler Treatment Plant Qctobq 2015 Miqopjle Pac!sage 90% Pesf1m. 

Number Title Dltl 

Pages 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon Che following other documents and infonnation: 
(List any other documents or information hen, or refer to an exhibit altoched to this Agreement.) 

ConstnJc:tjon Manggq shall com01y wjth Wasflington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Conb'OI Reyolv!ng Fwd Specifications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manaaer will wforrn 
con51ruc:tjon activities in acconlancc with theCjty of Oak Harbor Cyltl!'a! Resources Memorandwn ofAvcemeot 
IDDrOved April 21. 2015. 

AIA Dowmetlt A1:13,.-200t EiihlbltA. COpyriglltC 11191 , 2003 Ind 200t1 by TneAmeflcln lnttilU!eolArc/llledl. All rlghta rwHrVmd. WARNING: Thi& 
AJA• DcM:umtnt 19 pruttcttd by U.S. Copyright L.IW and lnteml1lon11 Trtatln. Un•uthortzed rwpniducUon or dlstTlbuUon of lhls ~A· Oocumtnt, or 2 
any portion of It. may mull In'""'""' clvU and crlmln•I ptnaltln, and wlll be prvncuted to th• m1almum extent posatbl1 unctor th• law. Thlt 
documlnt wa produced by AJA toftwn 8109 38 2• on 01/08/2011 under Order Ho.124B34223:U wtllch expires on 04122l2011. Ind Is not tor r9Slle 
UHr Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 

(92H<t7821) 
CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J

811



lnlt. 

ARTICLE A2. 
§ A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by 1his Amendment: 

December 29. 2017. 

CONsTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

ROBERT T. SEVERNS 

(Printed name and tllle) (Printed name and title) 

'G'~- ~...,. 

AIADoe&1menlAU3•-20ot ElChlbltA. CopyrightC 11111, 2003111112009bylheAmericln lnslitute otArdlltecb. Al lights rnerved. WARNING: This 
AJA• Document Is P"'tectad by U.S. Copyr1ght Law 1nd lntlmltlonal Tn111tltt. unall1hostnd r1producUon or dlatnbutlon of tta NA• Document, or 3 
any polt.lon or It, may mull In .. ,,.,.. clvll and crtmlnal penalties, 1nd wUI b1 proHCllled to the m1aJmum 111tent poulbl• under the law. Tllil 
doc:lnent waa l)Rlduced by AIA IOftWare 11 oe·311fi1111 Ol§IAP~~~ wtllch explrea on 04/2212018, and II not ror reuia. 
UHrNota: 

(112M47D21) CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
812



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best or my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that 1 created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 08:48:55 on 01 /07/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233 I from AJA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AIAe Document A 133rn - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striki g over deleted text. 

(fitle) 

(Dated) 

AIA Document 0401"' - 2003. Copyright 0 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Aldlilecla • .lill rights IHUvtd. WARNING: Thia AJA" Document 11 
prut.cted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlllmallonal TreallH , Un1uthork9d reproduction or dlatributlon of tide AIA" Document, or any portion of It, 1 mt)' rqutt In nvere i:IYll and cr!mlnal penaltlH, and will be proncut.cl to the mulmum extent ponlble under tha 1-. Thia document was produced by 
AlA 1altware al 08 48:55 on 01 10712016 under Order No.12483-42233_ 1 which eJCplre1on04/22/2016, and 11 not for resale. 
U11rNot11a: 

(1247~276) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
813



=--..HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - 1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 Recapitulation 

Site Prep C -- Micropile Installation 

Direct Cost of Work 

Micro-pile installation 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 1 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 2 and Cap Break at 

Headworks Area 

Sheet pile adjustment for tower crane ftg 

Site flood protection dike 

Connection to new outfall (Allowance) 

Total Direct Costs 

Negotiated Support Services 

CJA 

Pell co 

Pell co 

CJA 
Pellco 

TBD 

Negotiated Support Services HCC 

Tower Crane Foundation and Crane Erection 

Procurement of Diesel Pump for Plant WWF Xylem 

Total NSS 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 

Specified General Conditions 

Sub-Total 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 

Total GMP Cost 

Washington State Sales Tax@ 8.7% 

Total Amendment No 6 (Incl. Sales Tax) 

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 

GMP Amendment No 1-- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

s 
s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

7-Jan-16 

Rev 2 

2,087,050 

73,149 

32,513 

54,108 

9,000 

310,000 

2,565,820 

558,105 

243,415 

98,624 

900,144 

3,465,964 I 

121,309 

69,319 

3,656,592 I 

147,112 

3,803,104 I 

162,799 

3,966,503 I 
345,086 

4,311,5891 

790,050 

2,553,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

5,109,549 

2,028,222 

11,215,020 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
814



L.J HOFFMAN CONSTRUcnON COMPANY 
,...., OF WASHIMJTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 -Addition of Micropiles 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 
16 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (4 mos) 

NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (4mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce -- BIM modeling (8 hours per week x 16 weeks) 

NSS 
NSS 007012 Temp housing (16 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction Photographs 

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints 

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Initial crane operator ( 6/19/16 - 7/19/16) 

NSS 01S7SO Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (4weeks) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) 

NSS 00706S Transport Equipment 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (4 months) 

NSS 0157SO Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7 /31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension (16 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 4 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters (4 each x 16 weeks) 

HCC 

Larson 

Pell co 

Malcolm 

NWTC 

Morrow-HCC 

Ness 

Ness 

Kent 

ETI 

NWTC, Morrow 

HCC 

Garner 

Garner 

Condon 
Morrow 

Triad Mach 

Triad Mach 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

&n2l!!!1 Comment 

$ 4,312.00 

$ 20,368.00 

$ 47,120.00 

$ 12,800.00 

$ 6,000.00 

$ 
$ 
Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

$ 68,850.00 

$ 2,359.00 

$ 9,5S3.00 

$ 14,960.00 

$ 23,300.00 

$ 13,000.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 3S,648.00 

$ 8,765.00 

$ 1,830.00 

$ 5,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 17,780.00 

$ 17,340.00 

$54,108 - carry in directs 

$ 16,550.00 FOB Jobsite per Morrow 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 59,372.00 

$ 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 2,400.00 

$ 70,160.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 

$ 1,216.00 

Add radios for operators 

$ 304.00 and bellman 

$ 600.00 

$ 2,400.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
815



§ml!R 

NSS 
~ Description 

007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007063 Fuel and Main! on Diesel Pump 

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 
NSS 007098 Computer Charges (16 weeks) 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
Direct 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month) 

010500 Ming Survey 9Sst and 117ot {768hrs ST and lOhrs OT) 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 

Berming of site perimeter (flood protection dike) 

01S300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 4 months 

01S300 Fence Rental Extension (4 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (4 months) 

015280 First Aid/ Water Stations (4 each - Purchase) 

NSS OlSlOO Temporary Electric 

TC OlSlOO Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' 

Answering 

Innovations 

Ming 

Soundview 

Pell co 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 16 weeks) 

NSS 01Sl50 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 16 weeks) 

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter -- field office 

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (16wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 

NSS 015200 Second stair tower rental (12 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 16 weeks) 

NSS 015282 Drug Tests (50 ea) 

NSS 015800 Signage (20/ea @ 150) 

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (4 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage 
NSS 017990 Job Services (16 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #ffl - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

$ 25,247.00 

$ 1,965.00 

$ 10,982.00 

$ 800.00 

$ 520.00 

$ 74,060.00 

$ 4,965.00 

In direct costs 

$ 2,244.00 

$ 1,300.00 

$ 640.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 16,000.00 

3ea 4" conduits x 2001f 

$ 3,600.00 w/SO Cord 

$ 6,750.00 

$ 24,260.00 

ByCOH 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 4,250.00 

$ 750.00 

$ 3,200.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 54,400.00 

$ 801,520.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
816



Specified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 12 $ 3,270 $ 39,240 
Bryan Shirley 14 $ 3,818 $ 53,452 
Ben Larson 16 $ 2,745 $ 43,920 

$ 136,612 

Other LS GC $ 10,500 

Total Specified GC $ 147,112 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 
CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J

817



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
Job No: 5100014 

Cost Dacriptio• of Work Spec HCCO 
Code Section Bud .. t 

Bid Co,..,,nrison - Microollts 01340 $2,901,440 
Pavment & Perfonnance Bonds 

Unit Price for Obstruction Abandonment of Piles 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Unit Price for Addition of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for l 5 oiles 

Unit Price for Deletion of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for JO oiles 

Unit Price for Add/Reduce Micro Pite Leni?th 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Total Bid Amount S2,901,440 
Yd to Buy 

Totol Bud1et $2,901,440 

Bid Bond 
Addendum No. 1 - 4 
WA License# 
Federal ID 
Washinlrton UBI 
Washington ES Number 
DBE Forms 

w HOfFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

1505 WESTlAKE AVENUE NORTlf, sum 500 

n SEJ.Tn.E. WASHINGTON 98109 

http://www.hoffmi!lncorp.com 

Work Item: Bid Comparison - Microplles 
Bid Package: #1- Site Prep C 

Condon .. Jolrin100 Donald Morphy Malcom Drillinc Budincer 

$2,071,000 $2,1 15,000 $2,649,000 $2,924,431 

$16.050 $18 050 $26.825 $23.500 

$6,000 $14,000 $5,000 $41,600 
$3Mf $70/lf S25/l S208/lf 

$52,500 $79 500 SI05,000 $204,750 
$3500/eaoh S5300/each S7000/each S13650/each 

IS20,000) ($21,000) IS20,000) ($136.500) 
S2000/oach $2100/each S2000/each S 13650/each 

Sl0.200 S18,000 $18.000 $41,600 
$51/lf $90/lf S90/ll $208/lf 

S2,135,750 S2.223,550 S2,783,825 S.l,099,381 so 

S2,ll5.750 S2.223.S50 52,783,825 S.1,099,381 so 

CONDOJA034N7 DONALl331RO MALCOD263BS BUDINAI0550M 
94-2248694 91-0826786 94-1671918 91-1684799 
601368804 278049134 6000535337 601638902 
746380008 307986000 439189009 842157006 
lndudtd Included Included lndudtd 

We recommend that this work be awarded to: Condon - Johnson 

Subcontract!Purchase Agreement Amount $2,135, 750 
We recommend that thi.< woit be bonded: Yes 

Estimated Bond Cost: Included in bid 1mount 

Hoffman Construction Company By: \...?-~ 
Date: 1/5/2016 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment C 

so 

so 

Approved: Va 

Date: 

Date Printed: 1/S/2016 

File: BC 01340 

so 

so 

I No -- --

so 

so 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment J
818



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133TM - 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor. Washington 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hoffman Construction Company of Washington 
600 Stewart Street Suite I 000 
Seattle, Washington 98101 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estelllish e GlillfflAh!etl Meiciffiliffi PFiee. authorize the 
Construction Manager to proceed with the Work of Deeo Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Deep Concrete Work 
@Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified 
General Conditions. The Owner and Construction Manager anticipate subsequent 
amendment(s) to the Agreement to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 
remainder of the Work. This is the Seventh GMP Amendment for this Project. As agreed 
by the O\.Vller and Construction Manager, the Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount 
that the Contract Sum shall not eKeeee. exceed for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified General Conditions. 
The Contract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's Fee plus the Cost of the Work, 
as that term is defined in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed~ 
t,-:Nine Million Three Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars 
($9.355,968.00) for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work. which 
Contract Sum includes all related Negotiated Support Services, Soecified General 
Conditions, Contingency, and the Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
tax is not included in the above amount and will be added to the Cost of the Work. 

§ A.1 .1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximwn Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Provide below or reference an attachment.) 

This document has Important 

legal consequences. 

Consultation with an attorney 

Is encouraged with respect to 
its completion or modification. 

AIA Document A201 ™-2007, 

General Conditions of the 

Contract for Construction, Is 

adopted In this document by 

reference. Do not use wtth other 

general conditions unless this 

document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1J3"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright IC 1991, 2003 end 2009 by The Amelicen Institute of Architects. All rights niaarved. WARNING: This 
AJA• DOGument la protKted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnt.matlonal Trv•tl••· Un•uthorlzed reproducUon or dlatrlbuUon or thh• AJA• Document, or 
an rtlon of It, ma result In 1ev11re clvll and c:rlmlnaJ ~ltloa, and will be roaacutee to the maximum extent : aalble under the law. Thia 
oc:ument was y re at 09;08 30 on 0 Jl20;16 u er er No.1248342233_1 Wflx:ill expre5 on 04122/2016, and Is notfor resale 

U1erNotea: 
CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
819



lnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work@ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted a/le males. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner lo 
accept other alternates subsequent to the execution of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Performance Bond. included within the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and srate exclusions, if any, from the a/lawance price.) 

Item 
Structure Crack Injection 
Structure Water Testing 
Emergency Repair at Existing Surge Tank 
Early Mechanical BIM Detailing and Spool Sheets HCC 

Price ($0.00) 
$100,000.00 
$50.000.00 
$45.000.00 
$75.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work @ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. Within this GMP Amendment. the "Concrete Foundations and Walls - Area 30 HSI" 
Work is on a time and materials basis with a not exceed amount of Five Million Four Hundred Forty-Four Thousand 
Eight Hundred Thirtv Dollars ($5,444,830.00). 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

I. Hoffinan Cost Summary for Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

2. Hoffinan GMP No. 7 Project Schedule. 

OeGlllHAt 

§ A.1 .1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit altached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Secondary Building (Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package Technical 
Specifications dated January 2016. as updated through addenda. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondarv Building {Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package dated 
January 2016, as updated through addenda. 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(List any other documents or information here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

AJA Document A133"'- 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American tnstitute al Archi1ecls. All rights rvaerved. WARNING. Thia 
AJA• Document la protected by U.S. Copyright Law and 11\te!YMltlonal Tntatln. Unauthorized rvproductlon "distribution of th ta AJA• Docum•nr. or 
1"¥ poctlo0 of It, m•y cn11't In -.wera ch<f Inc! cdm•n•• penal!lq Md wu1 be paDNC11•11d ID thl mnlm&1111 ldaat po11lble undlf' th• I- TtA
docllment was produced by AIA software at 09:08:30 on 0312312016 under Order No 1248342233_ 1 which oxpires on IM/2212016, and is not for resale 

User Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 
(1094927688} 

2 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
820



Contractor shall employ performance and cost control in accordance with the letter !Tom KBA dated March 22. 
2016. 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Specifications Insert dated I 0130113. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance with the City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21, 2015. 

ARTICLE A.2 
§ AJ..1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by this Amendment: 

6. 

~--} ~ ~---------CON~~at11re) 

&'o Se~ > JL~'--
fPrinted name and title) r..::-::-o--"- ·~~/ Th,~. s -- R~~l-f!!Jr· 

(Printed name and title) 

AJA Document A133"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute af Architects. All rights rvserved. WARNING: Thl9 
AlA• Document le protected by U.S. Copyright Law •nd International Trvatln. Unauthorized rvproducllon or dl•trlbutlon ofthl8 N.A• Document, or 

----~•!Jr.......,Jl~!l-°!.. lt._~Lresult !.'!. a.tvm clvl!.Jif?!l_c!'.!rnl!'f !.M!lt~ ... •nd_~PJMJ>C01tcu~1.Jn••l0111.m..t"1tftt..00Ullllil 1u1dtc,1!LtJ1w...trJs __ 
document was produced by AJA sottware at 09:08 30 on 0312312016 under Older No 1248342233_ 1 which expires on 0412212016, and is not for resale. 
UaerNot111: 

lnlL 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

3 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
821



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, lo the best of my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 09:08:30 on 03123/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233_ 1 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AJA e Document A 133™ - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximwn Price Amendment. 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striking over deleted text 

(Signed) 

(Title) 

(Dated) 

AJA Document 0401 "' - 2003. Copyriglll C 1992 and 2003 by The American lnsblula of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AJA• Document Is 
procac:tad by U.S. Copyright Law and lntematlonal Tr&11tln. Unauthorlzod rvproductlon or dl•trlbutlon of this AJA• Document, or any portion of It, 1 JD1Y t1Slltt In ff'drl..CJyJl.lJl:ClcrllnlDillJ;leDAltlH and wm be pmHcuted 10 !ht •.uknum Ht111t poulhll un<fer "'* la• Ibis 4«wn1:~-
AIA !.OflWare at 09 08 30 on 0312312016 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which elq)ires on 0412212016. and is not for resale. 
UeerNotea: 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A ( 1094927688) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
822



L HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ri OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation 

Deep Concrete Work @Area 30 & Misc. Changes 

Direct Cost of Work 

Concrete Foundatio ns and Walls -- Area 30 HSI 

Deep Concrete Structural Excavation and Backfill Pellco 

Underslab Piping at Area 30 TBO 

Aluminum Embedded edge angle at trenches WIW 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GL9 CJA 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GLA at sump CJA S 
CE 0048 Additional MBR Cassette Suppor t Beams GE-Zenon S 

CE 0049 Remove 40hp VFD's from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0050 Remove Blower Starter from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0051 - Change MBR RIO Panels to Floor Mount GE-Zenon 

CE OOS8 -- Increased MBR Hanger Arm Lengths GE-Zenon 

CE 0043 - Sheet Piling Obstruction M itigation CJA, 

Pellco S 

Allowance - St ructure crack injection S 
Allowance - Structure water testing S 

Allowance - Emergency Repair at Exist . Surge Tank CE 0057 S 

Allowance -Early mechanical BIM detailing and Spool 

Sheets HCC 

15-Mar-16 

Rev 1 

5,444,830 

120,697 

120,320 

24,118 

90,000 

S0,000 

55,000 

(8,408) 

(25,988) 

11,467 

10,207 

76,942 

100,000 

50,000 

45,000 

75,000 

Total Direct Cost s ______ 6..,,2_3_9 ... ,1_8_5_ 

Negotiated Support Services 

Negotiated Support Services HCC s 1,307,264 

Builders Risk -- Premium for Projected Total GMP Woodr uff S 351,9S9 

Additional Dewatering Well for Deep Excavation Pellco S S,660 

Corrosion Resistant Dewatering Pumps (Purchase -3ea) Mitchell S 10,070 

Self Dumping Dirt Hoppers for Si r. Exe. (purchase) 2 ea HCC ....=.S ______ ..:2:.:2:<.:,1:..:1:.:6'-

Total NSS _..;..S _____ l..;.,6_9_7"-,0-6_9_ 

Total NSS and Direct Costs._! S;:;.._ ____ _c7..c,9:..:3:..:6:<.:,2:.:S-'4_.I 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

s 
s 

277,769 

158,725 

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies ~I .,;S _____ ..:8:.c,3:.:7-=2"-, 7'-4"8'-'I 

Specified General Conditions s S99,220 

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Condit ions Is 8,971,968 I 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% s 384,000 

Total GMP Cost._l ;,;.5 ____ ~9,c:.3::.;SS'-',9::.;6:..:8'--'I 

Washington Stat e Sales Tax @8.7% -'-5 ______ 8_1_3~,9_6_9_ 

Total Amendment No 7 (Incl. Sales Tax)._I .!;$ ____ .;;.10"''c:l-=6.;;.9,.;:,9c.;;3..;.7_1 
Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 

Total GC/ CM Contract with this Amendment w/ o WSST 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

790,050 

2,SS3,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

S,109,549 

2,028,222 

3,966,S03 

26, 630, 9ss I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
823



HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY r1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 

Clean Water Facil ity Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 7 - Area 30 Foundation and Walls 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 

40 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (10 mos) 
NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (10 mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce - SIM modeling (8 hours per week x 20 weeks) 

NSS 007012 Temp housing (40 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (10 mos) 
NSS 007026 Plans and Prints (lOmos) 
TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 00706S Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 01S200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower cr ane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (7 / 19/ 16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS 015750 Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (7/19/16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 
NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Mlcropile Work (16 weeks) 
NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (10 mos) 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (10 months) 
NSS 015750 Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7/31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party {40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 
NSS 007060 Radio r ental extension - 4 units (40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 40 weeks) 
NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 40 weeks rental 
NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) 

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (40 weeks) 

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service {130/month for lOmos) 

Ming Survey $95/hr st and $117 /hr ot 
NSS 010500 (1600hrs ST and 160hrs OT) 

Garner 

Garner 

Answering 
Innovations 

Ming 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Remaining Premium on 

s Summary 

$ 50,920.00 

$ 117,800.00 

s 16,000.00 

s 15,000.00 

s 5,000.00 

s 1,000.00 
Incl w -amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Ind w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

$ 213,360.00 

$ 208,080.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 30,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 8,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

s 20,000.00 

w-spec GC 

$ 3,040.00 
Add radios for operators 

s 3,040.00 and bellman 

s 1,500.00 

s 24,000.00 

s 35,188.00 

$ 17,701.00 

$ 4,000.00 

s 1,300.00 
Half time 2 man crew, 2 

hours OT I week 7S% of 

$ 127,200.00 period 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
824



Group 
NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

Code Description 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 
015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 10 months 

015300 Fence Rental Extension (10 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (10 months) 
NS5 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (10 months) 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

NSS 

015220 Temp Road Maint 
015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (10 months) 

015280 First Aid / Water Stations (2 each additional- Purchase) 

015280 First Ai d Station Maintenance & Supply ( 10 months) 

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (10 months) 

Temporary Electric 

NSS 015100 -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 10 months 
TC 015100 Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existi ng pole, 300' 

Sub 
Soundview 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 40 weeks) 
NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 40 weeks) 
NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter - field office 
NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side ofWIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (40wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 
NSS 015200 Extension of Second stair tower rental (40 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 
NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 40 weeks) 
NSS 015282 Drug Tests (180 ea) 

NSS 015800 Sign age (10 mos) 
NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (10 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 10 mos) 
NSS 017990 Job Services (40 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 5,610.00 

$ 5,750.00 

$ 1,600.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 28,000.00 

$ 1,500.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

3ea 4" conduitsx 200lf 

Incl w-amend 6 w/SO Cord 

$ 16,875.00 

$ 82,000.00 
By COH 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 15,300.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 9,500.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 136,000.00 

$ 1,307,264 .00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
825



S~ecified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 30 $ 3,270 $ 98,100 

Bryan Shirley 40 $ 3,818 $ 152,720 

Ben Larson 40 $ 2,745 $ 109,800 

Kevin Ryan 40 $ 2,840 $ 113,600 

$ 474,220 

Other LS GC $ 125,000 

Total Specified GC $ 599,220 

RFFP Total: $ 2,007,490 

Total Specified Ge's Included to Date by Amendment 

Amount % ofTota l 

Amendment 1 $ 0% 

Amendment 2 $ 108,034 5% 

Amendment 3 $ 0% 

Amendment 4 $ 162,180 8% 

Amendment 5 $ 0% 

Amendment 6 $ 147,112 7% 

Amendment 7 $ 599,220 30% 

Total To Date $ 1,016,546 51% 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
826



3/22/2016 

Brett Arvidson, PE 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 

Re: Oak Harbor - Clean Water Facility 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

This letter serves to confirm that the accuracy of the costs that Hoffman Construction (Hoffman) 
used to estimate the overall cost of proposed GMP Amendment No. 7, are reasonably acceptable. 

KBA performed an independent quantity estimate (i.e., takeoff) to check the volume of concrete, 
weight of reinforcing steel and surface contact area for formwork. KBA obtained two independent 
quotes for the cost of concrete. Three competitive bids for the furnishing and installation of 
reinforcing steel were also reviewed. Labor rates were checked against local area prevail ing 
wage rates. Hoffman's proposed construction schedule was evaluated and the proposed 
schedule duration of 45 weeks was found to be a reasonable amount of time to perform the Work. 

The total cost of the self-performed work does not exceed 50% of the current contract value, 
which is the maximum percentage of self-performed work allowed by RCW 39.10.370(7)(c). 

KBA's recommendation is to accept Hoffman's final cost estimate of $5,444,830 (excluding 
Washington State Sales Tax) for proposed GMP Amendment No. 7. 

It is also recommended that the Work and General Conditions should be tracked and paid on a 
time-and-material basis. 

Analysis of Hoffman's cost estimate was performed in a manner consistent with that degree of 
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under 
similar circumstances, in the same geographical area and time period. 

Please contact K Adams or myself if you have any comments or questions. 

Chad Oxford, PE 

KBA, INC. (MAIN OFFICE) 11201 SE 8th Street~ Suite 160 Bellevue, Washington 98004 
CWF - GMP Amendment #1 - Attachment C 

T 425 455 9720 F 425 455 9732 KBACM.com 

CWF - GMP Amendment #8 - Attachment K
827



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Mandatory Council Review of 
LTAC Membership - OHMC 
2.66.030

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the LTAC Membership and make changes as appropriate.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code 2.66.030 requires the Council to review the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee (LTAC) Membership on an annual basis and make changes as appropriate.

Attached is the current Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster. This Roster anticipates 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 10.a
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: Mandatory Council Review of 
LTAC Membership - OHMC 
2.66.030

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the LTAC Membership and make changes as appropriate.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code 2.66.030 requires the Council to review the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee (LTAC) Membership on an annual basis and make changes as appropriate.

Attached is the current Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster. This Roster anticipates Attached is the current Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster. This Roster anticipates 
that Ashlie Bird's appointment as Collector 3 will be confirmed by Council in Consent Agenda Item 4.c 
above. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.66.030

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Current LTAC Board Member Roster

Attached is the current Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster. This Roster anticipates 
that Ashlie Bird's appointment as Collector 3 will be confirmed by Council in Consent Agenda Item 4.c 
above. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.66.030

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Current LTAC Board Member Roster

828

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472759380x_at.pdf


Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) 

MEMBERSHIP ROSTER 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Joel Servatius, Chair  
Councilmember 
Original Appointment:  1/05/2016 
Term Expiration:  1/05/2019 

Ron Apgar 
Paint Your World Owner 
Recipient 1 
Original Appointment: 7/01/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2016 

Robert (Bob) Lundstrom 
Candlewood Suites Manager 
Collector 1 
Original Appointment:  8/06/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2016 

Jason McFadyen 
Chamber of Commerce Board Member 
Recipient 2 
Original Appointment: 10/06/2015 

Pete Franssen 
Auld Holland Inn Owner 
Collector 2 
Original Appointment:  8/06/2014 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2017 

Margaret Livermore 
OH Music Festival & OH Main Street President 
Recipient 3 
Original Appointment:  10/06/2015 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2018 

Ashlie Bird  
Best Western Plus Sales Manager 
Collector 3 
Original Appointment:  9/06/2016 
Term Expiration:  12/31/2018 

Term Expiration:  12/31/2017 

829



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program 
Referral to Council - 45 day 
period 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to refer potential changes in the use of Lodging Tax (2%) funds to the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee for review and comment.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill refers to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), any changes in the use of 
Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 10.b
Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program 
Referral to Council - 45 day 
period 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to refer potential changes in the use of Lodging Tax (2%) funds to the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee for review and comment.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill refers to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), any changes in the use of 
Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

For the 2016 Grant Year, City Council set aside a total of $250,000.00 for use of Lodging Tax Funds. 
$100,000 of those monies were previously designated by Council per Resolution 14-44 in 2014.  Staff 
recommendation is to suggest the same level of funding for 2017.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 67.28.1817, Council refers any changes to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee for
consideration at least 45 days prior to taking action on any such changes.

FISCAL IMPACT
The estimated fiscal impact cannot be determined at this time. The fiscal impact of this action is
dependent on the amount of lodging tax funds referred to the LTAC for consideration, as well as the 
level of application interest by those entities requesting funding.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

For the 2016 Grant Year, City Council set aside a total of $250,000.00 for use of Lodging Tax Funds. 
$100,000 of those monies were previously designated by Council per Resolution 14-44 in 2014.  Staff 
recommendation is to suggest the same level of funding for 2017.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 67.28.1817, Council refers any changes to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee for
consideration at least 45 days prior to taking action on any such changes.

FISCAL IMPACT
The estimated fiscal impact cannot be determined at this time. The fiscal impact of this action is
dependent on the amount of lodging tax funds referred to the LTAC for consideration, as well as the 
level of application interest by those entities requesting funding.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

830



ATTACHMENTS
1. Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016
ATTACHMENTS
1. Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016

831

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472601746x_at.pdf


City of Oak Harbor

Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016

Cash as of 7/31/2016 664,011.24

Plus: Estimated revenues to be received by 12/31/2016 82,515.48

Less: Committed amounts to be spent in 2% awards for 2016 (119,963.82)

     Projected Cash as of 12/31/2016 626,562.90

832


	Agenda for the September 6, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting
	2.c.i  2015 Annual Police Department Report
	 OHPD 2015 Annual Report

	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the August 3, 2016 Regular Council Meeting and Special Council Workshop Meeting on August 24, 2016
	 8/03/2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	 8/24/2016 Special Workshop Meeting Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)
	 Voucher Listing (3)

	C/A 4.c  Resolution 16-26: Acknowledging the Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization (Island RTPO) and authorizing membership therein
	 Resolution No. 16-26
	 RTPO Interlocal Agreement

	C/A 4.d  Appointment:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Collector 3 - Ashlie Bird
	 Application and Resume - Ashlie Bird
	 LTAC Membership Roster

	C/A 4.e  Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 2 - Bruce Freeman
	C/A 4.f  Reappointment: Planning Commission, Position 3 - Cecil Pierce
	C/A 4.g  Authorize Agreement with Tim Shelley, Jr. for Videographer Services 
	 PSA with Tim Shelley, Jr.

	C/A 4.h  First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Replacement at Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall
	 SVC - City of Oak Harbor Interlocal Agreement - Amendment
	 Interlocal Agreement between SVC and City for HVAC Replacement 2016
	 Letter of Understanding and Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990
	 Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC and City 1990

	C/A 4.i  Public Defense Services - New Procedure for Conflict Attorneys 
	 City of Oak Harbor Resolution 14-41
	 RCW 10.101.030 - Requirement to Adopt Public Defense Standards
	 2012 Washington State Supreme Court Order - Indigent Defense Standards
	 Conflict Attorney Pay Survey prepared by Island County
	 Conflict Attorney Pay Comparison - WA State Office of Public Defense

	C/A 4.j  Purchase Authorization-Jail Van Price Change
	5.c.i  Clean Water Facility Project Update
	 WWTP City Council Update

	6.a  Ordinance No. 1782: Amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 Effect of Approval and OHMC 21.40.020 Timeline for Submittal of Final Plat and Extensions for Completion of Improvements.
	 DRAFT Ordinance No. 1782 with strikethroughs: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 21.40.020.
	 FINAL Ordinance No. 1782: amendments to OHMC 21.20.080 and OHMC 21.40.020.

	6.b  Ordinance No. 1783: Budget Amendment for Skagit Valley College/Library HVAC upgrade and replacement
	 Ordinance 1783 Budget Amendment Skagit Valley College Library HVAC

	8.a  Clean Water Facility - Professional Services Agreement with ERCI - Amendment No. 7
	 Attachment A - PSA Amendment No. 7
	 Attachment B - Amendment No. 7 Scope of Work Letter
	 Attachment C - Original PSA, & Amendments 1 through 6 (combined document)

	8.b  Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15 for Interpretive Center Design
	 Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 15
	 Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
	 Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

	8.c  Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #8
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #8)
	 Attachment B - GMP #8 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
	 Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
	 Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
	 Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
	 Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5
	 Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
	 Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7

	10.a  Mandatory Council Review of LTAC Membership - OHMC 2.66.030
	 Current LTAC Board Member Roster

	10.b  2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program Referral to Council - 45 day period 
	 Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016




